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HEALTH SERVICES AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APRIL 28, 2021 
APPLICATION SUMMARY  

 
NAME OF PROJECT: Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens 
      
PROJECT NUMBER: CN2101-001 
 
ADDRESS: 1114 West Madison Avenue 
    Athens, (McMinn County), TN  37303 
 
LEGAL OWNER: Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 
    1114 West Madison Avenue  

Athens (McMinn County), TN  37303 
 
OPERATING ENTITY: N/A 
     
CONTACT PERSON: Kim H. Looney, Attorney 
    K & L Gates, LLP 
    222 Second Avenue S, Suite 1700 
    Nashville, TN 37201 
    (615) 780-6727 
     
DATE FILED:  January 13, 2021 
 
PROJECT COST:  $5,048,865 
     
FINANCING: Cash Reserves 
 
PURPOSE FOR FILING:    The initiation of cardiac catheterization services   
 
DESCRIPTION:   
 
Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens proposes to initiate diagnostic and 
therapeutic cardiac catheterization services located at 1114 West Madison Avenue, 
Athens, (McMinn County), TN  37303.  The development of the proposed cardiac 
catheterization lab will require construction of a 2,841 square foot addition and 
renovation to the existing hospital facility.  This space will house a GE Innova 530 
cardiovascular/interventional imaging system in an interventional suite, a control 
room, holding area, workstation and changing room.  The project’s service area 
includes McMinn, Meigs and Monroe Counties. 
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SPECIFIC CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW: 

Cardiac Catheterization Services 
 
Note to Agency members: The need determination for cardiac 
catheterization is based on a weighted system. This system considers 
three categories of diagnostic catheterizations and three types of 
therapeutic catheterizations.  The three categories are cardiac 
catheterization, peripheral vascular catheterization, and 
electrophysiological study.  The definition of these studies follows: 
 
Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization: The performance of cardiac 
catheterization for the purpose of detecting and identifying defects in the great 
arteries or veins of the heart, or abnormalities in the heart structure, whether 
congenital or acquired. Diagnostic cardiac catheterization services include, but 
are not limited to, left heart catheterizations, right heart catheterizations, left 
ventricular angiography, coronary procedures, and other cardiac 
catheterization services of a diagnostic nature. Post-operative evaluation of 
the effectiveness of prostheses also can be accomplished through a diagnostic 
catheterization procedure. 

Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: The performance of cardiac 
catheterization for the purpose of correcting or improving certain conditions 
that have been determined to exist in the heart or great arteries or veins of 
the heart. This includes Percutaneous Coronary Interventions (PCI) or any 
catheter-based treatment procedures for relieving coronary artery narrowing. 
Included within this definition are procedures such as rotational 
atherectomy, directional atherectomy, extraction atherectomy, laser 
angioplasty, implantation of intracoronary stents, brachytherapy, and other 
catheter treatments for treating coronary atherosclerosis. 

Diagnostic Peripheral Vascular Catheterization: An invasive diagnostic test 
in which a catheter is inserted into a peripheral vein or artery to inject dye 
(contrast medium). X-rays are taken of the dye within the arteries, allowing 
clear visualization of the blood flow inside the artery where peripheral 
vascular disease can occur. This test may be performed within a cardiac 
catheterization laboratory. 

Therapeutic Peripheral Vascular Catheterization: A procedure that can be 
used to dilate (widen) narrowed or blocked peripheral arteries or to remove a 
clot or plaque from arteries. In conjunction with or subsequent to peripheral 
vascular catheterization, a therapeutic procedure may be performed by 
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various means that include balloon angioplasty, stenting, and atherectomy 
or other mechanical intervention to restore blood flow to the effected organ or 
tissue. These procedures may be performed within a cardiac catheterization 
laboratory. 

a) Balloon Angioplasty: A thin tube called a catheter with a deflated 
balloon on its tip is passed into the narrowed artery segment. The 
balloon is then inflated, compressing the plaque and dilating the 
narrowed artery so that blood can flow more easily. The balloon is 
then deflated and the catheter is withdrawn. 

b) Peripheral Stenting: A cylindrical, wire mesh tube that expands and 
locks open -may be placed in the narrowed artery with another 
catheter to keep the diseased artery open. 

c) Catheter-based Atherectomy: A procedure for opening up an artery 
using a specialized catheter inserted into a blocked artery to remove a 
buildup of plaque. The catheter may contain a sharp rotating blade 
("burr" device), dissectional device (grinding bit), or laser filament to 
remove the plaque. It may be used as a complement to angioplasty and 
stenting. 

 
Diagnostic Electrophysiological Study: An invasive test performed that 
allows an electrophysiologist to determine the details of abnormal 
heartbeats, or arrhythmias. Measurements related to the electrical system 
within the heart are made at baseline and during stimulation to provide 
information about the exact location and type of arrhythmia so that specific 
treatment can be given. During this testing, cardiac mapping through the use of 
catheter manipulation or 3-dimensional systems may take place. The 
arrhythmia may start from any area of the heart's electrical conduction.   
 
Therapeutic Electrophysiological Study: In conjunction with the 
diagnostic electrophysiological study, a therapeutic procedure called 
catheter ablation may be performed. Catheter ablation is most commonly 
done through the delivery of radio-frequency energy or cryo-energy to an area 
of the heart to selectively destroy cardiac tissue. 
 
The weighting system is displayed in the following chart: 

 
Category Weight 
Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization 1 
Diagnostic Peripheral Vascular Catheterization 1.5 
Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization 2.0 
Therapeutic Peripheral Vascular 
Catheterization 

3.0 

Diagnostic Electrophysiological Studies 2.0 
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Therapeutic Electrophysiological Studies 4.0 
Pediatrics Double Adult 

Weight 

Applicants proposing to provide any type of cardiac catheterization services 
must meet the following minimum standards: 

1. Compliance with Standards: The Division of Health Planning is working 
with stakeholders to develop a framework for greater accountability to 
these Standards and Criteria. Applicants should indicate whether they 
intend to collaborate with the Division and other stakeholders on this 
matter. 

The applicant intends to collaborate with the Division of Health Planning and 
other stakeholders.  

It appears that this criterion is met. 

2. Facility Accreditation: If the applicant is not required by law to be 
licensed by the Department of Health, the applicant should provide 
documentation that the facility is fully accredited or will pursue 
accreditation by the Joint Commission or another appropriate accrediting 
authority recognized by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
(CMS). 

The applicant is an existing acute care hospital facility which is licensed by 
the Department of Health and accredited by The Joint Commission.  The 
applicant indicates that the cardiac catheterization laboratory will be 
included in the licensure and accreditation for the facility.  

It appears that this criterion is met. 

3. Emergency Transfer Plan: Applicants for cardiac catheterization 
services located in a facility without open heart surgery capability 
should provide a formalized written protocol for immediate and 
efficient transfer of patients to a nearby open-heart surgical facility (within 
60 minutes) that is reviewed/tested on a regular (quarterly) basis. 

The applicant states that it will seek a formalized written transfer agreement 
with Parkwest Medical Center located in Knoxville (Knox County), TN which is 
approximately 51 miles from Starr Regional Medical Center.  If needed, patients 
can be transferred within 60 minutes to Parkwest Medical Center. 
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It appears that this criterion has been met. 

4. Quality Control and Monitoring: Applicants should document a plan to 
monitor the quality of its cardiac catheterization program, including, but 
not limited to, program outcomes and efficiency. In addition, the 
applicant should agree to cooperate with quality enhancement efforts 
sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee, which may be developed 
per Policy Recommendation 2. 

The applicant indicated it will monitor the quality of the cardiac catheterization 
program including program outcomes and efficiencies.  The applicant will work 
collaboratively with other LifePoint owned and operated facilities that offer 
cardiac catheterization in order to adopt standards for Cardiac Catheterization 
Laboratory Continuous Quality Improvement. 

It appears that this criterion is met. 

5. Data Requirements: Applicants should agree to provide the 
Department of Health and/or the Health Services and Development 
Agency with all reasonably requested information and statistical data 
related to the operation and provision of services and to report that data in 
the time and format requested. As a standard of practice, existing data 
reporting streams will be relied upon and adapted over time to collect all 
needed information. 

The applicant agrees to provide all relevant requested data.  

It appears that this criterion is met. 

6. Clinical and Physical Environment Guidelines: Applicants should agree 
to document ongoing compliance with the latest clinical guidelines of the 
American College of Cardiology/Society for Cardiac Angiography and 
Interventions Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Cardiac 
Catheterization Laboratory Standards (ACC Guidelines).  

Where providers are not in compliance, they should maintain 
appropriate documentation stating the reasons for noncompliance and 
the steps the provider is taking to ensure quality. These guidelines 
include, but are not limited to, physical facility requirements, staffing, 
training, quality assurance, patient safety, screening patients for 
appropriate settings, and linkages with supporting emergency 
services. 
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The applicant has agreed to comply with the latest clinical and physical 
environmental guidelines of the American College of Cardiology/Society for 
Cardiac Angiography and Interventions and physical environment 
guidelines.   

It appears that this criterion is met. 

7. Staffing Recruitment and Retention: The applicant should 
generally describe how it intends to maintain an adequate staff to 
operate the proposed service, including, but not limited to, any plans 
to partner with an existing provider for training and staff sharing. 

The applicant plans to partner with Parkwest Medical Center (Knox County) to 
assist in the identification of cardiologists for the new laboratory.  Parkwest 
Medical Center will also provide support for the implementation of training at 
the lab. The laboratory will be staffed with 2 cardiologists and other appropriate 
staff including a combination of registered nurses and X-Ray technologists.  

It appears that this criterion is met. 

8. Definition of Need for New Services: A need likely exists for new or 
additional cardiac catheterization services in a proposed service area if 
the average current utilization for all existing and approved providers 
is equal to or greater than 70% of capacity (i.e., 70% of 2000 cases) for 
the proposed service area. 

The applicant’s proposed service area includes three counties – McMinn, Meigs 
and Monroe Counties, which do not have existing catheterization services. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

9.  Proposed Service Areas with No Existing Service: In proposed 
service areas where no existing cardiac catheterization service exists, 
the applicant must show the data and methodology used to estimate the 
need and demand for the service. Projected need and demand will be 
measured for applicants proposing to provide services to residents of 
those areas as follows: 
Need. The projected need for a service will be demonstrated through 
need-based epidemiological evidence of the incidence and prevalence 
of conditions for which diagnostic and/or therapeutic catheterization 
is appropriate within the proposed service area. 
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Demand. The projected demand for the service shall be determined 
by the following formula: 

A. Multiply the age group-specific historical state 
utilization rate by the number of residents in each age 
category for each county included in the proposed 
service area to produce the projected demand for each 
age category; 

B. Add each age group's projected demand to determine the 
total projected demand for cardiac catheterization 
procedures for the entire proposed service area. 

 
The applicant provides need formula calculations by age group for each of the 
three counties in the project’s service area: McMinn, Meigs and Monroe 
Counties.  The estimated need by patient county of origin is detailed in the 
table below.  Additional data tables for each county are included in the 
application on pages 22-24. 
 

TOTAL CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION NEED 2024 
 Diagnostic Need Therapeutic Need Total Need 

McMinn 749.42 519.57 1,268.99 
Meigs 186.56 140.84 327.40 

Monroe 691.71 509.93 1,201.64 
TOTAL 1,627.69 1,170.34 2,798.03 

Source: Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-
2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018), CN2101-001, Original 
Application, Page 24 

It appears that this criterion is has been met. 

10. Access: In light of Rule 0720-4-.01 (1), which lists the factors     concerning 
need on which an application may be evaluated, the HSDA may 
decide to give special consideration to an applicant: 

a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved 
area as designated by the United States Health Resources 
and Services Administration; 

All counties included in the applicant’s service area are 
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considered medically underserved.   
 
b. Who documents that the service area population 

experiences a prevalence, incidence and/or mortality from 
heart and cardiovascular diseases or other clinical 
conditions applicable to cardiac catheterization services that 
is substantially higher than the State of Tennessee average. 

 
The counties in the proposed service area all have a higher rate of 
deaths from heart disease per 100,000 population than the state 
overall.  The applicant provides the following table on page 25 of the 
original application. 
 
Number of Deaths from Heart Disease per 100,000 Population 

 2017 2018 
McMinn 315.8 279.6 

Meigs 306.7 341.5 
Monroe 257.4 278.2 
STATE 238.4 242.5 

Source: Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Vital Records and Statistics.  
CN2101-001, Original Application, Page 25. 

 
c. Who is a "safety net hospital" as defined by the Bureau of 

TennCare Essential Access Hospital payment program; or 
 

Since the applicant is not a safety net hospital, it appears that this standard is 
not applicable.  

d. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract 
with at least one TennCare MCO and, if providing adult 
services, to participate in the Medicare program. 

The applicant participates in the Medicare program and contracts 
with all the TennCare MCOs in its service area, including: BlueCare, 
TennCare Select, United Healthcare Community Plan, and 
Amerigroup. 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Diagnostic Cardiac 
Catheterization Services Only 

If an applicant does not intend to provide therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services, the HSDA should place a condition on the resulting 
CON limiting the applicant to providing diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
services only. Applicants proposing to provide only diagnostic cardiac 
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catheterization services should meet the following minimum standards: 

11. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that 
the proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 300 diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization cases per year by its third year of operation. 
Annual volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average 
which shall begin at the conclusion of the applicant's first year of 
operation. if the applicant is proposing services in a rural area where 
the HSDA determines that access to diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
services has been limited, and if the applicant is pursuing a 
partnership with a tertiary facility to share and train staff, the Agency 
may determine that a minimum volume of 200 cases per year is 
acceptable. Only cases including diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
procedures as defined by these Standards and Criteria may count 
towards meeting this minimum volume standard. 

 
The applicant indicates that it will perform (323) cardiac catheterization cases; (233 
diagnostic + 90 therapeutic cases) in Year 1 of the proposed project and (420) cases; 
(306 diagnostic + 114 therapeutic cases) in Year 3 of the project.  This will exceed 
the minimum volume standard of 300 diagnostic cases per year by the project’s third 
year.  The applicant will serve a rural area and will partner with Parkwest Medical 
Center, a tertiary hospital facility located in Knox County. 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 

12. High Risk/Unstable Patients: Such applicants should (a) delineate the 
steps, based on the ACC Guidelines, that will be taken to ensure that 
high-risk or unstable patients are not catheterized in the facility, and 
(b) certify that therapeutic cardiac catheterization services will not be 
performed in the facility unless and until the applicant has received 
Certificate of Need approval to provide therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services. 

The applicant will provide both diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services, and will follow ACC Guidelines to ensure that no 
high risk or unstable patients will be catheterized at the facility. 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 

13. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The 
initiation of a new diagnostic cardiac catheterization program should 
require at least one cardiologist who performed an average of 75 
diagnostic cardiac catheterization procedures over the most recent 
five-year period. All participating cardiologists in the proposed 
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program should be board certified or board eligible in cardiology and 
any relevant cardiac subspecialties. 

The applicant states that it will ensure that the cardiologists who will be 
performing cardiac catheterizations have performed at least 75 diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization procedures over the most recent five-year period. 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 
 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Therapeutic Cardiac 
Catheterization Services 
 
Applicants proposing to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services must 
meet the following minimum standards: 
 

14. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 400 diagnostic and/or 
therapeutic cardiac catheterization cases per year by its third year of 
operation. At least 75 of these cases per year should include a therapeutic 
cardiac catheterization procedure. Annual volume shall be measured based 
upon a two-year average which shall begin at the conclusion of the 
applicant’s first year of operation. Only cases including diagnostic and 
therapeutic cardiac catheterization procedures as defined by these Standards 
and Criteria shall count towards meeting this minimum volume standard. 
 
The applicant indicates that it will perform (323) cardiac catheterization cases; (233 
diagnostic + 90 therapeutic cases) in Year 1 of the project and (420) cases; (306 
diagnostic + 114 therapeutic cases) in Year 3 of the project.  This will exceed the 
minimum volume standard of 400 cases per year. 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 
 

15. Open Heart Surgery Availability: Acute care facilities proposing to offer 
adult therapeutic cardiac catheterization services shall not be required to 
maintain an onsite open heart surgery program. Applicants without on-site 
open-heart surgery should follow the most recent American College of 
Cardiology/American Heart Association/Society for Cardiac Angiography 
and Interventions Practice Guideline Update for Percutaneous Coronary 
Intervention (ACC/AHA/SCAI Guidelines). As of the adoption of these 
Standards and Criteria, the latest version of this document (2007) may be 
found online at: 
http://circ.ahajournals.org/egi/reprint/CIRCULATIONAHA.107.185159 
Therapeutic procedures should not be performed in freestanding cardiac 
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catheterization laboratories, whether fixed or mobile. Mobile units may, 
however, perform therapeutic procedures provided the mobile unit is 
located on a hospital campus and the hospital has on-site open-heart 
surgery. In addition, hospitals approved to perform therapeutic cardiac 
catheterizations without on-site open heart surgery backup may temporarily 
perform these procedures in a mobile laboratory on the hospital’s campus 
during construction impacting the fixed laboratories. 
The applicant does not offer open heart surgery.  The applicant will follow the most 
recent American College of Cardiology/American Heart Association/Society for 
Cardiac Angiography and Interventions Practice Guideline Update for Percutaneous 
Coronary Intervention (ACC/AHA/SCAI Guidelines).  The applicant will maintain 
an emergency transfer protocol with Parkwest Medical Center (Knox County). 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 
 

16. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation 
of a new therapeutic cardiac catheterization program should require at least 
two cardiologists with at least one cardiologist having performed an average 
of 75 therapeutic procedures over the most recent five-year period. All 
participating cardiologists in the proposed program should be board 
certified or board eligible in cardiology and any relevant cardiac 
subspecialties. 
 
The applicant states that it will assure that any cardiologists providing services will 
meet all requirements, including that at least one of the cardiologists performing 
therapeutic procedures shall have performed an average of 75 therapeutic procedures 
over the most recent five-year period. All participating cardiologists in the proposed 
program will be board certified or board eligible in cardiology and any relevant 
cardiac subspecialties. 

It appears that this criterion will be met. 
 

17. Staff and Service Availability: Ideally, therapeutic services should be 
available on an emergency basis 24 hours per day, 7 days per week through 
a staff call schedule (24/7 emergency coverage). In addition, all laboratory 
staff should be available within 30 minutes of the activation of the 
laboratory. If the applicant will not be able to immediately provide 24/7 
emergency coverage, the applicant should present a plan for reaching 24/7 
emergency coverage within three years of initiating the service or present a 
signed transfer agreement with another facility capable of treating 
transferred patients in a cardiac catheterization laboratory on a 24/7 basis 
within 90 minutes of the patient’s arrival at the originating emergency 
department. 
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The applicant plans to meet all staff and service availability requirements to make 
coverage available on an emergency basis 24/7. 
 
It appears that this criterion will be met. 

 
18. Expansion of Services to Include Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: An 

applicant proposing the establishment of therapeutic cardiac catheterization 
services, who is already an existing provider of diagnostic catheterization 
services, should demonstrate that its diagnostic cardiac catheterization unit 
has been utilized for an average minimum of 300 cases per year for the two 
most recent years as reflected in the data supplied to and/or verified by the 
Department of Health. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Pediatric Cardiac 
Catheterization Services 
 

19. Minimum Volume Standard: This standard is consistent with national 
guidelines on the provision of pediatric cardiac catheterization services. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

20. Physician Requirements: This standard is consistent with the most recent 
ACC Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Catheterization Laboratory 
Standards. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

21. Open Heart Surgery Availability: This standard is consistent with the most 
recent ACC Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Catheterization 
Laboratory Standards. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Offering of Mobile Cardiac 
Catheterization Services 
 

22. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 60 cardiac catheterization 
cases per day of operation per year by its third year of operation. Annual 
volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin 
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at the conclusion of the applicant’s first year of operation. If the applicant is 
proposing services in a rural area where the HSDA determines that access to 
diagnostic cardiac catheterization services has been limited, and if the 
applicant is pursuing a partnership with a tertiary facility to share and train 
staff, the Agency may determine that a minimum volume of 40 cases per day 
of operation per year is acceptable. Only cases that included diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization procedures may count towards meeting this 
minimum volume standard. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

23. Limitations on Procedure Types in Mobile Facilities: No therapeutic of 
pediatric cardiac catheterization procedures should be performed using a 
mobile laboratory unless the mobile unit is located on a hospital campus 
with on-site open-heart surgery capability and, in the case of a pediatric 
procedure, offers full pediatric cardiac medical and cardiac surgical 
capabilities. On a temporary basis, however, the same scope of services 
offered in a fixed laboratory may be offered in a mobile laboratory only for 
the duration of construction impacting the fixed laboratory. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

24. Non-Cardiologist Physician and Staff Competence: In cases where 
attending cardiologists live more than 30 minutes from the mobile laboratory 
and/or typically leave after performing a procedure, the applicant should 
document that a sufficient number of physicians and support staff at the 
facility have an understanding of the potential complications of cardiac 
catheterization and are an integral part of the program’s management 
process. 

It appears that this criterion is not applicable. 
 

Staff Summary 
 
The following information is a summary of the original application and all supplemental 
responses.  Any staff comments or notes, if applicable, will be in bold italics as a Note to 
Agency members. 
 
Application Synopsis 
Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens proposes to initiate diagnostic and 
therapeutic cardiac catheterization services located at 1114 West Madison Avenue, 
Athens, (McMinn County), TN  37303. 
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The proposed project is expected to be completed and in service by July 2022.   
 
Facility Information 

• The cardiac catheterization laboratory will be housed in a one-story 
addition/renovation of 2,841 square feet.  Construction includes the 
addition of a 2,409 square feet addition and 432 square foot interior 
renovation located on the North side of the hospital facility directly adjacent 
to the existing Surgery Department.   

• A floor plan drawing is included in the Appendix of the original application 
as Attachment A-6B-2. 

• The cardiac catheterization laboratory will house a GE Innova 530 
cardiovascular/interventional imaging system in an interventional suite, a 
control room, holding area, workstation and changing room.  

 
Ownership  

• Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC owns the applicant.  Athens Regional 
Medical Center, LLC is owned by LifePoint Health, Inc.  

• An ownership organization chart is located in Attachment, Section A-4AB.  
 
Management 

• There will not be a separate management organization involved with this 
applicant. 

 
Project History 

• Since the proposed cardiac catheterization laboratory will be a new health 
care service, there is no project history. 

 
NEED 
Project Need  
The applicant states a certificate of need for a cardiac catheterization laboratory is 
being requested for the following reasons: 

• There are no existing cardiac catheterization services available in the 
project’s service area. 

• As noted in the item 9 of the project-specific standards, the applicant 
estimates that approximately 2,798 residents of the 3-county proposed 
service area need access to cardiac catheterization services. 

 
Service Area Demographics 
Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens’s service area consists of McMinn, Meigs 
and Monroe Counties.  
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Highlights of the applicant’s proposed service area are provided as follows:  
• The total population of the service area is estimated at 112,965 residents in 

CY 2020 increasing by approximately 1.49% to 114,648 residents in CY 2024.  
• The overall Tennessee statewide population is projected to grow by 3.11% 

from 2020 to 2024. 
• The target population is individuals age 45+.  The total target population of 

the service area is estimated at 55,708 residents in CY 2020 increasing by 
approximately 3.9% to 57,919 residents in CY 2024. 

• The number of service area residents enrolled in TennCare is approximately 
24.7% of the total population compared to 21.5% statewide. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Service Area Historical Utilization:  
 
There is no historical utilization for the service area of the project. 
 
Applicant’s Historical and Projected Utilization 
 
The following chart displays the applicant’s cardiac catheterization projections for Year 1, 
Year 2, and Year 3 of the proposed project. 
 

 Year 1 
(2022) 

Year 2 
(2023) 

Year 3 
(2024) 

Diagnostic Catheterizations 233 277 306 
Therapeutic Catheterizations 90 103 114 
TOTAL 323 380 420 

     Source: CN2101-001, Page 27 
 

• Diagnostic catheterizations are projected to increase (31.3%) from 233 in 
Year 1 to 306 in Year 3. 

• Therapeutic catheterizations are projected to increase (26.6%) from 90 in 
Year 1 to 114 in Year 3. 

• The applicant is projecting to perform 323 total catheterizations in Year 1 
increasing (30%) to 420 total catheterizations by Year 3 of the project. 

 
The following chart provides the applicant’s projected utilization by service area county for 
the proposed cardiac catheterization laboratory. 
 

Projected Utilization by Service Area County – Year 1 
Service Area County Year 1 (2022) % of Total Procedures 
McMinn 222 68.5% 
Meigs 30 9.4% 
Monroe 36 11.2% 
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Other 35 10.9% 
TOTAL 323 100% 

Source: CN2101-001, Page 40R.  
 
 
 
 

Projected Utilization by Service Area County – Year 2 
Service Area County Year 2 (2023) % of Total Procedures 
McMinn 260 68.5% 
Meigs 36 9.4% 
Monroe 43 11.2% 
Other 41 10.9% 
TOTAL 380 100% 

Source: CN2101-001, Page 40R.  
 

• The applicant projects that it will capture approximately 35%-50% of the 
procedures for the service area population. 

• The applicant projects a 17.6% increase in the number of procedures from 
Year 1 to Year 2, and an additional 10.5% increase from Year 2 to Year 3 
of the project. 
 

ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY 

Project Cost 
Major costs of the $5,048,865 total estimated project cost are as follows: 

• Total Construction Costs of $2,100,000 or approximately 41.6% of the total 
project cost.  

• Moveable Equipment of $1,410,000 or approximately 27.9% of total cost.  
• Fixed Equipment of $770,000 or approximately 15.2% of total cost.  
• Architectural and Engineering Costs of $297,000 or approximately 5.9% of 

total cost.  
• For other details on Project Cost, see the Project Cost Chart on page 43 of the 

original application. 
 
Financing 
The proposed project will be funded with Cash Reserves in the amount of 
$5,100,000 by LifePoint Healthcare Inc., the applicant’s parent company. 
 

• A letter from J. Michael Grooms, President of LifePoint Corporate Services, 
General Partnership (LCSGP), confirms that LCSGP has sufficient cash and 
other liquid assets to fund its share of the proposed project.  

• Review of LifePoint Health’s audited balance sheet revealed cash of 
$748,100,000 current assets of $2,406,800,000 and current liabilities of 
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$1,175,800,000 for the fiscal period ending December 30, 2019 for a current 
ratio of 2.05 to 1.0.     

 
Note to Agency Members: Current ratio is a measure of liquidity and is the ratio 
of current assets to current liabilities, which measures the ability of an entity to 
cover its current liabilities with its existing current assets.  A ratio of 1:1 would 
be required to have the minimum amount of assets needed to cover current 
liabilities. 

 
Net Operating Margin Ratio 

• The applicant projects a net operating margin ratio for the project of 
approximately 34.55% in Year 1 and 46.45% in Year 2. 

 
Note to Agency Members: The net operating margin demonstrates how much 
revenue is remaining after all the variable or operating costs have been paid.   
 
Capitalization Ratio 

• LifePoint Healthcare Inc.’s most recent audited financial statements indicate 
a capitalization ratio of 88.87%.   

 
Note to Agency Members: The capitalization ratio measures the proportion of debt 
financing in a business’s permanent financing mix.   
 
Historical Data Chart  
The applicant provides a Historical Data Chart for the total hospital facility, but not 
Chart for the Project as this is a new project. 

• Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens reported Free Cash Flow (Net Balance 
+ Depreciation) of $20,985,802 in FY2018, $27,318,449 in FY2019, and 
$28,009,431 in FY2020. 

• Net operating revenue was reported to be $80,330,652 in FY2018, $89,484,340 
in FY2019, and $83,047,308 in FY2020. 

 
Projected Data Chart 
The applicant projects $15,002,737 in total gross revenue on 323 procedures cardiac 
catheterizations) during the first year of operation, $18,475,950 on 380 cases in Year 
2, and $21,536,656 on 420 cases in Year 3.  The Projected Data Chart reflects the 
following: 
 

• Net Balance (Net Income – (Annual Principal Debt Repayment + Annual 
Capital Expenditure)) for the applicant will equal $430,115 in Year 1 
increasing to $941,989 in Year 2 and increasing again to $1,074,283 in Year 3.    

• Net operating revenue after bad debt, charity care, and contractual 
adjustments is expected to reach $2,376,793 or approximately 15.8% of total 
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gross revenue in Year 1 and increase to $3,254,170 or approximately 15.1% of 
total gross revenue in Year 3. 

• Charity care at approximately 0.3% of total gross revenue in Year 3, equaling 
$62,925.  
 

 
Charges 
In Year 1 of the proposed project, the average charge per procedure is as follows:   

 
Average Gross Charge 

• $46,448 
Average Deduction from Operating Revenue 

• $39,090 
Average Net Charge 

• $7,358 
 
Payor Mix 
The applicant’s projected payor mix in Year 1 is displayed in the table below: 
 
Payor Source Projected Gross 

Operating Revenue 
%  

of Total 
Medicare/Medicare Managed Care $9,709,270 64.7% 
TennCare/Medicaid $1,500,274 10% 
Commercial/Other Managed Care $3,747,233 25% 
Charity Care $45,960 0.3% 
TOTAL $15,002,737 100% 
Source: CN2101-001, Page 55R2 
 

• Medicare and TennCare/Medicaid charges will equal 74.7% of total revenue. 
• Commercial and other Managed Care will equal 25% of total revenue. 
• The applicant expects to contract with all TennCare Managed Care 

Organizations that serve the region. 
 
PROVIDE HEALTHCARE THAT MEETS APPROPRIATE 
QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
Licensure 

• Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens will maintain its licensure by the 
Tennessee Department of Health. 

 
Certification 
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• The applicant plans to maintain its Medicare and Medicaid certification. 
 
Accreditation 

• The applicant will maintain its accreditation through The Joint Commission.  
 
Other Quality Standards 

• The applicant commits to obtaining and/or maintaining the following: 
o Staffing levels comparable to the staffing chart presented in the CON 

application 
o Licenses in good standing 
o TennCare/Medicare certifications 
o Self-assessment and external peer assessment processes 
o The applicant will monitor the quality of the cardiac catheterization 

program, participate in quality enhancement efforts, maintain 
cardiology staff, and monitor the number of cases performed by its 
cardiologists. 

 
CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF 
HEALTHCARE 
Agreements 

• The applicant provides a list of hospitals (22), nursing homes (5) and 
assisted living facilities (3) which it maintains executed transfer 
agreements with on page 201 of the application Supplemental #1.  The 
applicant lists the following facilities on page 63 of the application as 
hospitals that it can refer to for a higher level of care or post-acute and 
long-term care in East Tennessee. 

 
Higher Level of Care in East Tennessee: 

o Chattanooga: Erlanger Health System; Memorial Hospital; 
Parkridge Health System 

o Knoxville: Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center; Parkwest 
Medical Center; Turkey Creek Medical Center; University of 
Tennessee Medical Center 

 
Post-Acute & Long-Term Care: 

o McMinn County: Etowah Health Care Center; Life Care Center of 
Athens; NHC Healthcare; Starr Regional Health and Rehabilitation 

o Meigs County: Decatur Health and Wellness 
o Monroe County: Sweetwater Nursing Center; Wood Presbyterian 

Home; Madisonville Health and Rehabilitation 
o Polk County: Life Care Center of Copper Basin 
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Impact on Existing Providers 

• The applicant states that there will not be any negative impact on area 
providers as there are no cardiac catheterization services operating in the 
service area. 
 
 

Staffing 
The applicant’s proposed staffing in Year 1 includes the following: 
 

Position Type Year One FTEs 

Registered Nurse – Cardiac Cath Lab 4 
Radiologic Technologist/CI/RCIS 2 
Director 1 
Total Direct Patient Care 7 
Total Non-Patient Care 0 
TOTAL 7 

Source: CN2101-001, Page 56 

 
Corporate documentation, building option to lease and deed are on file at the Agency office 
and will be available at the Agency meeting.  
 
Should the Agency vote to approve this project, the CON would expire in three 
years. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR THE APPLICANT: 
 
There are no other Letters of Intent, denied applications, pending applications, or 
outstanding Certificates of Need on file for this applicant. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR OTHER SERVICE AREA 
FACILITIES: 
 
There are no letters of intent, denied or pending applications, for other service area 
entities proposing this type of service. 
 
PLEASE REFER TO THE REPORT BY THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
DIVISION OF HEALTH STATISTICS, FOR A DETAILED ANALYSIS OF THE 
STATUTORY CRITERIA OF NEED, ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY, HEALTH 
CARE THAT MEETS APPROPRIATE QUALITY STANDARDS, AND 
CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE IN 
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THE AREA FOR THIS PROJECT.  THAT REPORT IS ATTACHED TO THIS 
SUMMARY IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE COLOR DIVIDER PAGE.   
 
 
TPP 
4/7/2021 

21



4813-2574-7658.15 
1 

 

 

State of Tennessee 
Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nashville, TN  37243 
www.tn.gov/hsda    Phone: 615-741-2364     Fax: 615-741-9884 

    

CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION 
SECTION A: APPLICANT PROFILE 

1. Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution 
 
 
 Starr Regional Medical Center--Athens  
 Name 
 1114 W. Madison Avenue   McMinn  
 Street or Route   County 
 Athens  TN  37303  
 City State Zip Code 

Website address: _www.starrregional.com_________________________________ 
Note: The facility’s name and address must be the name and address of the project and must be 
consistent with the Publication of Intent. 

 

2. Contact Person Available for Responses to Questions 
 
 
 Kim H. Looney  Attorney  
 Name  Title 
 K & L Gates, LLP  Kim.Looney@klgates.com  
 Company Name  Email address 
 222 Second Avenue S, Suite 1700  Nashville  TN  37201  
 Street or Route  City  State  Zip Code 

 Attorney  615-780-6727  615-780-6799 
 Association with Owner  Phone Number Fax Number 

     NOTE: Section A is intended to give the applicant an opportunity to describe the project.  
Section B addresses how the project relates to the criteria for a Certificate of Need 
by addressing: Need, Economic Feasibility, and the Contribution to the Orderly 
Development of Health Care.   

 
Please answer all questions on 8½” X 11” white paper, clearly typed and spaced, single or 
double-sided, in order and sequentially numbered.  In answering, please type the question 
and the response.  All questions must be answered.  If an item does not apply, please indicate 
“N/A” (not applicable).  Attach appropriate documentation as an Appendix at the end of the 
application and reference the applicable Item Number on the attachment, i.e., Attachment 
A.1, A.2, etc.  The last page of the application should be a completed signed and notarized 
affidavit. 
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3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A. Overview 

Please provide an overview not to exceed three pages in total explaining each numbered 
point. 

1) Description – Address the establishment of a health care institution, initiation of health 
services, bed complement changes, and/or how this project relates to any other 
outstanding but unimplemented certificates of need held by the applicant;  

Response:  The applicant is requesting CON approval to initiate cardiac catheterization 
services.  There are no cardiac catheterization services in the applicant’s service area.  The 
applicant feels it is important to offer as many services as possible in its service area to 
meet the health care needs of area residents.  Just as many other similarly situated hospitals 
now provide cardiac catheterization services without open heart capabilities on site, the 
applicant proposes to do so as well.  The last CON the applicant requested was to expand 
its geropsychiatric bed unit from 14 to 18 beds, for an increase of 4 beds.  That project is 
now complete and the applicant plans to file the project completion report in January.   The 
addition and renovated space will be a total of 2,841 square feet, with the addition being 
2,409 square feet and the renovation of existing space of 432 square feet. This space will 
house a GE Innova 530 cardiovascular/interventional imaging system in an interventional 
suite, a control room, holding area, workstation and changing room.   

2) Ownership structure;  

Response:  The applicant is owned by Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC. 

3) Service area;  

Response:  The service area for this project is McMinn, Meigs and Monroe Counties. 

4) Existing similar service providers;  

Response:  There are no providers of cardiac catheterization services in this service 
area.  It is the applicant’s understanding that residents who receive cardiac 
catheterization services generally go to Knoxville to receive them, which is 
approximately 51 miles from Athens, where the applicant is located.   

5) Project cost; 

Response:  The applicant estimates the project costs will be approximately $5,050,000, 
including the CON filing fee.  The majority of the costs are for the necessary construction 
and the fixed and moveable equipment to outfit the cardiac catheterization laboratory. 

6) Funding;  

Response:  Funding will be provided by LifePoint, the parent company. 

7) Financial Feasibility including when the proposal will realize a positive financial margin; 
and 
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Response:   The applicant anticipates that the cardiac catheterization laboratory will 
have a positive net income in 2022, the first year of operation.   

8) Staffing. 

Response:  The applicant anticipates that it will need 7 direct patient care positions to 
staff the laboratory for the projected number of procedures.   

B. Rationale for Approval 

A certificate of need can only be granted when a project is necessary to provide needed 
health care in the area to be served, can be economically accomplished and maintained, 
will provide health care that meets appropriate quality standards, and will contribute to the 
orderly development of adequate and effective health care in the service area. 

Provide a brief description of how the project meets the criteria necessary for granting a 
CON using the data and information points provided in Section B of the application. 

1) Need; 

Response:  The applicant calculated the projected demand based on the population 
per count, using the age group-specific historical state utilization rate, along with the 
state utilization rate.  The projected demand for each age category is determined by 
multiplying the population by the utilization rate. The total projected demand for cardiac 
catheterization is 1,627 diagnostic and 1,171 therapeutic procedures for a total of 2,798 
procedures in the service area.  Other factors to consider include that all 3 counties in 
the service area are considered medically underserved and that all 3 counties also have 
a higher rate of deaths from heart disease than the State.  The applicant projects 
volumes of 323 cases (233 diagnostic and 90 therapeutic cases) in the first year of 
operation, increasing to 420 cases (306 diagnostic and 114 therapeutic) in year 3.  
Therefore, the applicant satisfies the minimum volume standard of 300 diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization cases.   

2) Economic Feasibility;  

Response:   The costs of the project are reasonable and the applicant anticipates 
having a positive net income the first year of operation in 2022.   

3) Quality Standards; 
 
Response:   The applicant will work in collaboration with its parent, LifePoint, as well 
as  LifePoint’s other facilities which offer cardiac catheterization to establish appropriate 
protocols to monitor the quality of the program as well as cooperate with quality 
enhancement efforts sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee.  LifePoint has 
a Guidelines and Toolkit:  Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Continuous Quality 
Improvement, which the applicant will follow as appropriate.   

4) Orderly Development to adequate and effective health care.  

Response: The addition of a cardiac catheterization laboratory to Starr provides a necessary 
health care service to a population that is not currently able to receive the service in close proximity 
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to where they reside.  There are no existing cardiac catheterization services being provided in the 
applicant’s service area.  It is the applicant’s understanding that many of the persons in its service 
are who need cardiac catheterization services travel to Knoxville to receive them, which is 51 miles 
away.  The applicant will partner with Parkwest Medical Center, a tertiary care facility.  Parkwest 
will collaborate to assist the applicant in identifying cardiologists who will be appropriately 
credentialed and have the requisite experience and training to perform diagnostic and therapeutic 
catheterization procedures.  Parkwest will also provide training resources to support the quality 
practices needed to perform catheterizations.   

 

C. Consent Calendar Justification 

If Consent Calendar is requested, please provide the rationale for an expedited 
review.  

A request for Consent Calendar must be in the form of a written communication 
to the Agency’s Executive Director at the time the application is filed. 

Response:  Not applicable. 
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4. SECTION A: PROJECT DETAILS 

 

A. Owner of the Facility, Agency or Institution 

 
Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC   423-744-3390 
Name    Phone Number 
1114 West Madison Avenue  McMinn  
Street or Route   County 
Athens    TN  37303  
City State Zip Code  

B. Type of Ownership of Control (Check One) 

 1)  Sole Proprietorship        6) Government (State of TN       
 2) Partnership         or Political Subdivision)  
 3) Limited Partnership        7) Joint Venture       
 4) Corporation (For Profit)        8) Limited Liability Company X 
 5) Corporation (Not-for-Profit)        9) Other (Specify)             
        

Attach a copy of the partnership agreement, or corporate charter and certificate of corporate existence.  
Please provide documentation of the active status of the entity from the Tennessee Secretary of State’s 
web-site at https://tnbear.tn.gov/ECommerce/FilingSearch.aspx.  Attachment Section A-4AB. 

Response:  See copy of documents included as Attachment A-4AB. 

Describe the existing or proposed ownership structure of the applicant, including an ownership 
structure organizational chart.  Explain the corporate structure and the manner in which all entities of 
the ownership structure relate to the applicant.  As applicable, identify the members of the ownership 
entity and each member’s percentage of ownership, for those members with 5% ownership (direct or 
indirect) interest.   

5. Name of Management/Operating Entity (If Applicable) 
 
 N/A   
 Name 
          
 Street or Route   County 
       
 City State Zip Code 

Website address:        

For new facilities or existing facilities without a current management agreement, attach a copy of 
a draft management agreement that at least includes the anticipated scope of management services 
to be provided, the anticipated term of the agreement, and the anticipated management fee payment 
methodology and schedule.  For facilities with existing management agreements, attach a copy of the 
fully executed final contract.  Attachment Section A-5.  
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6A. Legal Interest in the Site 

(Check the appropriate line and submit the following documentation) 

The legal interest described below must be valid on the date of the Agency 
consideration of the certificate of need application.  

  Ownership (Applicant or applicant’s parent company/owner) 
Submit a copy of the title/deed.  

  Lease (Applicant or applicant’s parent company/owner) 
Attach a fully executed lease that includes the terms of the lease and the actual lease expense.  

  Option to Purchase 
Attach a fully executed Option that includes the anticipated purchase price 

  Option to Lease 
Attach a fully executed Option that includes the anticipated terms of the Option and anticipated 
lease expense 

  Other (Specify) 
Check appropriate line above: For applicants or applicant’s parent company/owner that currently own 
the building/land for the project location, attach a copy of the title/deed. For applicants or applicant’s 
parent company/owner that currently lease the building/land for the project location, attach a copy of 
the fully executed lease agreement. For projects where the location of the project has not been secured, 
attach a fully executed document including Option to Purchase Agreement, Option to Lease Agreement, 
or other appropriate documentation. Option to Purchase Agreements must include anticipated 
purchase price. Lease/Option to Lease Agreements must include the actual/anticipated term of the 
agreement and actual/anticipated lease expense. The legal interests described herein must be valid 
on the date of the Agency’s consideration of the certificate of need application. Attachment Section A-

6A 
 
Response:  See copy of deed included as Attachment A-6A. 
 
6B. Briefly describe the following and attach the requested documentation on an 8 1/2” x 11” sheet of 

white paper, legibly labeling all requested information. 
1) Plot Plan must include:  

 a) Size of site (in acres); 
b) Location of structure on the site;  
c) Location of the proposed construction/renovation; and 
d) Names of streets, roads or highway that cross or border the site. 
Response:  See plot plan included as Attachment A-6B-1. 

2) Floor Plan - If the facility has multiple floors, submit one page per floor.  If more than one 
page is needed, label each page. 
a) Patient care rooms (private or semi-private) 
b) Ancillary areas 
c) Equipment areas 
d) Other (specify)   
Response:  See floor plan included as Attachment 6B-2. 
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3) Public Transportation Route - Describe the relationship of the site to public transportation 
routes, if any, and to any highway or major road developments in the area. Describe the 
accessibility of the proposed site to patients/clients. 

 Attachment Section A-6B-1 a-d, 6B-2, 6B-3. 

Response:  The applicant is located in a rural area, with limited access to public transportation.  
However, any patients needing cardiac catheterization services would arrive under their 
own/family member/caregiver transportation in the event of a scheduled cath procedure or by 
ambulance in the event of an emergency.   

7. Type of Institution  (Check as appropriate--more than one response may apply) 

A. Hospital (Specify)       X H. Nursing Home       
 B.  Ambulatory Surgical Treatment   I. Outpatient Diagnostic Center       

Center (ASTC), Multi-Specialty       J. Rehabilitation Facility       
 C.  ASTC, Single Specialty       K. Residential Hospice       
 D.  Home Health Agency       L. Non-Residential Substitution- 
 E.  Hospice        Based Treatment Center For 
 F.  Mental Health Hospital        Opiate Addiction       
 G. Intellectual Disability       M. Other (Specify)        

Institutional Habilitation Facility  
 (ICF/IID) 
Check appropriate lines(s). 

8. 
Purpose of Review (Check appropriate lines(s) -- more than one response may apply) 
 
A. Establish New Health Care  

Institution  
 

      
G. MRI Unit Increase       

B. Change in Bed Complement       H. Satellite Emergency Department       
C. Initiation of Health Care Service 

as Defined in TCA 68-11-1607(4) 
(Specify) cardiac catheterization: 
diagnostic & therapeutic________ 

 
 
x 

I. Addition of ASTC Specialty       

D. Relocation and/or Replacement       J. Addition of Therapeutic 
Catheterization 

 
 

E. Initiation of MRI       K. Other (Specify) _____________ 
__________________________ 

 
      

F. Initiation of Pediatric MRI          
 

9. Medicaid/TennCare, Medicare Participation 

MCO Contracts [Check all that apply] 

XAmeriGroup  XUnited Healthcare Community Plan  XBlueCare XTennCare Select 

Medicare Provider Number:     44-0068  

Medicaid Provider Number:      44-0068  

Certification Type:      hospital  

If a new facility, will certification be sought for Medicare and/or Medicaid/TennCare?   
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Medicare      Yes      No XN/A       Medicaid/TennCare      Yes     No XN/A 
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10. Bed Complement Data Athens Campus 

A. Please indicate current and proposed distribution and certification of facility beds. Response: There are no changes in bed complement

as a result of this application. The applicant has provided the chart below for both the Athens campus and its satellite campus in Etowah.

1) Medical/Surgical

2) Surgical

3) ICU/CCU

4) Obstetrical

5) NICU/Bassinets

6) Pediatric

7) Adult Psychiatric

8) Geriatric Psychiatric

9) Child/Adolescent Psychiatric

10) Rehabilitation

11) Adult Chemical Dependency

12) Child/Adolescent Chemical
Dependency

13) Long-Term Care Hospital

14) Swing Beds

15) Nursing Home - SNF
(Medicare only)

16) Nursing Home - NF
(Medicaid only)

17) Nursing Home - SNF/NF (dually
certified Medicare/Medicaid)

18) Nursing Home - Licensed
(non-certified)

19) ICF/IID

20) Residential Hospice

TOTAL: includes 5 bassinets 

*Beds approved but not yet in service

Current 
Licensed 

100 

ill 

Beds 
Staffed 

42 

Beds 
Proposed 

*Beds
Approved 

**Beds exempted under 10% per 3 year provision 

**Beds 
Exempted 

TOTAL 
Beds at 

Completion 

100 

ill 

B. Describe the reasons for change in bed allocations and describe the impact the bed change will have on the applicant facility's
existing services. Attachment Section A-10. Response: Not applicable.

C. Please identify all the applicant's outstanding Certificate of Need projects that have a licensed bed change component.
If applicable, complete chart below. Response: Starr Regional Medical Center - Etowah has a CON that has been
completed. The applicant will file the project completion report for its geropsych project prior to this application being heard.

4813-2574-7658.15 

CON Expiration 
CON Number(s) Date 

CN1701-002 

9R 

Total Licensed Beds 
Approved 

4 

Supplemental 1 
January 27, 2021
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10. 

A. 

Bed Complement Data                                                                                                    Etowah Campus 

Please indicate current and proposed distribution and certification of facility beds.  Response:  There are no changes in bed complement 

as a result of this application.  Etowah is a satellite facility. 

 Current 
Licensed 

Beds 
Staffed 

Beds 
Proposed 

*Beds 
Approved 

**Beds 
Exempted 

TOTAL 
Beds at 

Completion 
1) Medical 54 0                   54 
2) Surgical                                     
3) ICU/CCU 0                         0 
4) Obstetrical 0                         0 
5) NICU 0                              0 
6) Pediatric                                     
7) Adult Psychiatric                                     
8) Geriatric Psychiatric 18 18                   18 
9) Child/Adolescent Psychiatric                                     
10) Rehabilitation                                     
11) Adult Chemical Dependency                                     
12) Child/Adolescent Chemical 

Dependency                                     
13) Long-Term Care Hospital                                     
14) Swing Beds                                     
15) Nursing Home – SNF      

(Medicare only)                                     
16) Nursing Home – NF         

(Medicaid only)                                     
17) Nursing Home – SNF/NF (dually 

certified Medicare/Medicaid)                                     
18) Nursing Home – Licensed       

(non-certified)                                     
19) ICF/IID                                     
20) Residential Hospice                                     
TOTAL:  72 18                   72 
*Beds approved but not yet in service         **Beds exempted under 10% per 3 year provision 
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11.   Home Health Care Organizations – Home Health Agency, Hospice Agency (excluding 
Residential Hospice), identify the following by checking all that apply: Response:  Not 
applicable. 

  

Existing 
Licensed 
County 

Parent 
Office 
County 

Proposed 
Licensed 
County   

Existing 
Licensed 
County 

Parent 
Office 
County 

Proposed 
Licensed 
County 

Anderson    Lauderdale    
Bedford    Lawrence    
Benton    Lewis    
Bledsoe    Lincoln    
Blount    Loudon    
Bradley    McMinn    
Campbell    McNairy    
Cannon    Macon    
Carroll    Madison    
Carter    Marion    
Cheatham    Marshall    
Chester    Maury    
Claiborne    Meigs    
Clay    Monroe    
Cocke    Montgomery    
Coffee    Moore    
Crockett    Morgan    
Cumberland    Obion    
Davidson    Overton    
Decatur    Perry    
DeKalb    Pickett    
Dickson    Polk    
Dyer    Putnam    
Fayette    Rhea    
Fentress    Roane    
Franklin    Robertson    
Gibson    Rutherford    
Giles    Scott    
Grainger    Sequatchie    
Greene    Sevier    
Grundy    Shelby    
Hamblen    Smith    
Hamilton    Stewart    
Hancock    Sullivan    
Hardeman    Sumner    
Hardin    Tipton    
Hawkins    Trousdale    
Haywood    Unicoi    
Henderson    Union    
Henry    Van Buren    
Hickman    Warren    
Houston    Washington    
Humphreys    Wayne    
Jackson    Weakley    
Jefferson    White    
Johnson    Williamson    
Knox    Wilson    
Lake         
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12. Square Footage and Cost Per Square Footage Chart
Proposed 

Existing Existing Temporary Final 
Unit/De artment Location SF Location Location 

Gath Lab 

Unit/Department 
GSF Sub-Total 

Other GSF Total 

Total GSF 

*Total Cost

**Cost Per 
Square Foot 

432 

Cost per Square Foot Is Within Which Range 
(For quartile ranges, please refer to the Applicant's Toolbox on 

www.tn.gov/hsda) 

Response: See below. 

Renovated 

432 

432 

0 

432 

$320,000 

$741 

D Below 1 st 

Quartile 

D Between 
1 st and 2nd 

Quartile 

D Between 
2nd and 3rd 

Quartile 

New 

2,409 

2,409 

0 

2,409 

$1,780,000 

$739 

D Below 1 st 

Quartile 

D Between 
1 st and 2nd 

Quartile 

D Between 
2nd and 3rd 

Quartile 

Total 

2,841 

2,841 

0 

2,841 

$2,100,000 

$739 

D Below 1 st

Quartile 

D Between 
1 st and 2nd 

Quartile 

D Between 
2nd and 3rd 

Quartile 

X□ Above DX Above DX Above 
3rd Quartile 3rd Quartile 3rd Quartile 

* The Total Construction Cost should equal the Construction Cost reported on line A5 of the Project

Cost Chart.

** Cost per Square Foot is the construction cost divided by the square feet. Please do not include 

contingency costs. 

4813-2574-7658.15 

12R 

Supplemental 1 
January 27, 2021
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A. Describe the construction and renovation associated with the proposed project. If applicable, provide 

a description of the existing building, including age of the building and the use of space vacated due 
to the proposed project. 

 
 Response:     Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens is proposing to add a cath lab to expand their 

cardiology services.  The cath lab will house a GE Innova 530 cardiovascular/interventional imaging 
system in an interventional suite, a control room, holding area, workstation and changing room.   

 

The building addition and associated renovation will include 2,841 square feet and be 
located on the North side of the facility adjacent to Cook Drive.  The addition will be attached 
and accessed from the existing outpatient surgery department.  The department’s current 
exterior entrance and canopy will be replaced as part of the building addition. 
 
The outpatient surgery department was constructed in 1992 as an addition to the original 
facility (1972).  The existing building is single story, slab on grade, steel frame structure with 
brick veneer and metal stud exterior wall construction.  The existing department will remain 
operational during construction of the cath lab addition with small areas of the unit vacated 
to provide corridor access to the new addition.  The outpatient entrance will be relocated to 
the main entrance of the facility during construction. 

 

 
13. MRI, PET, and/or Linear Accelerator 

1. Describe the acquisition of any Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) scanner that is adding 
a MRI scanner in counties with population less than 250,000 or initiation of pediatric MRI 
in counties with population greater than 250,000 and/or 

2. Describe the acquisition of any Positron Emission Tomographer (PET) or Linear 
Accelerator if initiating the service by responding to the following: 

A. Complete the chart below for acquired equipment.  Response:  Not applicable. 
        
 Linear 

Accelerator Mev       Types: 
□  SRS    □  IMRT    □  

IGRT    □  Other       
 

    □  By 
Purchase 

  

  Total Cost*: 
      

□  By 
Lease 

Expected Useful 
Life (yrs)       

 

  □  New □  Refurbished □  If not new, how 
old? (yrs)       

 

        

 MRI 

Tesla:       Magnet: 

□  Breast   □  
Extremity    
□  Open   □  Short 
Bore   □  Other       

 

    □  By 
Purchase 

  

  Total Cost*: 
      

□  By 
Lease 

Expected Useful 
Life (yrs)       
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  □  New □  Refurbished □  If not new, how 
old? (yrs)       

  

        
 PET □  PET only □  PET/CT  □  PET/MRI    
    □  By 

Purchase 
  

  Total Cost*: 
      

□  By 
Lease 

Expected Useful 
Life (yrs)       

 

  □  New □  Refurbished □  If not new, how 
old? (yrs)       

  

        
* As defined by Agency Rule 0720-9-.01(13) 

B. In the case of equipment purchase, include a quote and/or proposal from an equipment 
vendor.  In the case of equipment lease, provide a draft lease or contract that at least 
includes the term of the lease and the anticipated lease payments along with the fair market 
value of the equipment. 

 
Response:  Not applicable. 

 
C. Compare lease cost of the equipment to its fair market value.  Note:  Per Agency Rule, the 

higher cost must be identified in the project cost chart. 
 

Response:  Not applicable. 
 

D. Schedule of Operations: 

Location  Days of Operation 
(Sunday through Saturday) 

 Hours of Operation 
(example: 8 am – 3 pm) 

Fixed Site (Applicant)               
     
Mobile Locations     

(Applicant)               
(Name of Other Location)               
(Name of Other Location)               

 

E. Identify the clinical applications to be provided that apply to the project. 

Response:   Not applicable. 

F. If the equipment has been approved by the FDA within the last five years provide 
documentation of the same. 

Response:     Not applicable.    
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SECTION B:  GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED  

In accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1609(b), “no Certificate of Need shall be granted unless the 
action proposed in the application for such Certificate is necessary to provide needed health care 
in the area to be served, can be economically accomplished and maintained, will provide health 
care that meets appropriate quality standards, and will contribute to the orderly development of 
health care.” In making determinations, the Agency uses as guidelines the goals, objectives, 
criteria, and standards provided in the State Health Plan. 

Additional criteria for review are prescribed in Chapter 11 of the Agency’s Rules, Tennessee Rules 
and Regulations 01730-11. 
 
The following questions are listed according to the four criteria: (1) Need, (2) Economic 
Feasibility, (3) Quality Standards, and (4) Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health 
Care. Please respond to each question and provide underlying assumptions, data sources, and 
methodologies when appropriate. 
 

QUESTIONS 
NEED 
 
The responses to this section of the application will help determine whether the project will 
provide needed health care facilities or services in the area to be served. 

1. Provide a response to the applicable criteria and standards for the type of institution or 
service requested. https://www.tn.gov/hsda/hsda-criteria-and-standards.html  

 

CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES 

 
Notice to Applicants filing CON applications for cardiac catheterization services: The 
current criteria and standards for review of cardiac catheterization CON applications utilize 
diagnostic-equivalent procedure and weights for measuring laboratory capacity. The 
resulting weighted procedures are used in evaluating applications with respect to minimum 
volume standards. This data is available by request at the website of the Tennessee 
Department of Health (TDH). An applicant should request diagnostic equivalent cardiac 
catheterization data for the three most recent years available for all hospital cardiac 
catheterization providers located within the declared service area at the following link 
http://health.state.tn.us/statistics/index.htm. Applicants should plan on requesting and 
receiving this data from TDH at least 2 weeks prior to filing the CON application. 
 
The Health Services and Development Agency (HSDA) may consider the following standards and 
criteria for applications seeking to provide cardiac catheterization services. Rationale statements 
for each standard are provided in an appendix. Existing providers of cardiac catheterization 
services are not affected by these standards and criteria unless they take an action that requires a 
new certificate of need (CON) for such services. 
These standards and criteria are effective immediately as of November 18, 2009, the date of 
approval and adoption by the governor of the State Health Plan. Applications to provide cardiac 
catheterization services that were deemed complete by HSDA prior to this date shall be considered 
under the Guidelines for Growth, 2000 Edition. 
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Definitions 
Cardiac Catheterization: An invasive medical procedure performed within a cardiac 
catheterization laboratory and used as a diagnostic or therapeutic tool for heart and circulatory 
conditions. During a catheterization procedure a catheter is inserted into a blood vessel and is 
manipulated by a physician to travel along the course of the vessel in the chambers or vessels of 
the heart. Imaging equipment is used as an aid in placing the catheter tip in the desired position. 
Once in place the physician is able to perform various diagnostic and/or therapeutic procedures. 
Cardiac catheterization services include diagnostic cardiac catheterizations, therapeutic cardiac 
catheterizations, and electrophysiological (EP) studies, both diagnostic and therapeutic. 
Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory: A room or suite of rooms in a hospital, freestanding facility, 
or a mobile laboratory that has the equipment, staff, and support services to function as an 
integrated unit for the purposes of performing cardiac catheterization procedures. 
Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization: The performance of cardiac catheterization for the purpose 
of detecting and identifying defects in the great arteries or veins of the heart, or abnormalities in 
the heart structure, whether congenital or acquired. Diagnostic cardiac catheterization services 
include, but are not limited to, left heart catheterizations, right heart catheterizations, left ventricular 
angiography, coronary procedures, and other cardiac catheterization services of a diagnostic 
nature. Post-operative evaluation of the effectiveness of prostheses also can be accomplished 
through a diagnostic catheterization procedure. 
Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: The performance of cardiac catheterization for the purpose 
of correcting or improving certain conditions that have been determined to exist in the heart or great 
arteries or veins of the heart. This includes Percutaneous Coronary Interventions (PCI) or any 
catheter-based treatment procedures for relieving coronary artery narrowing. Included within this 
definition are procedures such as rotational atherectomy, directional atherectomy, extraction 
atherectomy, laser angioplasty, implantation of intracoronary stents, brachytherapy, and other 
catheter treatments for treating coronary atherosclerosis. 
Cardiac Catheterization Procedure: A medical diagnostic or therapeutic intervention during 
which a catheter is manipulated by a physician to travel along the course of a blood vessel into the 
chambers or vessels of the heart. When the catheter is in place, the physician is able to perform 
various diagnostic studies and/or therapeutic procedures in the heart. For the purposes of 
measuring operator/physician volume under Standard 7, each procedure performed during a 
cardiac catheterization case following the catheterization shall count toward that 
operator/physician’s volume. 
Electrophysiological (EP) Study: An invasive procedure that tests the heart’s electrical system 
through a catheter typically from the groin to the heart. Once the catheter is placed in the heart by 
the physician, electrical signals are sent through the catheter to the heart tissue to evaluate the 
electrical conduction system contained within the heart muscle tissue. An EP study can be 
performed solely for diagnostic purposes to pinpoint the exact location of electrical signals (cardiac 
mapping) or in conjunction with a therapeutic procedure called catheter ablation. The procedures 
(both diagnostic and therapeutic studies) are performed in a specially equipped laboratory and 
under controlled clinical circumstances by cardiologists and nurses who sub-specialize in 
electrophysiology. 
Diagnostic Electrophysiological Study: An invasive test performed that allows an 
electrophysiologist to determine the details of abnormal heartbeats, or arrhythmias. Measurements 
related to the electrical system within the heart are made at baseline and during stimulation to 
provide information about the exact location and type of arrhythmia so that specific treatment can 
be given. During this testing, cardiac mapping through the use of catheter manipulation or 3-
dimensional systems may take place. The arrhythmia may start from any area of the heart’s 
electrical conduction system. 
Therapeutic Electrophysiological Study: In conjunction with the diagnostic electrophysiological 
study, a therapeutic procedure called catheter ablation may be performed. Catheter ablation is 
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most commonly done through the delivery of radio-frequency energy or cryo-energy to an area of 
the heart to selectively destroy cardiac tissue. 
Peripheral Vascular Catheterization: An invasive medical procedure that may be performed 
within a cardiac catheterization laboratory. The procedure involves the insertion of a catheter into 
a peripheral artery or vein for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes. This procedure is used to 
evaluate the presence of plaque build-up (Atherosclerosis) in the peripheral arteries — meaning 
the arteries to the lower abdomen, kidneys, arms, legs, head, neck and feet. 
Diagnostic Peripheral Vascular Catheterization: An invasive diagnostic test in which a catheter 
is inserted into a peripheral vein or artery to inject dye (contrast medium). X-rays are taken of the 
dye within the arteries, allowing clear visualization of the blood flow inside the artery where 
peripheral vascular disease can occur. This test may be performed within a cardiac catheterization 
laboratory. 
Therapeutic Peripheral Vascular Catheterization: A procedure that can be used to dilate (widen) 
narrowed or blocked peripheral arteries or to remove a clot or plaque from arteries. In conjunction 
with or subsequent to peripheral vascular catheterization, a therapeutic procedure may be 
performed by various means that include balloon angioplasty, stenting, and atherectomy or other 
mechanical intervention to restore blood flow to the effected organ or tissue. These procedures 
may be performed within a cardiac catheterization laboratory. 

a) Balloon Angioplasty: A thin tube called a catheter with a deflated balloon on its tip is 
passed into the narrowed artery segment. The balloon is then inflated, compressing 
the plaque and dilating the narrowed artery so that blood can flow more easily. The 
balloon is then deflated and the catheter is withdrawn. 

b) Peripheral Stenting: A cylindrical, wire mesh tube that expands and locks open - may 
be placed in the narrowed artery with another catheter to keep the diseased artery 
open. 

c) Catheter-based Atherectomy: A procedure for opening up an artery using a 
specialized catheter inserted into a blocked artery to remove a buildup of plaque. 
The catheter may contain a sharp rotating blade (“burr” device), dissectional device 
(grinding bit), or laser filament to remove the plaque. It may be used as a complement 
to angioplasty and stenting. 
Note: Additional procedures may be added as technology evolves. 

Cardiac Catheterization Case: For the purposes of measuring a facility’s volume of cardiac 
catheterization procedures under Standards 11, 14, 19, and 22, a “case” shall mean one visit to a 
cardiac catheterization laboratory or another procedure room by one patient, regardless of the 
number of procedures performed during that visit. 
Cardiac Catheterization Weighted Case: For the purposes of these standards and criteria and 
for measuring laboratory capacity, a “weighted case” shall mean one visit to a cardiac 
catheterization laboratory or another procedure room by one patient. If multiple procedures are 
performed between admission and discharge to the laboratory or procedure room, the weighted 
case is equal to the highest weighted diagnostic—equivalent procedure performed during the case. 
Diagnostic-Equivalent Procedure and Weights: For the purposes of measuring laboratory 
capacity, the following weights will be assigned to each of the following procedure categories. All 
procedures that fall under the following categories shall count towards measuring laboratory 
capacity, but only diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catheterization procedures as defined in these 
Standards and Criteria may count towards Standards 11, 14, 19, and 22 regarding minimum 
volume. 
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Category Procedures Included Weight 

Diagnostic Cardiac 
Catheterization 

Left heart catheterization, right heart 
catheterization, left/right heart catheterization, 
intravascular ultrasound, endomyocardial biopsy 

1.0 

Diagnostic Peripheral 
Vascular Catheterization 

Abdominal angioplasty with runoff, carotid, renal, 
bilateral extremity 

1.5 

Therapeutic Cardiac 
Catheterization 

PCI, atherectomy, ASD/PFO closures, Impella, 
IABP, valvuloplasty 

2.0 

Therapeutic Peripheral 
Vascular Catheterization 

All of the procedures in the diagnostic peripheral 
category with either angioplasty, stent 
placement, atherectomy, thrombolysis  

3.0 

Diagnostic 
Electrophysiological Studies  

Atrial and ventricular pacing and recording, 
device placement 

2.0 

Therapeutic 
Electrophysiological Studies  Ablations, lead revision 4.0 

Pediatrics Any cardiac catheterization procedure performed 
on a person less than 18 years of age 

Double 
the 

adult 
weight 

 
 
Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Capacity: The capacity of dedicated and multipurpose 
cardiac catheterization laboratories is equal to 2000 weighted cases per year. This number is based 
on 50 weeks of 40 hours each, assuming an average case time, including room turnover and setup, 
of 60 minutes. 
Pediatric Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory: A room or suite of rooms in an acute care hospital 
that has the equipment, staff; and support services to function as an integrated unit for the purposes 
of performing cardiac catheterization procedures on a person under 15 years of age. Pediatric 
cardiac catheterization laboratories should only be situated in facilities offering full pediatric cardiac 
medical and cardiac surgical capabilities, including pediatric open heart surgery. 
Mobile Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory: A cardiac catheterization laboratory and 
transporting equipment that is moved to provide services at two or more host acute care campuses, 
including facilities located in adjoining or contiguous states of the Continental United States. Mobile 
cardiac catheterization laboratories shall perform diagnostic procedures only, unless they are 
permanently fixed at an acute care hospital with on-site open heart surgery capability. However, 
facilities approved to perform therapeutic cardiac catheterizations without on-site open heart 
surgery backup may temporarily perform these procedures in a mobile laboratory on the hospital’s 
campus during construction impacting the fixed laboratories. 
Mobile Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Capacity: The capacity measures of a mobile 
cardiac catheterization laboratory are the same as a regular dedicated or multipurpose cardiac 
catheterization laboratory; however, capacity shall be measured on a pro-rated schedule per week 
day of operation (400 weighted cases per week day of operation). 
Freestanding Facility: Any professional or business undertaking, whether for profit or not for profit, 
which offers or proposes to offer any clinical health service in a setting which is not on the campus 
of an acute care facility. Freestanding facilities may perform diagnostic procedures only. 
Service Area: The geographic area defined in terms of counties represented by the applicant as 
the reasonable area to which the cardiac catheterization laboratory intends to provide services and 
in which at least 75% of its recipients reside. At least 75% of the population of a service area for 
cardiac catheterizations should reside within 60 miles driving distance of the facility. 
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Age Group-Specific Historical State Utilization Rate: For the purposes of defining need in areas 
with no existing cardiac catheterization services, applicants should base their projected utilization 
on age group-specific historical state utilization rates. The age group-specific historical state 
utilization rates shall be calculated as follows based upon information from the Hospital Discharge 
Data System and the population estimates maintained by the Department of Health: 

• Each age group is defined by the following age intervals: <18, 18-29, 30-39, 5 year 
intervals for 40-84 (i.e., 40-44, 45-49), and >85. 

• For each age group, multiply the number of state residents in that age category by 
the corresponding number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed on 
patients in that age category. 

• Determine the age group-specific historical state utilization rate based upon the 
average of single-year rates calculated from the most recent three years of available 
data. 

The age group-specific historical state utilization rate will be calculated separately for diagnostic 
and therapeutic catheterization cases and will be a running average. The Department of Health 
shall maintain the ongoing age group-specific historical state utilization rate to avoid breaches of 
patient confidentiality. 
 

Standards and Criteria Regarding Certificate of Need Applications for All Cardiac 
Catheterization Services 

 
Applicants proposing to provide any type of cardiac catheterization services must meet the 
following minimum standards: 
 

1. Compliance with Standards: The Division of Health Planning is working with 
stakeholders to develop a framework for greater accountability to these Standards 
and Criteria. Applicants should indicate whether they intend to collaborate with the 
Division and other stakeholders on this matter. 

 
Response:  The applicant will collaborate with the Division of Health Planning and 
other stakeholders. 

 
2. Facility Accreditation: If the applicant is not required by law to be licensed by the 

Department of Health, the applicant should provide documentation that the facility is 
fully accredited or will pursue accreditation by the Joint Commission or another 
appropriate accrediting authority recognized by the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS). 

 
 Response:  The applicant is an existing acute care facility that is fully licensed by 

the Department of Health and accredited by The Joint Commission.  The cardiac 
catheterization laboratory will be a part of this facility and included in its licensure 
and accreditation.   

 
3. Emergency Transfer Plan: Applicants for cardiac catheterization services located 

in a facility without open heart surgery capability should provide a formalized written 
protocol for immediate and efficient transfer of patients to a nearby open heart 
surgical facility (within 60 minutes) that is reviewed/tested on a regular (quarterly) 
basis. 
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 Response:  The applicant plans to have a formalized written transfer emergency 
protocol with Parkwest Medical Center, approximately 51 miles from Starr, to which 
patients can be transferred within 60 minutes.   

 
4. Quality Control and Monitoring: Applicants should document a plan to monitor the 

quality of its cardiac catheterization program, including, but not limited to, program 
outcomes and efficiency. In addition, the applicant should agree to cooperate with 
quality enhancement efforts sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee, 
which may be developed per Policy Recommendation 2. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will work in collaboration with LifePoint and LifePoint’s 

other facilities which offer cardiac catheterization to establish appropriate protocols 
to monitor the quality of the program as well as cooperate with quality enhancement 
efforts sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee.   LifePoint has a 
Guidelines and Toolkit:  Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Continuous Quality 
Improvement.  The goal is to provide standards for pre-procedure, intra-procedure, 
and post-procedure evaluation and management, and serve as a patient-centered 
approach to safety and quality in the cardiac catheterization laboratory.  Written 
policies and protocols will be in place to identify case reviews.  In general, cases are 
reviewed for adherence to evidence-based therapy, patient selection/indications for 
procedure/image quality/procedural technique/clinical outcomes, complications and 
documentation.   In addition, there is a Medical Executive Committee Resource 
Manual.   Some of the quality metrics measured include normal cath rate, PCI with 
positive stress/imaging, median time to PCI for STEMI, PCI for STEMI within 90 
minutes, median LOS for PCI with STEMI (days), and discharge meds for PCI.  
Outcome measures include PCI post procedure stroke, PCI post procedure 
emergency CABG.   

 
5. Data Requirements: Applicants should agree to provide the Department of Health 

and/or the Health Services and Development Agency with all reasonably requested 
information and statistical data related to the operation and provision of services and 
to report that data in the time and format requested. As a standard of practice, 
existing data reporting streams will be relied upon and adapted over time to collect 
all needed information. 

 
 Response:  The Applicant agrees to provide the Department of Health and/or the 

Health Services and Development Agency with all reasonably requested information 
and statistical data related to the operation and provision of services and to report 
that data in the time and format requested. 

 
6. Clinical and Physical Environment Guidelines: Applicants should agree to 

document ongoing compliance with the latest clinical guidelines of the American 
College of Cardiology/Society for Cardiac Angiography and Interventions Clinical 
Expert Consensus Document on Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Standards 
(ACC Guidelines). As of the adoption of these Standards and Criteria, the latest 
version (2001) may be found online at:   
http://www.acc.org/qualityandscience/clinical/consensus/angiography/dirIndex.htm  
 

 Where providers are not in compliance, they should maintain appropriate 
documentation stating the reasons for noncompliance and the steps the provider is 
taking to ensure quality. These guidelines include, but are not limited to, physical 
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facility requirements, staffing, training, quality assurance, patient safety, screening 
patients for appropriate settings, and linkages with supporting emergency services. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will comply with the latest clinical and physical 

environmental guidelines of the American College of Cardiology/Society for Cardiac 
Angiography and Interventions Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Cardiac 
Catheterization Laboratory Standards (ACC Guidelines).   

 
7. Staffing Recruitment and Retention: The applicant should generally describe how 

it intends to maintain an adequate staff to operate the proposed service, including, 
but not limited to, any plans to partner with an existing provider for training and staff 
sharing. 

 
 Response:  The applicant plans to partner with Parkwest Medical Center.  Parkwest 

will collaborate to assist the applicant in identifying cardiologists who will be 
appropriately credentialed and have the requisite experience and training to perform 
diagnostic and therapeutic catheterization procedures.  Parkwest will also provide 
training resources to support the quality practices needed to perform 
catheterizations.    The cardiac catheterization laboratory will be staffed with 2 
cardiologists and other appropriate medical/clinical staff.  It is not known at this time 
which particular cardiologists will be used since the project will take 16-18 months to 
complete.  The applicant also plans to have a combination of RNs and X-Ray 
technologists for a total of 7 FTEs to assist with the provision of the service. 

 
8. Definition of Need for New Services: A need likely exists for new or additional 

cardiac catheterization services in a proposed service area if the average current 
utilization for all existing and approved providers is equal to or greater than 70% of 
capacity (i.e., 70% of 2000 cases) for the proposed service area. 

 
 Response:  There are no existing cardiac catheterization services in the applicant’s 

proposed service area of McMinn, Meigs and Monroe Counties. 
 
9. Proposed Service Areas with No Existing Service: In proposed service areas 

where no existing cardiac catheterization service exists, the applicant must show the 
data and methodology used to estimate the need and demand for the service. 
Projected need and demand will be measured for applicants proposing to provide 
services to residents of those areas as follows: 

 
Need. The projected need for a service will be demonstrated through need-based 
epidemiological evidence of the incidence and prevalence of conditions for which 
diagnostic and/or therapeutic catheterization is appropriate within the proposed 
service area. 
 
Demand. The projected demand for the service shall be determined by the following 
formula: 
A. Multiply the age group-specific historical state utilization rate by the number 

of residents in each age category for each county included in the proposed 
service area to produce the projected demand for each age category; 

B. Add each age group’s projected demand to determine the total projected 
demand for cardiac catheterization procedures for the entire proposed service 
area. 
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Response:  Please see table below for the population per county that corresponds 
to the age group-specific historical state utilization rate, along with the state utilization 
rate.  Multiplying the population by the utilization rate produces the projected demand 
for each age category.  Adding each age category’s projected demand gives us the 
total projected demand for cardiac catheterization services in the proposed service 
area.  The table below also identifies the total projected demand for the proposed 
service area. 
 

McMinn County 
Diagnostic Catheterization Need (2024) 

 
Age Population Diagnostic Cath State 

Utilization Rate 
Diagnostic Cath 

Need 

0-17 10,998 0.00087502 9.62 
18-29 7,711 0.00050080  3.86 
30-39 6,040 0.00238531  14.41 
40-44 3,051 0.00662935  20.23 
45-49 3,337 0.01089637  36.36 
50-54 3,553 0.01662929  59.08 
55-59 3,773 0.02156205  81.35 
60-64 3,859 0.02623235  101.23 
65-69 3,611 0.03262954  117.83 
70-74 3,070 0.03755298  115.29 
75-79 2,427 0.04015484  97.46 
80-84 1,685 0.03657260  61.62 

85+ 1,492 0.02073955  30.94 
TOTAL 54,607   749.42 

Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
 

Meigs County 
Diagnostic Catheterization Need (2024) 

 
 

Age  Population Diagnostic Cath State 
Utilization Rate 

Diagnostic Cath 
Need 

0-17 2,346 0.00087502 2.05 
18-29 1,642 0.00050080 .82 
30-39 1,333 0.00238531 3.18 
40-44 762 0.00662935 5.05 
45-49 820 0.01089637 8.94 
50-54 903 0.01662929 15.02 
55-59 958 0.02156205 20.66 
60-64 986 0.02623235 25.87 
65-69 940 0.03262954 30.67 
70-74 820 0.03755298 30.79 
75-79 601 0.04015484 24.13 
80-84 383 0.03657260 14.01 

85+ 259 0.02073955 5.37 
TOTAL 12,753  186.56 

 
Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
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Monroe County 

Diagnostic Catheterization Need (2024) 
 

Age  Population Diagnostic Cath State 
Utilization Rate 

Diagnostic Cath 
Need 

0-17 9,244 0.00087502  8.09 
18-29 6,369 0.00050080 3.19 
30-39 5,293 0.00238531  12.63 
40-44 2,686 0.00662935  17.81 
45-49 2,821 0.01089637  30.74 
50-54 3,079 0.01662929 51.20 
55-59 3,366 0.02156205  72.58 
60-64 3,566 0.02623235  93.54 
65-69 3,530 0.03262954  115.18 
70-74 3,046 0.03755298  114.39 
75-79 2,285 0.04015484  91.75 
80-84 1,497 0.03657260  54.75 

85+ 1,247 0.02073955 25.86 
TOTAL 48,029  691.71 

 
Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
 

McMinn County 
Therapeutic Catheterization Need (2024) 

 
Age  Population Therapeutic Cath State 

Utilization Rate 
Therapeutic Cath 
Need 

0-17 10,998 0.00169583  18.65 
18-29 7,711 0.00057347  4.42 
30-39 6,040 0.00135590  8.19 
40-44 3,051 0.00311256  9.50 
45-49 3,337 0.00516457  17.23 
50-54 3,553 0.00841167  29.89 
55-59 3,773 0.01255474  47.37 
60-64 3,859 0.01709754  65.98 
65-69 3,611 0.02323084  83.89 
70-74 3,070 0.02897184  88.94 
75-79 2,427 0.03442061  83.54 
80-84 1,685 0.03475582  58.56 

85+ 1,492 0.02440396  36.41 
TOTAL 54,607  519.57 

 
Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
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Meigs County 
Therapeutic Catheterization Need (2024) 

 
Age  Population Therapeutic Cath State 

Utilization Rate 
Therapeutic Cath 
Need 

0-17 2,346 0.00169583 3.98 
18-29 1,642 0.00057347  .94 
30-39 1,333 0.00135590 1.81 
40-44 762 0.00311256  2.37 
45-49 820 0.00516457  4.23 
50-54 903 0.00841167  7.60 
55-59 958 0.01255474  12.03 
60-64 986 0.01709754  16.86 
65-69 940 0.02323084  21.84 
70-74 820 0.02897184  23.76 
75-79 601 0.03442061  20.89 
80-84 383 0.03475582  18.21 

85+ 259 0.02440396  6.32 
TOTAL 12,753  140.84 

 
Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
 

Monroe County 
Therapeutic Catheterization Need (2024) 

 
Age  Population Therapeutic Cath State 

Utilization Rate 
Therapeutic Cath 
Need 

0-17 9,244 0.00169583  15.68 
18-29 6,369 0.00057347  3.65 
30-39 5,293 0.00135590  7.18 
40-44 2,686 0.00311256  8.36 
45-49 2,821 0.00516457  14.57 
50-54 3,079 0.00841167  25.90 
55-59 3,366 0.01255474  42.26 
60-64 3,566 0.01709754  60.97 
65-69 3,530 0.02323084  82.00 
70-74 3,046 0.02897184  88.25 
75-79 2,285 0.03442061  78.65 
80-84 1,497 0.03475582  52.03 

85+ 1,247 0.02440396  30.43 
TOTAL 48,029  509.93 

 
Population Source: TDH Populations, Tennessee Counties and the State (2018-2030) 
Utilization Rate Source: TDH State Utilization Rates (2016-2018)  
 

TOTAL CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION NEED 
 

 Diagnostic Need Therapeutic Need Total Need 

McMinn 749.42 519.57 1,268.99 
Meigs 186.56 140.84 327.40 
Monroe 691.71 509.93 1,201.64 
TOTAL 1,627.69 1,170.34 2,798.03 
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10. Access: In light of Rule 0720-4-.01 (1), which lists the factors concerning need on 

which an application may be evaluated, the HSDA may decide to give special 
consideration to an applicant: 

 
a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved area as designated by 

the United States Health Resources and Services Administration; 
 
Response:  All counties in the applicant’s service area are considered medically 
underserved. 
https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-
area/muafind#:~:text=Medically%20Underserved%20Areas%2FPopulations%20ar
e,or%20a%20high%20elderly%20population 
 
b. Who documents that the service area population experiences a prevalence, 

incidence and/or mortality from heart and cardiovascular diseases or other 
clinical conditions applicable to cardiac catheterization services that is 
substantially higher than the State of Tennessee average; 

 
Response:   Please see table below.  All counties in the proposed service area have 
a higher number of deaths/100,000 population than the state overall. 
 

Number of Deaths from Heart Disease 
Rates/100,000 Population 

 
 2017 2018 

McMinn 315.8 279.6 
Meigs 306.7 341.5 
Monroe 257.4 278.2 
STATE 238.4 242.5 

   Source:  Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Vital Records and Statistics 
 
 
c. Who is a “safety net hospital” as defined by the Bureau of TennCare Essential 

Access Hospital payment program; or 
 
Response:  The applicant is not a safety net hospital.   
 
d. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract with at least one 

TennCare MCO and, if providing adult services, to participate in the Medicare 
program. 

 
Response:  The applicant participates in the Medicare program and contracts with 
all the TennCare MCOs in its service area, including: BlueCare, TennCare Select, 
United Healthcare Community Plan, and Amerigroup.   
 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization 
Services Only 

 
If an applicant does not intend to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services, the HSDA 
should place a condition on the resulting CON limiting the applicant to providing diagnostic cardiac 
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catheterization services only. Applicants proposing to provide only diagnostic cardiac 
catheterization services should meet the following minimum standards: 
 

11. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 300 diagnostic cardiac 
catheterization cases per year by its third year of operation. Annual volume shall be 
measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin at the conclusion of the 
applicant’s first year of operation. If the applicant is proposing services in a rural area 
where the HSDA determines that access to diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
services has been limited, and if the applicant is pursuing a partnership with a tertiary 
facility to share and train staff, the Agency may determine that a minimum volume of 
200 cases per year is acceptable. Only cases including diagnostic cardiac 
catheterization procedures as defined by these Standards and Criteria may count 
towards meeting this minimum volume standard. 

 
Response:  The applicant projects volumes of 323 cases (233 diagnostic; 90 
therapeutic) in year one, 380 cases (277 diagnostic and 103 therapeutic) in year 2, 
increasing to 420 cases (306 diagnostic and 114 therapeutic) in year 3.  The area 
the applicant proposes to serve is an underserved rural area, and it will be partnering 
with Parkwest Medical Center, a tertiary facility.  Parkwest will collaborate to assist 
the applicant in identifying cardiologists who will be appropriately credentialed and 
have the requisite experience and training to perform diagnostic and therapeutic 
catheterization procedures.  Parkwest will also provide training resources to support 
the quality practices needed to perform catheterizations.   

 
12. High Risk/Unstable Patients: Such applicants should (a) delineate the steps, based 

on the ACC Guidelines, that will be taken to ensure that high-risk or unstable patients 
are not catheterized in the facility, and (b) certify that therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services will not be performed in the facility unless and until the 
applicant has received Certificate of Need approval to provide therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will follow the ACC Guidelines to ensure that no high risk 

or unstable patients will be catheterized at the facility.  The applicant is applying for 
therapeutic as well as diagnostic catheterization procedures in this application. 

 
13. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation of a 

new diagnostic cardiac catheterization program should require at least one 
cardiologist who performed an average of 75 diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
procedures over the most recent five year period. All participating cardiologists in the 
proposed program should be board certified or board eligible in cardiology and any 
relevant cardiac subspecialties. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will ensure the cardiologists who will be performing 

diagnostic cardiac catheterizations have performed an average of 75 diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization procedures over the most recent five year period and are 
board certified in cardiology.   
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Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of  
Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization Services 

 
Applicants proposing to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services must meet the 
following minimum standards: 
 

14. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 400 diagnostic and/or therapeutic 
cardiac catheterization cases per year by its third year of operation. At least 75 of 
these cases per year should include a therapeutic cardiac catheterization procedure. 
Annual volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin 
at the conclusion of the applicant’s first year of operation. Only cases including 
diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catheterization procedures as defined by these 
Standards and Criteria shall count towards meeting this minimum volume standard. 

 
 Response:  The applicant projects 420 actual (non-weighted) total adult cardiac 

catheterization lab cases in year 3 of which 306 cases (73%) will be diagnostic and 
114 cases (27%) will be therapeutic.  Please see table below: 

 
Projected Cardiac Catheterization Volume 

 
 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Diagnostic Caths 233 277 306 
Therapeutic Caths 90 103 114 
TOTAL 323 380 420 

 
 
15. Open Heart Surgery Availability: Acute care facilities proposing to offer adult 

therapeutic cardiac catheterization services shall not be required to maintain an on-
site open heart surgery program. Applicants without on-site open heart surgery 
should follow the most recent American College of Cardiology/American Heart 
Association/Society for Cardiac Angiography and Interventions Practice Guideline 
Update for Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (ACC/AHA/SCAI Guidelines). As of 
the adoption of these Standards and Criteria, the latest version of this document 
(2007) may be found online at: 
http://circ.ahajournals.org/egi/reprint/CIRCULATIONAHA.107.185159  

 Therapeutic procedures should not be performed in freestanding cardiac 
catheterization laboratories, whether fixed or mobile. Mobile units may, however, 
perform therapeutic procedures provided the mobile unit is located on a hospital 
campus and the hospital has on-site open heart surgery. In addition, hospitals 
approved to perform therapeutic cardiac catheterizations without on-site open heart 
surgery backup may temporarily perform these procedures in a mobile laboratory on 
the hospital’s campus during construction impacting the fixed laboratories. 

 
 Response:  The applicant does not offer open heart surgery and will follow the most 

recent American College of Cardiology/American Heart Association/Society for 
Cardiac Angiography and Interventions Practice Guideline Update for Percutaneous 
Coronary Intervention (ACC/AHA/SCAI Guidelines).  The applicant will maintain an 
emergency transfer protocol with Parkwest Medical Center to provide tertiary level 
care should the patient require it. 
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16. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation of a 

new therapeutic cardiac catheterization program should require at least two 
cardiologists with at least one cardiologist having performed an average of 75 
therapeutic procedures over the most recent five year period. All participating 
cardiologists in the proposed program should be board certified or board eligible in 
cardiology and any relevant cardiac subspecialties. 

 
 Response:   While the specific cardiologists have not yet been identified as it will be 

18 months from time of approval before the project is completed, the applicant will 
ensure that any cardiologists providing services at its cath lab will meet all 
requirements, including that at least one of the cardiologists performing therapeutic 
procedures shall have performed an average of 75 therapeutic procedures over the 
most recent five year period.  All participating cardiologists in the proposed program 
will be board certified or board eligible in cardiology and any relevant cardiac 
subspecialties. 

 
17. Staff and Service Availability: Ideally, therapeutic services should be available on 

an emergency basis 24 hours per day, 7 days per week through a staff call schedule 
(24/7 emergency coverage). In addition, all laboratory staff should be available within 
30 minutes of the activation of the laboratory. If the applicant will not be able to 
immediately provide 24/7 emergency coverage, the applicant should present a plan 
for reaching 24/7 emergency coverage within three years of initiating the service or 
present a signed transfer agreement with another facility capable of treating 
transferred patients in a cardiac catheterization laboratory on a 24/7 basis within 90 
minutes of the patient’s arrival at the originating emergency department. 

 
 Response:  The applicant plans to meet all the staff and service availability 

requirements identified above in order to have coverage available on an emergency 
basis 24 hours per day 7 days per week. 

 
18. Expansion of Services to Include Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: An 

applicant proposing the establishment of therapeutic cardiac catheterization 
services, who is already an existing provider of diagnostic catheterization services, 
should demonstrate that its diagnostic cardiac catheterization unit has been utilized 
for an average minimum of 300 cases per year for the two most recent years as 
reflected in the data supplied to and/or verified by the Department of Health. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable.  The applicant is applying to initiate both diagnostic and 

therapeutic services at the same time. 
 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of  
Pediatric Cardiac Catheterization Services 

 
Applicants proposing to provide pediatric cardiac catheterization services should meet the following 
minimum standards: 
 

19. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 100 cases per year by its third year 
of operation. Annual volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average 
which shall begin at the conclusion of the applicant’s first year of operation.  Only 
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cases that include diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catheterization procedures as 
defined by these Standards and Criteria shall count towards meeting this minimum 
volume standard. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
20. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation of a 

new pediatric cardiac catheterization program should require at least two 
cardiologists with at least one cardiologist having performed an average of 50 
pediatric cardiac catheterization procedures over the most recent five year period. 
Pediatric cardiac catheterization procedures should be performed only by board 
certified or board eligible physicians specializing in pediatric cardiac care. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
21. Open Heart Surgery Availability: Such applicants should offer full pediatric cardiac 

medical and cardiac surgical capabilities, including pediatric open heart surgery. 
 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Offering of 
 Mobile Cardiac Catheterization Services 

 
The need for mobile cardiac catheterization services should be based upon the following minimum 
standards: 
 

22. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the 
proposed service utilization will be a minimum of 60 cardiac catheterization cases 
per day of operation per year by its third year of operation. Annual volume shall be 
measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin at the conclusion of the 
applicant’s first year of operation. If the applicant is proposing services in a rural area 
where the HSDA determines that access to diagnostic cardiac catheterization 
services has been limited, and if the applicant is pursuing a partnership with a tertiary 
facility to share and train staff, the Agency may determine that a minimum volume of 
40 cases per day of operation per year is acceptable.  Only cases that included 
diagnostic cardiac catheterization procedures may count towards meeting this 
minimum volume standard. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
23. Limitations on Procedure Types in Mobile Facilities: No therapeutic or pediatric 

cardiac catheterization procedures should be performed using a mobile laboratory 
unless the mobile unit is located on a hospital campus with on-site open heart surgery 
capability and, in the case of a pediatric procedure, offers full pediatric cardiac 
medical and cardiac surgical capabilities. On a temporary basis, however, the same 
scope of services offered in a fixed laboratory may be offered in a mobile laboratory 
only for the duration of construction impacting the fixed laboratory. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
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24. Non-Cardiologist Physician and Staff Competence: In cases where attending 
cardiologists live more than 30 minutes from the mobile laboratory and/or typically 
leave after performing a procedure, the applicant should document that a sufficient 
number of physicians and support staff at the facility have an understanding of the 
potential complications of cardiac catheterization and are an integral part of the 
program’s management process. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
Rationale for Revised and Updated Standards and Criteria for Cardiac 

Catheterization Services 
 

Definitions 
 
Diagnostic-Equivalent Procedure and Weights: The Division recognizes that a variety of 
procedures may be performed in a cardiac catheterization laboratory, including procedures not 
specifically defined as cardiac catheterization procedures. Thus, in order to allow for a consistent 
measurement of cardiac catheterization laboratory capacity, the Division includes the above 
procedure weighting system in these Standards and Criteria. The weighting system was developed 
in consultation with the Tennessee Hospital Association, which in turn consulted with its member 
hospitals. 
 

Standards and Criteria Regarding Certificate of Need Applications for All Cardiac 
Catheterization Services 

 
1. Compliance with Standards: Meetings with providers throughout Tennessee 

revealed widespread agreement on the need for greater ongoing enforcement of 
CON standards and criteria. Providers felt that applicants should be held accountable 
for the promises they make in an application. The Division of Health Planning is 
currently in discussions with the Department of Health, the HSDA, and other CON 
stakeholders on the subject of how to devise a reasonable system of CON 
accountability. The specifics of increased accountability for providers offering CON-
regulated services should be developed through a public process that includes all 
interested stakeholders. 

 
 Response:  As an interested party, the applicant agrees to be involved in this 

process. 
 
2. Facility Accreditation: As a condition of licensure, hospitals must be inspected by 

a Department of Health surveyor. While accreditation is not a condition of hospital 
licensure in Tennessee, freestanding cardiac catheterization laboratories in 
Tennessee are not required to be licensed and, subsequently, are not surveyed by 
a quality review panel. In order to promote a safe environment for a high-risk 
procedure such as cardiac catheterization, the Division believes that all facilities 
providing cardiac catheterization services should be surveyed by a proper authority, 
such as the Department of Health or a nationally recognized accrediting body such 
as the Joint Commission. Ensuring that each facility meets high performance 
standards is particularly relevant to the policy statement concerning quality found in 
TCA § 68-1 I-1625(b): “Every citizen should have confidence that the quality of health 
care is continually monitored and standards are adhered to by health care providers.” 
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This standard seeks to hold all applicants seeking to provide cardiac catheterization 
services to a similar standard of accountability. 

 
 Response:  Because the proposed cardiac catheterization lab will be a part of the 

hospital, it will be inspected by the Department of Health and accredited by The Joint 
Commission. 

 
3. Emergency Transfer Plan: Responses to the Questionnaire indicated widespread 

agreement on the importance of this standard. While this standard is included in the 
most recent ACC/AHA/SCAI Practice Guideline Update for Percutaneous Coronary 
Intervention, the Division believes that patient safety issues necessitate greater 
scrutiny during the CON application process. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will have an appropriate emergency transfer plan. 
 
4. Quality Control and Monitoring: The Division had considered requiring applicants 

to participate in the National Cardiovascular Data Registry (NCDR). Respondents to 
the Questionnaire agreed with the intent of such a requirement, however most 
respondents indicated that the costs of participation in the NCDR are burdensome, 
especially for new cardiac catheterization programs. Consequently, this standard 
seeks to ensure that applicants will develop a comprehensive quality control system 
that best fits their circumstances and that applicants participate in ongoing efforts to 
improve the overall quality of cardiac care in Tennessee. 

 
 Response:  As previously stated, the applicant will develop a comprehensive quality 

control system in conjunction with its ultimate parent. 
 
5. Data Requirements: Currently, the Hospital Joint Annual Report (JAR) does not 

contain the level of detail needed by the HSDA to consider properly cardiac 
catheterization CON applications. As stated in Policy Recommendation 5, the 
Division is committed to working with CON stakeholders to modify existing data 
reporting streams to meet the data needs of the CON process. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will work with the Division to help identify necessary data 

reporting streams to meet the data needs of the CON process.   
 
6. Clinical and Physical Environment Guidelines: Respondents to the 

Questionnaire agreed that the ACC Guidelines should serve as the State’s standard 
for quality. Respondents also agreed that it is reasonable for facilities to demonstrate 
where they are not in compliance with the ACC Guidelines and the subsequent 
measures the facility is taking to ensure quality. Maintaining compliance could be 
incorporated into existing licensure and accreditation review processes by the 
Department of Health and the Joint Commission. Through discussions concerning 
Policy Recommendation 2, the Division will work with the Department of Health to 
develop a reasonable review process. 

 
 Response:  The applicant agrees to comply with any clinical and physical 

environment guidelines. 
 
7. Staffing Recruitment and Retention: As stated in TCA § 68-11-1625(b), “The state 

should support the recruitment and retention of a sufficient and quality health care 
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workforce.” Moreover, maintaining and developing an adequate staff is essential to 
the quality and ongoing availability of the proposed service. This standard is also 
intended to ensure that applicants will not significantly affect the ability of existing 
providers to maintain an adequate staff. 

 
 Response:  The applicant plans to recruit all clinical personnel necessary to provide 

a sufficient and quality health care workforce. 
 
8. Definition of Need for New Services: Respondents to the Questionnaire agreed 

that this standard is reasonable. This standard is comparable to other states’ 
standards defining need for additional cardiac catheterization services. 

 
 Response:  This is a new service and the applicant feels it is necessary to meet the 

health care needs of the residents of the service area. 
 
9. Proposed Service Areas with No Existing Service: For proposed service areas 

with no existing services, precisely determining need and demand may be difficult. 
Several other states rely both on existing utilization rates and epidemiological 
evidence to help project need and demand. The age groups were determined based 
upon recommendations from and data provided by the Department of Health. This 
standard sets clear guidelines for demonstrating need and demand while giving the 
HSDA flexibility to consider appropriately each application. Over time, as utilization 
data is reported and more actively analyzed by the Department of Health and the 
Division of Health Planning, this standard may be revised to predict more accurately 
need and demand. 

 
 Response:  The applicant has used the stated guidelines to determine need. 
 
10. Access: One of the five Principles for Achieving Better Health contained in the State 

Health Plan is that “Every citizen should have reasonable access to health care.” 
Thus, issues affecting access to health care should be considered in the CON 
process. These criteria build upon the overarching CON criterion of need to provide 
the HSDA with clearer guidance on improving access to health care. Respondents 
to the Questionnaire mostly agreed that subsection (d) is reasonable and would not 
disadvantage providers in negotiations with MCOs. 

 
 Response:  By allowing Starr Regional Medical Center to initiate cardiac 

catheterization services, access to this necessary health care procedure will be 
increased for many of the area’s rural residents. 

 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization 

Services Only 
 

11. Minimum Volume Standard: Questionnaire respondents generally agreed that 300 
weighted cases per year is an appropriate minimum volume standard for a diagnostic 
catheterization program. Such a standard is consistent with nationally recognized 
guidelines. For the rural exception, given the requirement that the applicant share 
staff with a tertiary facility, a proper amount of experience to maintain competency 
should be maintained. In addition, provided that other procedures may be performed 
in a cardiac catheterization laboratory, this standard sets a minimum volume only for 
diagnostic cardiac catheterizations per nationally recognized guidelines. Finally, this 
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standard addresses a concern raised by a Questionnaire respondent—an applicant 
should not rely predominantly on projected EP study and peripheral vascular 
procedures to demonstrate the need for a cardiac catheterization laboratory. 

 
 Response:  The applicant plans to perform 233 diagnostic cardiac cath cases and 

90 therapeutic cardiac cath cases, not counting EP studies and peripheral vascular 
procedures, in the first year of operation, increasing to 306 diagnostic and 114 
therapeutic cardiac catheterization cases in the third year of operation. 

 
12. High Risk/Unstable Patients: This standard is consistent with nationally recognized 

guidelines. Moreover, given the increased resources and clinical expertise needed 
to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services and in order to promote the 
orderly development of the health care system, the Division proposes that it is 
appropriate to require CON approval to initiate such services. 

 
 Response:  The applicant will apply appropriate screening guidelines to screen out 

high risk and unstable patients. 
 
13. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: It may be financially 

difficult for applicants seeking to provide a diagnostic cardiac catheterization service 
in a rural area to initiate the service with two full-time cardiologists. Given the lower 
level of risk associated with diagnostic-only programs, this standard allows an 
applicant to build more easily a diagnostic cardiac catheterization program over time. 
This standard is consistent with the recommendations of the ACC Expert Consensus 
Document on Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Standards. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable.  The applicant proposes to initiate both diagnostic and 

therapeutic cardiac catheterization services at the same time if this application is 
approved. 

 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of  

Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization Services 
 

14. Minimum Volume Standard: Questionnaire respondents generally agreed that 400 
weighted cases per year is an appropriate minimum volume standard for a diagnostic 
and therapeutic catheterization program and is consistent with nationally recognized 
guidelines. In addition, this standard addresses a concern raised by a Questionnaire 
respondent—an applicant cannot rely predominantly on projected EP study and 
peripheral vascular procedures to demonstrate the need for a cardiac catheterization 
laboratory. 

 
 Response:  The applicant anticipates exceeding 400 cases the third year of 

operation. 
 
15. Open Heart Surgery Availability: The Division is sensitive to the disagreement in 

the provider community on the availability of on-site open heart surgery to perform 
therapeutic cardiac catheterizations. However, given national trends to expand the 
accessibility of therapeutic services and the protocols recommended by the 
ACC/AHA/SCAI to provide such services in an appropriate setting, the Division 
proposes that this standard is appropriate for Tennessee. Moreover, a more 
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organized, statewide approach to quality as proposed in Policy Recommendation 2 
will contribute to more accessible, high quality services. 

 
 Response:  The applicant is proposing to initiate both diagnostic and therapeutic 

cardiac catheterization services in order to expand the availability of these necessary 
health care services.   Like many other cardiac catheterization laboratories in 
Tennessee, the applicant will not have on-site open heart surgery but instead plans 
to have a transfer agreement with Parkwest Medical Center in Knoxville in the event 
of an emergency which would necessitate transfer. 

 
16. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: In meetings with 

providers throughout Tennessee, the Division heard a concern that new therapeutic 
programs should not be initiated solely by inexperienced physicians. This standard 
is consistent with the recommendations of the ACC Expert Consensus Document on 
Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory Standards. 

 
 Response:  The applicant plans to initiate the therapeutic cardiac catheterization 

services with experienced providers. 
 
17. Staff and Service Availability: Respondents to the Questionnaire generally favored 

including a standard requiring 24/7 emergency coverage for therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization programs, which is consistent with nationally recognized guidelines. 
However, upon consideration of a comment on the Draft Standards, the Division has 
revised this standard to reflect the difficulties of initiating a new service with 
immediate 24/7 emergency coverage. 

 
24/7 emergency coverage provides a consistent service to a community, giving 
community residents an accurate expectation of the care available locally to them, 
and demonstrates committed financial and programmatic investment in providing a 
very resource-intensive service. However, for the very reason that providing 24/7 
emergency coverage is such a resource-intensive endeavor, we recognize that 
opening a new cardiac catheterization program with immediate 24/7 coverage could 
prove overly burdensome. 
 
However, allowing expedient transfer during a cardiac catheterization laboratory’s 
non-operating hours provides an opportunity for a larger number of facilities, 
particularly in suburban and rural areas, that could provide therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services. An unintended consequence of allowing too many cardiac 
catheterization providers in a region could be to adversely affect those providers 
seeking to maintain 24/7 emergency coverage. 
 
This final standard reflects the above considerations to provide a process that 
ultimately yields greater access to therapeutic cardiac catheterization services. 
 
Response:  The applicant plans to have 24/7 emergency coverage.  The 
cardiologists who will be providing the services have not yet been determined.  If 
they do not reside within 30 minutes of the hospital, arrangements will be made for 
them either at the hospital or in the community when they are on call so they can 
meet the requirement of being at the hospital within 30 minutes of being called.  The 
applicant will also have an appropriate transfer arrangement in the event of an 
emergency that cannot be handled at Starr. 

55



4813-2574-7658.15 
35 

 

 
18. Expansion of Services to Include Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: This 

standard pertains to the orderly development of the health care system, as 
successful diagnostic cardiac catheterization programs are more likely to have the 
resources and patient base to expand the services offered. The Division recognizes 
that this standard does not address an applicant currently providing no cardiac 
catheterization services that proposes to provide both diagnostic and therapeutic 
cardiac catheterization services. The Division particularly welcomes feedback on 
how best to promote the orderly development of cardiac catheterization services 
under these circumstances. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable.  The applicant is not currently providing cardiac 

catheterization services. 
 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of  
Pediatric Cardiac Catheterization Services 

 
19. Minimum Volume Standard: This standard is consistent with national guidelines on 

the provision of pediatric cardiac catheterization services. 
 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
20. Physician Requirements: This standard is consistent with the most recent ACC 

Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Catheterization Laboratory Standards. 
 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
21. Open Heart Surgery Availability: This standard is consistent with the most recent 

ACC Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Catheterization Laboratory Standards. 
 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 

Specific Standards and Criteria for the Offering of Mobile Cardiac Catheterization Services 
 

22. Minimum Volume Standard: Questionnaire respondents generally agreed with a 
prorated minimum volume standard for a diagnostic catheterization program offered 
in a mobile laboratory. Such a standard is consistent with nationally recognized 
guidelines. For the rural exception, given the requirement that the applicant share 
staff with a tertiary facility, a proper amount of experience to maintain competency 
should be maintained. In addition, provided that other procedures may be performed 
in a cardiac catheterization laboratory, this standard sets a minimum volume only for 
diagnostic cardiac catheterizations per nationally recognized guidelines. Finally, this 
standard addresses a concern raised by a Questionnaire respondent; an applicant 
should not be able to rely predominantly on projected EP study and peripheral 
vascular procedures to demonstrate the need for a mobile cardiac catheterization 
laboratory. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
23. Limitations on Procedure Types in Mobile Facilities: Several respondents to the 

Questionnaire indicated that, especially in temporary situations, such as during a 
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physical expansion of a hospital, cardiac catheterization services may need to be 
moved to a temporary laboratory. This standard allows cardiac catheterization 
programs to maintain consistency in their scope of services during construction 
impacting fixed laboratories. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 
 
24. Non-Cardiologist Physician and Staff Competence: In rural settings where the 

provision of cardiac catheterization services is sought to increase access to health 
care, it is likely that the attending cardiologist will not reside in close proximity to the 
mobile laboratory. This standard is intended to assure the competency of the full-
time facility staff to manage the cardiac catheterization laboratory and to deal 
effectively with complications and emergencies. This standard is consistent with the 
most recent ACC Clinical Expert Consensus Document on Catheterization 
Laboratory Standards. 

 
 Response:  Not applicable. 

END OF CRITERIA 

2. Describe how this project relates to existing facilities or services operated by the applicant 
including previously approved Certificate of Need projects and future long-range 
development plans. 
 

Response:  In order for the applicant to provide appropriate access to its service area residents 
to necessary medical care, it is important that it be allowed to expand the services it offers to 
include cardiac catheterization services.  As seen in the table included earlier in the application  
that identifies the number of deaths from heart disease,  all counties in the service area have 
significantly higher rates of death from heart disease than the state of Tennessee.  According to 
the CDC, heart disease is the leading cause of death in Tennessee.   

3. Identify the proposed service area and provide justification for its reasonableness. Submit a 
county level map for the Tennessee portion of the service area using the map on the 
following page, clearly marked and shaded to reflect the service area as it relates to meeting 
the requirements for CON criteria and standards that may apply to the project. Please 
include a discussion of the inclusion of counties in the border states, if applicable. 
Attachment Section B - Need-3. 

 

Response:  The applicant’s service area will be McMinn, Meigs and Monroe counties.  
Service Area Map included as Attachment B-Need-3. 
 

Complete the following utilization tables for each county in the service area, if applicable: 
 

Response:   There is no historical utilization for catheterizations performed on residents in 
any of the proposed service area counties because this is a new service; there are no 
exiting cath laboratories in any of the counties in the service area. 
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Service Area Historical Utilization-County Residents - Most % of total □ procedures □ cases 
Counties Recent Year (YEAR= ) □ patients □ Other

County #1 

County #2 

County #3 

County #4 

Etc. 

Total 100% 

Service Area Projected Utilization-County Residents - Most % of total IBJ procedures □ cases 
Counties Recent Year (YEAR = 2022 ) □ patients □ Other

McMinn 222 68.5 

Meigs 30 9.4 

Monroe 36 11.2 

Other 35 10.9 

Etc. 

Total 323 100% 
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4. A.1) Describe the demographics of the population to be served by the proposal. 

2) Provide the following data for each county in the service area using current and 
projected population data from the Department of Health 
(https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/health/health-program-areas/statistics/health-
data/con.html ), the most recent enrollee data from the Division of TennCare 
(https://www.tn.gov/tenncare/information-statistics/enrollment-data.html ), and US 
Census Bureau demographic information (: 
http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml ),. 

 
TennCare Enrollment Data: https://www.tn.gov/tenncare/information-statistics/enrollment-data.html  
Census Bureau Fact Finder: http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml 
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McMinn 
53,640 54,285 1.2 % 25,981 26,807 3.1% 49.4% 42.7 $41,398 10,513 19.6

% 
 

12,986 24.2
% 

Meigs 
12,238 12,414 1.44% 6,341 6,675 5.2% 53.8% 44.7 $43,250 2,080 17.0

% 
3,215 26.3

% 

Monroe 
47,087 47,949 1.83% 23,386 24,437 4.4% 50.9% 43.6 $38,327 9,088 19.3

% 
11,739 24.9

% 
Service 
Area 
Total 

112,965 114,648 1.49% 55,708 57,919 3.9% 50.5% 43.7 $40,992 21,011 18.6
% 

27,940 24.7
% 

State of 
TN Total 

6,883,347 7,097,353 3.11% 2,951,468 3,089,316 4.6% 43.5% 38.9 $52,375 1,1053,152 15.3
% 

1,480,766 21.5
% 

 

* Target Population is population that project will primarily serve. For example, nursing home, home health agency, hospice 

agency projects typically primarily serve the Age 65+ population; projects for child and adolescent psychiatric services will 

serve the Population Ages 0-17. Projected Year is defined in select service-specific criteria and standards. If Projected Year 

is not defined, default should be four years from current year, e.g., if Current Year is 2019, then default Projected Year is 2023. 

Be sure to identify the target population, e.g., Age 65+, the current year and projected 
year being used. 

B. Describe the special needs of the service area population, including health disparities, the 
accessibility to consumers, particularly the elderly, women, racial and ethnic minorities, 
TennCare or Medicaid recipients, and low-income groups. Document how the business 
plans of the facility will take into consideration the special needs of the service area 
population. 

Response:  The service area population is older than the state population overall, has a 
lower median household income, has a higher percentage of people below the poverty level 
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be available to all residents of the service area regardless of age, sex, race or ethnicity, 
payer source or income. 

5. Describe the existing and approved but unimplemented services of similar healthcare
providers in the service area. Include utilization and/or occupancy trends for each of the
most recent three years of data available for this type of project. List each provider and its
utilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient bed projects must include the following
data: Admissions or discharges, patient days, average length of stay, and occupancy. Other
projects should use the most appropriate measures, e.g., cases, procedures, visits,
admissions, etc. This doesn't apply to projects that are solely relocating a service.

Response: Not applicable. 

6. Provide applicable utilization and/or occupancy statistics for your institution services for
each of the past three years and the projected annual utilization for each of the two years
following completion of the project. Additionally, provide the details regarding the
methodology used to project utilization. The methodology must include detailed
calculations or documentation from referral sources, and identification of all assumptions.

Response: There is no historical utilization. The applicant looked at several different data 
bases to identify the number of cardiac catheterizations that are being performed on both 
an inpatient and outpatient for residents of the service area. Those numbers showed that a 
significant number of service area residents are going outside the service area to receive 
cardiac catheterization procedures. The applicant reviewed the data and projected that it 
would capture approximately 35-50% of those that it could perform. It anticipates that as its 
service becomes more established the number of procedures will increase approximately 
17.6% the first full year of operation and 10.5% the second full year of operation. The 
application projects the following number of procedures by county: 

Service Area Projected Utilization-County Residents - % of total IB:l procedures □ cases 
Counties Most Recent Year (YEAR= □ patients □ Other

2022 ) 
McMinn 222 68.5 
Meigs 30 9.4 
Monroe 36 11.2 
Other 35 10.9 
Etc. 

Total 323 100% 

Service Area Projected Utilization-County Residents - % of total IB:l procedures □ cases 
Counties Most Recent Year (YEAR= □ patients □ Other

2023 ) 
McMinn 260 68.5 
Meigs 36 9.4 
Monroe 43 11.2 
Other 41 10.9 
Etc. 

Total 380 100% 
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ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY 
 
The responses to this section of the application will help determine whether the project 
can be economically accomplished and maintained. 

1. Project Cost Chart Instructions 
A. All projects should have a project cost of at least $15,000 (the minimum CON Filing 

Fee) (See Application Instructions for Filing Fee) 
Response:  Please see Project Costs Chart.   
 

B. The cost of any lease (building, land, and/or equipment) should be based on fair 
market value or the total amount of the lease payments over the initial term of the 
lease, whichever is greater. Note: This applies to all equipment leases including by 
procedure or “per click” arrangements. The methodology used to determine the total 
lease cost for a "per click" arrangement must include, at a minimum, the projected 
procedures, the "per click" rate and the term of the lease. 
 
Response:  Not applicable.  The project does not involve a lease. 
 

C. The cost for fixed and moveable equipment includes, but is not necessarily limited to, 
maintenance agreements covering the expected useful life of the equipment; federal, 
state, and local taxes and other government assessments; and installation charges, 
excluding capital expenditures for physical plant renovation or in-wall shielding, which 
should be included under construction costs or incorporated in a facility lease.  
 
Response:  Not applicable. 
 

D. The Total Construction Cost reported on line 5 should equal the Total Cost reported 
on the Square Footage Chart.  
 
Response:  The Total Construction Cost of $2,100,000 matches the Total Cost 
reported on the Square Footage Chart. 
 

E. For projects that include new construction, modification, and/or renovation— 
documentation must be provided from a licensed architect or construction 
professional that support the estimated construction costs. Provide a letter that 
includes the following: 

1) A general description of the project; 

2) An estimate of the cost to construct the project; 

3) A description of the status of the site’s suitability for the proposed project; and 

4) Attesting the physical environment will conform to applicable federal standards, 
manufacturer’s specifications and licensing agencies’ requirements including the 
AIA Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospital and Health Care Facilities 
or comparable document in current use by the licensing authority.  

Response:  The applicant is proposing to initiate both diagnostic and therapeutic 
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cardiac catheterization services.  The addition and renovated space will be a total 
of 2,841 square feet.  There will be an addition of 2,409 square feet and 
renovation of 432 existing square feet.  This new space will house a GE Innova 
530 cardiovascular/interventional imaging system in an interventional suite, a 
control room, holding area, workstation and changing room.  The applicant 
estimates the project costs will be approximately $5,050,000, including the CON 
filing fee.  The majority of the costs are for the necessary construction 
($2,100,000) and the fixed and moveable equipment ($2,180,000) to outfit the 
cardiac catheterization laboratory. 

 

Please see letter included as Attachment-Section3-Economic Feasibility-1E.
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PROJECT COST CHART 

 

A. Construction and equipment acquired by purchase:  
 1. Architectural and Engineering Fees $297,000 

 2. 
Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee), 
Consultant Fees $110,000 

 3. Acquisition of Site 0 

 4. Preparation of Site 0 

 5. Total Construction Costs $2,100,000 

 6. Contingency Fund $203,000 

 7. Fixed Equipment (Not included in Construction Contract) $770,000 

 8. 
Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000 as 
separate attachments) $1,410,000 

 9. Other (Specify)  none  
B. Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:  

 1. Facility (inclusive of building and land) 0 

 2. Building only 0 

 3. Land only 0 

 4. Equipment (Specify)         
 5. Other (Specify)         
C. Financing Costs and Fees:  

 1. Interim Financing 0 

 2. Underwriting Costs 0 

 3. Reserve for One Year’s Debt Service       

 4. Other (Specify) Cap Interest $130,000 
D. Estimated Project Cost 

(A+B+C) 
  $5,020,000 

E.  CON Filing Fee $28,865 

F.  Total Estimated Project Cost 
(D+E)                                                                TOTAL $5,048,865 
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Moveable Equipment >$50K 

Pump, Balloon, Intra-Aortic Getinge Group - MAQUET 
Cardiovascular 

CARDIOSAVE 
Hybrid 

$65,000.00  

Ultrasound, Imaging, 
Multipurpose 

GE Healthcare - Imaging 
Systems 

Venue Go $56,000.00  

Ultrasound, Imaging, Vascular 
Access 

Philips Volcano IntraSight 7 $205,000.00  

Computer Wkstn, Cath-Lab, 
Hemodynamic 

Merge Healthcare Merge Hemo $150,000.00  

PACS, Cardiology, Allowance Merge Healthcare Merge Cardio $150,000.00  
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2. Identify the funding sources for this project. 

Check the applicable item(s) below and briefly summarize how the project will be financed.  
(Documentation for the type of funding MUST be inserted at the end of the application, 
in the correct alpha/numeric order and identified as Attachment Section B-Economic 
Feasibility-2.) 

      A.. Commercial loan – Letter from lending institution or guarantor stating favorable 
initial contact, proposed loan amount, expected interest rates, anticipated term of the loan, 
and any restrictions or conditions; 

      B. Tax-exempt bonds – Copy of preliminary resolution or a letter from the issuing 
authority stating favorable initial contact and a conditional agreement from an underwriter or 
investment banker to proceed with the issuance; 

      C. General obligation bonds – Copy of resolution from issuing authority or minutes 
from the appropriate meeting; 

      D. Grants – Notification of intent form for grant application or notice of grant award;  

X E. Cash Reserves – Appropriate documentation from Chief Financial Officer of the 
organization providing the funding for the project and audited financial statements of the 
organization; and/or 

      F. Other – Identify and document funding from all other sources. 

Response:  Please see letter from CFO included as Attachment Section B-Economic 
Feasibility-2E. 

3. Complete Historical Data Charts on the following two pages—Do not modify the Charts 
provided or submit Chart substitutions!   

Historical Data Chart(s) provide revenue and expense information for the last three (3) years 
for which complete data is available. The “Project Only Chart” provides information for the 
services being presented in the proposed project while the “Total Facility Chart” provides 
information for the entire facility. Complete both, if applicable. 

Note that “Management Fees to Affiliates” should include management fees paid by agreement 
to the parent company, another subsidiary of the parent company, or a third party with common 
ownership as the applicant entity.  “Management Fees to Non-Affiliates” should include any 
management fees paid by agreement to third party entities not having common ownership with 
the applicant.   
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART 
□ Project Only
□X Total Facility

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility or agency. The fiscal year 
begins in January. 

Year 2018 Year 2019 Year 2020 

A. Utilization Data
Specify Unit of Measure: Adjusted Admissions 11,745 11,717 9,453 

B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services $ 98,292,770 $ 120,125,968 $ 123,459,742 

2. Outpatient Services $ 273,837,490 $ 300,351,466 $ 282,223,696 

3. Emergency Services $ 68,641,668 $ 74,790,477 $ 70,874,626 

4. Other Operating Revenue (Specify) misc. not associated
with patient AR. $ 272,629 $ 273,421 $ 363,112 

Gross Operating Revenue $ 441,044,557 $ 495,541,332 $ 476,921,176 

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments $ 342,938,839 $ 385,208,114 $ 377,368,713 

2. Provision for Charity Care $ 2,521,450 $ 4,210,910 $ 2,836,662 

3. Provisions for Bad Debt $ 15,253,616 $ 16,637,968 $ 13,668,493 

Total Deductions $ 360,713,905 $ 406,056,992 $ 393,873,868 

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ 80,330,652 $ 89,484,340 $ 83,047,308 

D. Operating Expenses

1. Salaries and Wages

a. Direct Patient Care $15,302,789 $15,765,301 $ 16,102,240 

b. Non-Patient Care $5,066,557 $5,601,359 $5,335,637 

2. Physician's Salaries and Wages -0- -0- -0-

3. Supplies
$9,712,779 $11,054,626 $11,179,039 

4. Rent

a. Paid to Affiliates -0- -0- -0-

b. Paid to Non-Affiliates $393,918 $404,139 $ 438,733 

5. Management Fees:

a. Paid to Affiliates $4,438,986 $3,003,807 $ 3,077,973 

b. Paid to Non-Affiliates -0- -0- -0-

6. Other Operating Expenses (06) $23,153,539 $24,772,462 $ 17,533,184 

Total Operating Expenses $ 58,068,568 $ 60,601,694 $ 53,666,806 

E. Earnings Before Interest, Taxes and Depreciation $ 22,262,084 $ 28,882,646 $ 29,380,502 

F. Non-Operating Expenses

1. Taxes $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

2. Depreciation $1,988,486 $3,601,240 $ 3,585,622 

3. Interest -0- -0- $3,889 

4. Other Non-Operating Expenses $186,371 $2,789 -0-

Total Non-Operating Expenses $2,174,857 $3,604,029 $3,589,511 

NET INCOME (LOSS) $20,087,227 $25,278,617 $ 25,790,991 

Chart Continues Onto Next Page 
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NET INCOME {LOSS) $ 20,087,227 

G. Other Deductions

1. Annual Principal Debt Repayment $-0-

2. Annual Capital Expenditure $1,089,911 

Total Other Deductions $1,089,911 

NET BALANCE $18,997,316 

DEPRECIATION $1,988,486 

FREE CASH FLOW {Net Balance + Depreciation) $ 20,985,802 

HISTORICAL DATA CHART-OTHER EXPENSES 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES CATEGORIES (D6} Year2018 

1. Professional Services Contract $3,646,166 

2. Contract Labor $646,535 

3. Employee Benefits $4,550,130 

4. Contract Services $5,516,545 

5. R&M $1,881,765 

6. Utilities $1,392,784 

7. Insurance $845,646 

8. Non Income Taxes $3,498,257 

9. Other Operating Expenses $1,175,711 

Total Other Expenses $ 23,153,539 

*Total other expenses should equal Line 06 in the Historical Data Chart
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$ 25,278,617 $ 25,790,991 

$-0- $-0-

$1,561,408 $1,367,182 

$1,561,408 $1,367,182 

$ 23,717,209 $ 24,423,809 

$3,601,240 $3,585,622 

$27,318,449 $ 28,009,431 

□ Project Facility
X□ Total Only

Year 2019 Year2020 

$2,235,391 $2,834,776 

$1,158,408 $412,046 

$5,355,492 $5,128,490 

$6,240,108 $6,156,709 

$1,983,938 $1,863,769 

$1,303,023 $1,198,341 

$1,149,303 $963,571 

$3,774,039 $4,084,156 

$1,572,760 ($5,108,674) 

$ 24,772,462 $17,533,184 
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4. Complete Projected Data Charts on the following two pages – Do not modify the Charts 
provided or submit Chart substitutions!   

Projected Data Chart(s) provide information for the two years following the completion of the 
project. The “Project Only Chart” should reflect revenue and expense projections for the project 
(i.e., if the application is for additional beds, include anticipated revenue from the proposed beds 
only, not from all beds in the facility). The “Total Facility Chart” should reflect information for the 
total facility. Complete both, if applicable. 

Note that “Management Fees to Affiliates” should include management fees paid by agreement 
to the parent company, another subsidiary of the parent company, or a third party with common 
ownership as the applicant entity.  “Management Fees to Non-Affiliates” should include any 
management fees paid by agreement to third party entities not having common ownership with 
the applicant.   
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PROJECTED DATA CHART 0 Project Only 

□Total Facility
Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year begins in January. 

Utilization Data 
A.Specify Unit of Measure: Procedures

8.Revenue from Services to Patients

1.Inpatient Services

2.Outpatient Services

3. Emergency Services

4.Other Operating Revenue (Specify)

Gross Operating Revenue

C.Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1.Contractual Adjustments

2.Provision for Charity Care

3.Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions

NET OPERATING REVENUE 

D.Operating Expenses

1.Salaries and Wages

a.Direct Patient Care

b.Non-Patient Care

2.Physician's Salaries and Wages

3.Supplies

4.Rent

a.Paid to Affiliates

b. Paid to Non-Affiliates

5.Management Fees

a.Paid to Affiliates

b.Paid to Non-Affiliates

6.Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

E.Earnings Before Interest, Taxes and Depreciation

F. Non-Operating Expenses

1.Taxes

2.Depreciation

3.Interest

4.Other Non-Operating Expenses

Total Non-Operating Expenses

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

Chart Continues Onto Next Page 
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Year 2022 Year 2023 Year 2024 

323 

$10,376,192 

$3,345,953 

$1,280,592 

-0-

$ 15,002,737 

$12,361,856 

$45,960 

$218,128 

$ 12,625,944 

$2,376,793 

$386,603 

$128,868 

$ -0-

$380,386 

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$659,821 

$1,555,678 

$821,115 

$25,000 

$366,000 

-0-

-0-

$391,000 

$430,115 

380 

$12,869,872 

$4,041,548 

$1,564,530 

-0-

$18,475,950 

$15,286,319 

$55,509 

$263,454 

$15,605,282 

$2,870,668 

$392,402 

$130,801 

$-0-

$451,446 

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$562,530 

$1,537,179 

$1,333,489 

$25,500 

$366,000 

-0-

-0-

$391,500 

$941,989 

420 

$15,078,051 

$4,645,319 

$1,813,286 

-0-

$ 21,536,656 

$17,920,912 

$62,925 

$298,649 

$ 18,282,486 

$3,254,170 

$398,288 

$132,763 

$-0-

$509,265 

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$747,561 

$1,787,877 

$1,466,293 

$ 26,010 

$366,000 

-0-

-0-

$392,010 

$1,074,283 
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Year 2022 Year 2023 Year2024 

NET INCOME (LOSS) $430,115 $941,989 $1,074,283 

G. Other Deductions

1. Estimated Annual Principal Debt Repayment -0- -0- -0-

2. Annual Capital Expenditure -0- -0- -0-

Total Other Deductions -0- -0- -0-

NET BALANCE $430,115 $941,989 $1,074,283 

DEPRECIATION $366,000 $366,000 $366,000 

FREE CASH FLOW (Net Balance + Depreciation) $796,115 $1,307,989 $1,440,283 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES CATEGORIES {06} Year Year Year 

1. Professional Services Contract $390,000 $390,000 $390,000 

2. Contract Labor -0- -0- -0-

3. Imaging Interpretation Fees -0- -0- -0-

4. Utilities $2,500 $2,550 $2,601 

5. Marketing $25,000 $15,000 $10,000 

6. other $90,000 -0- -0-

7. Benefits $77,321 $78,480 $79,658 

8. Contract Services $75,000 $76,500 $78,030 

9. Repairs & Maint -0- -0- $187,272 

Total Other Expenses $659,821 $562,530 $747,561 

*Total other expenses should equal Line 06 in the Projected Data Chart.
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PROJECTED DATA CHART □ Project Only

0 Total Facility 
Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year begins in January. 

Utilization Data 
A. Specify Unit of Measure: Adjusted Admission 

B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services

2. Outpatient Services

3. Emergency Services

Other Operating Revenue (Specify) misc. not 
4. associated with patient AR.

Gross Operating Revenue

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments

2. Provision for Charity Care

3. Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions

NET OPERATING REVENUE 

D. Operating Expenses

1. Salaries and Wages 

a. Direct Patient Care

b. Non-Patient Care

2. Physician's Salaries and Wages

3. Supplies

4. Rent

a. Paid to Affiliates

b. Paid to Non-Affiliates

5. Management Fees

a. Paid to Affiliates

b. Paid to Non-Affiliates

6. Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

E. Earnings Before Interest, Taxes and Depreciation

F. Non-Operating Expenses

1. Taxes

2. Depreciation

3. Interest

4. Other Non-Operating Expenses

Total Non-Operating Expenses

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

Chart Continues Onto Next Page 
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Year 2022 

11,115 

$ 140,245,002 

$ 344,545,897 

$ 83,013,342 

$322,561 

$ 568,126,802 

$449,110,975 

$3,389,458 

$ 19,430,211 

$ 471 ,930,644 

$96,196,158 

$17,347,634 

$5,782,545 

-0-

$ 12,281,099 

-0-

$426,115 

$3,393,465 

-0-

$ 28,341,616 

$67 ,572,474 

$ 28,623,684 

$25,000 

$3,974,189 

-0-

-0-

$3 ,999,189 

$ 24,624,495 

Year 2023 

11,238 

$149,232,123 

$ 362,301,490 

$87,383,917 

$338,689 

$ 599 ,256 ,219 

$473,872,894 

$3,566,183 

$20,436,141 

$ 497 ,875 ,218 

$101,381,001 

$18,201,484 

$6,067,162 

-0-

$ 12,947,194 

-0-

$447,421 

$3,563,138 

-0-

$ 29,628,414 

$ 70,854,813 

$30,526,188 

$25,500 

$4,154,598 

-0-

-0-

$4,180 ,098 

$ 26,346,090 

Year2024 

11.362 

$158,258,414 

$380,818,258 

$ 91,923,643 

$355,624 

$631 ,355 ,939 

$ 499,436,816 

$3,749,132 

$ 21,479,971 

$ 524,665 ,919 

$ 106,690,020 

$19,097,824 

$6,365,942 

-0-

$ 13,629,801 

-0-

$469,792 

$3,741,295 

-0-

$ 31,266,740 

$74,571 ,394 

$32,118,626 

$26,010 

$4,344,028 
-0-

-0-

$4,370 ,038 

$ 27,748,588 
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Year2022 Year2023 Year2024 

NET INCOME (LOSS) $24,624,495 $ 26,346,090 $ 27,748,588 

G. Other Deductions

1. Estimated Annual Principal Debt Repayment -0- -0- -0-

2. Annual Capital Expenditure $1,339,500 $1,366,290 $1,393,616 

Total Other Deductions $1,339,500 $1,366,290 $1,393,616 

NET BALANCE $23,284,995 $24,979,800 $26,354,972 

DEPRECIATION $3,974,189 $4,154,598 $4,344,028 

FREE CASH FLOW (Net Balanc e + Depreciation) $27,259,184 $29,134,398 $30,699,000 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES CATEGORIES (D6) 

1. Professional Services Contract $4,281,472 $4,476,046 $4,680,348 

2. Contract Labor $ 524,882 $ 551,127 $ 578,683 

3. Employee Benefits $6,281,669 $6,593,046 $6,919,952 

4. Contract Services $6,886,796 $ 7,228,886 $ 7,588,035 

5. R&M $ 2,070,409 $ 2,173,929 $ 2,469,898 

6. Utilities $ 1,357,480 $ 1,425,279 $ 1,496,466 

7. Insurance $655,860 $688,653 $ 723,086 

8. Non Income Tax $4,274,034 $4,487,734 $4,712,180 

9. Marketing $ 25,000 $ 15,000 $ 10,000 

10. Other Operating Expenses $ 1,983,961 $ 1,988,659 $ 2,088,092 

Total Other Exp enses $28,341,616 $ 29,628,414 $31,266,740 

*Total other expenses should equal Line 06 in the Projected Data Chart.
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5. A. Please identify the project's average gross charge, average deduction from operating
revenue, and average net charge using information from the Projected Data Chart for Year 1
and Year 2 of the proposed project. Complete Project Only Chart and Total Facility Chart, if
applicable.

Gross Charge (Gross Operating 
Revenue/Utilization Data) 

Deduction from Revenue (Total 
Deductions/Utilization Data) 

Average Net Charge (Net 
Operating Revenue/Utilization 
Data) 

Total Facility Chart 

Gross Charge (Gross Operating 
Revenue/Utilization Data) 

Deduction from Revenue (Total 
Deductions/Utilization Data) 

Average Net Charge (Net 
Operating Revenue/Utilization 
Data) 

Previous 
Year to 

Most 
Recent 
Year 

Previous 
Year to 

Most 
Recent 
Year 

2019 

$42,293 

$34,655 

$7,638 

Most 
Recent 
Year 
Year 

Year One Year Two 
Year 2022 Year 

2023 

%Change 
(Current Year 

to Year 2) 

Most 
Recent 

Year Year 
2020 

$50,452 

$41,667 

$8,785 

$46,448 $48,621 

$39,090 $41,067 

$7,358 $7,554 

Year One 
Year 
2022 

$51,114 

$42,458 

$8,656 

YearTwo 
Year 
2023 

$53,324 

$44,303 

$9,021 

4.7% 

5.1% 

2.7% 

% 
Change 
(Current 
Year to 
Year 2) 

5.69% 

6.33% 

2.69% 

8. Provide the proposed charges for the project and discuss any adjustment to current charges
that will result from the implementation of the proposal. Additionally, describe the anticipated
revenue from the project and the impact on existing patient charges.

Response: The average net charge is expected to be $7,358 the first year and $7,554 the 
second year of operation . There is no adjustment to current charges and no impact on existing 
patient charges because this is a new service. 

C. Compare the proposed charges to those of similar facilities in the service area/adjoining
service areas, or to proposed charges of projects recently approved by the Health Services and
Development Agency. If applicable, compare the proposed charges of the project to the current
Medicare allowable fee schedule by common procedure terminology (CPT) code(s).

Response: The average net charge for the first year of operation of $7,358. 

6. A. Discuss how projected utilization rates will be sufficient to support financial performance.
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1) Noting when the project’s financial breakeven is expected, and 
 
Response:  The project is expected to break even in the first year. 
 
 
2) Demonstrating the availability of sufficient cash flow until financial viability is achieved. 

Provide copies of the balance sheet and income statement from the most recent reporting 
period of the institution and the most recent audited financial statements with accompanying 
notes, if applicable. For all projects, provide financial information for the corporation, 
partnership, or principal parties that will be a source of funding for the project. Copies must 
be inserted at the end of the application, in the correct alphanumeric order and labeled as 
Attachment Section B-Economic Feasibility-6A 

 
Response:  Please see Income Statement and Balance Sheet included as Attachment 
Section B, Economic Feasibility 6A.   
 

B. Net Operating Margin Ratio – The Net Operating Margin Radio demonstrates how much 
revenue is left over after all the variable or operating costs have been paid. The formula for 
this ratio is: (Earnings before interest, Taxes, and Depreciation/Net Operating Revenue). 

 
Utilizing information from the Historical and Projected Data Charts please report the net 
operating margin ratio trends in the following table. Complete Project Only Chart and Total 
Facility Chart, if applicable. 

Project Only Chart 

Year 

2nd Previous 
Year to Most 
Recent Year 
Year _____ 

1st Previous 
Year to Most 
Recent Year 
Year ____ 

Most Recent 
Year 

Year_____ 

Projected 
Year 1 

Year 2022 

Projected 
Year 2 

Year 2023 

Net Operating 
Margin Ratio                   34.55% 46.45% 

 

Total Facility Chart 

Year 

2nd Previous 
Year to Most 
Recent Year 
Year 2018 

1st Previous 
Year to Most 
Recent Year 
Year 2019 

Most Recent 
Year 

Year 2020 

Projected 
Year 1 

Year 2022 

Projected 
Year 2 

Year 2023 

Net Operating 
Margin Ratio 33.24 35.63 39.32% 33.28% 33.62% 

 
C. Capitalization Ratio: The Long-term debt to capitalization ratio measures the proportion 

of debt financing in a business’s permanent (long-term) financing mix. This ratio best 
measures a business’s true capital structure because it is not affected by short-term 
financing decisions. The formula for this ratio is: ((Long-Term Debt)/Long-Term Debt + 
Total Equity {Net Assets}) X 100. 
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For self or parent company funded projects, provide the capitalization ratio using the 
most recent year available from the funding entity's audited balance sheet, if applicable. 
Capitalization Ratios are not expected from outside the company lenders that provide 
funding. This question is applicable to all applications regardless of whether or not 
the project is being partially or totally funded by debt financing. 

Response: (7, 106.2)/(7, 106.2+889.7)X100=88.87 

7. Discuss the project's participation in state and federal revenue programs, including a
description of the extent to which Medicare, TennCare/Medicaid and medically indigent
patients will be served by the project. Report the estimated gross operating revenue dollar
amount and percentage of projected gross operating revenue anticipated by payor
classification for the first year of the project by completing the table below. Complete Project
Only Chart and Total Facility Chart, if applicable.

Response:

4813-257 4-7658.15 

Applicant's Projected Payor Mix, Year 1 

Pro·ect Onl Chart 
Payor Source Projected Gross As a % of total 

Operating Revenue 

Medicare/Medicare Mana ed Care $9,709,270 64.7% 

TennCare/Medicaid $1,500,274 10% 

Commercial/Other Mana ed Care $3,747,233 25.0% 

Self-Pa 

Charit Care $45,960 .3% 

Other 

Total* $15,002,737 100% 

Charit Care $45,960 

*Needs to match Gross Operating Revenue Year One on Projected Data Chart

Applicant's Projected Payor Mix, Year 1 
Total Facilit Chart 

Payor Source Projected Gross 

Medicare/Medicare Mana ed Care 

TennCare/Medicaid 

Commercial/Other Mana ed Care 

Self-Pa 

Charit Care 

Other (Specify)_ VA, Other federal 
payors, Worker Compensation, others 
not included above. 

Total* 

Charit Care 

Operating Revenue 

$270,428,358 

$108,512,219 

$110,216,599 

$43,196,940 

$3,389,458 

$32,383,228 

$568,126,802 

$3,389,458 

As a % of total 

47.6% 

19.1% 

19.4% 

7.6% 

.6% 

5.7% 

100.0% 

*Needs to match Gross Operating Revenue Year One on Projected Data Chart
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Charity Care $3,389,458 .62% 
*Needs to match Gross Operating Revenue Year One on Projected Data Chart  

 
8. Provide the projected staffing for the project in Year 1 and compare to the current staffing for 

the most recent 12-month period, as appropriate. This can be reported using full-time equivalent 
(FTEs) positions for these positions. Identify projected salary amounts by position 
classifications and compare the clinical staff salaries to prevailing wage patterns in the proposed 
service area as published by the Department of Labor & Workforce Development and/or other 
documented sources, such as the US Department of Labor. Wage data pertaining to healthcare 
professions can be found at the following link: 
https://www.bls.gov/oes/current/oes tn.htm. 

 
Response:   
 

Position Classification 
Existing FTEs 

(enter year) 

Projected 
FTEs  
Year 1 

Average Wage 
(Contractual Rate) 

Area 
Wide/Statewide 
Average Wage 

Direct Patient Care 
Positions 

                        

Registered Nurse- 
Cardiac Cath Lab 

0 4 $32.32 $30.08 

Radiologic 
Technologist/CI/RCIS 

0 2 $31.61 $25.04 

Director 0 1 $49.09 $52.78 
Total Direct Patient 
Care Positions 

0 7 N/A N/A 

     
     
Non-Patient Care 
Positions 

                        

Position 1                         
Position 2                         
Position “etc.”                         
Total Non-Patient Care 
Positions 

                        

Total Employees 
(A+B) 

0 7 0 0 

Contractual Staff                         
Total Staff 
(A+B+C) 

0 7 0 0 

 
 

9. What alternatives to this project were considered? Discuss the advantages and disadvantages 
of each, including but not limited to:   

A. The availability of less costly, more effective and/or more efficient methods of providing 
the benefits intended by the project. If development of such alternatives is not 
practicable, justify why not, including reasons as to why they were rejected. 
Response:  The applicant’s choice was to either apply for a CON to initiate cardiac 
catheterization services or continue not to provide the service.  The applicant had to 
make its case first to LifePoint, the ultimate parent company.  Once it received the 
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internal approval. It was time to file for a CON.  The benefits of being able to offer this 
important health care service close to home for residents of medically underserved 
counties is very important.  Not being able to offer this service means that patients 
generally have to travel almost an hour to receive it.  By offering the service close to 
home, it is expected that patient satisfaction will increase and the service will be more 
efficient.  In addition, if patients from the service area have to travel by ambulance to 
receive a cardiac catheterization, then that ambulance is not available to transport any 
other patients for a 3 hour period, which is disruptive to patient care in the service area.  
Thus, not applying for the service was rejected.   

B. Document that consideration has been given to alternatives to new construction, e.g., 
modernization or sharing arrangements. 

Response:  In order for the applicant to have the space for the proposed cardiac 
catheterization, it is necessary to both renovate space and add space.  There is not any 
other way to provide a cardiac catheterization laboratory and the significant benefits it 
will provide to service area residents other than with construction that includes new 
construction. 
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QUALITY STANDARDS 

1. Per PC 1043, Acts of 2016, any receiving a CON after July 1, 2016 must report annually 
using forms prescribed by the Agency concerning continued need and appropriate quality 
measures.  Please verify that annual reporting will occur. 
Response:  The applicant will submit continued need and appropriate quality measures 
annually as requested. 

 
2. Quality-The the proposal shall provide health care that meets appropriate quality standards. 

Please address each of the following questions: 

A. Does the applicant commit to the following? 

1) Maintaining the staffing comparable to the staffing chart presented in its CON 
application; 
Response:  The applicant anticipates maintaining staffing comparable to the staffing 
information presented in the CON application. 

2) Obtaining and maintaining all applicable state licenses in good standing; 
Response:  The applicant will maintain all applicable state licenses in good standing. 

3) Obtain and maintaining TennCare and Medicare certification(s), if participation in 
such programs was indicated in the application; 
Response:  The applicant will maintain TennCare and Medicare certifications. 

4) For an existing healthcare institution applying for a CON - Has it maintained 
substantial compliance with applicable federal and state regulation for the three 
years prior to the CON application. In the event of non-compliance, the nature of 
non-compliance and corrective action should be discussed to include any of the 
following: suspension of admissions, civil monetary penalties, notice of 23-day or 
90-day termination proceedings from Medicare/Medicaid/TennCare, 
revocation/denial of accreditation, or other similar actions and what measures the 
applicant has or will put into place to avoid similar findings in the future 
Response:  Yes. 

5) For an existing healthcare institution applying for a CON - Has the entity been 
decertified within the prior three years? If yes, please explain in detail. (This provision 
shall not apply if a new, unrelated owner applies for a CON related to a previously 
decertified facility) 
Response:  No. 

B.  Respond to all of the following and for such occurrences, identify, explain and provide 
documentation: 

1) Has any of the following: 
 

79



4813-2574-7658.15 
59 

 

a. Any person(s) or entity with more than 5% ownership (direct or indirect) 
in the applicant (to include any entity in the chain of ownership for 
applicant); 
 

b. Any entity in which any person(s) or entity with more than 5% ownership (direct 
or indirect) in the applicant (to include any entity in the chain of ownership for 
applicant) has an ownership interest of more than 5%; and/or 
 

c. Any physician or other provider of health care, or administrator employed by 
any entity in which any person(s) or entity with more than 5% ownership in the 
applicant (to include any entity in the chain of ownership for applicant) has an 
ownership interest of more than 5%. 
 

2) Been subjected to any of the following: 
 

a. Final Order or Judgment in a state licensure action; 
 
Response:  No. 
 

b. Criminal fines in cases involving a Federal or State health care offense; 
 
Response:  No. 
 

c. Civil monetary penalties in cases involving a Federal or State health care 
offense; 
 
Response:  No. 
 

d. Administrative monetary penalties in cases involving a Federal or State health 
care offense; 
 
Response:  No. 
 

e. Agreement to pay civil or administrative monetary penalties to the federal 
government or any state in cases involving claims related to the provision of 
health care items and services; and/or 
 
Response:  No. 
 

f. Suspension or termination of participation in Medicare or Medicaid/TennCare 
programs. 
 
Response:  No. 
 

g. Is presently subject of/to an investigation, regulatory action, or party in any civil 
or criminal action of which you are aware. 
 
Response:  No. 
 

h. Is presently subject to a corporate integrity agreement. 
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Response: No. 
 

C.  Does the applicant plan, within 2 years of implementation of the project, to participate 
in self-assessment and external assessment against nationally available benchmark 
data to accurately assess its level of performance in relation to established standards 
and to implement ways to continuously improve? 
Note: Existing licensed, accredited and/or certified providers are encouraged to 
describe their process for same. 
 
Response:  The applicant will participate in assessments against nationally 
available benchmarks at least every other year. 

Please complete the chart below on accreditation, certification, and licensure plans. 

1)  If the applicant does not plan to participate in these type of assessments, 
explain why since quality healthcare must be demonstrated. 

Credential Agency Status (Active or Will 
Apply) 

Licensure 

X   Department of Health 

 Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 
 Mental Health and Substance Abuse  
  
 Services 

  Active 

Certification 
X        Medicare 
X        Medicaid/TennCare 
 Other 

   Active 
   Active 

Accreditation     The Joint Commission    Active 

2)  Based upon what was checked/completed in above table, will the applicant accept 
a condition placed on the certificate of need relating to obtaining/maintaining 
license, certification, and/or accreditation? 

Response: Yes. 

D.  The following list of quality measures are service specific. Please indicate which 
standards you will be addressing in the annual Continuing Need and Quality Measure 
report if the project is approved. 
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 For Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center projects: Estimating the number of 
physicians by specialty expected to utilize the facility, developing criteria to be used by 
the facility in extending surgical and anesthesia privileges to medical personnel, and 
documenting the availability of appropriate and qualified staff that will provide ancillary 
support services, whether on- or off-site? 

X For Cardiac Catheterization projects: 

a. Documenting a plan to monitor the quality of its cardiac catheterization 
program, including but not limited to, program outcomes and efficiencies; and 

b. Describing how the applicant will agree to cooperate with quality 
enhancement efforts sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee; 
and 

c. Describing how cardiology staff will be maintaining: 

d. Adult Program: 75 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years; 

e. Pediatric Program: 50 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years. 
 For Open Heart projects: 

f. Describing how the applicant will staff and maintain the number of who will 
perform the volume of cases consistent with the State Health Plan (annual 
average of the previous 2 years), and maintain this volume in the future; 

g. Describing how at least a surgeon will be recruited and retained (at least 
one shall have 5 years’ experience);  

h. Describing how the applicant will participate in a data reporting, quality 
improvement, outcome monitoring, and external assessment system that 
benchmarks outcomes based on national norms (demonstrated active 
participating in the STS National Database is expected and shall be considered 
evidence of meeting this standard). 

i. Adult Program: 75 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years; 
Pediatric Program: 50 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years. 

 For Comprehensive Inpatient Rehabilitation Services projects: Retaining or recruiting a 
physiatrist? 

 For Home Health projects: Documenting the existing or proposed plan for quality data 
reporting, quality improvement, and an outcome and process monitoring system. 

 For Hospice projects: Documenting the existing or proposed plan for quality data 
reporting, quality improvement, and an outcome and process monitoring system. 

 For Megavoltage Radiation Therapy projects: Describing or demonstrating how the 
staffing and quality assurance requirements will be met of the American Society of 
Therapeutic Radiation and Oncology (ASTRO), the American College of Radiology 
(ACR), the American College of Radiation Oncology (ACRO), National Cancer Institute 
(NCI), or a similar accrediting authority. 

 For Neonatal Intensive Care Unit projects: Documenting the existing or proposed plan 
for data 
reporting, quality improvement, and outcome and process monitoring systems; 
document the intention and ability to comply with the staffing guidelines and 
qualifications set forth by the Tennessee Perinatal Care System Guidelines for 
Regionalization, Hospital Care Levels, Staffing and Facilities; and participating in the 
Tennessee Initiative for Perinatal Quality Care (TIPQC). 
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 For Nursing Home projects: Documenting the existing or proposed plan for data 
reporting, quality improvement, and outcome and process monitoring systems, 
including in particular details on its Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement 
program. 

 For Inpatient Psychiatric projects: 

 Describing or demonstrating appropriate accommodations for: 

 Seclusion/restraint of patients who present management problems and children 
who need quiet space, proper sleeping and bathing arrangements for all patients); 

 Proper sleeping and bathing arrangements; 

 Adequate staffing (i.e. that each unit will be staffed with at least two direct patient 
care staff, one of which shall be a nurse, at all times); 

 A staffing plan that will lead to quality care of the patient population served by the 
project. 

 An existing or proposed plan for data reporting, quality improvement, and outcome 
and process monitoring systems; and 

 If other psychiatric facilities are owned or administered, providing information on 
satisfactory surveys and quality improvement programs at those facilities. 

 
Involuntary admissions if identified in CON criteria and standard review  For Freestanding Emergency Department projects: Demonstrating that it will be 

accredited with the Joint Commission or other applicable accrediting agency, subject 
to the same accrediting standards as the licensed hospital with which it is associated. 

 For Organ Transplant projects: Describing how the applicant will achieve and maintain 
institutional membership in the national Organ Procurement and Transportation Network 
(OPTN), currently operating as the United Network for Organ Sharing (UNOS), within 
one year of program Initiation. Describing how the applicant shall comply with CMS 
regulations set forth by 42 CFR 
Parts 405, 482, and 498, Medicare Program; Hospital Conditions of Participation: 
Requirements for Approval and Re-Approval of Transplant Centers To Perform Organ 
Transplants.  For Relocation and/or Replacement of Health Care Institution projects:  Describing 
how facility and/or services specific measures will be met. 
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE 

The responses to this section of the application helps determine whether the project will 
contribute to the orderly development of healthcare within the service area. 
 

1. List all existing health care providers (i.e., hospitals, nursing homes, home care organizations, 
etc.), managed care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with which the applicant currently 
has or plans to have contractual and/or working relationships, that may directly or indirectly 
apply to the project, such as, transfer agreements, contractual agreements for health services. 

Response:  The applicant has relationships with hospitals in or near its service area as well as 
those that provide a higher level of care in Chattanooga and Knoxville.  In addition it has 
relationships with post-acute and long-term care facilities. 

Higher Level of Care in East Tennessee: 

Chattanooga:  Erlanger Health System; Memorial Hospital; Parkridge Health System 

Knoxville:  Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center; Parkwest Medical Center; Turkey Creek 
Medical Center; University of Tennessee Medical Center 

Post-Acute & Long Term Care: 

McMinn County:  Etowah Health Care Center; Life Care Center of Athens; NHC Healthcare; 
Starr Regional Health and Rehabilitation 

Meigs County:  Decatur Health and Wellness 

Monroe County:  Sweetwater Nursing Center; Wood Presbyterian Home; Madisonville Health 
and Rehabilitation 

Polk County:  Life Care Center of Copper Basin 

2. Describe the effects of competition and/or duplication of the proposal on the health care system, 
including the impact to consumers and existing providers in the service area.  Discuss any 
instances of competition and/or duplication arising from your proposal including a description of 
the effect the proposal will have on the utilization rates of existing providers in the service area 
of the project.    

A. Positive Effects 

Response:   The service area for the applicant is a medically underserved area which does 
not have access to cardiac catheterization services in the service area.  The ability for the 
service area residents to receive such an important service closer to home will be extremely 
beneficial in meeting their health care needs.  This area also had a higher rate of heart disease 
than the state, which makes it even more important to have access to this service.  It is the 
applicant’s understanding that service area residents generally travel to Knoxville for cardiac 
catheterization services, which is 51 miles away.  Having more convenient access may help 
the health of area residents. 

B. Negative Effects 
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Response:  This proposed project will have no negative effect on existing providers and 
there is no duplication of services as there are no providers in the applicant’s service area 
who offer cardiac catheterization services. 

3. A. Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human resources required by the proposal, 
including clinical leadership and adequate professional staff, as per the State of Tennessee 
licensing requirements and/or requirements of accrediting agencies, such as the Joint 
Commission and Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities. 

Response:  The applicant believes the human resources required for the cardiac 
catheterization laboratory are available.  The applicant offers education assistance and 
tuition reimbursement and bonuses based on needs in the specific market.  In addition, 
sign on bonuses may be offered as needed.   

B. Document the category of license/certification that is applicable to the project and 
why. These include, without limitation, regulations concerning clinical leadership, physician 
supervision, quality assurance policies and programs, utilization review policies and 
programs, record keeping, clinical staffing requirements, and staff education. 

Response:   This cardiac catheterization laboratory will be a part of the hospital and 
included in the hospital license.  The applicant understands any and all regulations needed 
to operate the laboratory.   

C. Discuss the applicant’s participation in the training of students in the areas of medicine, 
nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships, residencies, etc.). 

Response:  Training programs include the following: 

Residents come from Erlanger and UT Knoxville.  General surgery residents do a rotation with 
the applicant’s  general surgeons.  Urology residents from UT do a rotation with a urologist. 
 
Clinical training programs include nursing (LPN,RN,BSN) , OT, PT, ST, RT, EMT, and paramedic, 
scrub technologist, and radiology. 

 

4.  Outstanding Projects:   

A. Complete the following chart by entering information for each applicable outstanding 
CON by applicant or share common ownership; and 

Outstanding Projects 

CON Number Project Name 
Date 

Approved 

*Annual Progress Report(s) 
Expiration 

Date Due Date Date Filed 

CN1701-002 Starr Regional Medical 
Center - Etowah 

4/27/17                   
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*Annual Progress Reports – HSDA Rules require that an Annual Progress Report (APR) be submitted 
each year.  The APR is due annually until the Final Project Report (FPR) is submitted (FPR is due within 
90 ninety days of the completion and/or implementation of the project).  Brief progress status updates 
are requested as needed.  The project remains outstanding until the FPR is received.   

Response:  Starr will file the final Project Report in January. 

B. Describe the current progress, and status of each applicable outstanding CON. 

Response:  The project is complete - Starr is finalizing the project costs and expects to 
file the Final Project Report Form in January. 

5. Equipment Registry – For the applicant and all entities in common ownership with the 
applicant. 

 
A. Do you own, lease, operate, and/or contract with a mobile vendor for a Computed 
Tomography scanner (CT), Linear Accelerator, Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI), and/or 
Positron Emission Tomographer (PET)?        

Response:  Yes.   Starr has 2 CTs, an MRI, and a mobile PET, that is provided through a 
third party vendor.     

B.  If yes, have you submitted their registration to HSDA?  If you have, what was the 
date of submission? 
 
Response:  The updated registration was submitted on 02/24/2020. 
 
C. If yes, have you submitted your utilization to Health Services and Development 
Agency?  If you have, what was the date of submission?  

 
 Response:  Yes.  The date of submission was 02/24/2020. 
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SECTION C:  STATE HEALTH PLAN QUESTIONS 
 

T.C.A. §68-11-1625 requires the Tennessee Department of Health’s Division of Health Planning to 
develop and annually update the State Health Plan (found at http://www.tn.gov/health/topic/health-
planning ).  The State Health Plan guides the State in the development of health care programs 
and policies and in the allocation of health care resources in the State, including the Certificate of 
Need program.  The 5 Principles for Achieving Better Health are from the State Health Plan’s 
framework and inform the Certificate of Need program and its standards and criteria. 
 
Discuss how the proposed project will relate to the 5 Principles for Achieving Better Health found 
in the State Health Plan.   
 

1. The purpose of the State Health Plan is to improve the health of Tennesseans. 
 
Response:  Having increased access to cardiac catheterization services for a population 
that has a higher rate of deaths from heart disease  
 

2. Every citizen should have reasonable access to health care. 
 
Response:  Adding cardiac catheterization services to McMinn County will increase access 
for residents of McMinn County and the other service area residents to an important health 
care service.  This is particularly important given the rate of deaths due to heart disease for 
the residents of the service area counties. 
 

3. The state’s health care resources should be developed to address the needs of 
Tennesseans while encouraging competitive markets, economic efficiencies and the 
continued development of the state’s health care system. 
 
Response:  Through the initiation of cardiac catheterization services, the applicant will be 
able to address the cardiology morbidity of its service area, and create a functional 
cardiology service line for the residents of its service area.   As stated earlier in this 
application, the applicant’s service area is both medically underserved and has a higher 
rate of heart disease than the state does.  The initiation of this important health care 
service supports the development of the state’s health care system.  The applicant has 
attached letters of support as Attachment Section C: State Health Plan Questions -3.   
 

4. Every citizen should have confidence that the quality of health care is continually monitored 
and standards are adhered to by health care providers. 
 
Response:  The applicant is part of a larger health system that is very experienced in 
establishing quality standards and monitoring them, correcting any issues and revising 
policies as necessary. 
 

5. The state should support the development, recruitment, and retention of a sufficient and 
quality health care workforce. 
 

Response:  The applicant will be working with  Parkwest Medical Center.    Parkwest will 
collaborate to assist the applicant in identifying cardiologists who will be appropriately 
credentialed and have the requisite experience and training to perform diagnostic and therapeutic 
catheterization procedures.  Parkwest will also provide training resources to support the quality 
practices needed to perform catheterizations.   
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 
Attach the full page of the newspaper in which the notice of intent appeared with the mast 
and dateline intact or submit a publication affidavit from the newspaper that includes a copy 
of the publication as proof of the publication of the letter of intent. 

Date LOI was Submitted:  January 8, 2021 
Date POI was Published:  January 8, 2021 

Response:  Please see proof of publication from The Daily Post Athenian on January 8, 2021. 
 

NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

1.  T.C.A. §68-11-1607(c)(9)(A) states that “...Within ten (10) days of the filing of an 
application for a nonresidential substitution-based treatment center for opiate addiction with 
the agency, the applicant shall send a notice to the county mayor of the county in which the 
facility is proposed to be located, the state representative and senator representing the 
house district and senate district in which the facility is proposed to be located, and to the 
mayor of the municipality, if the facility is proposed to be located within the corporate 
boundaries of a municipality, by certified mail, return receipt requested, informing such 
officials that an application for a nonresidential substitution-based treatment center for 
opiate addiction has been filed with the agency by the applicant.” 

2.  T.C.A §68-11-1607(c)(9)(B) states that “... If an application involves a healthcare 
facility in which a county or municipality is the lessor of the facility or real property on which 
it sits, then within ten (10) days of filing the application, the applicant shall notify the chief 
executive officer of the county or municipality of the filing, by certified mail, return receipt 
requested.” 

Failure to provide the notifications described above within the required statutory timeframe 
will result in the voiding of the CON application. 

Please provide documentation of these notifications. 

Response:  Not applicable. 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 
 

T.C.A. §68-11-1609(c) provides that a Certificate of Need is valid for a period not to exceed 

three (3) years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other projects) from the date of 
its issuance and after such time shall expire; provided, that the Agency may, in granting the 
Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for Certificates of Need for good cause 
shown.  Subsequent to granting the Certificate of Need, the Agency may extend a Certificate 
of Need for a period upon application and good cause shown, accompanied by a non-
refundable reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by rule.  A Certificate of Need which has been 
extended shall expire at the end of the extended time period.  The decision whether to grant 
such an extension is within the sole discretion of the Agency, and is not subject to review, 
reconsideration, or appeal.   
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1. Complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart on the next page.  If the project will be 

completed in multiple phases, please identify the anticipated completion date for each 
phase. 

2. If the CON is granted and the project cannot be completed within the standard completion 
time period (3 years for hospital projects and 2 years for all others), please document why 

an extended period should be approved and document the “good cause” for such 
an extension. 

 

Response:   Not applicable.  The applicant is not requesting an extension of time.                 
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PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART 

Assuming the Certificate of Need (CON) approval becomes the final HSDA action on the date 
listed in Item 1. below, indicate the number of days from the HSDA decision date to each 
phase of the completion forecast. 

Antici�ated Date 
Phase [MonthNear] 

1. Initial HSDA decision date

2. Architectural and engineerin contract signed

3. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee
Department of Health

4. Construction contract signed

5. Building permit secured

6. Site preparation com leted

7. Building construction commenced

8. Construction 40% complete

9. Construction 80% complete

10. Construction 100% complete (approved for occupanc

11. *Issuance of License

12. *Issuance of Service

13. Final Architectural Certification of Pa ment

14. Final Project Report Form submitted (Form HR0055)

120 

30 

15 

15 

15 

15 

120 

60 

45 

N/A 

0 

15 

30 

*For projects that DO NOT involve construction or renovation, complete Items 11 & 12
only.

NOTE: If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of 
the final determination to reflect the actual issue date 

4813-2574-7658.15 

?OR 

4/2021 

8/2021 

9/2021 

10/2021 

10/2021 

11/2021 

11/2021 

3/2022 

5/2022 

7/2022 

N/A 

7/2022 

8/2022 

9/2022 

Supplemental 1 
January 27, 2021
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AFFIDAVIT 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
 
COUNTY OF DAVIDSON 
 
 
 
 
Kim H. Looney , being first duly sworn, says that he/she is the applicant named in this 

application or his/her/its lawful agent, that this project will be completed in accordance with the 

application, that the applicant has read the directions to this application, the Rules of the Health 

Services and Development Agency, and T.C.A. § 68-11-1601, et seq., and that the responses to 

this application or any other questions deemed appropriate by the Health Services and 

Development Agency are true and complete. 
 

  
SIGNATURE/TITLE 

 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this       day of      ,        a Notary  

 (Month) (Year) 
Public in and for the County/State of       . 
 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
 
My commission expires,        ,      .  

(Month/Day)    (Year) 
 
 

91



92

FRIDAY. JANUARY 8, 2021 I 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURitl OF MCMINN COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Laura Fowler, next of !<in 
In Re: Carson Villeda (.a male child, DOB: 3/l /2016) 

PLAINTIFF 

vs 

Gadyel Vllied; 

DEFENDANTS 

No, 2020-CV-338 

ORDER JA.LLOWING SERVICE BY F!UBLICATION IN LIEU OF 
PERSONAL SERVICi · 

In this cau~e it appearing that ordinary process cannot be served 
upon the defendants, Gadyel Villetla? whose last known address 
is Athens, TN 37303, and whose present address .is unknown and 
cannot be ascertained upon diligent inquiry, the said Defendant, 
Gadvel Villetla, is therefore ORDERED and required to file an 
answer in the Circuit Court of McMinn County, Tennessee, within 
thirty (30) days after the last date of this publication. or a default 
name char:ige may be granted changing the above noted chifds 
name frorn Carson Villeda to Carson Fowler. 

It is furthe~ ORDERED that this notice be published for four (4} 
consecutive weeks in the DAILY FlOST ATHENIAN, a newspaper 
published in McMinn County, Tennessee. 

Ttiis tliie 2nd day of Dec. 2020. 

Circuit Col/rt Judge 

Rhonda J. :Gooley 
Clerk of thl\! Circuit Court 

Publication: 1M8/2020, 12/25/2020, 01/01/2021, 01/08/2021 

Wtvw.dailyposta:ilieman.com 

As we continue to monitor the situation and realizing an increase 
in Covid-19 cases, The City of Etowah is committed to do every
thing we can to lessen the risk of.exposure of the !iirus to our val
ued citizens and employees of The City of Etowah, and we have 
decided to begin conducting all meetings in a virtual setting until 
Governor Lee providesJurther guidance. . . · 

The Etowah Regional Planning Commission meeting will be con
ducted via teleconferen<;:ing. beginning at 5:00 pm on Monday, 
January11, 2021. The meeting will be broadcast live via Face-

. boolt Live at the "The City of Etowah" Facebook page. The 
agenda wm be posted on our website by Frid1:1.y, January 8th. All 
citizens are encouraged to participate with comments during the 
meeting. · 

The link to our Facebook page is: 
https://www.faceboolt.com/cityofetowah 

. Flublication: 0~/06/2021 

Mo11is 810s. Stockyard 
. Regular Cattle Sale 

Every Monday at. lp:m CST 

*We are offering a $50 trucking rebate 
for any seller who hauls 15+ head of 
cattle 50+ miles to our Stockyard.,.~ 

43154 US Ij'wyJ27 • Pikeville, TN 3736.7 
. 423-533-2916 

NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO APPLY FORA CERTIFICATE OF NEED 
This is to.provide officiat notlae to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, .. 
is ac4ordancewith T.C.A. § 6&-114601 et seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development 
Agency, that: 

::=-::.::M:"'e;.;;di;;;.;'aal_· c...C;;;.;e_i;;;.;1t""'et""'"'~""A""'th;;;.;e.;;;.m ........ _____________ , An acute cnte .hospital 
~nt> <FacilltyType-Exl$tlog) 

Athem1 R.¢gio:t:m1 Mediaal Cent.er, 
tLC 

The anticfpated date ofliUng ttw appUdatt6n 
is:: · 

The c/:mtact person for this project 1s 

. On. or before Janua9• 13 

.Kim H.1.ooney, l~sq. 
{Contact Name) (Title) 

who may. be reached at: .K & L G11;t.es, LLP 222 Second Avenues., Suit~ 1700 
(C~riy Name) 

Nashville '.IN 37201 615 I 
{Cffy) (State) (Zip Code} {Area: Code) l (Phone Number) 

Upbn written reqtnt•t by intere,ted partiee, a local FacU;inding pubtic hearing $hall be conducted. Written 
requests for h~ting should be sent to: · 

Heafth Serv~ees and Development Agency 
AndrtW Jacuon Building, 9th Floor 

502 Deaderick St~t 
NashviH&, Tennessee 37243 

The published Letter of intent must contain the following l!ltatement pul'$uanuo T,C,A, § G8,.f1~1G0'1(c}(1), {Al Any 
health ~are instifutio.n wishing to oppose a Certificate of Neechpptieation must tile a written notice with th, Health 
Servieff and Oevetopment Agency no later than fifteen (15) days b~orethe regularly scheduled HeaJth Semces and 
Development Agency meeting at which the aJplicati<m is originalfY, scheduled; a11d {8} Any other pm'Son wishi11g to 
oppose the application must file written objection wittr the kealth Ser.rices and .Oev~pment Agency at or prior to 
the consideration, of the application by the Agency. , 

DAILY EOSf-ATHENIAN I B7 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
Meigs County Schools 

345 N. Main St 
Decatur TN 37322-1039 

This is a rei;iuest for pricing oi:i the following item and terms: 

Mimio Boxlight 75" Interactive LCD Series 3 Display 
Quantity up to 150 

TeachLogicVoice Link Plus System witlil mic 
Quantity up to 150 

Pricing should reflect all costs related to shipi:iing, ir:istallation and 
warranty (5yr min). . ' 

The Meigs County Board of Eiiducation will accept i;iuotes until Fri
day Jan 22, 2021 at 3PM .. • 

Bids will be awarded based on pricing as well as, but not limited 
to: 

Vendor Location 

Product inventory 

Min 5 year warranty on product 

Installation by A+ Certified Technician minimum 

And or Boxlight Premier Partner with Authorized Service Provider 
Status 

Tlile Meigs County Boart:J of Education retains the right to not ac
cept any ~nd all bids. Bids will be awarded and i:iayment made 
through the purchase order agreement system as based upon 
available funds. 

All bids should be submitted by: 3:00 PM Eastern Standard Time 
on Friday, January 22, 2021. Bids must be submitted by email 
(Subject line= RFP.1.21.BL) to: . 

david@meigsboe.net 

G. David Brown 
Depufy Dtreritorfil!eigs County Schools · 
423.334.5793 or email abo1ie with any questions. 

Publication: 01/08/2021 

Tha Parfect 
Fit 
Every 
Time 
For the best in local, 
national, world and 
sport news look no 
further• than The Daily Post-Athenian. 
Whether at work; school or play, you can 
find everything you need and more in the 
newspaper. Start your subscription today. 

The Daily 
Post-Athenian 
206 W. Washington Ave., Athens 

745-5664 

http://www.dailypostatlieritaii.com
https://www.facebook.com/cityofetowah


Attachment - Section A-4AB 

Organizational Documents 
Organizational Chart Facility 

Listing 
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Starr Regional Medical Center Athens 
St.cl rr Region n l Med ie::1 l Cent.er F:t.ow<l h 

and 
Starr Regional Health & Rehabilitation 

LifePoint Health, Inc. 

100% 

Historic LifePoint Hospitals, LLC 

1.00% 

LifePoint Hospitals Holdings, LLC 

100% 

LifePoint Holdings 2, LLC 

100% 

Athcms Regional Medical Center, LLC 
d/b/a Starr Reg·i.onal Medical Center Athens 
and Starr Regional .M:edical Center Etowah 
and Starr Regional Health & Rehabilitation 
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. . . . . . : 
C/ ." 

Division of Business Services 
Department of State 

State of Tennessee . . ... ..• ...... 
Tre Hargett 

Secretary of State 

WALLER LANSDEN DORTCH & DAVIS LLP 

JENNIFER MUSTAIN 

STE 2700 
511 UNION ST 

NASHVILLE, TN 37219-1791 

Request Type: Certified Copies 
Request#: 386449 

Document Receipt 

312 Rosa L. Parks A VE, 6th FL 
Nashville, TN 37243-1102 

Issuance Date: 10/20/2020 

Copies Requested: 

Receipt#: 005848041 Filing Fee: 

Payment-Check/MO - WALLER LANSDEN DORTCH & DAVIS LLP, NASHVILLE, TN 

$20.00 

$20.00 

I, Tre Hargett, Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee, do hereby certify that ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL 

CENTER, LLC, Control# 414689 was formed or qualified to do business in the State of Tennessee on 09/26/2001. 

ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC has a home jurisdiction of DELAWARE and is currently in an Active 

status. The attached documents are true and correct copies and were filed in this office on the date(s) indicated 

below. 

Secretary of State 
Processed By: Brooklyn Harrington 

The attached document(s) was/were filed in this office on the date(s) indicated below: 

Reference# Date Filed Filing Description 

4306-0209 09/26/2001 Initial Filing 

4399-0252 01/22/2002 Registered Agent Change (by Entity) 

5243-0482 09/27/2004 Registered Agent Change (by Agent) 

A0102-1129 01/27/2012 2011 Annual Report (Due 04/01/2012) 

7254-1284 11/04/2013 Assumed Name 

7254-1285 11/04/2013 Assumed Name 

7254-1286 11/04/2013 Assumed Name 

7254-1287 11/04/2013 Assumed Name 

A0234-3084 04/10/2014 2013 Annual Report (Due 04/01/2014) 

80065-5613 03/10/2015 2014 Annual Report (Due 04/01/2015) 

80278-5633 09/12/2016 Assumed Name Change 

*80478-4994 01/26/2018 Registered Agent Change (by Agent) 

80594-6807 10/03/2018 Assumed Name 

Phone (615) 741-6488 * Fax (615) 741-7310 * Website: http://tnbear.tn.gov/ 

Page 1 of 2 
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The attached document(s) was/were filed in this office on the date(s) indicated below: 

Reference# 
80594-6810 

80605-4052 

80605-4066 

80605-4071 

Date Filed 
10/03/2018 

10/10/2018 

10/10/2018 

10/10/2018 

Filing Description 
Assumed Name 

Assumed Name Renewal 

Assumed Name Renewal 

Assumed Name Renewal 

Phone (615) 741-6488 * Fax (615) 741-7310 * Website: http://tnbear.tn.gov/ 

Page 2 of 2 
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\1.\\t nf C6tll11.ta RECEIVED § 
For Ofiico Usa Only 

,_. - .. ;) tutor. ;_,i tiHffSSEE dA • t•'$_fp- ,..,.. 1·--'- R~fE\\/E~,:-~c = . 
~ \!:: :~ l_ :- 1EH\.!_, .... ,,EE 

: . 0 I SEP I'\ 7 A.PPLICATION FOR 
IJqntrtnwrt of htt ieEifufi~ATE OF AUTHORITY 

Coiporatc Filings r., 1, - 'J D • ..., .-
312 EighthA\'cnue North r\ LL• l i,t\rttll 

61h Floor, William R. Snodgra& [divctT :d~ Y Or ST;\ F 
Nash~illc. TN 37243 .... 

o \ SEP \ 4 M\ \ \: ~B 

{\LE·Y Df\RlitL1L.IE 
SE ~RET ;''-.Ry Or S J\ 

To lhe Secretary of State or the State ofTennessee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of§ 48•246-301 of the Tennessee limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned hereby 
applies for a certificate of authority to transact business in 1he State of Tennessee, and for that purpose sets forth: 

1. The name of the Limited Liability Company Is: Ac hens Regional t-:edical Center, LLC 

If different. the name under which the certificate of authority is to be obtained is: __________ _ 

NOTE: The Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee may not fssue a certillcato of authority to a foreign 
Limited Liability Company if its name does not comply with the requirements of§ 48-207--101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act. If obcalnlng a certificate of authority under an assumed 
Lfmited Liability Company name, an application must be filed pursuant to§ 48-207-101{d). 

2. The state or country under whose law it is formed is:_n_el_a_wa_r_e ______________ _ 

3. The date or its organization is: _Au __ g_u_s_t _2_4_,_2_0_0_1 _________ {must ba month, day and year) 

4. The complete street address (including zip code) of its principal office is: 

103 Powell court Suite 200 Brentwood, Tennessee 37027 
Stroot CitylStato lip Codo 

5. The complete streel address {including lhe county and the zip cocfe} of its registered office in Tennessee: 

2908 Poston Avenue Naohville, Tennessee Davidson 37203 

Streat City!Stalo County 7.ip Coda 

The name of ils registered agent at that office is: Corporation service Company 

6. The number of members at the date of filing _i ___________________ _ 

7, Ir the limited II ability company commenced doing business in Tennessee prior to the approval or this applleatian. 
the date of commencement (month, day and year) ________ _ 

NOTE: This application mu.st ba accompanied by a certlllcato of existence (or a document of similar Import) 
duly authenticated by tho Secretary of Stato or other official having custody of the Llmftad Liablflty 
Company records in the state or country under whose law it is organized. The certificato shall not 
bear a date of more than two (2) months prior to the date the application is filed In this state. 

Manager 
Signer's Capacity 

SS-1233 {Rev. 7/00) 

Athe11s Regional Medical center. 

Slght1ture "' · y ' 
. - -wi.lliam···p· ... Ca.rpetlter· 'i!t 

Nama (typed or printed) 

LLC 

ROA2458 
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State of Delaware 
4~~0 r::-: 0 2 :1. O PAGE 1 

Office of the Secretary of State 

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, 

LLC 11 IS DULY FORMED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND 

IS IN GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE 

RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE TWENTY-NINTH DAY OF 

AUGUST, A.O. 2001. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL TAXES HAVE 

NOT BEEN ASSESSED TO DATE. 

3429678 8300 

010427555 

$~~91--~ 
H,m·iet Smith \flindso,; StNYt,1ry· ofSt,,u 

AUTHENTICATION: 1319680 

DATE: 08-29-01 
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taU. of llitlll,t.lt 
For Offla1 Use Only 

~ I) ~ee 
CHANGE OF REGISTERED ~f.~Q1:~,9. C[E 

IJqrartmmt af itatt AGENT/OFFICE 
.. f '"i : .. i •• 1 :·.:·,.·.fS.1 .. .. 

Corporate Filings (BYAL~llTEDLIABILIT\'COMP~2 Ml 22 f1}\ \Q: \0 
312 Eighth Avenue North 

6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower "''ELL ,,- '- I • 1", ~ '• .. 

N11shville, TN 37243 (\ 
r , ~), , , ·, i , • T,.. 

.. : ..••• , "'7 C.Tt\ r 
·Jtl.1{\l- I J \I~ 

Pursuant lo the provisions or § 4B-20B·102(a) or the Tennessee Limited liability Company Act. the 
undersfgned Limited llabllity Company hereby submits this application: 

1. The name of the Limited liabillly Company Is: Athens RcRional Medical Centcr1 LLC 

2. The street address of Its current registered office is: 2908 Poston Avenue1 Nnshville1 TN 37203 

3. Ir the current registered office Is to be changed, the street address or the new registered office, the 
zip code of such office, and the county In which the office Is located Is: 530 Gay Street, 

Knoxville1 Tennessee 379021 ~ounti of Knox 

4, The name of the currenl registered agent Is: Co~mtion Service Comenn~ 

5. Ir the current registered agent Is to be changed, the name of the new registered agent Is: 

CT Co~mtion Sl'.stem 

6. Arter the chenge(s), Iha street addresses of the registered office end the business orfice of the 
registered agent wlll be Identical. 

~\\\<; \oi- Athens Regional Medical Centcr1 LLC 
Signature D~te \ 

7J?l!ZP~ Manager 

Signer's Capacity Signature ' -;- I 

William F. Carpcnlcr Ill 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4225 (Rev. 8198) RDA245B 
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Tennessee Limited Liability Company Annual Report Form ARFiling#:02se717s 

File on line at: http://TNBear.TN.gov/AR 

Due on/Before:04/01/2012 Reporting Year: 2011 

Annual Report FIiing Fee Due: 
$300 minimum plus $50 for each member over 6 to a maximum of $3000 
$20 additional if chanqes are made in block 3 to the reqistered aqent/office 

Status: Complete 

This Annual Report has been successfully 
paid for and submitted. Your Annual Report 
will be reviewed by Business SeNices and 
filed within 48 hours. Please keep this 
report for your records. 

------- ------- ·---·- -------------- ·---- - ----------- - - ---

SOS Control Number: 414689 
Limited Liability Company - Foreign Date Formed: 08/24/2001 Formation Locale: DELAWARE 

(1) Name and Mailing Address: 
ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLG 
STE 200 
103 POWELL CT 
BREN1WOOD TN 37027-5079 

(2) Principal Office Address: 
STE 200 
103 POWELL CT 
BREN1WOOD, TN 37027-5079 

(3) Registered Agent (RA) and Registered Office (RO) Address: Agent Changed:~ 
CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 
STE 2021 
800 S GAY ST 
KNOXVILLE, TN 37929-9710 

(4) This LLC is (change if incorrect): __ Director Managed, __ Manager Managed, _x_Member Managed, 
__ Board Managed, __ Other. 

If board, director, or manager managed, provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of the governors, directors, or 

?:; 
...... 

~ ...... ...... 
I\) 
<O 

managers (or their equivalent), respectively ---·--·- --- --·------·· ________ ., ___ ___________________ ·-·-----------. 
Name Business Address City, State, Zip 
----·----- • - """ _____ __ ,., ... ··- - ·-·- ·-·- --- ---- ·-·-----·-- - - · - -----·---- -- _ __=-.: _ _ -'-.....:._ _____ _ 

(5) Provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of the LLC managers (if governed by the LLC Act), or any officers (ii 
governed by the Revised LLC Act), (or their equivalent), respectively. 

Name Business Address City, State, Zip 

Christy S. Green 103 Powell Court Brentwood, TN 37027 

Christopher J. Monte 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

Mark B. Poppell 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

Michael S. Coggin 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

R. Scott Raplee 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

Michael B. Clark 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

A. Gene Smith 103 Powell Court Suite 200 Brentwood, TN 37027 

(6) Number of members on the date the annual report is executed if there are more than six (6) members: _1 _ 
__ This LLC is prohibited from doing business in Tennessee (check if applicable) 

(7) Signature: Electronic (8) Date: 01/26/2012 11:32 AM 

(9) Type/Print Name: Christy S. Green (10) Tille: Officer ________ _;__ _______________ _ 

SS-4253 RDA 1678 
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. ~-ll~e 
APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

IJqrartmtnt nf htt OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 3 7243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48-207-101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned Limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name the limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

McMinn Memorial Nursing Home and Rehab Center 

NOTE: The assumed Limited Liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com-
pany Act, as applicable. 

ii~ ~ ion Athens Regional Medical Center) LLC 

Signature Date c~i~:~,1 Vice President and Secretary 

Signer's Capacity Signature 

Christy S. Green 

Name (typed or printed} 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01/06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

llqmrtmtnt of htt OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
6111 Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 37243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48-207-101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned Limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name the Limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center - Etowah 

NOTE: The assumed Limited Liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48•249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com~ 
pany Act, as applicable. 

~~ tr, tDl!J 
Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

Signature Date NC of Limited. Liab:~ Q/J 
Vice President and Secretary 

Signer's Capacity SI~ 
Christy S. Green 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01/06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

Erpttttumtt nf &tatt OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
61h Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 37243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48-207-101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Llabillty Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned Limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the Limited Liability Company Is: 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

Delaware 

3, The Limited Liability Company Intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name the Limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center w Athens 

NOTE: The assumed Limited Liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liablfity Company Act or §48-249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com-
pany Act, as applicable. 

~(JJ~ ·~ "LOl-3 Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

Signature Date Name of Limited Liabllity Company 

Vice President and Secretary C h.wiV ,5Jd100 (1 
Signer's Capacity Signature 

Christy S. Green 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01/06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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~ 
APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

lqrurtlnent of &tau OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
61h Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 37243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48~207~ 101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name the Limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center 

NOTE: The assumed Limited Liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com-
pany Act, as applicable. 

N~ ~ 2.,c)lj Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

Signature Date Name of Limited Liability Company 

Vice President and Secretary o.AJ.-iJ. '3µf;.HJ 
Signer's Capacity Signaturec) 

Christy S. Green 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01/06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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Tennessee Limited Liability Company Annual Report Form AR Filing#: 04232188 

File online at: http:/JTNBear.TN.gov/AR 

Due on/Before:04/01/2014 

FILED: Apr 10, 2014 12:45PM 
DLN #: A0234-3084.001 

RepoIting Year: 2013 

Annual Report Filing Fee Due: 
$300 minimum plus $50 for eact1 member over 6 to a maximum of $3000 

$20 additional if chanqes are made in block 3 to the registered agent/office 

This Annual Report has been successfully 
paid for and filed. Please keep this report for 
your records. 

cc Payment Raf#: 155547472 

SOS Control Number: 414689 

Limited Liability Company - Foreign Date Formed: 08/24/2001 Formation Locale: DELAWARE 

(1) Name and Mailing Address: 
ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC 
330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY 
BRENT\NOOD, TN 37027-4536 

(2) Principal Office Address: 
330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY 
BRENTWOOD, TN 37027-4536 

(3) Registered Agent (RA) and Registered Office (RO) Address: AgentChanged: _l!.Q_ 

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 
STE 2021 
800 S GAY ST 
KNOXVILLE, TN 37929-9710 

Agent County: KNOX COUNTY 

(4) This LLC is (change if incorrect): __ Director Managed, 1$.._Manager Managed, __ Member Managed, 
__ Board Managed, __ other. 

If board, director, or manager managed, provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of the governors, directors, or 
managers (or their equivalent). If governed by the pre-2006 LLC act and board managed, list board members and managers. 

Name Business Address City, State, Zip 
---··· .. ·--•.--- -336sEVENS-PRil'frXswAv- .... - ·-·· 

. BRENTWOOD, TN.37027 
·--·-····-··--·········------·-----·-··--

Jeff G Seraphine 

Christy S. Green 330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY BRENlWOOD, TN 37027 

Michael S, Coggin 330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY BRENTWOOD, TN 37027 

(5) Provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of any LLC Officers (if governed by the Revised LLC Act), or their 
equivalent. 

IName !Business Address . . .... ICify, State, Zip 

(6) Number of members on the date the annual report is executed: _3 _ 
__ This LLC is prohibited from doing business in Tennessee (check if applicable) 

(7) Signature: Electronic (8) Date: 04/10/2014 12:45 PM 

(9) Type/Print Name: Michelle Donato (10) Title: POA 

SS-4253 Page 1 of 1 RDA 1678 
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Tennessee Limited Liability Company Annual Report Form AR Filing#: 04822218 ~ 
FIie online at: http://TNBear.TN.gov/AR FILED: Mar 10, 2015 5:42PM ~ 

Due on/Before: 04/01/2015 Reporting Year: 2014 0 
w 

Annual Report Filing Fee Due: 
This Annual Report has been successfully '-.. 

$300 minimum plus $50 for each member over 6 to a maximum of $3000 

$20 additional if changes are made in block 3 to the reoistered aoenUoffice 

paid for and filed. Please keep this report for 1----1 

your records. ~ 

CC Payment Ref#: 161115784 N 

-------------------------------------------- 0 
SOS Control Number: 414689 

Limited Liability Company - Foreign Date Formed: 08/24/2001 

1----1 
(J7 

Formation Locale: DELAWARE 
--------------------------------------------Ul 
(1) Name and Mailing Address: 
ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC 

330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY 

BRENTWOOD, TN 37027-5098 

(2) Principal Office Address: 

330 SEVEN SPRINGS WAY 

BRENTWOOD, TN 37027-5098 

(3) Registered Agent (RA) and ~egistered Office (RO) Address: Agent Changed: ~ 

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM 

STE 2021 

800 S GAY ST 

KNOXVILLE, TN 37929-9710 

Agent County: KNOX COUNTY 

(4) This LLC is (change if incorrect): __ Director Managed, __ Manager Managed, _X_Member Managed, 
__ Board Managed, __ Other. 

If board, director, or manager managed, provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of the governors, directors, or 
managers (or their equivalent). If governed by the pre-2006 LLC act and board managed, list board members and managers. 

Name Business Address City, State, Zip 

(5) Provide the names and business addresses, including zip codes, of any LLC Officers (if governed by the Revised LLC Act), or their 
equivalent. 

Name Business Address City, State, Zip 

(6) Number of members on the date the annual report is executed: _1_ 

__ This LLC is prohibited from doing business in Tennessee (check if applicable) 

(7) Signature: Electronic (8) Date: 03/10/2015 
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~ 
APPLICATION FOR CHANGE OR 

Dqwtmmtof&latt CANCELLATION OF ASSUMED 
Corpor'.itc Pilings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Eighth Avenue North 
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

NashviJle, TN 3 7243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48~207· 101 (e) or the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48~249-106(e) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned Limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the limited Liability Company is: Athens Regional tvledicnl Center, Ll.C 

2. The state or country of formation is: Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to cease transacting business under an assumed Limited Liability Company 
name by changing or cancelling it; 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name to be changed from or cancelled is: 

McMinn Memorial Nursing Home and Rehab Center 

5. If the assumed name is to be changed, the assumed LLC name which the LLC proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Health & Relrnbllita1ion 

oC\lcPd\b Athens Regional Medical Center. LLC 

Signature Date Name/limited Liability Company 

Assistant Secretary i@/"~ 
Signers Capacity Signature6· 

Kathy Teague 
Name {typed or printed) 

SS~4229 (Rev. 01/06) RDA2458 
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SECRETARY OF STATE 
DIVISION OF BUSINESS SERVICES 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue . . 
. il-~~ ~ .. ~:~~· . 

6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 
Nash ville, TN 37243 

.... 
MASS CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE (BY AGENT) 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 48·15·102 and 48·25·108 of the Tennessee Business 
Corporation Act, Sections 48·55· 102 and 48·65· 108 of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation 
Act, Section 48·208·102 of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act, Section 48·249·110 
of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, Sections 61 ·2· 104 and 61 ·2·904 of 
the Tennessee Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, and Section 61·1·1002 of the 
Tennessee Revised Uniform Partnership Act, the undersigned registered agent hereby 
submits this application to change its business address and the registered office address of 
the businesses noted below: 

1. The names of the affected corporations, limited liability companies, limited 
partnerships and limited liability partnerships are identified in the attached list 
by their S.O.S. control numbers, which list is incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The street address of its current registered office of record is: 

As shown on the attached report. 

3. The name of the registered agent is: 

C T Corporation System 

4. The street address (including county) of the new registered office in Tennessee is: 

300 Montvue RD 
Street 

Knoxville 37919-5546 Knox 
City Zip County 

5. After the change, the street addresses of the registered office and the business 
office of the registered agent will be identical. 

6. The corporations, limited liability companies, limited partnerships and limited 
liability partnerships identified in the attached list have been notified of the 
change of address for the registered office. 

1/17/18 

Signature Date Signature of Registered Agent 

Marie Hauer, Asst. Secretary 

Printed or Typed Name 
Mass Change 
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January 26, 2018 

Agent#:0307995 

Agent Name: CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 

Address: 

800 S GAY ST 

STE 2021 

KNOXVILLE, TN 37929-9710 

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM submitted this Mass Registered Agent Change in order 

to change their address as listed above effective on January 26, 2018. The request 

is applied to all ACTIVE entities represented as of January 8, 2018. 

This entity met that criteria and should have its agent address changed to 

300 MONTVUE RD, KNOXVILLE TN 37919-5546. 
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~"~ 
APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

lq,artmtnt of &tau OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 37243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48-207-101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1. The true name of the Limited Liability Company is: Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed Limited Liability Company name the Limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Cancer Center 

NOTE: The assumed Limited Liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com-
pany Act, as applicable. 

q liLJ/(~ Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

Signature Date 
Na~~ity Company 

Secretary 

Signer's Capacity Signature ~ 
Kathy Teague 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01 /06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 

lq,artmmt of htt OF ASSUMED 
Corporate Filings LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY NAME 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue 
6111 Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower 

Nashville, TN 37243 

Pursuant to the provisions of §48-207-101 (d) of the Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106(d) of 
the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, the undersigned limited Liability Company hereby submits this 
application: 

1 Th f th L' I d L' b·lit C . Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC . e true name o e 1m te 1a I y ompany 1s: 

2. The state or country of organization is: Delaware 

3. The Limited Liability Company intends to transact business under an assumed Limited Liability Company name. 

4. The assumed limited Liability Company name the limited Liability Company proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Sports Medicine 

NOTE: The assumed Limited liability Company name must meet the requirements of §48-207-101 of the 
Tennessee Limited Liability Company Act or §48-249-106 of the Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Com-
pany Act, as applicable. 

q/tLJl1g Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 

Signature Date Na~V~i/i;:::pany 
Secretary 

Signer's Capacity Signature U I l) 

Kathy Teague 

Name (typed or printed) 

SS-4230 (Rev. 01 /06) Filing Fee: $20.00 RDA2458 
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. . . . 
: :-.. . ...uc::::~ . 

.. , .. 
Tre Hargett 

Secretary of State 

APPLICATION FOR RENEW AL OF 
REGISTRATION OF ASSUMED NAME 

Division of Business Services 
Department of State 

State of Tennessee 
312 Rosa L. Parks A VE, 6th FL 

Nashville, TN 37243-1102 

(615) 741-2286 

Filing Fee: $20.00 

Assumed Name: Starr Regional Medical Center 

Date of Expiration: 11/04/2018 

004880874 

SS-4488 

For Office Use Only 

-FILED-
Amendment # 00488087 4 

Pursuant to the Tennessee Business Corporation Act, Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, Tennessee Limited 
Liability Company Act, Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, or the Tennessee Revised Uniform 
Partnership Act, the undersigned submits this application. 

Failure to file the required document within the two (2) months preceding the expiration of the registration of the 
assumed name will result in expiration of the assumed name. 

1. The Secretary of State Control Number is: 000414689 
and the true name of the business entity is: 

ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

DELAWARE 

3. The business entity intends to transact business under an assumed name. 

4. The assumed name the business entity proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center 

The assumed name must satisfy the statutory requirements for that type of entity. 

10/10/2018 

Signature Date 

Secretary 

Signer's Capacity 

Electronic 

Signature 

Kathy Teague 

Name (typed or printed) 

Note: Pursuant to T.C.A. § 10-7-503 all information on this form is public record. 

88-4488 (Rev. 03/15) RDA 2458 
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Tre Hargett 
Secretary of State 

APPLICATION FOR RENEW AL OF 
REGISTRATION OF ASSUMED NAME 

Division of Business Services 
Department of State 

State of Tennessee 
312 Rosa L. Parks A VE, 6th FL 

Nashville, TN 37243-1102 

(615) 741-2286 

Filing Fee: $20.00 

Assumed Name: Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens 

Date of Expiration: 11/04/2018 

004880878 

SS-4488 

For Office Use Only 

-FILED-
Amendment# 004880878 

Pursuant to the Tennessee Business Corporation Act, Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, Tennessee Limited 
Liability Company Act, Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, or the Tennessee Revised Uniform 
Partnership Act, the undersigned submits this application. 

Failure to file the required document within the two (2) months preceding the expiration of the registration of the 
assumed name will result in expiration of the assumed name. 

1. The Secretary of State Control Number is: 000414689 
and the true name of the business entity is: 

ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

DELAWARE 

3. The business entity intends to transact business under an assumed name. 

4. The assumed name the business entity proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens 

The assumed name must satisfy the statutory requirements for that type of entity. 

10/10/2018 

Signature Date 

Secretary 

Signer's Capacity 

Electronic 

Signature 

Kathy Teague 

Name (typed or printed) 

Note: Pursuant to T.C.A. § 10-7-503 all information on this form is public record. 

SS-4488 (Rev, 03/15) RDA 2458 

tII 
0 
m 
0 
(Jl 

I 
i-f::,,. 

0 
m 
m 

f------l 
0 

......______ 

t---1 
0 

......______ 

N 
0 
f------l 
m 

f------l 
f------l 

i-f::,,. 

f------l 

~ 
'.::d 
(D 

0 
(D 

f--'· 
<: 
(D 

0. 

t1 
'< 
1--3 
(D 

~ 
~ 
(D 
(J) 
(J) 

(D 
(D 

(_J) 

(D 

0 
r; 
(D 

rt 
UJ 
r; 
'< 

0 
t-ti 

Cf) 

rt 
UJ 
rt 
(D 

1--3 
r; 
(D 

~ 
UJ 
r; 
~ 
(D 

rt 
rt 



114

II 1111 111111 II 111111111111111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 

Tre Hargett 
Secretary of State 

APPLICATION FOR RENEW AL OF 
REGISTRATION OF ASSUMED NAME 

Division of Business Services 
Department of State 

State of Tennessee 
312 Rosa L. Parks A VE, 6th FL 

Nashville, TN 37243-1102 

(615) 741-2286 

Filing Fee: $20.00 

Assumed Name: Starr Regional Medical Center - Etowah 

Date of Expiration: 11/04/2018 

004880880 

SS-4488 

For Office Use Only 

-FILED-
Amendment # 004880880 

Pursuant to the Tennessee Business Corporation Act, Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, Tennessee Limited 
Liability Company Act, Tennessee Revised Limited Liability Company Act, or the Tennessee Revised Uniform 
Partnership Act, the undersigned submits this application. 

Failure to file the required document within the two (2) months preceding the expiration of the registration of the 
assumed name will result in expiration of the assumed name. 

1. The Secretary of State Control Number is: 000414689 
and the true name of the business entity is: 

ATHENS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC 

2. The state or country of organization is: 

DELAWARE 

3. The business entity intends to transact business under an assumed name. 

4. The assumed name the business entity proposes to use is: 

Starr Regional Medical Center - Etowah 

The assumed name must satisfy the statutory requirements for that type of entity. 

10/10/2018 

Signature Date 

Secretary 

Signer's Capacity 

Electronic 

Signature 

Kathy Teague 

Name (typed or printed) 

Note: Pursuant to T.C.A. § 10-7-503 all information on this form is public record. 

SS-4488 (Rev. 03/15) RDA 2458 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. has an ownership interest in the below-listed facilities in Tennessee. 

Livingston Regional Hospital 

Name of Facility 
and Address 

HOSPITALS 

Livingston Regional Hospital, LLC OBA Livingston Regional Hospital 
315 Oak Street 
Livingston, TN 38570 
lflN: 62-1762419 

Riverview Regional Medical Center 
Riverview Medical Center, LLC OBA Riverview Regional Medical Center 
158 Hospital Drive 
Carthage, TN 37030 
rr1N: 62-1762469 

Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Lawrenceburg 
Crockett Hospital, LLC OBA Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Lawrenceburg 
US Highway 43 South 
Lawrenceburg, TN 38464 
rr1N: 62-1762364 

Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Pulaski 
Hillside Hospital, LLC OBA Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Pulaski 
1265 East College St. 
Pulaski, TN 38478 
TIN: 62-1762382 

Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Winchester and 
Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Sewanee, A Campus of Southern Tennessee Regional Health 

System Winchester 
Southern Tennessee Medical Center, LLC OBA Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Winchester and 

OBA Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Sewanee, A Campus of Southern Tennessee Regional 
Health System Winchester 

(Main Campus) 
185 Hospital Road 
Winchester, TN 37398 
(EHH Campus) 
1260 University Avenue 
Sewanee, TN 37375 
rr1N: 62-1762535 

Starr Regional Medical Center Athens and 
Starr Regional Medical Center Etowah 
Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC OBA Starr Regional Medical Center Athens and Starr Regional Medical Center 
Etowah 
(Main Campus) 
1114 West Madison Ave 
Athens, TN 37303 
(Etowah Campus) 
886 Highway 411 North 
Etowah, TN 37331 
TIN: 62-1866028 

4816-8542-6124.1 
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Name of Facility 
and Address 

Sumner Regional Medical Center 
Sumner Regional Medical Center, LLC OBA Sumner Regional Medical Center 
555 Hartsville Pike 
Gallatin, TN 37066 
iflN: 27-2618766 

Trousdale Medical Center 
rrrousdale Medical Center, LLC OBA Trousdale Medical Center 
500 Church Street 
Hartsville, TN 37074 
rrIN: 27-2618876 

RURAL HEAL TH CLINICS 

Loretto Family Care 
ECM Health Group, LLC OBA Loretto Family Care 
722 N. Military St. 
Loretto, TN 38469-2336 
rrIN: 61-1661796 

Mountain Medical Clinic 
AMG-Southern Tennessee LLC OBA Southern Tennessee Primary Care - Mountain Medical Clinic 
21 1st St 
Monteagle, TN 37356 
rrIN: 62-1763648 

AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTERS 

rrhe Surgery Center of Athens 
Athens Surgery Center, LLC OBA The Surgery Center of Athens 
105 N. Meadows Dr. 
Athens, TN 37303-4172 
rrI N: 80-0812776 

SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES 

Starr Regional Health & Rehabilitation 
Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC OBA Starr Regional Health & Rehabilitation 
886 Highway 411 N. 
Etowah, TN 37331-1912 
rflN: 62-1866028 

Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Winchester - Skilled Facility 
Southern Tennessee Medical Center, LLC OBA Southern Tennessee Regional Health System Winchester - Skilled 

Facility 
185 Hospital Road 
Winchester, TN 37398-2404 
TIN: 62-1762535 

4816-8542-6124.1 
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Attachment - Section A-6A 

Deed 
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THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY: 
Matthew T. Harris, Esq. 
Waller Lansden Dortch & Davis, 
A Professional Limited Liability Company 
511 Union Street, Suite 2100 
Nashville, Tennessee 37219 

Nadean CYnnin9ham, Re9ister 
McMinn County 

Rer ~· ?79?0 Instrument 27920 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
COUNTY OF DAVIDSON) 

The actual consideration or 
value, whichever is greater, for 

~OUJ.N'. 

Affiant 

Subscribed and sworn to before 
me this JL day of September, 

Re1: 1 d: -.. 40.00 NBk: 29 pg 253 
State: 33300.00 Recorded 

2001 ,,,,, ... , ,,,,,, 
. ,,"~ "'{ \.. ,.,, I!'-'·•,, 

,'A.~ •••• • ~,i, ,, 
... ~- .. . . ~ .... Clerk: 1,00 10/2/2001 at 1:43 Pm 

EDP: 2.00 in Warranty Deed Book 
Tahl: 33343.00 

c<-r,____ • • 0 ••. 

-: ·-z-~ 
15V P9 561 . -. -

: • AT • 
My Commi~_sio. n ~i~t LARGE • : ~; 

. ) . :) :) -( ... ~ ~ • • • • '<Z: ~' •, <9s • • • • • • ,_ , .. 
",,, ON r , "l'--4 ,,, .. 

*********************************************************************'¼'w**'*~i-* . 
ADDRESS OF NEW OWNER: SEND TAX BILL TO: MAP-PARCEL NO. 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 
c/o Lifepoint Hospitals, Inc. 
103 Powell Court, Suite 200 
Brentwood, Tennessee 37027 

SAME Map 54-P, Group E, 
Parcels 26 and 27; 
Map 63-A, Group C, 
Parcels 7, 8 and 9 

****************************************************************************** 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that for and in consideration of 

the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) cash in hand paid, and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, ATHENS 

COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, INC., a Tennessee corporation ("Grantor"), has 

bargained and sold, and by these presents does transfer and convey unto ATHENS 

REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

("Grantee"), the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of Grantee, those 
certain tracts or parcel of land in McMinn County, Tennessee, described as follows, 

to-wit: 

See attached Exhibit A 

701562.1 Dabt~7ne 
Taxl.D. t', t1e "l'" f"-'1,ct•, /)(J .1N I tJt1?. {),. 

McMinn County Propertv Assessor 
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---- - ' .... -, .... ,. "' 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the said real property together with all 
appurtenances and hereditaments thereunto belonging or in any wise appertaining 
to Grantee, the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of Grantee, forever. 

Grantor further covenants and binds itself, its representatives, successors 
and assigns to warrant specially and forever defend the title to said real estate to 
Grantee, the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of Grantee, against the 
lawful claims of all persons claiming through and under Grantor (other than claims 
arising out of the matters set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto), but not further or 
otherwise. All exhibits referred to herein are attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. Wherever used, the singular number shall include the plural, 
the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused this Special Warranty Deed to 
be executed on the .9:S day of September, 2001. 

ATHENS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, INC. 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
COUNTY OF DAVIDSON ) 

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State 
aforesaid, personally appeared Gi ~-C\':3 6t-.c le.r, , with whom I am personally 
acquainted, (or proved to me on the b'asis of.satisfactory evidence), and who upon 
oath acknowledged himself to be °'✓- \ , ~. \-\ :::~5,, c~ ,,,_.. .. }-- of Athens Community 

Hos_?ital~--,lnc., the withi~ named ~argainor, a corporation, and th~t ~e, as such 
\ : \ c Vr ~,~( \ ..,_,,__.r- , bemg authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument 

for the purposes therein containe.d, by signing the name of the corporation by 
himself as such \,/ 'i ct.. Ycc-';-~·.-,.l-qJ---. 

My Commission Expires: 

701562.1 

Notary 
3 ·9} .(.3,-. 

2 

Pa~e 562 
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EXHIBIT A 

Description of the Real Property 

Tract 1 

A TRACT OF LAND IN THE FIRST CIVIL DISTRICT OF McMINN COUNTY, 

CITY OF ATHENS, TENNESSEE AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED ACCORDING TO A SURVEY PREPARED BY RAGAN-SMITH 

ASSOCIATES, INC., DATED SEPTEMBER 20, 2001 AND PROCEEDING AS 

FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A P.K. NAIL (OLD) IN SIDEWALK ON THE 

NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF MADISON AVENUE, STATE HIGHWAY 2; 

SAID P.K. NAIL BEING LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF 

THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF MADISON AVENUE AND THE 

EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF COOK DRIVE, RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH 

VARIES; THENCE, 

1. WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF COOK DRIVE, NORTH 23 

DEGREES 48 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST, 41.25 FEET TO A P.K. NAIL (OLD) 

IN DRIVE; THENCE, 

2. WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 47 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 16 SECONDS , FOR AN ARC 

LENGTH OF 247.95 FEET TO AN IRON ROD (OLD); SAID CURVE HAS A 

CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 46 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 36 

SECONDS EAST, 240.95; THENCE, 

3. NORTH 71 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, 827.21 FEET TO AN 

IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

4. WITH AN OFFSET IN COOK DRIVE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 59 

SECONDS WEST, 8.21 FEET TO AN IRON ROD (NEW); THENCE, 

5. NORTH 71 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 163.03 FEET TO AN 

IRON ROD (NEW); THENCE, 

6. LEAVING THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID COOK DRIVE WITH 

THE COMMON LINE OF THE HCA REALTY, INC. PROPERTY OF RECORD IN 

DEED BOOK 10-M, PAGE 35, REGISTER'S OFFICE FOR MCMINN COUNTY 

(R.O.M.C.), TENNESSEE AND THE ATHENS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, INC. 

PROPERTY OF RECORD IN DEED BOOK 12-B, PAGE 499, R.O.M.C., 

TENNESSEE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST, 373.28 

FEET TO AN IRON ROD (OLD) AT THE NORTHWESTERLY TERMINUS OF 

FAIRVIEW AVENUE; THENCE, 

Page 563 
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7. WITH THE NORTHWESTERLY TERMINUS OF FAIRVIEW AVENUE, SOUTH 
00 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 34 SECONDS WEST, 29.91 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE 
(OLD) AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE GERALD SAUNDERS 

PROPERTY OF RECORD IN DEED BOOK 9-J, PAGE 361, R.O.M.C., 
TENNESSEE; THENCE, 

8. WITH SAUNDER'S NORTH LINE IN PART, NORTH 87 DEGREES 56 

MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, 69.23 FEET TO AN IRON ROD (NEW); 
THENCE, 

9. LEAVING SAUNDER'S NORTH LINE, NORTH 01 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 41 

SECONDS EAST, 179.86 TO AN IRON ROD (NEW); THENCE, 

10. NORTH 88 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST, 230.00 FEET TO 
AN IRON ROD (NEW); THENCE, 

11. SOUTH 02 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, 175.00 FEET TO 
AN IRON ROD (NEW) AT THE NORTHEASTERLY TERMINUS OF EPPERSON 
AVENUE; THENCE, 

12. WITH THE NORTHERLY TERMINUS OF EPPERSON AVENUE, NORTH 88 

DEGREES 06 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 50.00 FEET TO AN IRON ROD 
(NEW); THENCE, 

13. WITH THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF EPPERSON AVENUE, SOUTH 
00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 743.75 FEET TO AN IRON 
ROD (OLD) ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID MADISON 

AVENUE, STATE HIGHWAY 2; THENCE, 

14. WITH THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF MADISON AVENUE THE 
FOLLOWING CALLS: 

NORTH 61 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, 59.20 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 559.94 FEET, A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 49 SECONDS, FOR AN ARC 
LENGTH OF 110.56 FEET TO AN IRON ROD (OLD); SAID CURVE HAS A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 57 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 24 

SECONDS WEST, 110.39 FEET; THENCE, 

CONTINUING WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 527.51 

FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 12 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 17 SECONDS , FOR 

AN ARC LENGTH OF 110.83 FEET TO A P.K. NAIL (OLD) IN SIDEWALK; SAID 
CURVE HAS A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 43 DEGREES 
39 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, 110.63 FEET; THENCE, 

Pa"Se 564 
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NORTH 37 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 141.49 FEET TO A 
P.K. NAIL (OLD) IN SIDEWALK; THENCE, 

NORTH 35 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 17.85 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 395.80 FEET, A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 38 SECONDS , FOR AN ARC 
LENGTH OF 80.21 FEET TO A P.K. NAIL (OLD); SAID CURVE HAS A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 43 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 22 
SECONDS WEST, 80.07 FEET; THENCE, 

NORTH 49 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, 67.07 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD) IN SIDEWALK; THENCE, 

NORTH 51 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 45.66 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

NORTH 51 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, 78.58 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

NORTH 52 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, 49.08 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

NORTH 54 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, 34.88 FEET TO A 
PUNCH HOLE IN CONCRETE; THENCE, 

NORTH 56 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 38 SECONDS WEST, 107 .53 FEET TO AN 
IRON ROD (OLD); THENCE, 

NORTH 56 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, 111.22 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 522,723 SQUARE FEET OR 12.000 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS AS CALCULATED BY THE ABOVE COURSES AND 
DISTANCES WHICH WERE DETERMINED WITHIN THE PRECISION 
REQUIREMENTS OF A CATEGORY "I" SURVEY. 

Tract 2 

Units 1, 4 and 5 of the Athens Medical Mall Condominium created under Title 66, 
Chapter 27, Section 101, et seq., as amended, Tennessee Code Annotated, and as 

established by a Master Deed of Record in Deed Book 9-X, pages 495-537, Register's 

Office for McMinn County, Tennessee, together with the undivided percentage 
interei:;t in the Commun Elements appurtenant to said Units as set forth in Exhibit 

B-3 of said Master Deed. Reference is hereby made to the Plat of Athens Medical 

Pa".312 565 



123

Mall Condominium set forth in Exhibit B-2 of said Master Deed for a more complete 
identification and description of such Units. 

Being part of the same property conveyed to Athens Community Hospital, Inc. by 
deed from Hospital Corporation of America of record in Deed Book 12-B, page 499, 
said Register's Office. 

Tract 3 (Parcel B) 

SITUATED in the Third Civil District of McMinn County, Tennessee, and being 
described as follows: 

BEGINNING at an iron pin on the Southwest Corner of the lot here conveyed, said 
corner being on the North side of U.S. Highway #11, at a point where the Tom 
Sherman (now Wayne Allen) lot intersects the lot here conveyed; thence in a 
Northerly direction with the Tom Sherman (now Wayne Allen) line to the right of 
way of the Southern Railroad Company, said Sherman or Allen line being 26 feet 
West of the West wall of the house located on the lot herein conveyed, and said 
Sherman or Allen line being further marked by a blazed oak tree, said blaze being 
on the West side of said tree; thence with the right of way of the Southern Railroad, 
in an Easterly direction, 82 feet, more or less, to Minor Tourist Court (now known 
as Watters Village) line; thence in a Southerly direction along the Minor Touris 
Court line to the right of way of U.S. Highway #11; thence in a Westerly direction 
along the North side of said U.S. Highway #11, a distance of 82 feet to the 
beginning point. 

Being the same property conveyed to Hospital Corporation of America by deed from 
Viola Small, of record in Deed Book 6-U, page 343, Register's Office for McMinn 
County, Tennessee; and being part of the same property conveyed to Athens 
Community Hospital, Inc. by deed from Hospital Corporation of America of record 
in Deed Book 12-B, page 499, said Register's Office. 

Tract 4 (Parcel C) 

LYING AND BEING in the Third Civil District of McMinn County, Tennessee and 
being a certain tract or parcel of land bounded on the North by the Southern 
Railway Company right of way; on the East by Street, known as Grove Street, 
running from Lee Highway to Southern Railway right of way; on the south by lands 
owned by Laura Stanton Green and others, formerly known as Welch's Tourist 
Camp; on the West by Property of J.F. Varnell. 

There is, however, excepted from the above lot the strip of land 18 feet in width 
fronting on the West side of Grove Avenue and extending back 150 feet therefrom 
between parallel lines being directly adjacent and North of Lots 5 and 6 in Block 6 
of the Keith Addition. 

Page 566 
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Being the same property conveyed to Hospital Corporation of America by deed from 

Theodore R. Stanton, of record in Deed Book 6-U, page 341, Register's Office for 

McMinn County, Tennessee; and being part of the same property conveyed to 

Athens Community Hospital, Inc. by deed from Hospital Corporation of America of 

record in Deed Book 12·B, page 499, said Register's Office. 
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EXHIBIT B 

1. Taxes for the year 2001, which are a lien, but not yet due and payable, and 
all taxes for subsequent years. 

2. Sewer Line Easement dated August 9, 1967, to the City of Athens, 
Tennessee, recorded in Deed Book 6-E, page 72, said Register's Office. (Tract 
1) 

3. Matters depicted or disclosed by map of record in Deed Book 3-H, page 554, 
said Register's Office. (Tract 1) 

4. Matters depicted or disclosed by map of record in Deed Book 3-H, page 555, 
said Register's Office. (Tract 1) 

5. Covenants and restrictions recorded m Deed Book 9-X, page 484, said 
Register's Office. (Tract 2) 

6. Covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, easements, liens for 
assessments, options, powers of attorney, and limitations on title created by 
the State of Tennessee Horizontal Property Act or set forth in the Master 
Deed for Athens Medical Mall Condominium recorded in Deed Book 9-X, page 
495, said Register's Office. (Tract 2) 

7. Power line easement as shown on survey Drawing No. 79245, dated 
September 20, 1979, by Morgan Watkins Engineering Company, entitled 
"Property of Mrs. R. W. Epperson". (Tract 2) 

8. Terms and conditions of Ground Lease between Athens Community Hospital, 
Inc. and HCA Properties, Inc., recorded in Deed Book 9-V, page 385, said 
Register's Office. (Tract 1) 

Pa9e 568 
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Tax Parcel 4.00 

Scale: 1 inch= 160 feet File: 

Total -
11.9071 acres 

Tax Parcel 5.00 

? 
~~ • co 
(')..-
,;t-o 
t--0 

0 
Cl) 

Helipad 
Tax Parcel 6.00 

Tax Parcel 2.00 

230 
n88°59'19"w 

=/J) 

..... co 
Ya;, 
0 . 
0 0) 

~~ 
0 
C: 

10/9/2020 

Tract 1: 11.9071 Acres, Closure: s01.2719e 26.08 ft. (1/159), Perimeter-4153 ft. 

0 1 n23.4809e 41.25 17 n37.5232w 141.49 
18 n35.0014w 17.85 02 Rt, r-300.00, delta=047.2116, arc=247.95, chord=n46.5236e 240.95 

03 n71.0545e 827.21 
04 s00.1559w 8.21 
05 n71.1000e 163.03 
06 s00.2807w 373.28 
07 s00.5634w 29.91 
08 n87.5631w 69.23 -
09 n01.0041e 179.86 
1 O n88.5919w 230 
11 s02.0541w 175 
12 n88.0649w 50 
13 s00.1609w 743.75 
14 n61.1658w 59.20 
15 Rt, r-559.94, delta=0 11.1849, arc=110.56, chord=n57 .3624w 110.39 
16 Rt, r-527.51, delta=012.0217, arc=110.83, chord=n43.3923w 110.63 

19 Lt, r=395.80, delta=011.3638, arc=80.21, chord=n43.0222w 80.07 
20 n49.0318w 67.07 
21 n51.2714w 45.66 
22 n51.2127w 78.58 
23 n52.5058w 49.08 

~~~24n54~3339W34:88 
25 n56.0038w 107.53 
26 n56.4147w 111.22 
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McMinn County - Parcel: 056N B 005.00 

Date: October 7, 2020 
County: McMinn 
Owner; STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CTR 
Address: MADISON AVE 
Parcel Number: 056N B 005.00 
Deeded Acreage: 0 
Calculated Acreage: 0 
Date of Imagery: 2018 Esr\ HERE, Garmh, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors 

lN Co"l)troller- OLG 
lDOT 
State ofTemessee, Comptroler of the Treasury, Office of Local Gm.ermient 
(OLG) 

The property lines are compiled from information maintained byl()Ur local county Assessor's 
office but are not conclusive evidence of propertycm,ership in any court of law. 



129

McMinn County - Parcel: 056N B 004.00 

Date: October 7, 2020 
County: McMinn 
Owner: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CTR 
Address: MADISON AVE-1114 
Parcel Number: 056N B 004.00 
Deeded Acreage: 6.45 
Calculated Acreage: O 
Date of Imagery: 2018 Esr\ HERE, Garmh , (c) OpenStreetMapcontributars 

1N Comptroller - OLG 
lDOT 
State ofTemessee, Comptroler al the Treasury, Office of Local Gmerrment 
(OLG) . 

The property lines are compiled from information maintainedby)OUr local county Assessor's 
office but are not conclusive evidence of propertyo,,nership in aoycourt of law. 
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Attachment - Section A-6B.1 

Plot Plan 
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Tax Parcel 4.00 

Total -
11.9071 acres 

Tax Parcel 5.00 

Helipad 
Tax Parcel 6.00 
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Tax Parcel 2.00 
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10/9/2020 

Scale: 1 inch= 160 feet File: 
Tract 1: 11.9071 Acres, Closure: s01.2719e 26.08 ft. (1/159), Perimeter=4153 ft. 

01 n23.4809e 41.25 
02 Rt, r=300.00, delta=047.2116, arc=247.95, chord=n46.5236e 240.95 
03 n71.0545e 827.21 
04 s00.1559w 8.21 
05 n71.1000e 163.03 
06 s00.2807w 373.28 
07 s00.5634w 29.91 
08 n87.5631w 69.23 
09 n01.0041 e 179.86 
10 n88.5919w 230 
11 s02.0541w 175 
12 n88.0649w 50 
13 s00.1609w 743.75 
14 n61.1658w 59.20 
15 Rt, r=559.94, delta=011.1849, arc=110.56, chord=n57 .3624w 110.39 
16 Rt, r=527.51, delta=012.0217, arc=110.83, chord=n43.3923w 110.63 

17 n37.5232w 141.49 
18 n35.0014w 17.85 
19 Lt, r=395.80, delta=011.3638, arc=80.21, chord=n43.0222w 80.07 
20 n49.0318w 67.07 
21 n51.2714w 45.66 
22 n51.2127w78.58 
23 n52.5058w 49.08 
24 n54.3339w 34.88 
25 n56.0038w 107.53 
26 n56.4147w 111.22 
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McMinn County - Parcel: 056N 8 005.00 

Date: October 7, 2020 
County : McMinn 
Owner: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CTR 
Address: MADISON AVE 
Parcel Number: 056N B 005.00 
Deeded Acreage: 0 
Calculated Acreage: 0 
Date of Imagery: 2018 Esr( HERE, Garmn , (c) OpenStreetMap contributors 

TN Colll)lroller - OLG 
IDOT 
Stale of Temessee, Comptroler of the Treas11y, Office of Local Gow<rment 
(OLG) 

Toe property lines are compiled from information maintained by:,our local county Assessor's 
office but are not conclusive evidence of propertyC>M'lership in anyC01St of I...,. 
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McMinn County - Parcel: 056N B 004.00 

Date: October 7, 2020 
County: McMinn 
Owner: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CTR 
Address: MADISON AVE-1114 
Parcel Number: 056N B 004.00 
Deeded Acreage: 6.45 
Calculated Acreage: 0 
Date of Imagery: 2018 Esri H ERE, Garmn , (c) OpenStreetMap contributors 

1N Comptroller - OLG 
lDOT 
State of Temessee, Comptroler of the Tmastxy, Office of Local GOWfrment 
(OLG) 

lhe property lines ..-e compiled from information maintained byl(ltx local cou,tyAssessor's 
office but are not conclusive evidence of proper1yC7Mlership in anycrurt of law. 
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Attachment - Section A-6B.2 

Floor Plan 
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Attachment - Section B - Economic Feasibility-1 E 

Architect Letter 



  
 

5300 MARYLAND WAY, SUITE 109      BRENTWOOD, TN 37027      T (615) 369 6020      F (615) 369 6021      WWW.HMKA.COM 

 

January 15, 2021 

 

Mr. Logan Grant 

Executive Director 

State of Tennessee 

Health Services and Development Agency 

502 Deadrick Street, Suite 850 

Nashville, TN  37243 

 

RE:   Starr Regional Medical Center – Cath Lab Addition 

 Athens, Tennessee – Verification of Construction Cost 

 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

 

The construction cost developed for the Cath Lab Addition project of $2,100,000  includes 2,409 square 

feet of building addition and 432 square feet of interior renovation.  The building addition shall be located 

on the North side of the existing facility directly adjacent to the existing Surgery department. 

 

It is our professional opinion that the construction cost proposed which averages $740.00 per square foot 

is consistent with historical data based on our experience with similar type projects.  It is important to 

note, that our opinion is based on normal market conditions, price escalation, etc. 

 

The project will be developed under the current codes and standards enforced by the State of Tennessee 

as follows: 

 

2012 International Building Code/2012 International Mechanical Code/2012 International Plumbing Code 

2012 International Fuel & Gas Code 

2011 National Electrical Code 

2012 NFPA 1, excluding NFPA 5000 

2012 NFPA 101, Life Safety Code 

June 2019 TN Department of Health, Chapter 1200-08-01, Minimum Standards for Hospitals 

2018 FGI Guidelines for the Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities 

2010 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) with 2002 Amendments 

 

Sincerely, 

 

HMK ARCHITECTS PLLC 

 
Donald C. Miller, NCARB, AIA – [ TN License No. 100019 ] 
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Attachment - Section B - Economic Feasibility-2E 

CFO Letter 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 1 BEF01 C3-C279-42F8-A9C7-8D8CFC278D2B 

LifePoint Corporate Services, 
General Partnership 

December 14, 2020 

Mr. Logan Grant, Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor 
502 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

RE: Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC 
CON Application for a Cardiac Catheterization Lab 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

Athens Regional Medical Center, LLC d/b/a Starr Regional Medical Center-Etowah ("Starr") is 

applying for a Certificate of Need to add a cardiac catheterization lab to better serve the 

patients in our community. As President of LifePoint Corporate Services, General Partnership 

("LCSGP"), I am writing to confirm that LCSGP will provide the approximately $5,100,000 

required to fund and complete this project. 

Starr and LCSGP are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of LifePoint Health, Inc. ("LifePoint"), of 

which I am Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer. Because LifePoint does not 

have financial statements available at the subsidiary level, I am providing financial 

statements for LifePoint to be include din the application. 

Sincerely, 

G'~:W brbb~S 

J 
·j3~7B1B8597.[81~4 ... 

. M1cnae urooms 
President 
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LifePoint Audited Financials 
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Building a better 
working world 

Ernst & Young LLP 
222 2nd Avenue South 
Suite 2100 
Nashville, TN 37201 

Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Tel: (615) 252 2000 
Fax: (615) 242-9128 
ey.com 

Report of Independent Auditors 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LifePoint Health, Inc. (formerly known as RegionalCare 
Hospital Partners Holdings, Inc.), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or enm. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
LifePoint Health, Inc. (formerly known as RegionalCare Hospital Partners Holdings, Inc.) at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019 in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

March 12, 2020 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 

(In millions) 

2019 2018 2017 

Revenues $ 8,752.8 $ 2,778.1 $ 1,872.8 

Salaries and benefits 4,044.0 1,329.4 874.3 
Supplies 1,471.7 484.5 323.2 
Other operating expenses, net 2,140.6 709.2 469.4 
Depreciation and amortization 378.7 129.0 80.6 
Interest expense, net 577.6 186.1 126.1 
Merger, acquisition and other transaction-related costs 76.9 141.5 7.8 
Impairments of goodwill and long-lived assets 3.3 78.4 14.1 
Other non-operating losses, net 5.5 7.8 16.7 

8,698.3 3,065.9 1,912.2 

Income (loss) before income taxes 54.5 (287.8) (39.4) 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 77.9 0.2 (1.3) 
Net loss (23.4) (288.0) (38.1) 

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests and 
redeemable noncontrolling interests (19.3) (5.7) (7.3) 

Net loss attributable to LifePoint Health, Inc. $ (42.7) $ (293.7) $ (45.4) 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 

(In millions) 

Net loss 

Other comprehensive (loss) income: 
Unrealized losses on changes in funded status of pension benefit obligations 
Other 
Other comprehensive (loss) income 

Comprehensive loss 
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests and 

redeemable noncontrolling interests 
Comprehensive loss attributable to LifePoint Health, Inc. 

2019 

$ (23.4) 

(4.4) 

(4.4) 

(27.8) 

(19.3) 
$ (47.1) 

2018 

$ (288.0) 

(3.1) 

(3.1) 

(291.1) 

(5.7) 
$ {296.8) 

2017 

$ (38.1) 

0.3 
0.3 

(37.8) 

(7.3) 
$ (45.1) 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 

(In millions, except for share and per share amounts) 

2019 2018 

ASSETS 

Cunent assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 748.1 $ 58.9 

Accounts receivable 1)67.9 1,108.9 

Inventories 225.9 224.4 

Prepaid expenses 92.7 92.7 
Other current assets 172.2 227.8 

2,406.8 1,712.7 
Property and equipment: 

Land 236.1 265.7 
Buildings and improvements 2,709.9 2,784.5 
Equipment 1,383.6 1,079.2 
Construction in progress 148.6 436.5 

4A78.2 4,565.9 
Accumulated depreciation (618.8) (248.8) 

3,859.4 4,317.1 

Intangible assets, net 73.5 74.5 
Other long-term assets 380.0 319.8 
Goodwill 2,961.2 2,567.6 

Total assets $ 9,680.9 $ 8,991.7 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 340.6 $ 318.3 
Accrued. salaries 319.3 343.5 
Other current liabilities 446.0 422.2 
Cun-ent maturities of long-term debt 69.9 58.4 

1,175.8 1,142.4 

Long-term debt, net 7,106.2 6,419.4 
Long-term portion of reserves for self-insurance claims 196.5 194.0 
Other long-term liabilities 164.9 146.5 

Total liabilities 8,643.4 7,902.3 

Redeemable noncontrolling interests 147.8 136.1 

Equity: 
LifePoint Health, Inc. stockholders' equity: 

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 30,000 shares authorized; 100 shares issued 
and outstanding at December 31, 2019 and 2018 

Capital in excess of par value 1,295.8 1,308.3 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7.5) (3.1) 
Accumulated deficit (424.5) (381.8) 

Total LifePoint Health, Inc. equity 863.8 923.4 
Noncontrolling interests 25.9 29.9 

Total equity 889.7 953.3 
Total liabilities and equity $ 9,680.9 $ 8,991.7 

145



LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 

(In millions) 

2019 2018 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net loss $ (23.4) $ (288.0) $ (38.1) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 378.7 129.0 80.6 
Other non-cash am011ization 39.5 9.9 5.8 
Non-cash interest expense 27.1 5.8 
Stock-based compensation 4.8 7.0 0.7 
Impairments of goodwill and long-lived assets 3.3 78.4 14.1 
Other non-operating losses, net 5.5 7.8 16.7 
Deferred income taxes 2.2 (0.6) (1.7) 
Reserve for self-insurance claims, net of payments (5.4) 2.3 (3.2) 
Changes in cash from operating assets and liabilities, 

net of effects of acquisitions and divestitures: 
Accounts receivable (57.4) (48.1) 17.8 
Inventories, prepaid expenses and other current assets (36.7) (0.2) (15.5) 
Accounts payable, accrued salaries and other current liabilities (53.6) (9.6) 37.7 
Income taxes payable/receivable 134.2 53.0 (2.9) 
Other (5.2) (19.7) (6.4) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 413.6 (73.0) 105.6 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (4.4) (5,345.9) (112.9) 
Purchases of property and equipment (336.7) (319.7) (145.1) 
Proceeds from sales of hospitals and other ancillary businesses 6.4 93.5 
Other 24.6 19.9 13.4 
Net cash used in investing activities (310.1) (5,645.7) (151.1) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from borrowings 5,125.0 37.6 
Payments of borrowings (28.3) (189.3) (1.7) 
Net change in ABL Facility and Prior ABL Facility (20.0) 10.0 10.0 
Proceeds from lease financing 700.0 38.0 100.5 
Repayment of MPT lease obligation in connection with hospital sale (64.3) 
Payments of debt financing costs (18.1) (207.0) (0.9) 
Cash ( distributed to) contributed by parent (10.9) 1,000.0 (37.6) 
Distributions and other cash transactions associated with noncontrolling 

interests and redeemable noncontrolling interests (18.0) (6.0) (3.9) 
Capital and financing lease payments and other (19.0) (10.0) (7.7) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 585.7 5,760.7 32.0 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 689.2 42.0 (13.5) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 58.9 16.9 30.4 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 748.1 $ 58.9 $ 16.9 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Interest payments $ 515.8 $ 138.1 $ 127.3 
Capitalized interest $ 11.1 $ 17.4 $ 6.1 
Property and equipment acquired under capital and financing leases $ 22.4 $ 3.1 $ 1.6 
Income tax (refunds) payments, net $ (58.5) $ (53.7) $ 0.8 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Equity 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 

(Dollars in millions) 

Accumulated 

Capital in Other 

Common Stock Excess of Comprehensive Accumulated Non controlling 

Shares Amount Par Value Income (Loss) Deficit Interests Total 

Balance at January 1, 2017 100 $ - $ 348.1 $ (0.3) $ ( 42.7) $ - $ 305.1
Net loss (45.4) (45.4) 
Other comprehensive income 0.3 0.3 
Stock-based compensation 0.7 0.7 
Capital distribution to parent (37.6) (37.6) 
Fair value adjustments related to 

redeemable noncontrolling interests (3.1) (3.1) 
Balance at December 31, 201 7 100 308.1 (88.1) 220.0 

Net (loss) income (293.7) 0.2 (293.5) 
Other comprehensive loss (3.1) (3.1) 
Stock-based compensation 7.0 7.0 
Reclassification of vested stock-based 

compensation units to a liability (6.8) (6.8) 
Capital contribution from parent 1,000.0 1,000.0 
Noncontrolling interests assumed in 

LifePoint/RC CH Merger 29.9 29.9 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (0.2) (0.2) 
Balance at December 31, 2018 100 1,308.3 (3.1) (381.8) 29.9 953.3 

Net (loss) income (42.7) 4.4 (38.3) 
Other comprehensive loss (4.4) (4.4) 
Stock-based compensation 4.8 4.8 
Reclassification of vested stock-based 

compensation units to a liability (2.9) (2.9) 
Distributions to parent (3.2) (3.2) 
Fair value adjustments related to 

redeemable noncontrolling interests (11.2) (11.2) 
Finalization of accounting for 

the LifePoint/RCCH Merger (0.2) (0.2) 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (8.2) (8.2) 
Balance at December 31, 2019 100 $ - $ 1,295.8 $ (7.5) .$ (424.5) $ 25.9 $ 889.7
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

LifePoint Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation, acting through its subsidiaries, owns or leases and operates community hospitals, 
regional health systems, physician practices, outpatient centers, and post-acute facilities. At December 31, 2019, on a consolidated 
basis, LifePoint Health, Inc. operated 88 hospital campuses in 29 states throughout the United States ("U.S."). 

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references throughout these notes to the consolidated financial 
statements to the "Company" or "LifePoint" refer to LifePoint Health, Inc., and each of its consolidated subsidiaries after giving effect 
to the LifePoint/RCCH Merger (defined below) and (ii) "RCCH" refer to RegionalCare Hospital Partners Holdings, Inc. and each of 
its consolidated subsidiaries before giving effect to the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. References in this Report to the "Sponsor" refer to 
certain funds that are affiliates of the Company (the "Apollo Funds") that are ultimately controlled and/or managed by Apollo 
Management VIII, L.P. ("Apollo Management" and, when acting on behalf of the Apollo Funds, "Apollo"), which is an affiliate of 
Apollo Global Management LLC. 

Additionally, references throughout these notes to the consolidated financial statements to the "LifePoint/RCCH Merger" refer to 
the merger, which was effective on November 16, 2018, of Legend Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned 
subsidiary of RCCH ("Legend Merger Sub"), with and into LifePoint Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Legacy LifePoint"), with 
Legacy LifePoint surviving the LifePoint/RCCH Merger as a subsidiary ofRCCH. At the effective time of the LifePoint/RCCH 
Merger, Legacy LifePoint changed its name from "LifePoint Health, Inc." to "Legacy LifePoint Health, Inc." and, immediately 
following the effective time of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, RCCH changed its name from "RegionalCare Hospital Partners, Inc." to 
"LifePoint Health, Inc." 

Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries and entities 
controlled by the Company through majority voting control, and variable interest entities which the Company controls. All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions within the Company have been eliminated in consolidation. Noncontrolling interests in non
wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries of the Company are presented as noncontrolling interests and redeemable noncontrolling 
interests and distinguish between the interests of the Company and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. Net income attributable 
to noncontrolling interests and redeemable noncontrolling interests represents the amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interests 
for each of the applicable periods presented. Investments in entities the Company does not control but does have a substantial 
ownership interest and can exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method. 

The Company's financial statements have been presented on the basis of push down accounting in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") No. 805-50-S99. Under the push down basis of 
accounting, certain transactions incurred by the parent company which would otherwise be accounted for in the accounts of the parent 
are "pushed down" and recorded on the financial statements of the subsidiary. Accordingly, certain items resulting from the 
acquisition by Apollo have been recorded on the financial statements of the Company. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Company's accompanying consolidated 
financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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LifePoint Health, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable 

Overview 

The Company recognizes revenues in the period in which performance obligations are satisfied. Generally, the Company bills 
patients and third-party payers several days after the services are performed or the patient is discharged. Accounts receivable primarily 
consist of amounts due from third-party payers and patients. The Company's ability to collect outstanding receivables is critical to its 
results of operations and cash flows. Amounts the Company receives for treatment of patients covered by governmental programs and 
third-party payers such as Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance organizations ("HMOs"), preferred provider organizations 
("PPOs") and private insurers as well as directly from patients are subject to contractual adjustments, discounts and implicit price 
concessions. Accordingly, the revenue and accounts receivable reported in the Company's financial statements are recorded at the net 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for providing patient care. 

The majority of the Company's performance obligations are satisfied over time for the delivery of patient care in both outpatient 
and inpatient settings. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in 
relation to total expected charges for services anticipated to be provided. The Company believes that this method provides a faithful 
depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the remaining services needed to satisfy the 
obligation. Generally, unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the reporting period are related to 
patients admitted to the Company's hospitals that have not yet been discharged. The performance obligations for these patients are 
typically satisfied when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within a matter of days of admission. Patients are 
generally billed when discharged, though they may be billed on an interim basis for longer stays. Accordingly, because all of the 
Company's performance obligations are part of a contract that is expected to have a duration of one year or less, the Company has 
elected to apply the exemption provided by ASC 606, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" ("ASC 606") to not disclose the 
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as of period 
end. 

Subsequent adjustments that are detennined to be the result of an adverse change in the patient's or the payer's ability to pay are 
recognized as bad debt expense. With the adoption of ASC 606, bad debt expense is included under the caption "Other operating 
expenses, net" in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, instead of separately as a deduction to arrive at revenue. 
Bad debt expense for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 was not material for the Company. 

Change in Accounting Estimate 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded a decrease to revenues of $17.0 million as a result of a change 
in its accounting estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company 
identified additional information which indicated that its current collection estimates might be different from its historical collection 
estimates. Management utilized this new information to further refine its estimation procedures to more precisely estimate the 
collectability of accounts receivable. The Company's change in its estimation procedures of the collectability of its accounts 
receivable is considered a change in accounting estimate in accordance with ASC 250, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections." 

Contractual Discounts 

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from Medicare, Medicaid and other payers that receive discounts from 
the Company's established billing rates. The Company must estimate the total amount of these discounts to prepare its financial 
statements. The Medicare and Medicaid regulations and various managed care contracts under which these discounts must be 
calculated are complex and are subject to interpretation and adjustment. The Company estimates contractual discounts on a payer
specific basis given its interpretation of the applicable regulations or contract terms. These interpretations sometimes result in 
payments that differ from the Company's estimates. Additionally, updated regulations and contract renegotiations occur frequently, 
necessitating regular review and assessment of the estimation process by management. Subsequent changes in estimates for 
contractual discounts are reflected as an adjustment to revenues in the period of the change. Medicare, Medicaid and other discounted 
payer accounts receivables are written off after they have been final settled with the payer. 
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Cost report settlements under reimbursement agreements with Medicare, Medicaid and certain other payers for retroactive 
adjustments due to audits, reviews or investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the 
estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the payment terms of the 
reimbursement agreement with the payer, con-espondence from the payer, and the Company's historical experience. Estimated 
settlements are adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. There is a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates 
will change by a material amount in the near term. For the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, the net adjustments to 
estimated cost report settlements and other government reimbursements resulted in an increase to revenues of $17.2 million, a 
decrease to revenues of $4.0 million, and an increase to revenues of $3 .6 million, respectively. 

The net cost report settlements due from the Company at December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $6.6 million and $0.5 million, 
respectively. The Company's management believes that adequate provisions have been made for adjustments that may result from 
final determination of amounts earned under these programs consistent with the constraints that are required by ASC 606. 

Self-Pay Revenues 

Self-pay revenues are derived from patients who do not have any form of healthcare coverage as well as from patients with third 
party healthcare coverage related to the patient responsibility portion, including deductibles and co-payments. The Company 
evaluates these patients, after the patient's medical condition is determined to be stable, for their ability to pay based upon federal and 
state poverty guidelines, qualifications for Medicaid or other governmental assistance programs. The Company estimates the 
transaction price for self-pay patients and the patient responsibility portion using a number of analytical tools, benchmarks and -market 
conditions. No single statistic or measurement determines the transaction price for these patients. Some of the analytical tools that the 
Company utilizes include, but are not limited to, historical cash collection experience, revenue trends by payer classification and 
revenue days in accounts receivable. 

The revenues associated with self-pay patients are reported at the net amount that the Company expects to collect. Because the 
Company provides care to patients regardless of their ability to pay, the Company has determined that the differences between the 
amounts it bills based on gross or discounted charges and the amounts the Company expects to collect represent implicit price 
concessions. The final amount that will be received from the patient is not known at the date of service, and the Company accounts 
for this variable consideration in accordance with the provisions of ASC 606. Self-pay accounts receivable are written off after 
collection efforts have been followed in accordance with the Company's policies. 

Charity Care 

The Company provides care without charge to certain patients that qualify under the local charity care policy of each of its 
hospitals. For the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company estimates that its costs of care provided under its 
charity care programs approximated $34.1 million, $16.8 million and $11. 7 million, respectively. The Company does not report a 
charity care patient's charges in revenues or in the provision for doubtful accounts as it is the Company's policy not to pursue 
collection of amounts related to these patients, and therefore contracts with these patients do not exist. 

The Company's management estimates its costs of care provided under its charity care programs utilizing a calculated ratio of 
costs to gross charges multiplied by the Company's gross charity care charges provided. The Company's gross charity care charges 
include only services provided to patients who are unable to pay and qualify under the Company's local charity care policies. To the 
extent the Company receives reimbursement through the various governmental assistance programs in which it participates to 
subsidize its care of indigent patients, the Company does not include these patients' charges in its cost of care provided under its 
charity care program. 

Financing Component 

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient permitted under ASC 606 and does not adjust the estimated amount of 
consideration from patients and third-party payers for the effects of a significant financing component due to the Company's 
expectation that the period between the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payer pays 
for that service will be one year or less. 
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The Company leases certain real estate assets it owns to unrelated third parties, primarily medical office buildings to non
employed physicians. The Company recognizes rental income for these operating lease arrangements in which the Company is the 
lessor on a straight-line basis over the lease term in accordance with ASC 840, "Leases" ("ASC 840"). 

Concentration of Revenues 

The Company's revenues by payer and approximate percentages ofrevenues were as follows for the years ended December 31, 
2019, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions): 

2019 2018 2017 

%of %of %of 

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Amount Revenues 

Medicare $ 3,338.1 38.1 % $ 1,105.3 39.8 % $ 760.6 40.6 % 
Medicaid 1,495.3 17.1 486�3 17.5 346.2 18.5 
HMOs, PPOs and other private insurers 3,698.6 42.3 1,113.8 40.1 723.8 38.7 
Self-pay 59.2 0.7 17.2 0.6 11.4 0.6 
Other 143.6 1.6 49.4 1.8 26.7 1.4 

Revenue from contracts with customers 8,734.8 99.8 2,772.0 99.8 1,868.7 99.8 
Rental income 18.0 0.2 6.1 0.2 4.1 0.2 

Revenues $ 8,752.8 100.0 % $ 2,778.1 100.0 % $ 1,872.8 100.0 

During the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, approximately 55.2%, 57.3% and 59.1%, respectively, of the 
Company's revenues related to patients participating in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, collectively. The Company's 
management recognizes that revenues and receivables from government agencies are significant to the Company's operations, but it 
does not believe that there are significant credit risks associated with these government agencies. 

% 

Any changes in the current demographic, economic, competitive or regulatory conditions, or to Medicaid programs could have an 
adverse effect on the Company's revenues or results of operations. The Company's management does not believe that there are any 
other significant concentrations of revenues from any particular payer or geographic area that would subject the Company to any 
significant credit risks in the collection of its accounts receivable. 

The Company's revenues by primary service type and approximate percentages of revenues were as follows for the years ended 
December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions): 

2019 2018 2017 

%of %of %of 

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Amount Revenues 

Inpatient services $ 3,524.0 40.3 % $ 

Outpatient services 5,067.2 57.9 

Non-patient (a) 161.6 1.8 

Revenues $ 8,752:8 100.0 % $ 

(a) Represents revenues from ancillary goods, services and rental income.

General and Administrative Costs 

1,188.3 42.8 % $ 828.9 44.3 % 

1,534.3 55.2 1,013.1 54.1 

55.5 2.0 30.8 1.6 

2,778.1 100.0 % $ 1,872.8 100.0 % 

The majority of the Company's operating expenses are "cost ofrevenue" items. Operating costs that could be classified as "general 
and administrative" by the Company would include its corporate overhead costs, excluding depreciation and amortization and merger, 
acquisition and other transaction-related costs, which were $179.5 million, $72.4 million and $42.8 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. The 
Company places its cash in financial institutions that are federally insured in limited amounts. 

Inventories 

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consist of purchased items. Inventories 
acquired in connection with business combinations are recorded at fair value which approximates replacement cost. Inventory items 
are primarily operating supplies used in the direct or indirect treatment of patients. 

Investments 

The Company accounts for its investments in entities in which the Company exhibits significant influence, but not control, under 
the equity method of accounting in accordance with ASC 323, "Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures" ("ASC 323"). The 
Company does not consolidate its equity method investments, but rather measures them at their initial costs and then subsequently 
adjusts their carrying values through income for their respective shares of the earnings or losses during the period. Refer to Note 9 for 
fmiher discussion of the Company's equity method investments. 

Property and Equipment 

Purchases of property and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment acquired in connection with business 
combinations are recorded at estimated fair value in accordance with the acquisition method of accounting as prescribed in ASC 805, 
"Business Combinations" ("ASC 805"). Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that 
increase capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and equipment accounts 
until they are disposed. The Company capitalizes interest on funds used to pay for the construction of major capital additions and such 
interest is included in the cost of each capital addition. 

Depreciation is computed by applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of buildings, improvements and 
equipment. Assets under capital and financing leases are generally amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the assets or life of the lease term, excluding any lease renewals, unless the lease renewals are reasonably 
assured. Capitalized internal-use software costs are amortized over their expected useful life, which is generally four years. Useful 
lives are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements (including those under capital leases and financing obligations) 

Equipment 

Equipment under capital leases 

3 

2 

3 

Years 

40 

15 

6 

Depreciation expense (including capital and financing lease am01iization) totaled $376.9 million, $128.5 million and $80.1 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 201 7, respectively. 

Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values of certain long-lived assets may be impaired, the 
Company projects the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by these assets. If the projections indicate that the rep01ied 
amounts are not expected to be recovered, such amounts are reduced to their estimated fair value based on a quoted market price, if 
available, or an estimate based on valuation techniques available in the circumstances. 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $24.5 million to reduce the carrying 
amounts of certain long-lived assets at one of its facilities to their estimated fair values, which is included under the caption 
"Impairments of goodwill and long-lived assets" in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. There were no long-lived asset impairments recorded for the year ended December 31, 2019 or 2017. 
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The Company accounts for its acquisitions in accordance with ASC 805 using the acquisition method of accounting. Goodwill 
represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed. In 
accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other ("ASC 350"), goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are 
reviewed by the Company annually for impairment on October 1. Prior to the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company historically 
determined that each of its hospitals represented a repmiing unit in accordance with ASC 280, "Segment Reporting" ("ASC 280") and 
ASC 350. Due to the significance of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger and its impact on the Company's management team and business 
operations, the Company re-evaluated its repmiing units in accordance with ASC 280 and ASC 350 during 2019 and determined that 
the consolidated business comprises a single reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing purposes. For the annual impairment 
evaluation, the Company determines fair value using a discounted cash flow ("DCF") analysis and consideration of certain market 
inputs including those of guideline public companies. Determining fair value requires the exercise of significant judgment, including 
judgments about appropriate discount rates, perpetual growth rates, profitability and the amount and timing of expected future cash 
flows. The significant judgments are typically based upon Level 3 inputs, generally defined as unobservable inputs representing the 
Company's assumptions. The cash flows employed in the DCF analysis are based on the Company's most recent financial budgets and 
business plans and, when applicable, various growth rates and profitability for years beyond the cunent business plan period. Discount 
rate assumptions are based on an assessment of the risks inherent in the future cash flows of the reporting unit. 

The Company's intangible assets relate to contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees; non-competition agreements; 
certificates of need and ce1iificates of need exemptions; and licenses, provider numbers, accreditations and other. Contract-based 
physician minimum revenue guarantees and non-competition agreements are amortized over the terms of the agreements. The 
certificates of need, certificates of need exemptions, licenses, provider numbers, accreditations and other have been determined to 
have indefinite lives and, accordingly, are not amortized. Refer to Note 5 for further discussion of the Company's goodwill and 
intangible assets. 

Income Tax,es 

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on 
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the income tax provision in the period that includes the 
enactment date. The Company assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the 
extent the Company believes that recovery is not likely, a valuation allowance is established. The establishment or increase in a 
valuation allowance is included as an expense within the provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations. The 
Company classifies interest and penalties related to its tax positions as a component of income tax expense. Refer to Note 6 for fu1iher 
discussion of the Company's accounting for income taxes. 

Reserves for Self-Insurance Claims 

Given the nature of the Company's operating environment, it is subject to potential professional liability claims, employee 
workers' compensation claims and other claims. To mitigate a portion of this risk, the Company maintains insurance for individual 
professional liability claims and employee workers' compensation claims exceeding self-insured retention ("SIR") and deductible 
levels. At December 31, 2019, the Company's SIR for professional liability claims is $5.0 million per claim, with a $5.0 million inner 
aggregate, at the majority of its facilities. Additionally, the Company participates in state-specific professional liability programs in 
Colorado, Indiana, Kansas, New Mexico, Pennsylvania and Wisconsin. At December 31, 2019, the Company's deductible for 
workers' compensation claims was $1.0 million per claim in all states in which it operates except for Montana, Oklahoma, Ohio, 
Washington and Wyoming. The Company paiiicipates in state-specific programs for its workers' compensation claims arising in these 
states. The Company's SIR and deductible levels are evaluated annually as a part of its insurance program's renewal process. 
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The Company's reserves for self-insurance and deductible claims reflect the current estimate of all outstanding losses, including 
incurred but not reported losses, based upon actuarial calculations as of the balance sheet date. The loss estimates included in the 
actuarial calculations may change in the future based upon updated facts and circumstances. The Company's expense for self
insurance and deductible claims coverage each year includes: the actuarially determined estimate oflosses for the current year, 
including claims incuned but not reported; the change in the estimate of losses for prior years based upon actual claims development 
experience as compared to prior actuarial projections; the insurance premiums for losses in excess of the Company's self-insured 
retention and deductible levels; the administrative costs of the insurance program; and interest expense related to the discounted 
portion of the liability. The Company's expense for self-insurance and deductible claims was approximately $75.6 million, $20.7 
million and $ 7. 7 million for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 201 7, respectively. 

The Company's reserves for professional liability claims are based upon qua1terly and/or semi-annual actuarial calculations. These 
reserve calculations consider historical claims data, demographic considerations, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions, 
which are discounted to present value. The Company's reserves for self-insured claims have been discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate of 1.9% at December 31, 2019, 1.8% at December 31, 2018 and in a range of 1.4% to 2.4% at December 31, 
2017. The Company's management selects a discount rate by considering a risk-free interest rate that corresponds to the period when 
the self-insured claims are incuned and projected to be paid. 

Professional and general liability claims are typically resolved over an extended period oftime, often as long as five years or more, 
while workers' compensation claims are typically resolved in one to two years. Accordingly, the Company's reserves for self-insured 
claims, comprised of estimated indemnity and expense payments related to reported events and incurred but not reported events as of 
the end of the period, include both a current and long-term component. The current portion of the Company's reserves for self-insured 
claims is included under the caption "Other current liabilities" and the long-term portion is included under the caption "Long-term 
p01tion of reserves for self-insurance claims" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

The following table provides information regarding the classification of the Company's reserves for self-insured claims at 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

2019 2018 

Current portion $ 64.5 $ 70.7 

Long-term portion 196.5 194.0 

$ 261.0 $ 264.7 

The following table presents the changes in our reserves for self-insured claims for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 
(in millions): 

2019 2018 

Reserve at the beginning of the period $ 264.7 $ 65.0 
Liabilities assumed in LifePoint/RCCH Merger 194.7 
Increase for the provision of current year claims 69.2 23.0 
Increase (decrease) for the provision of prior year claims 6.7 (3.9) 
Payments related to current year claims (5.2) (1.0) 

Payments related to prior year claims (75.9) (14.8) 

Provision for the change in discount rate (0.3) 1.6 

Noncash change in reserve for claims in excess of self-insured retention levels 1.8 0.1 
Reserve at the end of the period $ 261.0 $ 264.7 

The combination of changing conditions and the extended time required for claim resolution results in a loss estimation process 
that requires actuarial skill and the application of judgment, and such estimates require periodic revision. As a result of the variety of 
factors that must be considered, there is a risk that actual incurred losses may develop differently from estimates. The results of the 
Company's quarterly and semi-annual actuarial calculations resulted in changes to its reserves for self-insured claims for prior years. 
As a result, the Company's related self-insured claims expense increased by $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 
decreased by $3.9 million and $12.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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The Company operates, with approval from the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority, a captive insurance company under the name 
Point of Life Indemnity, Ltd. Through this wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the captive insurance company issues 
malpractice insurance policies to ce11ain of the Company's employed physicians and contracted physicians in addition to providing 
workers' compensation deductible coverage. Fees charged to these employed physicians and contracted physicians are eliminated in 
consolidation. Reserves for the Company's estimate of the related outstanding claims, including incurred but not rep011ed losses, are 
actuarially determined and are included as a component of the Company's reserves for professional liability self-insurance claims. 

Self-Insured Medical Benefits 

The Company is self-insured for substantially all of the medical expenses and benefits of its employees. The reserve for medical 
benefits primarily reflects the cunent estimate of incurred but not reported losses based upon an annual actuarial calculation as of the 
balance sheet date. The undiscounted reserve for self-insured medical benefits was $53 .8 million and $46.1 million at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the caption "Other 
current liabilities". 

Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests 

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. The 
Company's accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses at their consolidated 
amounts, which include the amounts attributable to the Company and the noncontrolling interest. The Company recognizes as a 
separate component of earnings that p011ion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests based on the portion of the entity 
not owned by the Company. Refer to Note 10 for further discussion of the Company's noncontrolling interests and redeemable 
noncontrolling interests. 

Variable Interest Entities 

The Company's consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2019 include eight facilities that qualify as a variable interest 
entity in which the Company is the primary beneficiary under the provisibns of ASC 810, "Consolidation," and in which the Company 
owns a controlling economic interest. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company's indirect parent, DSB Parent L.P., a Delaware limited partnership ("DSB Parent"), has issued profits units (the 
"Units") to certain employees, directors and consultants under the terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated Limited 
Partnership Agreement ofDSB Parent dated of December 3, 2015 (the "DSB Parent Partnership Agreement") and forms of award 
agreements. The Company accounted for these stock-based awards in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718, "Compensation -
Stock Compensation" ("ASC 718"). In accordance with ASC 718, the Company recognized compensation expense based on the 
estimated grant date fair value of each stock-based award. The Company recognizes forfeitures of Units as they occur. Refer to Note 
f3 for further discussion of the Company's accounting for the Units. 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

In connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities associated 
with two separate defined benefit pension plans covering certain employees at two of Legacy LifePoint's facilities. The Company 
accounts for its defined benefit pension plans in accordance with ASC 715, "Compensation-Defined Benefit Plans", ("ASC 715"). 
In accordance with ASC 715, the Company recognizes the unfunded liability of its defined benefit pension plans in the Company's 
consolidated balance sheets and unrecognized gains (losses) and prior service credits (costs) as changes in other comprehensive 
income (loss). The measurement date of the defined benefit pension plans' assets and liabilities coincides with the Company's year
end. The Company's pension benefit obligations are measured using actuarial calculations that incorporate discount rates, rate of 
compensation increases, when applicable, expected long-term returns on plan assets and consider expected age ofretirement and 
mortality. Refer to Note 12 for further discussion of the Company's defined benefit pension plans. 
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Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company maintains three separate defined contribution retirement plans covering a majority of the Company's employees, 
including Legacy LifePoint employees, RCCH employees and employees at Community Medical Center. These defined contribution 
retirement plans contain discretionary matching contribution formulas and definite non-elective contribution formulas for employees 
at certain facilities. Effective as of the end of the day on December 31, 2019, the plan covering RCCH employees was merged into 
the plan covering Legacy LifePoint employees. Refer to Note 12 for further discussion of the Company's defined contribution plans. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years to conform to current year presentation. These reclassifications had no 
effect on net loss or cash flows as previously reported. 

Adoption of Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

ASC 606, "Revenue.from Contracts with Customers" 

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 606, which supersedes most existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including indust1y-specific healthcare guidance, by applying the full retrospective method for all periods presented. ASC 
606 provides for a single comprehensive principles-based standard for the recognition of revenue across all industries through the 
application of the following five-step process: 

Step 1: Identify the contract( s) with a customer. 
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract. 
Step 3: Determine the transaction price. 
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. 
Step 5: Recognize revenue when ( or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

The adoption of the provisions of ASC 606 had no impact on the Company's current or historical financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. Additionally, management does not anticipate that the provisions of ASC 606 will have an impact on the 
amount or timing of when the Company recognizes revenue prospectively. However, in accordance with ASC 606, the Company now 
recognizes the majority of its previously reported provision for doubtful accounts, primarily related to its self-pay patient population, 
as a direct reduction to revenues as an implicit pricing concession, instead of separately as a discrete deduction to arrive at revenue, 
and the related presentation of the allowance for doubtful accounts has been eliminated for all periods presented. 

Accounting Standard Not Yet Adopted -Accounting Standards Update ("ASU'') 2016-02, "Leases" ("ASU 2016-2'') 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-2, along with subsequent amendments, updates and an extension of the effective 
date ( collectively, the "New Lease Standard"). The New Lease Standard requires the rights and obligations arising from lease 
contracts, including existing and new arrangements, to be recognized as assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. The New Lease 
Standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. As permitted, the Company plans to adopt the 
New Lease Standard early effective January 1, 2020 by applying a modified retrospective approach with a cumulative effect of the 
retrospective application of the provisions as an adjustment through retained earnings and without any adjustments to the comparable 
prior period information. Additionally, the Company expects to apply a number of available practical expedients to facilitate the 
adoption of the New Lease Standard, including the package of practical expedients to not reassess whether a contract is or contains a 
lease, the lease classification and the initial direct costs. 

In preparation for the adoption of the New Lease Standard, the Company has implemented a new information technology 
application as well as new processes, policies, procedures and controls. The Company continues to evaluate and refine its estimates of 
the anticipated impacts the New Lease Standard will have on its financial position, results of operations and financial disclosures. 
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On July 22, 2018, RCCH, Legend Merger Sub and Legacy LifePoint entered into an agreement and plan of merger, pursuant to 
which, effective November 16, 2018, Legend Merger Sub merged with and into Legacy LifePoint, with Legacy LifePoint surviving 
the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary ofRCCH. At the effective time of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, Legacy LifePoint changed 
its name from "LifePoint Health, Inc." to "Legacy LifePoint Health, Inc." and, immediately following the effective time of the 
LifePoint/RCCH Merger, RCCH changed its name from "RegionalCare Hospital Partners Holdings, Inc." to "LifePoint Health, Inc." 

Equity Contribution 

In connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Apollo Funds, together with certain other co-investors investing through a co
investment vehicle controlled by our Sponsor or its affiliates, indirectly contributed $1,000.0 million of newly invested capital to DSB 
Parent, which is the Company's indirect parent and is owned by the Apollo Funds, such co-investment vehicle and certain current or 
former directors, members of management, employees and consultants of the Company, and the $1,000.0 million of newly invested 
capital was further contributed to the Company to be used to partially fund the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. 

Financing Transactions 

Concurrently with the closing of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company (1) issued $1,425.0 million principal amount of 
9. 750% Senior Notes due 2026 (the "9. 75% Unsecured Notes"), (2) entered into a new senior secured asset-based revolving credit
facility (the "ABL Facility") in an aggregate principal amount of $800.0 million with a maturity of five years, (3) terminated its
existing senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility, entered into on April 29, 2016 (the "Prior ABL Facility"), (4) entered into
a senior secured term loan credit facility (the "Term Loan Facility") in an aggregate principal amount of $3,550.0 million with a
maturity of seven years, and (4) repaid in full its $150.0 million term loan facility, entered into on April 25, 2018 (the "Prior Term
Facility").

The Company has accounted for the LifePoint/RCCH Merger in accordance with ASC 805 under the acquisition method of 
accounting. The following table summarizes the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the 
LifePoint/RCCH Merger (in millions): 

Cash $ 139.8 

Accounts receivable 778.8 

Other current assets 473.4 

Property·and equipment 2,711.4 

Goodwill 2,331.2 

Intangible assets 66.8 

Other long-term assets 261.7 

Accounts payable (185.3) 

Accrued salaries (:407.8) 

Other current liabilities (260.2) 

Capital and fmancing leases, including current maturities (141.4) 

Other long-term liabilities (238.0) 

Noncontrolling interests and redeemable noncontrolling interests (100.8) 

Net assets acquired $ 5,429.6 

The results of operations of Legacy LifePoint are included in the Company's results of operations beginning on November 17, 
2018. Revenues from the operations acquired in the LifePoint/RCCH Merger included in the Company's consolidated statements of 
operations were $754.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018. Income before income taxes from the operations acquired in 
the LifePoint/RCCH Merger was $50.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
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For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized merger and integration-related costs of$47.1 and 
$134.7 million, respectively, primarily related to legal and transaction advisory services as well as employee severance and retention 
and other integration-related expenses in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. Included in the 2018 merger-related costs is a 
$55.0 million transaction fee paid by the Company to an affiliate of its Sponsor upon the closing of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. 

Note 3. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Joint Ventures 

Acquisitions 

Lourdes Health ("Lourdes") 

At the close of business on August 31, 2018, the Company acquired Lourdes for $21.3 million, of which $17.5 million was financed 
from a sale-leaseback transaction with an affiliate of Medical Properties Trust ("MPT"), a Ma1yland corporation operating as a real 
estate investment trust. Lourdes is comprised of a 95 bed medical center and a 32 bed counseling center each located in Pasco, 
Washington. The results of operations of Lourdes are included in the Company's results of operations beginning on September 1, 
2018. 

Trios Health ("Trios") 

At the close of business on August 3, 2018, the Company acquired Trios for $18.0 million. l'rios is comprised of two hospital 
campuses with a total of 111 beds each located in Kennewick, Washington. In connection with the Trios acquisition, the Company 
entered into a sale-leaseback arrangement for a hospital building whose rent is contingent on the financial performance of the hospital 
and a sale-leaseback arrangement for a medical office building. The results of operations of Trios are included in the Company's 
results of operations beginning on August 4, 2018. 

Pacific Medical Data Solutions ("PMDS") 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company acquired PMDS for $10.7 million. PMDS is a healthcare technology and software services 
company that provides revenue cycle, billing automation and software solutions to multi-specialty physician groups, ambulatory 
surgery centers and urgent care clinics. 

St. Joseph Regional Medical Center ("St. Joseph") 

At the close of business on April 30, 2017, the Company acquired St. Joseph, a 145 bed hospital in Lewiston, Idaho, for $112.2 
million, of which $87.5 million was financed from a sale-leaseback transaction with MPT. The results of operations of St. Joseph are 
included in the Company's results of operations beginning on May 1, 2017. 

Divestitures 

Teche Regional Medical Center ("Teche ") 

In August 2018, the Company entered into a proposed settlement agreement with The Hospital Service District No. 2 of the Parish 
of St. Mary ("HSD"), a political subdivision of the state of Louisiana, outlining the terms of a definitive settlement agreement to 
terminate the Company's lease of Teche, located in Morgan City, Louisiana, and transfer the operations of Teche to a new operator 
designated by the HSD. In connection with the transfer of the operations of Teche to the new operator, in June 2019, the Company 
entered into a definitive agreement to sell substantially all of the owned assets of Teche to the HSD's designated new operator. In July 
2019, the Company entered into a definitive settlement agreement with the HSD pursuant to which, among other things, at the 
effective time of the transfer of the owned assets ofTeche to the HSD's designated new operator, the Company's lease of Teche 
terminated, the Company surrendered the leased assets of Teche to the HSD in accordance with the terms of the existing lease 
agreement, and the Company transferred operation ·ofTeche to the HSD's designated new operator. The settlement and sale 
transactions were completed effective October 1, 2019. Included in the Company's consolidated results of operations for the years 
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are net operating losses before income taxes attributable to Teche of$1.4 million and $0.6 
million, respectively. 
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The Company sold Sharon, located in Sharon, Connecticut on August 1, 2017 for $3.6 million. The Company recorded a loss on 
sale of $2.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2017 as a result of the divestiture. Included in the Company's consolidated 
results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 is a net operating loss before income taxes attributable to Sharon of $2.1 
million. 

EaStar Health System ("EaStar '') 

On March 31, 2017, the Company sold EaStar, located in Muskogee, Oklahoma. The total sales price was $89.3 million, plus 
certain working capital items and sales taxes. Of the proceeds, $68.5 million were paid to IvlPT to pay off the financing lease 
obligation and the related prepayment penalty. The remainder of the proceeds of $20.8 million were paid directly to the Company's 
parent. Included in the Company's consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 201 7 is a net operating loss 
before income taxes attributable to EaStar of $8.9 million. 

Joint Ventures 

Em01y Healthcare Joint Venture 

Effective January 1, 2020, the Company formed a new joint venture with Emory Healthcare, Inc. ("Emory") to operate St. Francis 
Hospital ("St. Francis") located in Columbus, Georgia. The Company holds a controlling interest in St. Francis such that it will 
continue to be included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

In-Home Healthcare Partnership 

The Company maintains a joint venture with a wholly-owned subsidiary of LHC Group, Inc. ("LHC"), In-Home Healthcare 
Partnership ("IHHP"), the purpose of which is to own and operate the Company's home health agencies and hospices and certain of 
LHC's home health agencies and hospices, leveraging the combined expertise of the Company and LHC to enhance home health and 
hospice services in the communities served by the Company's hospitals. The Company accounts for its ownership interest in IHHP as 
an equity method investment in accordance with ASC 323. 

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company expanded its partnership with LHC by transferring ownership and 
management of one of the Company's home health agencies and two of the Company's hospices to IHHP effective December 1, 2019. 
As a result, the Company has transfe1Ted assets primarily comprised of accounts receivable and allocated goodwill in exchange for 
cash, and recognized aggregate gains of approximately$ 1. 1 million, which is included under the caption "Other non-operating losses, 
net" in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

Additionally, effective January 1, 2020, the Company transferred the ownership of one additional home health agency and one 
additional hospice to IHHP and subsequently sold a portion of its ownership interest in IHHP to LHC for cash proceeds of approximately 

$23 .6 million. 
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The Company's long-term debt, including current portions and capital and financing leases, consists of the following at December 
31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Senior borrowings: 

ABL Facility 

Term Loan Facility 

9.75% Unsecured Notes 

8.25% Secured Notes 

11.5% Unsecured Notes 

Capital and financing lease obligations 

Unamortized debt issuance costs 

Subordinated borrowings, net 

Total debt 

$ 

$ 

2019 

3,523.4 

1,425.0 

800.0 

350.0 

1,267.9 

(191.8) 

7,174.5 

1.6 

7,176.1 

2018 

$ 20.0 

3,550.0 

1,425.0 

800.0 

350.0 

557.2 

(227.4) 

6,474.8 

3.0 

$ 6,477.8 

Maturities of the Company's long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2019, including capital and financing leases, but 
excluding unamortized debt issuance costs and other obligations that do not require eventual settlement in cash, are as follows for the 
years indicated (in millions): 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

Thereafter 

ABL Facility 

General 

$ 

$ 

69.9 

61.3 

125.2 

854.4 

404.5 

5,682.0 

7,197.3 

Effective November 16, 2018, concurrently with the closing of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company and Legend Merger 
Sub (together, prior to the effective time of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the "Co-Borrowers") entered into the ABL Facility in an 
aggregate principal amount of $800.0 million and terminated its Prior ABL Facility. The ABL Facility has a maturity of five years; 
provided that if more than $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 8.25% Secured Notes remain outstanding 91 days before 
the stated maturity thereof (the "ABL Springing Maturity Date"), then the ABL Facility will mature and the commitments under the 
ABL Facility will terminate on the ABL Springing Maturity Date. At the effective time of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, Legacy 
LifePoint assumed all of the rights and obligations of Legend Merger Sub under the ABL Facility. The ABL Facility also includes 
both a letter of credit sub-facility and a swingline loan sub-facility (including in its capacity as co-borrower under the Term Loan 
Facility). In addition, the Company may request one or more incremental revolving commitments in an aggregate principal amount up 
to the greater of (x) the greater of (i) $255.0 million and (ii) 0.23 times pro forma Adjusted EBITDA for the most recently available 
four fiscal quarter periods, and (y) the amount by which the borrowing base exceeds the aggregate commitments under the ABL 
Facility, subject to ce1iain conditions and receipt of commitments by existing or additional lenders. 

As of December 31, 2019, the Company had no borrowings outstanding under the ABL Facility and approximately $44.1 million 
in letters of credit outstanding primarily related to the self-insured retention level of its general and professional liability insurance and 
workers' compensation programs as security for payment of claims and as security for certain lease agreements. Amounts available 
for borrowing under the ABL Facility were approximately $547.3 million as of December 31, 2019. 
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All obligations under the ABL Facility are unconditionally guaranteed by DSB Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company ("Holdings"), on a limited recourse basis and each of the existing and future direct and indirect material, wholly-owned 
domestic subsidiaries of the Co-Borrowers, subject to certain exceptions. 

The obligations under the ABL Facility are secured by a pledge of the capital stock of the Co-Borrowers and substantially all of 
their assets and those of each subsidiary guarantor, including a pledge of the capital stock of all entities directly held by the Company 
(including Legacy LifePoint) and each subsidiaiy guarantor (which pledge is limited to 65% of the voting capital stock of first-tier 
foreign subsidiaries), in each case subject to certain exceptions. Such security interests consist of a first-priority lien with respect to the 
ABL Priority Collateral and a second-priority lien with respect to the Non-ABL Priority Collateral. Additionally, certain of the 
Company's restricted subsidiaries that are not guarantors will pledge certain of their assets (the "Credit Support Party Collateral") on a 
first-priority basis, as further security of the obligations under the ABL Facility. The Credit Support Party Collateral will secure only 
the obligations under the ABL Facility. 

All borrowings under the ABL Facility are subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, including the absence of a default 
and the accuracy of representations and warranties. 

Interest Rates and Fees 

Borrowings under the ABL Facility will bear interest at a rate equal to, at the Company's option, either (a) a LIBOR rate 
determined by reference to the costs of funds for Eurodollar deposits for the interest period relevant to such borrowing, adjusted for 
certain additional costs or (b) a base rate determined by reference to the highest of (i) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (ii) the prime 
rate of Citibank, N.A. and (iii) the one-month adjusted LIB OR plus 1.00%, in each case plus an initial applicable margin of 1. 7 5% for 
LIBOR loans and 0.75% for base rate loans. The applicable margin for borrowings will be subject to step-downs based on average 
availability thresholds. 

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the ABL Facility, the Co-Borrowers will be required to pay a 
commitment fee under the ABL Facility in respect of the unutilized commitments under the ABL Facility at an initial rate equal to 
0.375% per annum. The commitment fee may be subject to one step-down based on the average daily utilization under the ABL 
Facility. The Co-Bonowers will also be required to pay customary agency fees as well as letter of credit participation fees. 

Restrictive Covenants and Other Matters 

The ABL Facility contains certain customary affirmative covenants and events of default. The negative covenants in the ABL 
Facility include, among other things, limitations (none of which are absolute) on the Co-Borrowers and their subsidiaries' ability to 
incur additional debt or issue certain prefened shares, create liens on certain assets, make certain loans or investments (including 
acquisitions), pay dividends on or make distributions in respect of their capital stock or make other restricted payments, consolidate, 
merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of theirs and their restricted subsidiaries' assets, sell certain assets, enter into 
certain transactions with their affiliates, enter into sale-leaseback transactions, change their lines of business, restrict dividends from 
their subsidiaries or restrict liens, change their fi�cal year; and modify the terms of certain debt. 

The ABL Facility requires that the Co-Bonowers and its restricted subsidiaries maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio at 
any time when availability is less than an agreed amount. 

The ABL Facility contains certain customary events of default, including relating to a change of control. If an event of default 
occurs, the lenders under the ABL Facility are entitled to take various actions, including the acceleration of amounts due under the 
ABL Facility and all actions permitted to be taken by a secured creditor in respect of the collateral securing the ABL Facility. 
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Effective November 16, 2018, concurrently with the closing of the LifePoint/RCCHMerger, Co-Borrowers entered into the Term 
Loan Facility with an original aggregate principal amount of $3,550.0 million and repaid in full its Prior Term Facility. The Term 
Loan Facility has a maturity of seven years; provided that if more than $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 11.5% 
Unsecured Notes remain outstanding 91 days before the stated maturity thereof (the "Te1m Springing Maturity Date"), then the Te1m 
Loan Facility will mature and the commitments under the Term Loan Facility will terminate on the Tenn Springing Maturity Date. At 
the Effective Time, Legacy LifePoint assumed all of the rights and obligations of Merger Sub under the Term Loan Facility (including 
in its capacity as a Co-Borrower under the Term Loan Facility). In addition, the Company may request one or more incremental 
commitments in an aggregate principal amount up to the sum of (x) the greater of (i) $800.0 million and (ii) 0. 75 times pro forma 
Adjusted EBITDA for the most recently available four fiscal quaiier periods, plus additional amounts subject to certain agreed 
leverage requirements, ce11ain other conditions and receipt of commitments by existing or additional lenders. 

The Term Loan Facility required scheduled quarterly amortization payments on the term loans in an annual amount equal to 1.0% 
of the original principal amount of the term loans, with the balance to be paid at maturity. After giving effect to the refinancing 
activities further described in Note 15, there are no more quarterly amortization payments required on the Term Loan Facility prior to 
maturity. 

Collateral and Guarantors 

All obligations under the Tenn Loan Facility are unconditionally guaranteed by Holdings on a limited recourse basis and each of 
the existing and future direct and indirect material, wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries of the Co-Borrowers, subject to certain 
exceptions. 

The obligations under the Term Loan Facility are secured by a pledge of the capital stock of the Company and substantially all of 
its assets and those of each subsidiary guarantor, including a pledge of the capital stock of all entities directly held by the Company 
(including Legacy LifePoint) and each subsidiary guarantor (which pledge is limited to 65% of the voting capital stock of first-tier 
foreign subsidiaries), in each case subject to certain exceptions. Such security interests consist of a first-priority lien with respect to the 
"Non-ABL Priority Collateral" (which generally includes most inventory and fixed assets, equity interests and intellectual property of 
the Co-Borrowers and the subsidiary guarantors) and a second-priority lien with respect to the "ABL Priority Collateral" (which 
generally includes most accounts receivable and certain related assets of the Co-Borrowers and the subsidiary guarantors). 

Interest Rates 

Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility bore interest at a rate equal to, at the Company's option, either (a) a LIBOR rate 
dete1mined by reference to the costs of funds for Eurodollar deposits for the interest period relevant to such borrowing, adjusted for 
certain additional costs or (b) a base rate determined by reference to the highest of (i) the federal funds rate plus 0 .50%, (ii) the prime 
rate of Citibank, N.A. and (iii) the one-month adjusted LIBOR plus 1.00%, in each case plus an applicable margin of 4.50% for 
LIBOR loans and 3.50% for base rate loans. In connection with a repricing of the Te1m Loan Facility on January 21, 2020 as fmiher 
described in Note 15, the applicable margins were reduced to 3.75% for LIBOR loans and 2.75% for base rate loans. 

Restrictive Covenants and Other Matters 

The Term Loan Facility contains ce11ain customary affirmative covenants and events of default. The negative covenants in the 
Term Loan Facility include, among other things, limitations (none of which are absolute) on the Co-Borrowers and their subsidiaries' 
ability to incur additional debt or issue certain preferred shares, create liens on certain assets, make certain loans or investments 
(including acquisitions), pay dividends on or make distributions in respect of their capital stock or make other restricted payments, 
consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of theirs and their restricted subsidiaries' assets, sell ce11ain 
assets, enter into ce11ain transactions with their affiliates enter into sale-leaseback transactions, change their lines of business, restrict 
dividends from subsidiaries or restrict liens, change their fiscal year and modify the terms of certain debt or organizational 
agreements. 

The Term Loan Facility contains certain customary events of default, including relating to a change of control. If an event of 
default occurs, the lenders under the Term Loan Facility are entitled to take various actions, including the acceleration of amounts due 
under the Term Loan Facility and all actions permitted to be taken by a secured creditor in respect of the collateral securing the Term 
Loan Facility. 
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Refer to Note 15 for further discussion of refinancing activities occun'ing subsequent to December 31, 2019 and the related impact 
to the Term Loan Facility. 

9. 75% Unsecured Notes

On November 16, 2018, concurrently with the closing of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company issued $1,425.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of the 9.75% Unsecured Notes. The 9.75% Unsecured Notes will mature on December 1, 2026. Interest on 
the 9.75% Unsecured Notes will accrue at 9.750% per annum and will be paid semi-annually, in arrears, on June 1 and December 1 of 
each year, beginning June 1, 2019. 

Prior to December 1, 2021, the Company may redeem the 9.75% Unsecured Notes at its option, in whole at any time or in part 
from time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 9.75% Unsecured Notes redeemed, plus a 
"make-whole" premium and accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Additionally, prior to December 1, 2021, the Company may redeem 
in the aggregate up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount of the 9.75% Unsecured Notes in an aggregate amount not to exceed the 
amount of net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings at a redemption price equal to 109.750%, plus accrued and unpaid 
interest, if any, so long as at least 50% of the original aggregate principal amount of the 9. 75% Unsecured Notes must remain 
outstanding after each such redemption. On or after December 1, 2021, the Company may redeem the 9. 7 5% Unsecured Notes at its 
option, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices set f01ih in indenture governing the 9. 7 5% 
Unsecured Notes (the "9.75% Unsecured Notes Indenture"). 

The Company's obligations under the 9.75% Unsecured Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the Company's 
wholly-owned domestic restricted subsidiaries that guarantees the Term Loan Facility. The 9.75% Unsecured Notes and the related 
guarantees are unsecured obligations of the Issuers and the subsidiary guarantors. 

The 9.75% Unsecured Notes Indenture, among other things, limits the Company's ability and the ability of its restricted 
subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur or guarantee additional indebtedness; (ii) pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or 
repurchase, capital stock and make other restricted payments; (iii) make certain investments; (iv) consummate certain asset sales; 
(v) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; (vi) grant or assume certain liens; and (vii) consolidate, merge or transfer all or
substantially all of their assets. These covenants are subject to a number of important qualifications and exceptions. Additionally, upon
the occurrence of specified change of control events, the Company must offer to repurchase the 9. 7 5% Unsecured Notes at 101 % of
the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the purchase date. The 9.75% Unsecured Notes
Indenture also provides for customary events of default.

8.25% Secured Notes 

On April 29, 2016, concurrently with the closing of the RegionalCare/CapellaMerger, the Company issued $800.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Secured Notes. The 8.25% Secured Notes are senior obligations of the Company which mature 
on May 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rate of 8.25% per annum, payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year. 

. On or after May 1, 2019, the Company may redeem the 8.25% Secured Notes at its option, in whole at any time or in part from time 
to time, at redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 8.25% Secured Notes. 

The Company's obligations under the 8.25% Secured Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the 
Company's present and future direct and indirect wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the Term Loan Facility. 
The 8.25% Secured Notes are secured by first priority security interests in the Non-ABL Priority Collateral and a second priority security 
interests in the ABL Priority Collateral. 

The indenture governing the 8.25% Secured Notes contains restrictive covenants that are substantially the same as those in the 9.75% 
Unsecured Notes Indenture. 

Refer to Note 15 for further discussion of refinancing activities occun'ing subsequent to December 31, 2019 and the related impact 
to the 8.25% Secured Notes. 

11.5% Senior Unsecured Notes 

Effective April 29, 2016, concurrently with the closing of the RegionalCare/Capella Merger, the Company issued $350.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of 11.5% Unsecured Notes in a private offering. The 11.5% Unsecured Notes mature on May 1, 2024 and 
bear interest at a rate of 11.5% per annum, payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year. 
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On or after May 1, 2019, the Company may redeem the 11.5% Unsecured Notes at its option, in whole at any time or in part from 
time to time, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 11.5% Unsecured Notes. 

The Company's obligations under the 11.5% Unsecured Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by 
the Company's present and future direct and indirect wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the Term Loan 
Facility. 

The indenture governing the 11.5% Unsecured Notes contains restrictive covenants that are substantially the same as those in the 
9.75% Unsecured Notes Indenture. 

Refer to Note 15 for further discussion ofrefinancing activities occuning subsequent to December 31, 2019 and the related impact 
to the 11.5% Unsecured Notes. 

Capital and Financing Leases 

Refer to Note 8 for further discussion of the Company's capital and financing leases. 

Interest Rate Swap Agreement 

On December 21, 2018, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with Citibank, N.A. as counterparty (the 
"Interest Rate Swap") whereby the Company pays a fixed rate of 2.63% on a notional amount of $1,100.0 million and receives one
month LIBOR. The Interest Rate Swap became effective on Febrnary 19, 2019 and is scheduled to mature on February 19, 2022. 
Refer to Note 11 for additional information regarding the Company's accounting for its Interest Rate Swap. 

Debt Transaction Costs 

In connection with the issuance of the Term Loan Facility, the ABL Facility and the 9.75% Unsecured Notes, the Company 
capitalized $201.8 million of new debt issuance costs associated with these new debt instruments, which are included as a reduction to 
"Long-term debt, net" on the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheet. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the 
Company wrote off $8.2 million of previously capitalized debt issuance costs in connection with the extinguishment of the Prior ABL 
Facility and Prior Term Facility, which is included under the caption "Other non-operating losses, net" in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2018. For the year ended December 31, 201 7, the Company 
recorded a loss on debt refinancing of $4.3 million, which is included under the caption "Other non-operating losses, net" in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill 

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 
(in millions): 

Balance at January 1, 2018 

Goodwill acquired in the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 

Acquisitions 

Impairments 

Balance at December 31, 2018 

Finalization of purchase price allocations for the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 

Adjustments related to cuffent and prior year acquisitions 

Impairments 

Write-off allocation related to IHHP transactions 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

$ 

$ 

651.5 

1,950.1 

19.9 

(53.9) 
2,567.6 

381.1 

17.0 

(33) 

(1.2) 

2,961.2 
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Prior to the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company historically determined that each of its hospitals represented a rep011ing unit in 
accordance with ASC 280 and ASC 350. Due to the significance of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger and its impact on the Company's 
management team and business operations, the Company re-evaluated its reporting units in accordance with ASC 280 and ASC 350 
during 2019 and determined that the consolidated business comprises a single reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing purposes. 
In accordance with ASC 350, the Company evaluated goodwill for impairment in 2019 under both the prior and current reporting unit 
methodologies. Under the prior reporting unit methodology, for which each of the Company's hospitals represented a reporting unit, 
the Company performed a goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2019 and recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $3.3 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2019 related to one of its facilities. Additionally, under the current methodology, for which the 
consolidated Company comprises a single reporting unit, the Company performed a goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2019 
which did not yield an impairment charge. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded non-cash impairment 
charges in the aggregate of $53.9 million related to three of its facilities. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company 
recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $14.1 million related to one of its facilities. 

Intangible Assets 

The following table provides information regarding the Company's intangible assets included in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Am011izable intangible assets: 
Contract-based physician minimum revenue guarantees 

Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortization 
Net total 

Other amortizable intangible assets 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortization 
Net total 

Total amortizable intangible assets 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortization 
Net total 

Indefinite-lived intangible assets: 
Certificates of need and certificates of need exemptions 
Licenses, .provider numbers, accreditations and other 
Net total 

Total intangible assets: 
Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortization 
Net total 

Contract-Based Physician Minimum Revenue Guarantees 

2019 

$ 

$ 

2018 

34.7 $ 34.0 
(12.7) (7.1) 
22.0 26.9 

13.8 4.5 
(3.6) (0.5) 
10.2 4.0 

48.5 38.5 
(16.3) (7.6) 
32.2 30.9 

29.3 31.0 
12.0 12.6 
41.3 43.6 

89.8 82.1 
(16.3) (7.6) 
73.5 $ 74.5 

The Company has committed to provide certain financial assistance pursuant to recrniting agreements, or "physician minimum 
revenue guarantees," with various physicians practicing in the communities it se1ves. In consideration for a physician relocating to one 
of its communities and agreeing to engage in private practice for the benefit of the respective community, the Company may advance 
certain amounts of money to a physician to assist in establishing his or her practice. 
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The Company accounts for its physician minimum revenue guarantees in accordance with the provisions of ASC 460, 
"Guarantees" ("ASC 460"). In accordance with ASC 460, the Company records a contract-based intangible asset and a related 
guarantee liability for new physician minimum revenue guarantees. The contract-based intangible asset is amortized as a component 
of other operating expenses, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, over the period of the physician contract, 
which typically ranges from four to five years. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company's liability for contract-based 
physician minimum revenue guarantees was $9.3 million and $12.6 million, respectively. These amounts are included as a current 
liability under the caption "Other current liabilities" in the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Other Amortizable Intangible Assets 

The Company has entered into non-competition agreements with certain physicians and other individuals which are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the agreements. Additionally, in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company 
recognized favorable leasehold interest intangible assets related to certain real prope11y leases. The favorable leasehold interest 
represents the asset in excess of the approximate fair market value of the lease liabilities assumed as of the date of the 
LifePoint/RCCH Merger, which are amortized through rent expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining life of the leases. 

Certificates a/Need and Certificates a/Need Exemptions 

The construction of new facilities, the acquisition or expansion of existing facilities and the addition of new services and certain 
equipment at the Company's facilities may be subject to state laws that require prior approval by state regulatory agencies. These 
certificate of need laws generally require that a state agency determine the public need and give approval prior to the construction or 
acquisition of facilities or the addition of new services. The Company has acquired facilities in certain states that have adopted 
certificate of need laws. The Company has determined that these intangible assets have an indefinite useful life. 

Licenses, Provider Numbers, Accreditations and Other 

To operate hospitals, the Company must obtain certain licenses, provider numbers and accreditations from federal, state and other 
accrediting agencies. The Company has acquired facilities in ce11ain jurisdictions that require licenses, provider numbers and 
accreditations. The Company has determined that these intangible assets have an indefinite useful life. 

Amortization Expense 

Am011ization expense for the Company's intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 was $14.1 
million, $4.7 million and $3.6 million, respectively. 

Total estimated amortization expense for the Company's intangible assets during the next five years are as follows (in millions): 

2020 $ 11.3 

2021 7.8 

2022 4.7 

2023 2.1 

2024 1.0 

Thereafter 5.3 

$ 32.2 
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following 
(in millions): 

Current: 

Federal 

State 

Defen-ed: 

Federal 

State 

Change in valuation allowance 

Total 

$ 

$ 

2019 

67.5 

8.2 

75.7 

(80.6) 

(19.9) 

(100.5) 
102.7 

77.9 

2018 2017 

$ $ 
1.3 0.4 
1.3 0.4 

(27.1) 37.7 
(10.0) (4.4) 

(37.1) 33.3 
36.0 (35.0) 

$ 0.2 $ (1.3) 

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act") was signed into law on December 22, 2017. The Tax Act significantly revised the 
U.S. corporate income tax laws. The Company is most notably impacted by the reduction of the U.S. corporate tax rate from 35% to 
21 % for tax years after December 31, 201 7 and limiting certain deductions such as interest expense and net operating loss 
carryforwards. The Tax Act also enhanced and extended through 2026 the option to claim accelerated depreciation deductions on 
qualified property. Due to the timing of the enactment and the complexity involved with applying the provisions of the Tax Act, the 
Company had not completed its determination of the accounting implications of the Tax Act on its income tax accruals for the year 
ended December 31, 2017. However, the Company reasonably estimated the effects of the Tax Act on its existing deferred tax assets 
and liabilities and recognized a provisional expense for income taxes of $5 7. 7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. The 
Company completed its analysis during the year ended December 31, 2018 and determined that no additional adjustment was needed 
to the $57.7 million provisional expense recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

The following table reconciles the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company's effective tax rate on 
net income (loss) before income taxes and including net income attributable to noncontrolling interests and redeemable noncontrolling 
interests for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 (in millions): 

2019 2018 2017 

Federal statutory rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 35.0 % 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits (26.3) 2.2 23.2 
Change in valuation allowance 171.0 (12.5) 99.6 
Provisional expense resulting from the Tax Act (146.6) 
Tax effect of impairments of goodwill 1.8 (2.3) (12.5) 
Noncontrolling interests and redeemable noncontrolling interests (7.4) 0.4 6.4 
Nondeductible acquisition costs (25.4) (6.6) 
Nondeductible merger-related compensation costs 1.2 (1.6) 
Other nondeductible expenses and other items 7.1 (0.7) (1.9) 
Effective income tax 1-ate 143.0 % (0:1) % 3.2 % 
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Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses for 
financial accounting and tax purposes. Sources of these differences and the related tax effects were as follows as ofDecember 31, 
2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Defened income tax liabilities: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Deferred loan costs 

Tax deductible goodwill 

Debt discount 

Equity investments 

Other 

Total deferred income tax liabilities 

Defened income tax assets: 

Provision for doubtful accounts 

Employee compensation 

Acquisition and start-up costs 

Net operating loss carryforwards 

Insurance reserves 

Prepaid rent 

Section 1630) interest expense carryforward 

Investments in partnerships 

Other 

Total deferred income tax assets 

Valuation allowance 

Net deferred income tax assets 

Deferred income taxes 

$ 

$ 

2019 

(36.2) 

(18.3) 

(6.3) 

(60.8) 

48.1 

45.9 

15.6 

220.6 

67.5 

16.4 

81.8 

27.1 

27.1 

550.1 

(495.5) 
54.6 

(6.2) 

2018 

$ 

$ 

(137.7) 
(0.4) 

(11.2) 
(0.1) 

(32.6) 
(4.0) 

(186.0) 

72.4 

50.5 

10.2 

195.8 

64.4 

18.5 

31.7 

12.9 

456.4 

(274.4) 
182.0 

(4.0) 

Noncurrent defened income tax liabilities totaled $6.2 million and $4.0 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As 
ofDecember 31, 2019, the Company had federal net operating loss canyforwards of$388.7 million and state and local net operating 
loss carryforwards of approximately $2.9 billion. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had federal net operating loss ca1ryforwards 
of $342.4 million and state and local net operating loss canyforwards of approximately $2.5 billion. The federal net operating loss 
carryforwards generated prior to 2018 expire between 2028 and 203 7. The federal net operating loss cairyforwards generated in 2018 
and forward have an indefinite carryforward period. The state net operating loss carryforwards will expire between 2020 and 2038. 
The Company has established a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets at December 31, 2019 and 2018, due to the uncertainty of 
realizing these assets in the future. The valuation allowance increased $221.1 million during 2019, of which $117.0 million was a 
result of the finalization of the purchase price allocations for the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. The valuation allowance increased $140.3 
million during 2018, of which $103.2 million of the increase was a result of the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. 

No federal income tax payments were made during the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 or 2017. Net refunds of Federal 
income taxes paid by Legacy LifePoint for tax years ended December 31, 2017 and November 16, 2018 in the amount of $59.5 
million and $54.1 million were received during the years ended December 31, 2019 ai1d 2018. The tax year 2017 refund resulted from 
an automatic accounting method change, for tax purposes, relating to income recognition made by Legacy LifePoint. The November 
16, 2018 tax year-end refund resulted from estimated tax payments made by Legacy LifePoint prior to the announced 
LifePoint/RCCH Merger that were not needed due to the taxable loss generated for the year. Net state and local income tax payments 
in the amount of $1.0 million, $0.4 million, and $0.8 million were made during the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 
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The Company's policy is to accrue interest and penalties related to potential underpayment of income taxes within the provision 
for income taxes. Interest is computed on the difference between the Company's unce1iain tax benefit positions and the amount 
deducted or expected to be deducted in our income tax returns. 

The Company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return, as well as income tax returns in various state jurisdictions. All 
of the Company's tax years are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and various state taxing authorities. 

Note 7. Other Current Liabilities 

The following table provides information regarding the Company's other current liabilities, which are included in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Accrued interest 

Current portion of self-insurance reserves 

Self-insured medical benefits liabilities 

Income taxes payable 

Accrued property taxes 

Accrued expenses and other 

Note 8. Leases 

2019 

$ 

$ 

49.6 $ 

64,5 

53.8 

71.8 

18.6 

187.7 

446.0 $ 

2018 

68.9 

70.7 

46.1 

19.1 

217.4 

422.2 

The Company leases real estate property and equipment under cancelable and non-cancelable leases. The leases expire at various 
times and have various renewal options. Certain leases that meet the lease capitalization criteria in accordance with ASC 840 have 
been recorded as an asset and liability at the lower of the net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease 
or the fair value of the asset at the inception date. Interest rates used in computing the net present value of the lease payments are 
based on the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the inception of the lease. All of the lease agreements generally require the 
Company to pay maintenance, repairs, taxes and insurance costs. Rental expense of operating leases totaled $118.6 million, $57.3 
million and $44.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2019, for those leases having an initial or remaining noncancelable lease term in 
excess of one year, but excluding obligations that do not require eventual settlement in cash, are as follows for the years indicated (in 
millions): 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

Thereafter 

Less: interest portion 

Operating 

Leases 

$ 

$ 

46.4 $ 

45.4 

33.5 

24.8 

18.8 

82.7 

251.6 $ 

$ 

Capital and 

Financing Leases Total 

118.2 $ 164.6 

102.9 148.3 

180.7 214.2 

109.4 134.2 

109.4 128.2 

2,443.2 2,525.9 

3,063.8 $ 3,315.4 

(1,966.5) 

1,097.3 
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The real estate associated with certain of the Company's facilities and its health support center are leased from various third party 
entities in connection with sale-leaseback transactions. Certain of these leasing arrangements contain various forms of continuing 
involvement and resultantly fail sale-leaseback accounting criteria in accordance with ASC 840. Those leases with continuing 
involvement are accounted for as financing transactions. Additionally, for certain properties which satisfied the sale-leaseback 
accounting criteria, the sales proceeds received were in excess of the fair value of the properties leased. Accordingly, financing 
obligations have been recorded for such excess. At December 31, 2019, the Company has recorded $1,135.0 million of total financing 
obligations, including current portions, associated with sale-leaseback transactions in its accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

Prope1iies failed sale-leaseback criteria due to several reasons, including fully prepaid arrangements with government authorities, 
the ability to share in the appreciation rights of the property, involvement in an ongoing build to suit construction project financed by a 
third party and more than minor subleasing arrangements. 

2019 Sale Leaseback Transaction 

On November 4, 2019, certain subsidiaries of the Company ( collectively, the "LifePoint Entities") entered into a Real Property 
Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Real Property APA") with ce1iain subsidiaries ofMPT. The sale-leaseback transaction (the "Sale 
Leaseback Transaction") was completed effective December 1 7, 2019. Pursuant to the Real Prope1iy AP A, the LifePoint Entities sold 
the real estate of the following medical facilities (the "2019 Master Lease Facilities") to certain affiliates ofMPT, and immediately 
thereafter certain LifePoint Entities and certain affiliates ofMPT entered into an agreed upon Master Lease Agreement (the "2019 
Master Lease") pursuant to which such LifePoint Entities now lease or sublease the land and the buildings associated with the 2019 
Master Lease Facilities from certain affiliates ofMPT: 

Conemaugh Memorial Medical Center located in Pennsylvania; 
Conemaugh Meyersdale Medical Center located in Pennsylvania; 
Conemaugh Miners Medical Center located in Pennsylvania; 
Nason Medical Center located in Pennsylvania; 
Ottumwa Regional Health Center located in Iowa; 
Palestine Regional Medical Center located in Texas; 
Sage West Health Care -Lander Campus located in Wyoming; 
Sage West Health Care-Rive1ion Campus located in Wyoming; 
Southwestern Medical Center (including the Southwestern Behavioral Health Center) located in Oklahoma; and 
W estem Plains Medical Complex located in Kansas. 

The 2019 Master Lease has an initial term of 20 years (the "Initial Term"). However, the LifePoint Entities who are parties to the 
2019 Master Lease have the option to extend the Initial Term for two additional five-year periods. 

In connection with the Sale Leaseback Transaction, the Company received an aggregate amount of sale proceeds of $700.0 million 
and incurred $18.1 million of transaction-related expenses, which is included under the caption "Merger, acquisition and other 
transaction-related expenses" for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

The Company anticipates using the net proceeds to reinvest in the Company and its subsidiaries. To the extent not so reinvested, 
such net proceeds will be used to repay existing debt of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Company's debt 
agreements. Refer to Note 15 for further discussion ofrefinancing activities occun'ing subsequent to December 31, 2019. 

Note 9. Investments 

The Company accounts for its investments in entities in which the Company exhibits significant influence, but not control, under 
the equity method of accounting in accordance with ASC 323. The Company does not consolidate its equity method investments, but 
rather measures them at their initial costs and then subsequently adjusts their carrying values through income for their respective 
shares of the earnings or losses during the period. The Company's equity method investments totaled $274.3 million and $231.9 
million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included under the caption "Other long-term assets" in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
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Note 10. Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests 

Noncontrolling Interests 

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. The 
Company's accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated 
amounts, which include the amounts attributable to the Company and the noncontrolling interest. The Company recognizes as a 
separate component of equity and earnings on the portion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests based on the 
portion of the entity not owned by the Company. 

The following table presents the changes in the Company's noncontrolling interests during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
2018 (in millions): 

Balance at January 1, 2018 
Noncontrolling interests· assumed in the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 
Distributions 

Balance at December 31, 2018 
Finalization of purchase price allocations for the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 
Distributions 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests 

$ 
29.9 

0.2 
(0.2) 
29.9 
(0.2) 
4.4 

(8.2) 
$ 25.9 

Ce11ain of the Company's noncontrolling interests include redemption features that cause these interests not to meet the 
requirements for classification as equity in accordance with ASC 480-10-S99-3, "Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity." Redemption 
features related to these interests could require the Company to deliver cash, if exercised. Accordingly, these redeemable 
noncontrolling interests are classified in the mezzanine section of the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the 
caption "Redeemable noncontrolling interests." Changes in the fair value of the Company's redeemable noncontrolling interests are 
recognized as adjustments to consolidated stockholders' equity. 

The following table presents the changes in the Company's redeemable noncontrolling interests during the years ended December 
31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Balance at January 1, 2018 
Redeemable non controlling interests assumed in the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests 
Distributions, net of proceeds 

Balance.at December 31, 2018 
Finalization of purchase price allocations for the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests 
Fair valueadjustments 
Distributions and repurchases 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

Note 11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

$ 

$ 

60.7 
75.7 

5.5 
(5.8) 

136.1 

(4.6) 
14.9 
11.2 
(9.8) 

147.8 

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be 
determined based on the assumptions that market paiticipants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering 
market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the Company utilizes the fair value hierarchy pursuant to ASC 820, "Fair 
Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820") that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data 
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) 
and the reporting entity's own assumption about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the 
hierarchy). 
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The inputs used to measure fair value are classified into the following fair value hierarchy: 

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data. 
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of the assets or 

liabilities. Level 3 includes values dete1mined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar 
techniques reflecting the Company's own assumptions. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company's assessment of the significance of a particular 
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment of factors specific to the asset or liability. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 

The canying amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts 
receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments. 

Long-Term Debt 

The canying amounts and fair values of the Company's ABL Facility, Term Loan Facility, 9.75% Unsecured Notes, 8.25% 
Secured Notes and 11.5% Unsecured Notes, excluding unam01tized debt issuance costs, as ofDecember 31, 2019 and December 31, 
2018 were as follows (in millions): 

Carrying Amount Fair Value 

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

ABL Facility $ $ 20.0 $ $ 20.0 
Term Loan Facility $ 3,523.4 $ 3,550.0 $ 3,549.8 $ 3,487.9 
9.75% Unsecured Notes $ 1,425.0 $ 1,425.0 $ 1,610.3 $ 1,353.8 
8.25% Secured Notes $ 800.0 $ 800.0 $ 849.0 $ 808.0 
11.5% Unsecured Notes $ 350.0 $ 350.0 $ 376.3 $ 359.6 

The fair values of the Company's long-term debt instruments were estimated based on the average bid and ask price as determined 
using published rates and categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy in accordance with ASC 820. 

Interest Rate Swap 

The Company measures its Interest Rate Swap at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value of the Company's Interest Rate 
Swap is based on quotes from its counterpruty. The Company considers those inputs to be Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. At 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair value of the Company's Interest Rate Swap was a total liability of $24.6 million and $5 .8 
million, respectively, of which $10.7 million and $0.7 million, respectively, is included under the caption "Other current liabilities" 
and $13.9 million and $5.1 million, respectively, is included under the caption "Other long-term liabilities" in the Company's 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company has not designated its Interest Rate Swap as a cash flow hedge in accordance with ASC 815, "Derivatives and 
Hedging." Accordingly, all changes in the fair value of the Company's Interest Rate Swap ru·e recognized through interest expense in 
its statement of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized additional interest expense of 
$18.8 million and $5.8 million, respectively, related to changes in the fair value of its Interest Rate Swap. 

Changes in the fair value of the Company's Interest Rate Swap could result in a material effect on its consolidated results of 
operations and financial position; however, the Company does not anticipate that changes in the fair value of its Interest Rate Swap 
will have any impact on its cash flows. The counterpa1ty to the Interest Rate Swap exposes the Company to credit risk in the event of 
nonperformance. However, the Company does not anticipate nonperformance by its counterparty. The Company does not hold or 
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 
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The Company has a contingent consideration liability payable to the former owners of Canyon Vista that represents the Level 3 
estimated fair value of the contingent consideration using unobservable inputs and assumptions available to the Company. The 
liability for Canyon Vista is recorded at an estimated fair value of approximately $13.6 million at both December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the Canyon Vista liability are the range of probabilities that the payments will 
be earned by the seller and a discount rate adjusted for the Company's credit risk. 

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

In connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities associated 
with two separate defined benefit pension plans (i) associated with certain employees of Marquette General Hospital covered by a 
collective bargaining agreement (the "Marquette Pension Plan") and (ii) associated with certain non-union employees of Bell Hospital 
(the "Bell Pension Plan" and, collectively with the Marquette Pension Plan, the "Pension Plans"). Both Pension Plans are closed to 
new participants. Paiiicipants in the Marquette Pension Plan are required to make annual contributions totaling 6% of annual 
compensation to the Marquette Pension Plan to continue accruing benefits. Participants in the Bell Pension Plan no longer accrue 
benefits. The Company makes contributions to the Pension Plans sufficient to meet its minimum funding requirements as prescribed 
by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 

Status and Expense 

The following table presents the changes in the benefit obligations and plan assets of the Pension Plans during the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 and the unfunded liability of the Pension Plans at December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

2019 2018 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Benefit obligations assumed in the LifePoint/RCCH Merger 
Service costs 
Interest costs 
Participant contributions 
Actuarial loss 
Benefits paid 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 

Plan assets acquired in the LifePoint/RCCHMerger 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Participant contributions 
Benefits and expenses paid 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Unfunded liability included in other long-term liabilities in the 
Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheet 

$ 

$ 

58.6 

0.5 
2.4 
0.3 

10.2 

(1.9) 
70.1 

38.5 

8.1 
2.1 
0.3 

(1.9) 
47.1 

23.0 

$ 

$ 

56.5 
0.1 
0.3 
0.1 
1.8 

(0.2) 
58.6 

39.6 
(LO) 

0.1 
(0.2) 
38.5 

20.1 

The Company recognizes changes in the funded status of the Pension Plans as a direct increase or decrease to stockholders' equity 
through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized 
comprehensive losses of $4.4 million and $3.1 million, respectively, as decreases in stockholders' equity through accumulated other 
comprehensive loss. The adjustments were primarily related to changes in the Company's unfunded pension liability due to changes 
in the discount rates and mortality assumptions used to measure the projected benefit obligation. 
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The following table summarizes the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets 
related to the Pension Plans as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

2019 2018 

Projected benefit obligation $ 70.1 $ 58.6 

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 65.4 $ 54.9 

Fair value of plan assets $ 47.1 $ 38.5 

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used by the Company to determine its benefit obligation as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

Discount rate 

Rate of compensation increases, when applicable 

2019 

3.1 % 

3.0 % 

2018 

4.1 % 

3.0 % 

The following table summarizes the components of net periodic costs for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in 

millions): 

Service cost 

Interest cost 

Expected return on plan assets 

Total net periodic benefit cost 

$ 

$ 

2019 

0.5 

2.4 

(2.2) 

0.7 

$ 

$ 

2018 

0.1 

0.3 

(0.3) 

0.1 

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used by the Company to determine its net periodic benefit 
costs during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 (in millions): 

2019 2018 

Discount rate 4.1 % 4.2 % 

Rate.of compensation increases, when applicable 3.0 % 3.0 % 

Expected long-term return on plan assets 5.7 % 5.8 % 

Plan Assets 

The investment policy for the Pension Plans has been formulated to achieve a risk adjusted return that balances the need for asset 
growth against the risk of significant fluctuations in asset prices and the need for significant contributions from the Company. On a 
quarterly basis, or more frequently as necessary, the current risk levels, asset performance and expected return on assets are reviewed 
and evaluated against goals and targets by a committee appointed to oversee investment of the Pension Plans' assets (the "Investment 
Committee"). The Investment Committee strives to maintain a balance between risk and return through the use of modem p01ifolio 
theory methods, in conjunction with Monte Carlo modeling to evaluate the behavior of the portfolio under different scenarios. At 
December 31, 2019, the Pension Plans' investments include a balance of mutual funds and money market funds in order to achieve an 
overall rate of return that minimizes the need for additional employer contributions. The Company measures the fair value of its 
Pension Plans' assets in accordance with ASC 820. 

The Pension Plans' investments in mutual funds are valued at the net asset value ("NA V") of shares reported in the active market 
in which the funds are traded. Because quoted prices are available for mutual funds and the markets in which they are traded are 
generally considered active, the Company has classified each of them as a Level 1 investment. The Pension Plans' investments in 
money market funds are valued at quoted prices in markets that are not active by a combination of inputs, including but not limited to 
dealer quotes who are market makers in the underlying funds and other directly and indirectly observable inputs. Because the inputs 
used to value money market funds are either directly or indirectly observable, but are not quoted prices in active markets, the 
Company has classified these assets as Level 2 investments. 
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The following table summarizes the assets of the Pension Plans, measured at fair value as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, by 
major asset category and aggregated by level within the fair value hierarchy (in millions): 

Quoted Prices Significant 

in Active Markets Significant Other Unobservable 

for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs 

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

December 31, 2019: 

Mutual funds $ 44.5 $ 44.5 $ 
-

$

Money market funds 2.6 2.6 

Total $ 47.1 $ 44.5 $ 2.6 $ 

December 31, 2018: 

Mutual funds $ 34.6 $ 34.6 $ 
-

$
Money market funds 3.9 3.9 

Total $ 38.5 $ 34.6 $ 3.9 $ 

The Company expects to contribute approximately $2.9 million to the Pension Plans during the year ended December 31, 2020. 
Additionally, the Company expects to make future benefit payments from the Pension Plans as follows for the years indicated (in 
millions): 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

Five years thereafter 

Multiemployer Pension Plan 

$ 

2.3 

2.5 

2.7 

2.9 

3.1 

17.5 

31.0 

In connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company assumed the obligation to contribute to a multiemployer pension 
plan on behalf of certain employees covered by collective bargaining agreements, in accordance with the terms of such collective 
bargaining agreements. The Company's contributions to the multiemployer pension plan are determined based on the terms of the 
applicable collective bargaining agreements. Multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans because assets contributed 
to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers. Also, if a 
participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating 
employers. If the Company stops participating in the multiemployer plan, the Company may be required to pay a withdrawal liability 
based on its portion of the unfunded status of the plan. Cunently, the Company does not anticipate ending its paliicipation in this 
plan. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company maintains three separate defined contribution retirement plans covering a majority of the Company's employees, 
including Legacy LifePoint employees, RCCH employees and employees at Community Medical Center. These defined contribution 
plans contain discretionary matching contribution formulas and definite non-elective contribution formulas for employees at certain 
facilities. Effective as of the end of the day on December 31, 2019, the plan covering RCCH employees was merged into the plan 
covering Legacy LifePoint employees. The Company's expense related to its defined contribution plans was $31.2 million, $5.6 
million and $3 .1 million for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 201 7, respectively. 
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The Company maintains three separate supplemental deferred compensation plans with respect to certain of its employees and 
affiliated physicians. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the assets associated with these deferred compensation plans were $39.6 
million and $34.5 million, respectively, and the liabilities were $48.1 million and $41.3 million, respectively. These amounts are 
included under the captions "Other long-term assets" and "Other long-term liabilities", respectively, on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation 

DSB Parent is authorized to issue Units to employees, executives, consultants and directors of the Company, under the DSB 
Parent Partnership Agreement. The Company has determined that the Units are a substantive class of members' equity for accounting 
purposes because the Units are legal equity ofDSB Parent, they have participation features, including distribution and liquidation 
rights which allow them to participate in the residual retwns of the DSB Parent and vested interests are retained upon termination. As 
a result, these awards are accounted for under ASC 718. 

There are 35,270,000 aggregate number of Units authorized for issuance. Service Units and Performance Units have been issued 
under the DSB Parent Partnership Agreement and fo1ms of award agreements. 

Service Units 

Service Units have been granted to ce1tain members of the board of directors and Tranche A Units to certain employees, 
executives and consultants. Units that have been granted to members of the board of directors vest on a time-basis only, either in three 
equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date or on the date that is the earliest of (i) six months and one 
day following November 16, 2018 or (ii) the date of the applicable director's termination of service due to death, disability or as a 
result of the director's removal from the board of directors other than for cause. Tranche A Units granted to certain employees, 
executives and consultants vest in equal installments on the last day of each of the first twenty calendar quarters that commence on or 
after the grant date or, in some cases, November 16, 2018. Service Units will automatically vest upon the sale of the Company. In the 
event of an initial public offering, all unvested Service Units will remain outstanding and continue to vest based on the stated vesting 
pattern. Unvested Service Units are forfeited upon a holder's termination of service. 

Service Units are accounted for as equity awards and related compensation expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period. 
For employees and executives granted Service Units prior to November 16, 2018 who are severed during the 18-month period 
following the LifePoint/RCCH Merger under certain circumstances, Tranche A Units vest in full upon the eligible employee's 
termination date. On November 16, 2018, Service Units originally issued to approximately 40 employees and executives were 
modified in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. The Company calculated the fair value of the service units before and after 
the modification and recorded expense of $2.4 million and $2. 7 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively, related to the modification and acceleration of service units. As of December 31, 2019, Service Units had unrecognized 
compensation expense of $8.0 million. The expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years from 
December 31, 2019. 

Performance Units 

Perfo1mance Units, which have been granted as Tranche B Units and Tranche C Units, will vest based upon equity holders ofDSB 
Parent realizing certain targeted multiples of invested capital ("MOIC thresholds"). Performance Units are accounted for as equity 
awards with expense recognition occurring upon the realization of the stated MOIC thresholds due to a liquidity event. For employees 
and executives granted Performance Units prior to November 16, 2018 who were severed in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH 
Merger, Tranche B units vest in full upon the eligible employee's termination date and Tranche C units are forfeited in accordance 
with the original terms and conditions of the applicable Profits Units award agreement. On November 16, 2018, Tranche B Units 
previously issued to approximately 40 employees and executives were modified in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger. The 
Company calculated the fair value of the Tranche B Units before and after the modification and recorded expense of $2.7 million and 
$3.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, related to the modification and acceleration of Tranche B 
Units. For Performance Units not modified in connection with the LifePoint/RCCH Merger, the Company determined that a liquidity 
event was not probable, therefore no compensation expense has been recognized related to the unmodified Performance Units. 
Performance Units had unrecognized compensation expense of $2.4 million as of December 31, 2019. Unvested Units that do not vest 
on termination are forfeited upon such termination, subject to certain conditions. 
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The following table summarizes the Company's total stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2019, 
2018 and 2017 (in millions): 

Service Units 
Performance Units 

Modification expense for awards.classified as a liability 

Total stock-based compensation expense 

Valuation Assumptions 

$ 

$ 

2019 

3.5 
1.3 
4.8 
2.8 

7.6 

2018 2017 

$ 3.4 $ 0.7 
3.6 
7.0 0.7 

$ 7.0 $ 0.7 

The fair value of all Units was determined using a Monte Carlo simulation :framework. The following table shows the weighted 
average assumptions used by the Company to develop the fair value estimates and the resulting estimates of weighted-average fair 
value per Unit granted during the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017: 

2019 2018 2017 

Common equity value of the Company (in millions) $ 1,671.9 $ 624.1 $ 513.8 
Expected volatility 38.0 % 24.0 % 27.5 % 
Risk-free interest rate 2.90 % 1.60 % 1.10 % 
Expected dividends 
Average expected term (years) 5.0 3.2 4.1 

Units Activity 

The following represents the activity of the Units for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017: 

Service Units Performance Units 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 

Average Average Average 

Tranche A Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date 

and Units to Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 

the Board per Unit TrancheB per Unit Tranche C per Unit 

Unvested at January 1, 2017 4,522,133 $ 0.69 4,893,569 $ 0.41 2,446,785 $ 0.30 
Granted 548,200 0.93 548,200 0.47 274,100 0.28 
Vested (1,104,23,4) 0.64 
Forfeited (165,070) 0.84 (179,600) 0.44 (89,800) 0.28 
Unvested at December 31, 2017 3,801,029 0.71 5,262,169 0.41 2,631,085 0.30 
Granted 1,229,200 1.43 1,229,200 0.68 614,600 0.37 
Vested (2,054,331) 0.82 (1,636,959) 0.46 
Forfeited (266,140) 0.70 (379,400) 0.41 (1,008,180) 0.31 
Unvested at December 31, 2018 2,709,758 0.97 4,475,010 0.47 2,237,505 0.31 
Granted 6,996,576 1.23 6,868,920 0.80 3,884,460 0.63 
Vested (2,893,910) 1.07 (891,400) 0.54 
Forfeited (85.,044) 1.18 (136,640) 0.60 (514,020) 0.38 
Unvested at December 31, 2019 6,727,380 $ 1.19 10,315,890 $ 0.68 5,607,945 $ 0.53 

During the year ended December 31, 2019, there were no convertible or expired Units. 
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Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies 

Capital Expenditure Commitments 

The Company is reconfiguring some of its facilities to more effectively accommodate patient services and to provide for a greater 
variety of services. The Company has incurred approximately $148.6 million in costs related to uncompleted projects as of December 
31, 2019, which is included under the caption "Construction in progress" in the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 
At December 31, 2019, these uncompleted projects had an estimated cost to complete of approximately $91.5 million. The estimated 
timeframe for completion of these projects generally ranges from less than one year up to two years. Additionally, the Company is 
subject to annual capital expenditure commitments in connection with several of its facilities. At December 31, 2019, the Company 
estimated its total remaining capital expenditure commitments to be approximately $1,523.1 million, which generally have remaining 
terms of one to six years. Of this amount, more than one half represents obligations at certain facilities for which commitments are 
computed as a percentage of revenues, ranging from three to five percent, and for which the commitment periods generally span over 
a longer period of time. 

Legal Proceedings and General Liability Claims 

Healthcare facilities, including the Company and its facilities, are, from time to time, subject to claims and suits arising in the 
ordinary course of business, including claims for damages for personal injuries, medical malpractice, breach of contracts, wrongful 
restriction of or interference with physicians' staff privileges and employment related claims. In certain of these actions, plaintiffs 
request payment for damages, including punitive damages that may not be covered by insurance. 

In addition, the Company is subject to the regulation and oversight of various state and federal governmental agencies. Further, 
under the False Claims Act, private parties have the right to bring qui tam, or "whistleblower," suits against healthcare facilities that 
submit false claims for payments to, or improperly retain identified overpayments from, govermnental payers. Some states have 
adopted similar state whistleblower and false claims provisions. These qui tam or "whistleblower" actions initiated under the civil 
False Claims Act may be pending but placed under seal by the court to comply with the False Claims Act's requirements for filing 
such suits. As a result, they could be proceeding without the Company's knowledge. If a provider is found to be liable under the False 
Claims Act, the provider may be required to pay up to three times the actual damages sustained by the government plus substantial 
civil monetary penalties that are subject to annual adjustment for inflation for each separate false claim. 

Although the healthcare industry has seen numerous ongoing investigations related to compliance and billing practices, hospitals, 
in paiiicular, continue to be a primary enforcement tai·get for the Office oflnspector General ("OIG"), the Department of Justice 
("DOJ") and other governmental agencies and fraud and abuse programs. Certain of the Company's individual facilities have 
received, and from time to time, other facilities may receive, inquiries or subpoenas from Medicare Administrative Contractors, and 
federal and state agencies. Any proceedings against the Company may involve potentially substantial amounts as well as the 
possibility of civil, criminal, or administrative fines, penalties, or other sanctions, which could be material. Settlements of suits 
involving Medicare and Medicaid issues routinely require both monetary payments as well as corporate integrity agreements. 
Depending on whether the underlying conduct in these or future inquiries or investigations.could be considered systemic, their 
resolution could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations and liquidity. 

The Company does not control and cannot predict with certainty the progress or final outcome of discussions with government 
agencies, investigations and legal proceedings against the Company. Therefore, the final amounts paid to resolve such matters, claims 
and obligations could be material and could materially differ from amounts currently recorded, if any. Any such changes in the 
Company's estimates or any adverse judgments could materially adversely impact the Company's future results of operations and cash 
flows. 

The Company accrues an estimate for a contingent liability when losses are both probable and reasonably estimable. The Company 
reviews its accruals each quarter and adjusts them to reflect the impact of developments, advice of legal counsel and other information 
pertaining to a paiiicular matter. 
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In accordance with the provisions of ASC 855, "Subsequent Events," the Company evaluated all material events subsequent to the 
balance sheet date through March 12, 2020, the date of issuance, for events requiring disclosure or recognition in the Company's 
consolidated financial statements. There were no subsequent events requiring disclosure or recognition in the Company's consolidated 
financial statements other than those noted below or included elsewhere in this Report. 

Repricing of Term Loan Facility and Repayment of a Portion of Term Loan Facility 

On January 21, 2020, the Company amended its Term Loan Facility to, among other things, reduce the applicable interest rate 
margin for the term loans by 0.75% to 3.75% with respect to London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR")-based loans and 2.75% with 
respect to base rate loans. 

On January 23, 2020, the Company made a mandatory prepayment of $400.0 million of term loans outstanding under the Term 
Loan Facility with a portion of the net proceeds from the Sale Leaseback Transaction. After giving effect to the mandatory 
prepayment, the Company had prepaid all remaining qua1ierly amortization payments in respect of the Term Loan Facility. 

Tender Offer, Redemption and Discha1ge of 8.25% Secured Notes and 11.5% Unsecured Notes 

On February 7, 2020, the Company commenced a tender offer and consent solicitation (the "tender offer") to purchase any and all 
of its outstanding (i) 8.25% Secured Notes issued pursuant to the indenture, dated as of April 29, 2016, among the Company, the 
guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, the 
"8.25% Secured Notes Indenture") and (ii) 11.5% Unsecured Notes issued pursuant to the indenture, dated as of April 29, 2016, 
among the Company, the guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (as amended, supplemented 
or otherwise modified, the "11.5% Unsecured Notes Indenture"). The early tender deadline for the tender offer was February 21, 2020 
and the expiration date for the tender offer was March 6, 2020. 

Upon expiration of the early tender deadline, on February 24, 2020, the Company accepted and purchased (i) $622.5 million of the 
aggregate principal amount of the 8.25% Secured Notes that were validly tendered for total consideration of $1,052.50 per $1,000 
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and (ii) $84.1 million of the aggregate principal amount of the 11.5% 
Unsecured Notes that were validly tendered for a total consideration of $1,072.50 per $1,000 principal amount, plus accrued and 
unpaid interest thereon. Following the expiration of the tender offer, on March 9, 2020, the Company accepted and purchased an 
additional $0.2 million of the aggregate principal amount of the 8.25% Secured Notes that were validly tendered after the early tender 
deadline for a tender consideration of $1,022.50 per $1,000 principal amount, plus accrned and unpaid interest thereon. No additional 
11.5% Unsecured Notes were tendered after the early tender deadline. 

On March 9, 2020, (i) pursuant to the 8.25% Secured Notes Indenture, the Company provided notice to the holders that it had 
elected to redeem any and all of the 8.25% Secured Notes that remain outstanding after giving effect to the tender offer at a 
redemption price of 104.125%, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, on May 1, 2020 (the "8.25% Notes Redemption") and (ii) 
pursuant, to the 11.5% Unsecured Notes Indenture, the Company provided notice to the holders that it had elected to redeem any and 
all of the 11.5% Unsecured Notes that remain outstanding after giving effect to the tender offer at a redemption price of 105.750%, 
plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, on May 1, 2020 (the "11.5% Notes Redemption"). Concurrently with the delivery of the 
notices ofredemption, on March 9, 2020, the Company (i) irrevocably deposited with the trustee for the 8.25% Secured Notes 
approximately $191.9 million, which is the amount sufficient to fund the 8.25% Notes Redemption and to satisfy and discharge the 
Company's obligations under the 8.25% Secured Notes and the 8.25% Secured Notes Indenture, and (ii) irrevocably deposited with 
the trustee for the 11.5% Unsecured Notes approximately $296.5 million, which is the amount sufficient to fund the 11.5% Notes 
Redemption and to satisfy and discharge the Company's obligations under the 11.5% Unsecured Notes and the 11.5% Unsecured 
Notes Indenture. 
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On February 13, 2020, the Company completed the offering of $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 4.3 75% Senior 
Secured Notes due 2027 (the "4.375% Secured Notes"). The 4.375% Secured Notes were offered and sold to qualified institutional 
buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), to persons outside of the United 
States in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and to certain accredited investors as defined under Regulation D 
under the Securities Act. The 4.3 75% Secured Notes have not been, and are not required to be, registered under the Securities Act or 
any state securities laws and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent an effective registration statement or an applicable 
exemption from registration requirements or a transaction not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act or any state 
securities laws. The 4.375% Secured Notes were issued pursuant to the Indenture, dated as of February 13, 2020 (the "4.375% 
Secured Notes Indenture") among the Company, as issuer, each of the subsidiaiy guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trnst, 
National Association, as trustee and notes collateral agent. 

The net proceeds from the offering, together with the net proceeds from the Incremental Tenn Loan and cash on hand, was used to 
fund the settlement of the tender offer, the 8.25% Notes Redemption and the 11.5% Notes Redemption and to pay certain fees in 
connection with the refinancing transactions described herein. 

The 4.375% Secured Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the Company's wholly-owned domestic restricted 
subsidiaries that guarantee the Company's Te1m Loan Facility. The 4.375% Secured Notes and the related guarantees are secured 
obligations of the Company and each subsidiary guarantor. The 4.375% Secured Notes and related guai·antees are secured by, subject 
to pennitted liens, (i) first-priority security interests in the Company's Non-ABL Priority Collateral and (ii) second-priority security 
interests in the Company's ABL Priority collateral. 

The 4.375% Secured Notes will mature on February 15, 2027. Interest on the 4.375% Secured Notes will accrue at 4.375% per 
annum and will be paid semi-annually, in arrears, on Febrnary 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning August 15, 2020. 

On or after February 15, 2022, the Company may redeem the 4.375% Secured Notes at its option, in whole at any time or in part 
from time to time, at the redemption prices set forth in the 4.375% Secured Notes Indenture. In addition, prior to February 15, 2022, 
the Company may redeem the 4.375% Secured Notes at its option, in whole at any time or in pati from time to time, at a redemption 
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 4.375% Secured Notes redeemed, plus a "make-whole" premium and accrued and 
unpaid interest, if any. Prior to February 15, 2022, the Company may also redeem up to 40% of the original aggregate principal 
amount of the 4.3 7 5% Secured Notes ( calculated after giving effect to any issuance of additional notes) in an aggregate amount not to 
exceed the amount of net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings at a redemption price equal to 104.3 75%, plus accrued and 
unpaid interest, if any, so long as at least 50% of the original aggregate principal amount of the 4.375% Secured Notes (calculated 
after giving effect to any issuance of additional notes) must remain outstanding after each such redemption. 

The 4.375% Secured Notes Indenture, among other things, limits the Compai1y's ability and the ability of its restricted subsidiaries 
to, among other things: (i) incur or guai·antee additional indebtedness; (ii) pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, 
capital stock and make other restricted payinents; (iii) make certain investments; (iv) consummate certain asset sales; (v) engage in 
certain transactions with affiliates; (vi) grant or assume certain liens; and (vii) consolidate, merge or transfer all or substantially all of 
their assets. 

These covenants are subject to a number of important qualifications and exceptions as described in the 4.375% Secured Notes 
Indenture. Additionally, upon the occunence of specified change' of control events, the Company must offer to repurchase the 4.3 75% 
Secured Notes at 101% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the purchase date. The 
4.375% Secured Notes Indenture also provides for customary events of default. 

Issuance of Incremental Term Loan 

On February 24, 2020, the Company closed the issuance of $600.0 million of incremental term loans (the "Incremental Term 
Loai1") under the Term Loan Facility. The Incremental Term Loan bears interest at a rate equal to, at its option, (a) a LIBOR rate plus 
an applicable margin of 3.75% or (b) a base rate plus an applicable margin of 2.75%. There are no scheduled am01iization payments 
required on the Incremental Term Loan prior to maturity. The net proceeds from the Incremental Te1m Loan, together with the net 
proceeds from the 4.375% Secured Notes and cash on hand, was used to fund the settlement of the tender offer, the 8.25% Notes 
Redemption and the 11.5% Notes Redemption and to pay certain fees in connection with the refinancing transactions described herein. 
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Attachment - Section B Need 3 

Service Area Map 
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Attachment Section C 
State Health Plan Question - 3: 

 
Letters of Support 

183



184

January 11, 2021 

Logan Grant, Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson State Office Building, Suite 850 
500 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Re: Application of Starr Regional Medical Center for Initiation of 
Cardiac Catheterization Services 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

StarrRegional.wm 

On behalf of the Starr Regional Board of Trustees, I am writing you to 
express our unequivocal support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization 
services at Starr Regional Medical Center -Athens. 

Starr's Board of Trustees reviewed the volume of cardiac catheterizations 
from our service area and recognize that all of those patients must leave 
their community for their procedures. Our emergency department treats 
almost 40,000 patients annually, of which, more than 2,500 patients are 
treated for the primary reason of cardiac disease. Many of these patients 
are transferred out of the community due to the lack of services. The Board 
also recognizes each of these transfers takes an ambulance out of our 
community for a minimum of three hours as these transfers are sent to 
Knoxville or Chattanooga. 

The Board of Trustees unanimously voted in support and approval of 
initiating cardiac catheterization services in our community at Starr 
Regional Medical Center - Athens. We ask the HSDA to approve this CON. 
Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Durant Tullock, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

DT/ph 

ATHENS 
1114 West Madison Ave., NW I PO Box 250 

Athens, TN 37371 -0250 
Phone: (423) 745-1411 I Fax: (423) 745-8630 

ETOWAH 
886 Highway 411, North 

Etowah, TN 37331 
Phone: (423) 263-3600 i Fax: (423) 263-3793 
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JOHN M. GENTRY 
County Mayor 

December 15, 2020 

Logan Grant 
Executive Director 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MAYOR 
6 East Madison Avenue 

Athens, Tennessee 37303 
www.mcminncountytn.gov 

Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

PHONE 423.745.7634 
FAX: 423.744.1600 

Re: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER- INITIATION OF CARDIAC 
CATHETERIZATION SERVICES; ATHENS, TN 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for application for Starr Regional Medical Center's project 
to initiate cardiac catheterization services in Athens, TN - located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., Athens, 
TN 37303. The availability of this new medical service would be an invaluable resource for our 
community. There are many McMinn County residents each year who require cardiac catherization. 
Numerous members of my own family, including my mother and father and father, have had to travel 
to Knoxville, Chattanooga and even Birmingham to undergo this type of procedure. 

While my family is blessed with the resources to go wherever is necessary to obtain medical care, 
many in the Athens area do not have that same opportunity; however, hundreds of patients each year 
who live within Starr Regional's primary and secondary service areas are forced to travel a 
considerable distance for heart catherization. Allowing this procedure to be conducted at Starr 
Regional could truly be the difference in life and death for some of our citizens. 

I believe it also important to consider that with each patient transfer out of county, a local ambulance 
is taken out of service for a minimum of three hours. In 2019 alone, Starr Regional Medical Center 
Emergency Department treated over 2500 people with cardiac conditions or chest pain diagnoses. 
Those patients who required emergency diagnostic or therapeutic cardiac cath procedures were 
transferred to facilities outside of our county. With only four ambulances to cover 430 square miles, 
this loss of emergency response resources can be critical. 

I believe it is in the best interest of the citizens of McMinn County to approve Starr Regional Medical 
Center's certificate of need for heart catherization. I ask that you give their application your full 
consideration, and please feel free to contact my office if I can provide any further information. 
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MARK COCJ-IR.AN 

STATE REPRESENTATIVE 
23rd LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

520 CORDELL HULL BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TN 37243 

Phone: 615-741-1725 

January 7, 2021 

House of Representatives 
State of Tennessee 

NASHVILLE 

To Whom It May Concern: 

mn, GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

MAJORITY TREASURER 

MEMBER OF COMITTEES 

Education 
Cuniculum, Testing & 

Innovation Subcommtt:tee 

Consumer and Human Resources 
Consumer Subcommtt:tee 

Please allow me to offer my full support of Starr Regional Medical Center's application for a cardiac 
catheterization lab in Athens, Tennessee. 

In 2019, Starr Regional Medical Center Emergency Department treated over 2500 patients for a 
cardiac condition/chest pain diagnosis. Over 316 Patients with cardiac issues requiring emergency 
diagnostic or therapeutic cardiac catheterization required transfer to facilities outside of our county 
for a higher level of care. The nearest hospital with cardiac catheterization capabilities is over 25 
miles away (Tennova in Cleveland, TN). For every transfer that takes a patient out of McMinn 
County, an ambulance is out of the community for a minimum of 3 hours, resulting in a reduction of 
ambulances in the available service to our county and transport needs for Starr Regional. 
According to the United Health Foundation, diseases of the heart remain the leading cause of 
death, and Tennessee is ranked sixth nationally for Heart Disease as the leading cause of deaths. 

A cardiac catheterization lab would greatly benefit the lives of several hundred citizens, providing a 
greater healthcare facility that will allow the ability to administer better care to patients. As the State 
Representative for McMinn County, I am grateful for the opportunity to add my full support to the 
Starr Regional Medical Center's application for a cardiac catheterization lab. I am confident of its 
positive impact on the citizens of McMinn County and surrounding communities. 

In service, 

£?!!· 
State Representative 
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ATHENS AREA 
CHAMBER 

OF COMMERCE 

Logan Grant 
Executive Director 

December 15, 2020 

Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

Re: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER - INITIATION OF CARDIAC 
CATHERTERIZATION SERVICES; ATHENS, TN 

Dear Mr. Grant, 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for application for Starr Regional Medical Center's project to 
initiate cardiac catheterization services in Athens, Tennessee - located at 1114 West Madison Avenue in 
Athens. 

As president and CEO of the Athens Area Chamber of Commerce for 14 years, I understand the 
importance of having these services locally. The nearest hospital with cardiac catheterization capabilities is 
over 25 miles away, In 2019, Starr Regional Medical Center Emergency Department treated over 2,500 with a 
cardiac condition/chest pain diagnosis. Patients requiring emergency diagnostic or therapeutic cardiac cath 
require transfer to facilities outside of our county. Starr Regional transferred 316 patients with cardiac issues 
that required a higher level of care. This causes the patient to be an hour away, their family and support 
system to support the care process an hour from home. It would be a tremendous benefit for our local people 
if we had this service. 

For every transfer that takes a patient out of McMinn County, an ambulance is out of the community for 
a minimum of 3 hours in travel and patient drop off time. Reduction of ambulances in the community reduces 
available service to our County and transport needs for Starr Regional Medical Center. 

At the Chamber, we are seeing more people from out of town interested in moving into our community, 
Starr Regional Medical Center is a wonderful hospital and it definitely helps us to promote Athens. Adding 
these services in our community would only enhance those efforts. I enthusiastically support this project and 
hope that the agency members will approve it 

Sincerely, 

Rob Preston 
President/CEO 

·13 NOfHH ,JACl<SON STREET w ATHENS, TN 37:+0:l 
rHONE: 42:J, 745·0334 

E:rnntl: lnfo(ii1athonschambeL1:.,r-9 "' Webslto: http;//www.nth0nsct1ambar.oq1 
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ST.PAUL'S 
EPISCOPAL CHURCH 

Athcm, T/V 

January 13, 2021 

Logan Grant 
Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

Re: INITIATION OF CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES FOR STARR 
REGIONAL 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization services 
for Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., Athens, TN 37303. 

I am the Interim Rector of SL Paul's Episcopal Church in Athens, TN. Like many churches, we 
have a significant number of older patients at greater than average risk of heart disease. We also 
operate a food pantly that serves hundreds of clients and sponsor a homeless shelter for men 
with addictions, Because of the correlation of poverty and substance abuse with health 
problems, these populations are at greater risk of heart disease. Having additional care 
available, including heart catheterization, would provide a great benefit to the community we 
serve. 

This project is important for access to the cardiology health care services in McMinn, Meigs, and 
Monroe Counties. Our congregation and clients come from McMinn, Meigs, Polk, and Monroe 
Counties. All of them would benefit from these services. 

I fully support this application for the initiation of cardiac catheterization and urge you to 
approve the application. Thank you for yonr consideration. 

Sincerely, 

(~R~~!~!:J 
Interim Rector, St. Paul's, Athens 



January 27, 2021 

Phillip M. Earhaii 
HSDA Deputy Director 
State of Tennessee 
Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th floor 
502 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, TN 37243 

Kim H. Looney 
Partner 
Kim.Looney@klgates.com 

T +1 615 780 6726 

RE: Certificate of Need Application CN2101-001 
Initiation of Diagnostic and Interventional Cardiac Catheterization Procedures 

Dear Mr. Earhart, 

Please see below for our responses to your supplemental questions. 

1. Section A, Executive Summary, Item B.4 (Orderly Development) Page 4

Please provide any letters of support from cardiologists supporting the addition 
of diagnostic and interventional cardiac procedures at Starr Regional. 

Response: Please see letters of support included as Attachment Section A, 
Executive Summary, Item B.4 (Orderly Development) Page 4. 

2. Section A., Project Details, Item 10, Bed Complement Data

The bed complement chart for the Athens campus is noted. However, there are
calculation errors in the chart. In addition, the staffed beds for obstetrical beds
are not noted. Please correct and submit a replacement page 9 (labeled as 9R).

Response: Please see replacement page 9R included as Attachment Section A.,
Project Details, Item 10, Bed Complement Data.

3. Section A., Project Details, Item 12, Square Footage and Cost Per Square
Footage Chart

The square footage and cost per square footage chart on page 12 is noted.
However, the applicant placed a decimal point in the new construction cost of
$1,780,000. Please correct and submit a replacement page 12 (labeled as 12R).

4. Response: Please see replacement page 12 (12R) included as Attachment Section
A., Project Details, Item 12, Square Footage and Cost Per Square Footage Chart.
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Please explain why the cost per square foot for new construction in the amount 
of $739 is above the 3rd quartile ($389.59 / sq. ft.) of similar hospital projects from 
2017-2019. 
Response: The applicant is creating a suite with the cath procedure room, 
support spaces and a drop off canopy and is not just renovating existing hospital 
space. The space that is being built is expensive to build and the costs are not 
being spread over a much larger project like many projects that come before the 
agency are. The larger the project, the greater the economies of scale in building 
and the increased likelihood that not all of the space is expensive and the costs 
even out over the project. The applicant had the assistance of 2 different 
contractors when it was preparing the conceptual budget based on the scope of 
the project. Both contractors have worked in the geographic area of the applicant 
and based their budget on the trends they are seeing in the market. The project 
includes civil and site work. The applicant took the numbers that it received 
from the contractors and then added an additional 10% so that the actual pricing 
should not be higher than the conceptual budget. The cost to build may end up 
being lower, but the applicant wanted to be conservative in its estimate. 

4. Section B. 1. Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item 3

Please provide a copy of a draft formalized written protocol for immediate and
efficient transfer of patients to a nearby open heart surgical facility (within 60
minutes) that is reviewed/tested on a regular (quarterly) basis.

Response: Please see draft of written protocol for transfer included as
Attachment Section B. 1. Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item
3.

5. Section B. 1. Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item 4

Please define the acronyms STEMI, PCI, and CABG.

Response: Please see definitions below:

STEMI: An acute ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) is an event in 
which transmural myocardial ischemia results in myocardial injury or necrosis. 

PCI: Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (PCI, formerly known as angioplasty 
with stent) is a non-surgical procedure that uses a catheter (a thin flexible tube) 
to place a small structure called a stent to open up blood vessels in the heart that 
have been narrowed by plaque buildup, a condition known as atherosclerosis. 

CABG: Coronarv arterv bvoass graft surgerv (CABG) is a procedure used to 
treat coronarv arterv disease. Coronarv arterv disease (CAD) is the narrowing of 
the coronarv arteries - the blood vessels that supply oxygen and nutrients to the 
heart muscle. 
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6. Section B. 1. Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item 9

The tables that identify the total projected demand for the proposed service area
using 2018-2030 population data is noted. However, the applicant used 2020-
2024 0-17 population data in the table. Please correct by using only one data
source, and submit revised tables and replacement pages.

Response: It is not possible to use only one data source to obtain the requested 
population data. The applicant reached out to the DO and verified that one source 
must be used for the 0-17 age group and another for the other age groups. The 2018-
2030 data set breaks down the population into age groups, but there is not a set 0-17 age 
grouping. However, the 2020-2024 data set breaks down the population age groups, including 0-
17, but not into the other specified groupings (18-29, 30-39, 40-44, 45-49, etc.) that are noted on 
the statewide utilization rate graph provided by the State. Accordingly, all 2024 population 
information comes from the 2018-2030 data set chart, except that the 0-17 data is from the 2020-
2024 chart (as it would be impossible to get the 0-17 data from the 2018-2030 data set). 
However, the data source for those two tables is the same: 

Source: Boyd Center for Business and Economic Research, University of Tennessee, Knoxville 

Reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Population Health 
Assessment 

Please clarify if the applicant requested and received diagnostic and therapeutic 
equivalent cardiac catheterization data for the three most recent years available 
for the state utilization rates associated with each age category for the tables 
located on pages 22-24. If so, what date was it requested? 

Response: The applicant requested the data on September 3, 2020 and received 
the data on October 19, 2020. 

7. Section B. 1. Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item 10

Please provide documentation the applicant's service area is designated by the
United States Health Resources and Services Administration as being
underserved.

Response: The link to the data source to identify the counties that are
underserved in the state of Tennessee is included in the application. The
applicant has included a printout of the specific pages in Attachment Section B. 1.
Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization) Item 10.

8. Section B, Need, Item 3, Page 37

The projected utilization table by county on page 37 is noted. However, please 
use the year 2022 as the most recent year, and submit a revised table and 
replacement page 37 (labeled as 37R). 

Response: Please see replacement page 37, 37R, included as Attachment 
Section B, Need, Item 3, Page 37. 
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9. Section B, Need, Item 6, Page 40

The table on page 40 displaying the projected utilization for the year 2024 is
noted. However, please project annual utilization for each of the two years
following completion of the project, and submit a revised chart and replacement
page 40 (labeled as 40R).

Response: Please see replacement page 40, 40R, included as Attachment Section
B, Need, Item 6, Page 40.

10. Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts

Please complete the line at the top of the Historical Data Chart that indicates the
beginning month of the fiscal year, and include the revision in replacement page
46.

Response: The fiscal year for the applicant is a calendar year, beginning in
January. Please see replacement page 46 (46R) included as Attachment Section B,
Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts.

There are numerous calculation errors in the Historical Data Chart. Please re
verify all calculations and submit a corrected Historical Data Chart. 

Response: Please see replacement page 46 (46R) included as Attachment Section 
B, Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts. 

The historical data chart breakout of expense categories for the Year 2020 on 
page 47 is noted. However, the total for Year 2020 is incorrect. Please correct the 
total amount on page 46 (item D.6) and page 47 (Year 2020), and submit 
replacement pages. 

Response: Please see replacement pages 46 and 47 (46R and 47R) included as 
Attachment Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts. 

It is noted admissions declined 18% from 11,745 in 2018 to 9,630 in 2020. Please 
discuss the reason(s) for the decline. 

Response: As the Historical data chart shows, the number of admissions 
between 2018 and 2019 remained fairly steady, declining only .24%. With 
COVID occurring in 2020, admissions declined sharply, as they have done in 
many of the hospitals across the country. 

What are ER outpatient and ER inpatient services? 

Response: The breakdown of ER outpatient and ER inpatient services is an 
error. Both of these should have been labelled and included as Emergency 
Services. 
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Please complete all of section G of the historical data chart and submit a 
replacement page 47 (labeled as 47R). In addition, please compete the Total 
Non-Operating Expenses line on page 46, and include in the replacement page 
submission. 

Response: Please see replacement page 47 (47R) included as Attachment Section 
B, Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts. 

11. Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data Charts)

Project Only Projected Data chart
There are numerous calculation errors in the Project Only Projected Data Chart.
In addition, there are several areas left with blanks. Please re-verify all
calculations and submit a corrected fully completed Projected Data Chart.

Response: Please see revised Project Only Projected Data Chart, pages 49R and 
SOR included as Attachment Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data 
Charts). 

Please complete the line at the top of the Projected Data Chart that indicates the 
beginning month of the fiscal year, and include the revision in replacement page 
49. 

Response: The fiscal year for the applicant is a calendar year, beginning in 
January. Please see the Revised Projected Project Data Chart, page 49R, 
included as Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data Charts). 

Total Facility Projected Data Chart 
There are numerous calculation errors in the Total Facility Projected Data Chart. 
In addition, there are several areas left with blanks. Please re-verify all 
calculations and submit a corrected fully completed Projected Data Chart. 

Response: Please see the Revised Total Facility Projected Data Chart, pages 51R 
and 52R, included as Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data 
Charts). 

It is note the applicant has a deed for the proposed site. However, please clarify 
what the rent paid to non-affiliates in the amount of $469,792 in 2024 represents. 

Response: The rent paid to non-affiliates is for equipment and rent for facilities 
used for outpatient services that are not owned by or located on the hospital 
campus. 

Please complete the line at the top of the Projected Data Chart that indicates the 
beginning month of the fiscal year, and include the revision in replacement page 
51. 
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Response: The fiscal year for the applicant is a calendar year so January has 
now been included. Replacement page 51R is included as Section B, Economic 
Feasibility, Item. 4 (Projected Data Charts). 

12. Section B. (Economic Feasibility) Question 5. (A), Page 53

The gross charge, deduction from. revenue, and average net charge charts for the
Project and total facility are noted. However, since there are calculation errors in
the historical and projected data charts, please submit revised charts for the
project and total facility, and submit a replacement page 53 (labeled as 53R).

Response: Please see replacement page 53, 53R, included as Attachment Section B. 
(Economic Feasibility) Question 5. (A), Page 53. 

13. Section B. (Economic Feasibility) Questions SB and 5.C., Page 53

It is noted the applicant will be revising the Historical and Projected Data Charts
due to calculation errors. If necessary, please revise your responses on page 53
and submit a replacement page 53 (labeled as 53R).

Response: Please see replacement page 53, 53R, included as Attachment Section B. 
(Economic Feasibility) Question 5B and 5.C, Page 53. 

14. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Question 6.B, Page 54

It is noted the applicant will be revising the Historical and Projected Data Charts
due to calculation errors. If necessary, please revise your responses on page 54
and submit a replacement page 54 (labeled as 54R).

Response: Please see replacement page 54, 54R, included as Attachment
Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Question 6.B, Page 54.

15. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 7, Page 55

It is noted the applicant will be revising the Historical and Projected Data Charts
due to calculation errors. If necessary, please revise your responses on page 55
and submit a replacement page 55 (labeled as 55R).

Response: Please see re lacem.ent page 55, 55R) included as Attachment Section
C. Economic Feasibili Item. 7 Pa e 55. 

16. Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 8, Page 56

The staffing chart is noted. However, there are no non-patient care positions
designated. Please clarify how clerical duties associated with the proposed
service will be performed.

Response: There are no non-patient care positions allocated to this project. Any
of the non-clerical functions for this project will be provided by centralized
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positions that are already in place at the hospital. No non-clinical personnel will 
be hired specifically for the cardiac catheterization laboratory. 

17. Section B, Contribution to Orderly Development, Item 1, Page 63

Please clarify which hospitals the applicant has transfer agreements. 

Response: Please see the list of facilities with which the applicant currently has 
transfer agreements included as Attachment Section B, Contribution to Orderly 
Development, Item 1, Page 63. 

Please clarify if the applicant currently has a transfer agreement with Parkwest 
Medical Center. 

Response: Yes, please see list referenced above. 

18. Project Completion Forecast Chart

The applicant projects an agency decision date of May 2021 which is incorrect. 
In addition, there are blank fields. Please submit a revised Project Completion. 

Response: Attached please find a revised Project Completion chart, page 70R. 

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate 
to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

'7/.:...q.d.J� 
Kim H. Looney 
Partner 
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J an. 2 7. 2 0 2 1 I O : 3 3 AM 

January 241 2021 

Logan Grant 
E:x'.ecutive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9lll Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

No. 6253 P. 3

Re: lNITIATlON OF CARDlACCATHETERIZATION SERVICES FOR STARR REGIONAL 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

I am sending this letter of support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization service.a at Starr 
Regional Medical Center Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., Athens, TN 37303. 

My name is Stephen Manetta, MDJ FACC an invasi'Ve/interventional cardiologist with 35 years of 
experience. I have been serving McMinn County and Starr Regional Medical Center fur 30 years. I 
have chaired the chest pain committee since its inception several year ago, We have been certified as 
a Chest Pain Center for the last three years. 

Heart disease is the number one cause of death in the United States with a death every 37 seconds. 
Tennessee is not immune to these statistics and unfortunately has one of the highest incidence of 
coronary artery disease in the US.A. 

The need for advanced cardiac services has grown tremendously over this period of time resulting in 
delays in scheduling and ambulance transfers, sometimes fol' several days. 

Thousands of cardiac patients are seen yearly in McMinn County. Hundreds are being transported 
by ground or air ambulances for cardiac catheri:zation services that are located 50 miles away. ln 
addition1 an even greater number make this 50-mile drive by private car for this service. 

We can provide this level care in the community at Starr Regional Medical Center with l� delays and 
greater efficiency. It will benefit the patients and their families, 

In addition to McMinn County we _freqnently see patients and their families in the surrounding 
counties. Meigs and Monroe counties would now have rapid access to advance testing with minimal 
commute.. The result in better outcomes. 

The benefit of providing non delayed cardiac catheterization services to our patients include better 
outcomes, less repeated hospitalizations, improved compliance, just to name a few. It allows their 
primacy care physician to be involved in their daily continuity of care which increases oonfidence, 
compliance, communication, and understanding. 

This is a win win situation for our patients1 fatnilie.5 and community. 

Since.rely, 

j�� 
sa ��a, MD, :ACC
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· Medical Associates of Athens
7Jl Cook Orive, Suite /JO

Athens, Ti:1111.essee 37303

Tel: (423} 746-0122

Fax: {423 J 745-9456

January 25, 2021 

Logan Grant 

Executive Director 

Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 

502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 

Andrew Jackson Building 

Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

Re: !NlTITION OF CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES FOR STARR REGIONAL 

Dear Mr, Grant, 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization services at Starr 

Regional Medical Center here in Athens, TN, where I have resided for over twenty years. My name is 

Vickie A. Turnbough, MD and I am very proud to have practiced, at different capacities, in this 

community, serving my county, McMinn, as well as surroundlng counties to include Meigs and Monroe. 

At certain times I have needed cardiac services only to have to transfer my critically patient to Knoxville 

or Lenoir City, During other times l would need to delay much needed care to coordinate a transfer with 

the patient's family members due to work schedules and transportation needs. 

It is to my great pleasure that cardiac cath services could be available in this community, thus providing 

this service closer to home. Also, most of my patients are elderly who need additional support from 

family members who cannot stay with their loved one due to the travel involved. The travel may not 

seem significant for us as providers, but to patients and their family members the travel is an enormous 

inconvenience or hardship from a financial and emotional standpoint. 

Our medical community at Starr Regional Medical Center has worked hard over the years to obtain 

multiple subspeciallties to support our community. We as providers have always looked for the medical 

needs of our community and at this juncture, we feel sure we have the need and can support the 

demand of our community for a cardiac cath services in McMinn and surrounding counties. 

Please fee free to contact me if I can be of further assistance in this endeavor. 

With Great Anticipation, 
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January 24, 2021 

Logan Grant 
Executivt) Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deadeiick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville,. TN 37243-0200 

Re: INITIATION OJ? CARDIAC CATHETERIZ/\TION SERVICES FOR ST ARR 
.REGIONAL 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

My name is Nathan Trentham, MD. I am writing this letter to lend my support for the initiation 
of cardiac catheterization services at Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens located at 1114 \V. 
Madison Ave., Athens, TN 37303. 

1: am a board certified internal medicine physici�m practicing in Etmvah, IN, This is a rural 
Tennessee community in McMinn County. I have been practicing at Internal Medicine 
Associates oflvicMinn County for over 21 years. Our patients are predominantly middle-age to 
older adults with statistically !ow to average incomes. We have a large population of Medicare 
patients as well as a significant number of TennCare patients. 

AdditionaUy f am a certified lipidologist and a Diplomate of the American Board of Clinical 
Upidology as ·well as a member of the American Society of Preventative Cardiology. My 
position herein has given me a unique oppo11:unity to observe the cardiac health and care of 
patients in our community and region. Like other counties and the state as a ,vhole, the leading 
cause of death in McMinn County is disease of the heart accounting for about 23% of our deaths. 
The CDC I and Ame1ican Heart Associaticnl have documented the increased risk of death by
cardiovascular disease in ntral comrnunities. A major cont1ibuting factor to this increased risk is 
decreased access to heal.th care services .. T have observed this to be the case in our community 
and region. 

We are geogrnphica.Il:y located in a unique position that puts us an hour or more avvay ·from the 
nearest medical centers offering catheter-based cardiac services in K.noxviI!e imd Chattanooga. 
Due to the logistics of each case, it is often the case that well over two hours have elapsed 
between the time a person experiences a heart attack in McMinn County and \Vhen they arrive at 
one of these facilities. Sad1y, the ''Golden Hour'' in which proper intervention is most effi.-�ctive · 
has been lost in many of these cases. This is true for people n.ot only in McMinn County but also 
Meigs, Monroe and Polk from which we draw many patients. 

The addition of a cardiac catheterization lab at Starr Regional Medical Center in Athens, TN 
would greatly enhance cardiac care in om community and this region. These life-saving, urgent 
interventions would now be available within that Golden Hour instead of far out of reach in 
either Knox or Hamilton Counties. Also, the families of thest: patients,, who sometirnes have 

Supplemental 1 
January 27, 2021

199
. · •··•···· ·~. -~ .. ...... . ...... ................. . 



limited means of transportation, \Vould be able to quickly reach their loved ones in Athens as 
opposed to traveling to large, imposing facilities further away. Having a cardiac catheterization 
center would heighten the; awareness of heart disease in the region and likely promote more 
rapidly seeking care. Even more is the recognition that: expert care can be delivered in McMirm 
County and the many intangible benefits that would surely follow. 

Although heart disease is the leading cause of death across the nation and the state of Tennessee, 
1Vkl\1inn County's uniqrn� geographic position and demographics make it an especially 
opportune site for a cardiac catheterization unit. Starr Regional Medical Center has the space 
and the means to support such a unit. The McMinn County region already boasts an unusually 
high level of outpatient medical services. ·rhis combination of factors makes the initiation of 
c,mliac catheterization services for Stan Regional a smart, sound investment for the people of 
Tennessee. 

Sincerely, 

Nathan C. Trentham, MD 

1 https://w\.-vw.cdc.gov/medfo/releases/2().17 /pO 112-rural-death-risk.html

2https://wvvw.ahc\joumals.org/doi/10.1161/hcq.12.suppl_l . .I 35#:~:text=The%20age%2Dadjusted
%20death11/020rate,32.4)1%20counties%3B%20see%120Figure. 
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R. SHANE ROBERTS, M.D., FAAFP �seMng Gad 
by seMng olhe� � 

398 North Main Street 
P.O. Box 709 

Decatur, TN 37322 

January 20, 2021 

RE: Cath Lab 

(423) 334-2222
Fax (423) 334-2255 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization 
service at Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., 
Athens, TN 37303

My name is R. Shane Roberts, MD. I am a Family Practice Doctor in Decatur, TN. I 
treat patients from newborn to the elderly. 

There is a real need for a cardiac catheterization service in our area. All of my patients 
must to travel a great distance to either Knoxville or Chattanooga for cardiac 
catheteriza.tion. It would be a tremendous service to our community for patients not to 
travel long distances for cardiac catheterization. 

A cardiac ca.th lab would be a great additional medical service for our community. Many 
of my patients can not travel to have tests done. Having a facility in Athens to perform 
this test will help my patients and their families, as they will have increased options to 
meet their cardiac needs in our own community. 
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R. SHANE ROBERTS1 M.D., FAAFP ·SeJVingGud 
b)' saMng ot/1ers� 

398 North Main Street 
P.O. Box 709 

Decatur, TN 37322 

January 20, 2021 

RE: Cath Lab 

(423) 334-2222
Fax(423)334-2255 

I am writing this letter to voice my suppo1t for the initiation of cardiac catheterization 
service at Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., 
Athens, TN 37303 

My name is Michelle McCluskey, MSN, APRN�BC. I am a Family Nurse Practitioner 
working with Dr. Shane Robe1ts in Decatur, TN. I treat patients from newborn to the 
elderly. 

There is a real need for a cardiac catheterization service in our area. All of my patients 
must to travel a great distance to either Knoxville or Chattanooga for cardiac 
catheterization. It would be a tremendous service to our community for patients not to 
travel long distances for cardiac catheterization. 

A cardiac cath lab would be a great additional medical service for our community. Many 
of my patients can not travel to have tests done. Having a facility in Athens to perform 
this test will help my patients and their families, as they will have increased options to 
meet their cardiac needs in our own community. 

Thank you, 

Michelle McCluskey, MSN, APRN-BC 
Family Nurse Practioner 
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January 13, 2021 

Logan Grant 
Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200

Re: INITIATION OF CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES FOR STARR 

REGIONAL 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

I am writing this letter to voice my support for the initiation of cardiac catheterization service at 
Starr Regional Medical Center -Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., Athens, TN 37303. 

• I am Stephen Miller, MD and I am a hematologist and oncologist caring for patients with
malignancies of all types at Starr Regional Cancer Center.

• I manage an elderly patient population who in addition to cancer have frequent cardiac
issues often requiring a catheterization. Presently, these patients must travel to far away
cities for cardiac caths v,rhich is difficult for them and inconvenient.

• I care for patients from small communities around McMinn County and surrounding
counties including Monroe, Meigs, Rhea and Cumberland. We need local cardiac
catheterization to provide good quality of care for our local population. If available, I
,vould like to refer my patients who need caths to Athens instead of a distant city.

• It would be a very beneficial thing for Starr Regional to be able to offer cardiac care
including catheterization. This would not only improve the medical community by
allowing timely service, it would also benefit the families and patients who prefer not to
travel long distances to areas they are unfamiliar or uncomfortable. We need this service
here in our growing medical community.

Sincerely, 
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OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

January 13, 2021 

Logan Grant, Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

RE: STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER - INITIATION OF CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES;

ATHENS, TN 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

Please accept this letter as my enthusiastic support of the application for Starr Regional Medical Center's 
project to initiate cardiac catheterization services in Athens1 TN - located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., 
Athens, TN 37303. 

The city of Athens currently shares ambulance services with five other cities and the unincorporated areas 
of McMinn County. Five ambulances run 24-hours a day and one ambulance runs 12-hours a day. In 
Athens, we average one cardiac emergency every day. The ambulances must transport cardiac 
emergencies by ground ambulance outside of the County to the closest cardiac facility - a commute of 
over 40 minutes. Transport by Air Medical rs approximately 20 minutes or more. The turnaround time 
for ground transportation is usually two hours which at times has left our communities without ambulance 
service regularly. 

Time is of the essence in these cardiac emergencies. Starr Regional Medical Center's initiation of cardiac 
catherization services will allow patients to receive treatment in a fraction of the time it would take to 
transport them to a cardiac facility outside the city. Family members will also benefit from having the 
service provided locally. Lastly, reducing the number of ground ambulance transports outside the County 
will allow our ambulances to remain in the City and respond quickly to other emergency medical calls. 

Genuinely, 

C. SETH SUMNER

CITY MANAGER
815 NORTH JACKSON STREET 

ATHENS, TENNESSEE 37303 
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,January 13, 2021 

Logan Grant 
Executive Director 
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency 
502 Deaderick Street, 9th Floor 
Andrew Jackson Building 
Nashville, TN 37243-0200 

Re: INITIATION OF CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION SERVICES FOR STARR 
REGIONAL 

Dear Mr. Grant: 

I am writing this letter to voice my suppoit for the initiation of cardiac catheterization services 
for Starr Regional Medical Center - Athens located at 1114 W. Madison Ave., Athens, TN 37303. 

• I am Rev. David Spann with Athens Nazarene Church and Chaplain at Star Regional
Medical Center. The congregation of my church is older and many of them suffer with
heart conditions of one type or another including myself, Just this year I had a
pacemaker implanted. As a whole the McMinn County population is older than the
median age of the State of Tennessee as well is much of the population of the
neighboring counties.

• In my neighborhood alone I have six neighbors that all have heart conditions that
require the travel to Knoxville or Chattanooga for treatment. Fortunately we have
cardiologist that have satellite offices in the Athens area so it is not necessary for those
needing treatment to travel to out of the county to make routine doctor visits.

• This project will provide advanced cardiology services in McMinn, Meigs, and Monroe
Counties. This is especially important for the significant elderly and disable portions of
our community for whom travel and transportation is difficult.

• Locally available advanced cardiac services would dramatically reduce the stress and
strain on our communities elderly and disabled currently required to received essential
treatment. Available transportation is very limited and has substantial restrictions. Not
to mention the hours of driving and waiting that they must face.

• If Starr Regional was able to provide these services it would be the only facility within ;w
miles with these resources.

I fully support this application for the initiation of cardiac catheterization and urge you to 
approve the application. Thank you for your consideration. 

a��-,..__ __

f� -...--. .-- hurcli',_J
Chaplain - Starr Regional Medical Center. 
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Section B. l, Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization), Item 3 
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Starr Regional Medical Center Transfer Request -PCI Complication 

Possibility of transfer for emergent surgery from Starr Regional Medical Center Cath lab 

Starr Cath lab designee calls Tertiary Provider Patient Access for auto acceptance of an 

emergent transfer from their cath-lab. Designee will remain on the line. Demographics 

to be faxed; inform patient access if patient has an IABP or other life support therapy in 

Tertiary Care 

Provider 

Dispatches 

Critical Care 

Transport Unit

Starr Stand-By 

Unit of transfer. 

place. 

Patient Access immediately calls: 

•Tertiary Dispatch via phone call and informs them of pending

emergent transfer from the cath lab at Starr Regional Medical Center

and if patient has an IABP or other life support therapy in place.

•Cardiovascular Surgeon's scheduler asks for contact number for the

on-call Surgeon. Cardiovascular surgeon's scheduler will remain on

the line.

Patient Access calls Cardiovascular surgeon on call and communicates need for emergent 

surgical consult. 

Patient Access notifies Starr Cath Lab Designee that the Cardiovascular surgeon is on the 

line for conference call with interventionalist performing procedure. Receiving location 

will be confirmed at the end of conference call. 

Cardiovascular surgeon scheduler 

notifies Cardiovascular surgeon's RN 

to make arrangements for operating 

room and/or ICU bed for further 

evaluation. 

Patient Access notifies Clinical Administrator of the 

receiving location (OR or ICU), and of availability of 

beds, receiving unit of MR and patient Account number. 

t 
Critical Care transport unit will notify the Cardiovascular 

Surgeon/Charge Nurse oftheir ETA and patient condition 

no less than 15 minutes of arrival from Tertiary Facility 

and advise dispatch of any special needs at parking. 

l 
Transport Unit arrives at Tertiary Facility, releases care to 

receiving location/nurse. 
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Section B.1, Need (Specific Criteria - Cardiac Catheterization), Item 10 
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1/26/2021 

Select County(s) (required) 

All Counties 

Anderson County 

Bedford County 

Benton County 

Bledsoe County 

Blount County 

Bradley County 

Campbell County 

Cannon County 

Carroll County 

Submit 

Apply Filters ( Optional) 

M UA/P Status 

� Designated 

D Proposed for Withdrawal 

D Withdrawn 

MUA/P Designation/Population Types 

� Medically Underserved Area 

� All Medically Underserved Populations 

� MUP Low Income 

� MUP Medicaid Eligible 

� MUP Low Income Homeless 

� MUP Homeless 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find 

MUA Find 

.,,. 

e 

e 
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J 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find


1/26/2021 
I 

� MUP Low Income Migrant Farmworker 

� MUP Low Income Migrant Seasonal Worker 

� MUP Native Americah 

� MUP Other 

� All Governor's Exceptioris 

� MUA-Governor's EJeption 

� MUP-Low Income qovernor's Exception 

� MUP Medicaid Eligib\e Governor's Exception 

� MUP Other Populati6n Governor's Exception 

� MUP Other Populatijn Governor's Exception 

Rural Status 

� Rural 

� Partially Rural 

� Non-Rural 

� Unknown 

Update Date 

From MM/DD/YYYY 

I 

MUA Find 

e 

e 

� 

To MM/DD/YYYY � 

Export Data xLsx PDF 

I 
httos://dFJtFJ.hrsFJ.aov/tools/shortaae-area/muacfind 3/5 
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1/26/2021 

Discipline 0 MUA/P ID 

0 

Care 

® Primary 1473228960 

Care 

® Primary 1478995766 

Care 

® Primary 1476111867 

Care 

® Primary 1472187842 

Care 

® Primary 03219 

Care 

® Primary 03220 

Care 

® Primary 1479195536 

Care 

® Primary 1478877019 

Care 

® Primary 1478708962 

Care 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find 

MUA Find 

Service Area Name 0 

Marshall County 

MCNAIRY SERVICE AREA 

Meigs County 

MONROE SERVICE AREA 

MONTGOMERY SERVICE AREA 

Moore County 

Morgan County 

Northwest Shelby-Millington 

NW Memphis Frayser/Raleigh 

-···--- ··---- · ·-·

Designation Type 0 

Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 
Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

Medically Underserved 
Area 

Medically Underserved 

Area 

-· -·-- - ----------·····-----.-· ··---------·---•---

Primary State 

NameO 

.... 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

Tennessee 

A: 
.... i 

► 
•------••"""'"•••-�•-- •----·--·---- ·-·-·····---··----··--· ,_ 

4/5 
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https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find


1/26/2021 MUA Find 

AboutHRSA 

HRSA programs provide health care to people who are geographically isolated, economically or medically vulnerable. This includes people 

living with HIV/AIDS, pregnant women, mothers and their families, and those otherwise unable to access high quality health care. HRSA also 

supports access to health care in rural areas, the training of health professionals, the distribution of providers to areas where they are needed 

most, and improvements in health care delivery. Learn more about HRSA » (https://www.hrsa.gov) 

About Us (https://data.hrsa.gov/about) 

About the Data (https://data.hrsa.gov/data/about) 

A to Z Index (https://data.hrsa.gov/a-to-z) 

Site Map (https://data.hrsa.gov/site-map) 

What's New (https://data.hrsa.gov/whats-new) 

HRSA (https://data.hrsa.gov/)

Data Warehouse 

https://data.hrsa.Qov/tools/shortaQe-area/mua-find 

(� (https://www.hhs.gov) 
�� 

A 
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1/26/2021 MUA Find 

4- Health Resources & Services Administration (https://www.hrsa.gov}

Home(/) > Tools > Find Shortage Areas (/tools/shortage-area) > MUA Find

MUAFind 

Medically Underserved Areas/Populations are areas or populations designated by HRSA as having too 
few primary care providers, high infant mortality, high poverty or a high elderly population. Health 
Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) are designated by HRSA as having shortages of primary 
medical care, dental or mental health providers and may be geographic (a county or service area), 
population ( e.g. low income or Medicaid eligible) or facilities ( e.g. federally qualified health center or 
other state or federal prisons). More about shortage areas (https://bhw.hrsa.gov/shortage
designation).. 

Search 

Select a State/Territory (required) 

Tennessee 

-• ••--•so• •• , • • • • ~  - ~•-• ••• • • �-•• 

https:1/data.hrsa.Qov/tools/shortaQe-area/mua-find 

MUA ID Search 

1/5 
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1/26/2021 

Select County(s) (required) 
l�IUUIJVII '-VUIIT.J 

Marion County 

Marshall County 

, Maury County 

McMinn County 

McNairy County 

Meigs County 

, Monroe County 

Montgomery County 

Moore County 

Morgan County 

Submit 

Apply Filters (Optional) 

M UA/P Status 

e'A Designated 

0 Proposed for Withdrawal 

D Withdrawn 

MUA/P Designation/Population Types 

1 � Medically Underserved Area 

� All Medically Underserved Populations 

� MUP Low Income 

� MUP Medicaid Eligible 

� MUP Low Income Homeless 

� MUP Homeless 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find 

MUA Find 

..... 

e 

e 
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... 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find


1/26/2021 

rJ MUP Low Income Migrant Farmworker 

rJ MUP Low Income Migrant Seasonal Worker 

rJ MUP Native American 

rJ MUP Other 

rJ All Governor's Exceptions 

rJ MUA- Governor's Exception 

rJ MUP- Low Income Governor's Exception 

rJ MUP Medicaid Eligible Governor's Exception 

rJ MUP Other Population Governor's Exception 

rJ MUP Other Population Governor's Exception 

Rural Status 

rJ Rural 

rJ Partially Rural 

rJ Non-Rural 

rJ Unknown 

Update Date 

From MM/DD/YYYY 

To MM/DD/YYYY 

https://data.hrsa.qov/tools/shortaqe-area/mua-find 

MUA Find 

e 

e.l
� .] 
� 

Export Data xLsx PDF 

A 
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1/26/2021 MUA Find 

Discipline 0 MUA/P ID Service Area Name 0 Designation Type 0 Primary State CountyO 

0 NameO 

® Primary 1479877773 LI - McMinn County MUP Low Income Tennessee McMinn County 

Care TN 

► 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find 4/5 
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1/26/2021 MUAFind 

AboutHRSA 

HRSA programs provide health care to people who are geographically isolated, economically or medically vulnerable. This includes people
living with HIV/AIDS, pregnant women, mothers and their families, and those otherwise unable to access high quality health care. HRSA also
supports access to health care in rural areas, the training of health professionals, the distribution of providers to areas where they are needed
most, and improvements in health care delivery. Learn more about HRSA » (https://www.hrsa.gov)

About Us (https://data.hrsa.gov/about)

About the Data (https://data.hrsa.gov/data/about)

A to Z Index (https://data.hrsa.gov/a-to-z)

Site Map (https://data.hrsa.gov/site-map)

What's New (https://data.hrsa.gov/whats-new)

HRSA (https://data.hrsa.gov/)
Data Warehouse 

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/mua-find 

(� (https://www.hhs.gov)
,;�� 

A 
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Section B, Contribution to Orderly Development, Item 1, Page 63 

Transfer Agreements 
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STARR REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER 

TRANSFER AGREEMENTS 

FACILITY: 

Hospital Location & Date of Aqreement 

Blount Memorial Hospital Marvville, TN; August 1998 
Doctors Hospital of Augusta Augusta, GA, May 2013 

East Tennessee Children's Hospital Knoxville, TN; September 2011 

Erlanqer Medical Center Chattanooqa, TN; October 2008 

Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center Knoxville, TN; June 1997 

Ft. Loudon Medical Center Loudon, TN; June 1998 
Kindred Hospital-Chattanooqa Chattanooqa, TN; June 1998 

Memorial Hospital Chattanooga, TN; July 1, 2010 

Mercy Medical Center St. Mary's Knoxville, TN; September 1997 

Moccasin Bend Mental Health Institute Chattanooqa, TN; June 1998 

Parkridqe East Hospital Chattanooqa, TN; May 1998 

Parkridge Medical Center Chattanooga, TN; September 1996 

Parkridqe Medical Center Chattanooqa, TN; May 1999 
Parkridqe Valley Hospital Chattanooqa, TN; June 1998 

Parkwest Medical Center Knoxville, TN; October 1996 

St Thomas Health System Nashville, TN, October 2019 

Sweetwater Hospital Association Sweetwater, TN; June 1998 

TC Thompson Children's Hospital Chattanooqa, TN; September 2005 

Tennova Cleveland Cleveland, TN, April 2019 

Tennova Healthcare Knoxville, TN; July 2017 
University of Tennessee Medical Center Knoxville, TN; August 2014 

Vanderbilt University Hospital Nashville, TN; March 2007 

Nursinq Home Location & Date of Aqreement 

Decatur Wellness & Rehab Decatur, TN; June 2019 

Life Care Center of Athens Athens, TN; March 2010 

NHC Healthcare of Athens Athens, TN; May 2002 
Sprinq City Care & Rehab Sprinq City, TN; May 2012 

Sweetwater Nursing Center Sweetwater, TN; December 2001 

Assisted Livinq Facility Location & Date of Aqreement 
Athens Place Athens, TN; December 2005 

Morning Pointe Athens, TN; November 1997 

Serene Manor Medical Center Knoxville, TN,; May 2017 
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STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON 

AFFIDAVIT 

"-K=im
-'-'--'-

H
"'"'"
.
--=
L=o

-=-
o

-'-'-
ne

.:;..
y
,__ 

__ , being first duly sworn, says that he/she is the applicant named in this 
application or his/her/its lawful agent, that this project will be completed in accordance with the 
application, that the applicant has read the directions to this application, the Rules of the Health 
Services and Development Agency, and TC.A.§ 68-11-1601, et seq., and that the responses to 
this application or any other questions deemed appropriate by the Health Services and 
Development Agency are true and complete. 

dJd_.;___Jt. di# 
SIGNATURE/TITLE 

Sworn to and .�HP.�Fibed before me this c). 7 -b. day of �. , d: o o?.l a Notary
,.-.•••e.-' �- ';;••• (Month) (Year) 

Public in.�-tot11ie'�nty/State of LJOP\ti-.Q)o I 7"00 N s.se";., 
l�•· STATE •• o\ , 
: t11: OF ••-,. � . 

i ! TENNESSEE: �
: • NOTARY • :
\ :•. PUBLIC .. � j

!-v� ,,..v • •• ' .... !\, 
> (! '•,1 "'10

° • • • • • �� ••• � 
"♦ '•• SON cC ,,,, , .
• ,, ............... "II-· 110n Eapi••' 

My commission expires, _....,_3�\
..,,.
8 ___ , atJ� 

(Morlth/Day) (Year) 

4813-2574-7658.15 

71R 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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January 29, 2021 Kim H. Looney 
Partner 
kim. looney@klgates.com 

T +1 615 780 6726 

Phillip Earhart 
Deputy Director 
State of Tennessee, Health Services 
and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor 
500 Deaderick St. 
Nashville, TN 37219 

Re: Certificate of Need Application CN2101-001 

Initiation of Diagnostic and Interventional Cardiac Catheterization Procedures 

Dear Phillip: 

K&L GA TES LLP 

1. Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 3, Historical Data Charts

The Total Facility Historical Data Chart on page 47R is noted. However, please clarify 

why there was a negative amount ($5,108,674) designated in 2020 for "other operating 

expenses". In addition, please clarify what the expenses represent? 

RESPONSE: The negative amount on the "other operating expenses" on the Facility 

Historical data chart for year 2020 includes $6,509,446 of CARES funds received by the 

facility related to the Coronavirus stimulus programs. This number is being used to 

offset the expenses for which it was received. 

2. Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data Charts)

Project Only Projected Data chart 

Please remove the totals of $515,471 for Year 2022, $523,203 for Year 2023, and 

$531,051 for Year 2024 for Salaries and Wages in the Projected Data Chart. Please correct 

and submit a replacement page 49 (labeled as 49R2). 

222 SECOND AVE. SOUTH, SUITE 1700 

T +1 615 780 6700 F +1 615780 6799 klgates.com 

308892301.1 
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RESPONSE: Please see revised Projected Data Chart, replacement page 49, 49R2 

included as Attachment Section B, Economic Feasibility, Item 4 (Projected Data Charts). 

3. Total Facility Projected Data Chart

Net Income in the amount of $26,624,495 for Year 2022 on page 51R is incorrect. Please 

correct and submit a corrected page 51 (labeled as 51R2). 

RESPONSE: Please see a revised Total Facility Projected Data Chart, page 51R2, 

included as Attachment Total Facility Projected Data Chart. 

4. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 7, Page 55

The payor mix charts on page 55 are incorrectly calculated. Please correct and submit a
replacement page 55 (labeled as 55R2).

Please clarify why there is no charity care designated in the Total Facility Projected Payor
Mix Chart on page 55.

RESPONSE: The Total Facility Projected Payor Mix Chart has been corrected to reflect 

the Provision for Charity Care from Line C. 2. Please see page 55R2 included as 

Attachment Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 7, Page 55. 

Very truly yours, 

Kim H. Looney 

Partner 

KHL/bb 

308892301.1 

308892301.1 

January 28, 2021 
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STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COUNTY OF Davidson 

AFFIDAVIT 

NAME OF FACILITY: Starr Regional Medical Center 

I, KIM H. LOONEY, after first being duly sworn, state under oath that I am the applicant 

named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that I have 

reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true, 

accurate, and complete. 

Sworn to and sub,�
1
9r,ibed before me, a Notary Public, this the 29th day of January, 2021, witness 

,,,. ,, ,, 
��RA ,,,, my hand a}·��-s•ln•t�J:2�.unty of Davidson, State of Tennessee.

f q,.. STATE •_'<;,_ \ : : T OF :o: 
: • Etvtvfss,,. • " : • • No cE • •c: • TARy • :

• •  o • Pue • • ��-,, • Lie • :,� • k • • .., 
o., "',., 't> •••••••• � .,., .. ' 
"� ',,,so"' coll�"' ,,. �"' 

11. ,,, ,,, 'l,� 
'"" ,,,,,. .. ,,.. ,, 

t,p,,es .. ��-

My commission expires March 8, 2022. 

HF-0043 

Revised 7 /02 

60-&'o<AAA Q,_�� 
BARBARA A. BLACK, NOTARY 
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State of Tennessee 
Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor 
502 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, TN 37243 
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884 

LETTER OF INTENT 

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the The Daily Post Athenian 
(Name of N ewspaper 

which is a newspaper 

of general circulation in MC:Mlnn , Tennessee, on or before 
(County) 

for one day. 

Januaiy 8, 2021 
(Month/Day) (Year) 

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, 
in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 et seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development 
Agency, that: 

Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens 
(Name of Applicant) 

An acute care hospital 
(Facility Type-Existing) 

Athens Regional Medical 
owned by: Center, LLC with an ownership type of limited liability company 

and to be managed by: _1_·ts_el_f ____ _ intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need 

for [PROJECT DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: 

The initiation of diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catheterization services at Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens, 
located at 1114 W. Madison Avenue, McMinn County, Athens, Tennessee 37303. The cost of the project is 
approximately $5.1 million. 

the The anticipated date of f iling 
application is on or before: _ _ __ J.,_an_ u_ary_,__1_3 .... , _ ___ , 20 21 

The contact person for this project is Kim H. Looney, Esq. Attorney 

who may be reached at: 

Nashville 

(Contact Name) 

K & L Gates, LLP 
(Company Name) 

TN 37201 
(State) (Zip Code) 

January 8, 2021 
(Date) 

(Title) 

222 Second Avenue S., Suite 1700 
(Address) 

615 / 780-6727 - - --- -----:--:~----:-,---,---,----
(Are a Code) (Phone Number) 

K.im.Looney@klgates.com 
(Email-Address) 

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the 
month. If the last day for filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the 
preceding business day. File this form at the following address: 

Health Services and Development Agency 
Andrew Jackson Building, 9th Floor 

502 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health 
care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and 
Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development 
Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to oppose the application 
must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to the consideration of the 
application by the Agency. 

HF51 (revised 01/09/2013- all forms prior to this date are obsolete.) 

4825-8331-8484.2 
308600221 v1 
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0720-11-.01 General Criteria for Certificate of Need 

0720-11-.01 GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED. The Agency will consider the 
following general criteria in determining whether an application for a certificate of need should be granted: 

( 1) Need. The health care needed in the area to be served may be evaluated upon the following 
factors: 

(a) The relationship of the proposal to any existing applicable plans; 

(b) The population served by the proposal; 

(c) The existing or certified services or institutions in the area; 

(d) The reasonableness of the service area; 

(e) The special needs of the service area population, including the accessibility to 
consumers, particularly women, racial and ethnic minorities, TennCare participants, and 
low-income groups; 

(f) Comparison of utilization/occupancy trends and services offered by other area 
providers; 

(g) The extent to which Medicare, Medicaid, TennCare, medically indigent, charity care 
patients and low income patients will be served by the project. In determining whether 
this criteria is met, the Agency shall consider how the applicant has assessed that 
providers of services which will operate in conjunction with the project will also meet 
these needs. 

(2) Economic Factors. The probability that the proposal can be economically accomplished and 
maintained may be evaluated upon the following factors: 

(a) Whether adequate funds are available to the applicant to complete the project; 

(b) The reasonableness of the proposed project costs; 

(c) Anticipated revenue from the proposed project and the impact on existing patient 
charges; 

(d) Participation in state/federal revenue programs; 

(e) Alternatives considered; and 

(f) The availability of less costly or more effective alternative methods of providing the 
benefits intended by the proposal. 
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(3) Quality. Whether the proposal will provide health care that meets appropriate quality 
standards may be evaluated upon the following factors: 

(a) Whether the applicant commits to maintaining an actual payor mix that is comparable to 
the payer mix projected in its CON application, particularly as it relates to Medicare, 
TennCare/Medicaid, Charity Care, and the Medically Indigent; 

(b) Whether the applicant commits to maintaining staffing comparable to the staffing chart 
presented in its CON application; 

(c) Whether the applicant will obtain and maintain all applicable state licenses in good 
standing; 

(d) Whether the applicant will obtain and maintain TennCare and Medicare certification(s), 
if participation in such programs was indicated in the application; 

(e) Whether an existing healthcare institution applying for a CON has maintained 
substantial compliance with applicable federal and state regulation for the three years 
prior to the CON application. In the event of non-compliance, the nature of non
compliance and corrective action shall be considered; 

(f) Whether an existing health care institution applying for a CON has been decertified 
within the prior three years. This provision shall not apply if a new, unrelated owner 
applies for a CON related to a previously decertified facility; 

(g) Whether the applicant will participate, within 2 years of implementation of the project, in 
self-assessment and external peer assessment processes used by health care 
organizations to accurately assess their level of performance in relation to established 
standards and to implement ways to continuously improve. 

1. This may include accreditation by any organization approved by Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and other nationally recognized 
programs. The Joint Commission or its successor, for example, would be 
acceptable if applicable. Other acceptable accrediting organizations may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

(i) Those having the same accrediting standards as the licensed hospital of 
which it will be a department, for a Freestanding Emergency Department; 

(ii) Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care, and where 
applicable, American Association for Accreditation of Ambulatory Surgical 
Facilities, for Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center projects; 

(iii) Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), for 
Comprehensive Inpatient Rehabilitation Services and Inpatient Psychiatric 
projects; 

(iv) American Society of Therapeutic Radiation and Oncology (ASTRO), the 
American College of Radiology (ACR), the American College of Radiation 
Oncology (AGRO), National Cancer Institute (NCI), or a similar accrediting 
authority, for Megavoltage Radiation Therapy projects; 

(v) American College of Radiology, for Positron Emission Tomography, 
Magnetic Resonance Imaging and Outpatient Diagnostic Center projects; 
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(vi) Community Health Accreditation Program, Inc., Accreditation Commission 
for Health Care, or another accrediting body with deeming authority for 
hospice services from CMS or state licensing survey, and/or other third 
party quality oversight organization, for Hospice projects; 

(vii) Behavioral Health Care accreditation by the Joint Commission for 
Nonresidential Substitution Based Treatment Center, for Opiate Addiction 
projects; 

(viii) American Society of Transplantation or Scientific Registry of Transplant 
Recipients, for Organ Transplant projects; 

(ix) Joint Commission or another appropriate accrediting authority recognized 
by CMS, or other nationally recognized accrediting organization, for a 
Cardiac Catheterization project that is not required by law to be licensed by 
the Department of Health; 

(x) Participation in the National Cardiovascular Data Registry, for any Cardiac 
Catheterization project; 

(xi) Participation in the National Burn Repository, for Burn Unit projects; 

(xii) Community Health Accreditation Program, Inc., Accreditation Commission 
for Health Care, and/or other accrediting body with deeming authority for 
home health services from CMS and participation in the Medicare Quality 
Initiatives, Outcome and Assessment Information Set, and Home Health 
Compare, or other nationally recognized accrediting organization, for Home 
Health projects; and 

(xiii) Participation in the National Palliative Care Registry, for Hospice projects. 

(h) For Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center projects, whether the applicant has 
estimated the number of physicians by specialty expected to utilize the facility, 
developed criteria to be used by the facility in extending surgical and anesthesia 
privileges to medical personnel, and documented the availability of appropriate and 
qualified staff that will provide ancillary support services, whether on- or off-site. 

(i) For Cardiac Catheterization projects: 

1. Whether the applicant has documented a plan to monitor the quality of its cardiac 
catheterization program, including but not limited to, program outcomes and 
efficiencies; 

2. Whether the applicant has agreed to cooperate with quality enhancement efforts 
sponsored or endorsed by the State of Tennessee, which may be developed per 
Policy Recommendation; and 

3. Whether the applicant will staff and maintain at least one cardiologist who has 
performed 75 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years (for an adult 
program), and 50 cases annually averaged over the previous 5 years (for a 
pediatric program). 

U) For Open Heart projects: 
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1. Whether the applicant will staff with the number of cardiac surgeons who will 
perform the volume of cases consistent with the State Health Plan (annual 
average of the previous 2 years), and whether the applicant will maintain this 
volume in the future; 

2. Whether the applicant will staff and maintain at least one surgeon with 5 years of 
experience; 

3. Whether the applicant will participate in a data reporting, quality improvement, 
outcome monitoring, and peer review system that benchmarks outcomes based 
on national norms, with such a system providing for peer review among 
professionals practicing in facilities and programs other than the applicant 
hospital (demonstrated active participation in the STS National Database is 
expected and shall be considered evidence of meeting this standard); 

(k) For Comprehensive Inpatient Rehabilitation Services projects, whether the applicant will 
have a board-certified physiatrist on staff (preferred); 

(I) For Home Health projects, whether the applicant has documented its existing or 
proposed plan for quality data reporting, quality improvement, and an outcome and 
process monitoring system; 

(m) For Hospice projects, whether the applicant has documented its existing or proposed 
plan for quality data reporting, quality improvement, and an outcome and process 
monitoring system; 

(n) For Megavoltage Radiation Therapy projects, whether the applicant has demonstrated 
that it will meet the staffing and quality assurance requirements of the American Society 
of Therapeutic Radiation and Oncology (ASTRO), the American College of Radiology 
(ACR), the American College of Radiation Oncology (ACRO), National Cancer Institute 
(NCI), or a similar accrediting authority; 

(o) For Neonatal Intensive Care Unit projects, whether the applicant has documented its 
existing or proposed plan for data reporting, quality improvement, and outcome and 
process monitoring system; whether the applicant has documented the intention and 
ability to comply with the staffing guidelines and qualifications set forth by the 
Tennessee Perinatal Care System Guidelines for Regionalization, Hospital Care Levels, 
Staffing and Facilities; and whether the applicant will participate in the Tennessee 
Initiative for Perinatal Quality Care (TIPQC); 

(p) For Nursing Home projects, whether the applicant has documented its existing or 
proposed plan for data reporting, quality improvement, and outcome and process 
monitoring systems, including in particular details on its Quality Assurance and 
Performance Improvement program. As an alternative to the provision of third party 
accreditation information, applicants may provide information on any other state, 
federal, or national quality improvement initiatives; 

(q) For Inpatient Psychiatric projects: 

1. Whether the applicant has demonstrated appropriate accommodations for 
patients (e.g., for seclusion/restraint of patients who present management 
problems and children who need quiet space; proper sleeping and bathing 
arrangements for all patients), adequate staffing (i.e. , that each unit will be staffed 
with at least two direct patient care staff, one of which shall be a nurse, at all 
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times), and how the proposed staffing plan will lead to quality care of the patient 
population served by the project; 

2. Whether the applicant has documented its existing or proposed plan for data 
reporting, quality improvement, and outcome and process monitoring system; 
and 

3. Whether an applicant that owns or administers other psychiatric facilities has 
provided information on satisfactory surveys and quality improvement programs 
at those facilities. 

(r) For Freestanding Emergency Department projects, whether the applicant has 
demonstrated that it will satisfy and maintain compliance with standards in the State 
Health Plan; 

(s) For Organ Transplant projects, whether the applicant has demonstrated that it will 
satisfy and maintain compliance with standards in the State Health Plan; and 

(t) For Relocation and/or Replacement of Health Care Institution projects: 

1. For hospital projects, Acute Care Bed Need Services measures are applicable; 
and 

2. For all other healthcare institutions, applicable facility and/or service specific 
measures are applicable. 

(u) For every CON issued on or after the effective date of this rule, reporting shall be made 
to the Health Services and Development Agency each year on the anniversary date of 
implementation of the CON, on forms prescribed by the Agency. Such reporting shall 
include an assessment of each applicable volume and quality standard and shall 
include results of any surveys or disciplinary actions by state licensing agencies, 
payors, CMS, and any self-assessment and external peer assessment processes in 
which the applicant participates or participated within the year, which are relevant to the 
health care institution or service authorized by the certificate of need. The existence 
and results of any remedial action, including any plan of correction, shall also be 
provided. 

(v) HSDA will notify the applicant and any applicable licensing agency if any volume or 
quality measure has not been met. 

(w) Within one month of notification the applicant must submit a corrective action plan and 
must report on the progress of the plan within one year of that submission. 

(4) Contribution to the Orderly Development of Adequate and Effective Healthcare Facilities 
and/or Services. The contribution which the proposed project will make to the orderly 
development of an adequate and effective health care system may be evaluated upon the 
following factors: 

(a) The relationship of the proposal to the existing health care system (for example: 
transfer agreements, contractual agreements for health services, the applicant's 
proposed TennCare participation, affiliation of the project with health professional 
schools); 

(b) The positive or negative effects attributed to duplication or competition; and 
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(c) The availability and accessibility of human resources required by the proposal, including 
consumers and related providers. 

(5) Applications for Change of Site. When considering a certificate of need application which is 
limited to a request for a change of site for a proposed new health care institution, The 
Agency may consider, in addition to the foregoing factors, the following factors: 

(a) Need. The applicant should show the proposed new site will serve the health care 
needs in the area to be served at least as well as the original site. The applicant should 
show that there is some significant legal, financial, or practical need to change to the 
proposed new site. 

(b) Economic factors. The applicant should show that the proposed new site would be at 
least as economically beneficial to the population to be served as the original site. 

(c) Quality of Health Care to be provided. The applicant should show the quality of health 
care to be provided will be served at least as well as the original site. 

(d) Contribution to the orderly development of health care facilities and/or services. The 
applicant should address any potential delays that would be caused by the proposed 
change of site, and show that any such delays are outweighed by the benefit that will be 
gained from the change of site by the population to be served. 

(6) Certificate of need conditions. In accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1609, The Agency, in its 
discretion, may place such conditions upon a certificate of need it deems appropriate and 
enforceable to meet the applicable criteria as defined in statute and in these rules. 

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 4-5-202, 4-5-208, 68-11-1605, 68-11-1609, and 2016 Tenn. Pub. Acts Ch. 1043. 
Administrative History: Original rule filed August 31 , 2005; effective November 14, 2005. Emergency 
rule filed May 31, 2017; effective through November 27, 2017. 
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CERTIFICATE OF NEED 
REVIEWED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH 

Division of Policy, Planning and 
Assessment Office of Health Statistics 

615-741-1954 
 

DATE: April 31, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens 
CON# CN2101-001 

 
CONTACT PERSON:    Kim Looney  
      K&L Gates, LLP 
      222 Second Ave S. Suite 1700 
      Nashville, TN 37201 

 
COST: $5,050,000 

 

In accordance with Section 68-11-1608(a) of the Tennessee Health Services and Planning Act of 2002, the 
Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Health Statistics, reviewed this certificate of need application 
for financial impact, TennCare participation, compliance with Tennessee’s Health: Guidelines for Growth, 
2000 Edition, and verified certain data. Additional clarification or comment relative to the application is 
provided, as applicable, under the heading “Note to Agency Members.” 

 
SUMMARY: 
The applicant, Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens(SRMCA), seeks Certificate of Need (CON) approval for 
the initiation of cardiac catheterization services to include the diagnostic category as well as  therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services.   Services will be performed at the hospital located on the hospital campus  in McMinn 
County, 1114 W. Madison Avenue, Athens, TN 37303. 
 
This application will serve primarily residents of McMinn, Meigs, and Monroe counties.  There are currently no 
cardiac catherization services available in the service area. 
 
The applicant is owned by Athens regional Medical Center, LLC.  
 

 
GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED 

 
The applicant responded to all of the general criteria for Certificate of Need as set forth in the document 
Tennessee’s Health: Guidelines for Growth, 2000 Edition. 

 
NEED: 
Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens is a 118-bed acute care hospital located in McMinn County in southeast 
Tennessee.  The applicant’s primary service includes McMinn, Meigs, and Monroe Counties. 
 

Service Area Total Population Projections  
County 2021 Population 2023 Population % 

Increase/ 
 McMinn 54,007 54,420 0.8% 

Meigs 12,540 12,687 1.2% 
Monroe 47,278 47,797 1.1% 
Totals 113,825 114,904 1.0% 

Source: The University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic Research Population Projection Data Files, 
Reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning and Assessment. 

2017 Revised UTCBER Population Projection Series. 
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There are currently no other facilities which offer cardiac catheterization services in the three-county service 
area, nor within approximately 50 miles of the Starr hospital campus.  Residents must travel far distances and 
take considerable time to receive these services.   
 
 

Patient Out-migration from the proposed service area to facilities 
outside the service area 

Number of Visits Cardiac Cath Procedures by Hospital by residents from McMinn, Meigs, 
Monroe, and Polk  –  Tennessee 2016 - 2018 

       

Service 
County 

Hospital Name Tennessee Resident County Total 
Visits MCMI

NN 
MEI
GS 

MONR
OE 

POL
K 

Anderson Methodist Medical Center of Oak Ridge 206 150 257 * ** 
Blount Blount Memorial Hospital 1,321 71 21,176 67 22,635 
Bradley Tennova Healthcare-Cleveland(Main) 9,883 4,53

4 
763 14,1

84 
29,364 

Coffee Harton Regional Medical Center * * * * * 
Cumberland Cumberland Medical Center 29 24 41 * ** 
Davidson TriStar Southern Hills Medical Center * * * * 17 
Davidson Nashville General Hospital * * * * 14 
Davidson Saint Thomas Midtown Hospital 33 * * * 54 
Davidson Saint Thomas West Hospital 24 * 49 * 87 
Davidson Vanderbilt University Hospital 987 209 756 278 2,230 
Davidson TriStar Centennial Medical Center 53 20 33 25 131 
Davidson TriStar Skyline Medical Center 19 * 13 23 ** 
Davidson TriStar Summit Medical Center 13 * * * 33 
Dickson TriStar Horizon Medical Center * * * * 14 
Dyer West Tennessee Healthcare Dyersburg 

Hospital 
* * * * * 

Franklin Southern TN Reg. Health Sys.- Winchester * * * * * 
Greene Greeneville Community Hospital East * * * * 12 
Hamblen Morristown-Hamblen Healthcare System 18 * 36 * 61 
Hamilton Erlanger Medical Center - Baroness 5,167 2,44

3 
703 4,17

4 
12,487 

Hamilton Erlanger East Hospital 901 595 71 762 2,329 
Hamilton CHI Memorial Hospital Chattanooga 2,217 1,89

4 
181 2,32

9 
6,621 

Hamilton Parkridge Medical Center 360 305 56 478 1,199 
Henry Henry County Medical Center 0 0 * * * 
Knox Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center 1,217 214 2,054 60 3,545 
Knox Tennova Healthcare Physicians Regional M C 326 53 367 17 763 
Knox The University of Tennessee Medical Center 7,492 842 12,900 504 21,738 
Knox Parkwest Medical Center 6,316 1,24

7 
8,381 196 16,140 
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Knox Tennova Healthcare Turkey Creek M C 1,127 268 1,971 58 3,424 
Knox Tennova Healthcare North Knoxville M C 108 17 154 13 292 
Madison Jackson-Madison Cnty. General Hospital * * * 0 * 
Madison West Tennessee Healthcare North Hospital 0 0 0 * * 
Maury Maury Regional Medical Center * 0 12 0 ** 
Montgomery Tennova Healthcare - Clarksville * 0 * * * 
Putnam Cookeville Regional Medical Center 41 ** 34 * 94 
Roane Roane Medical Center 89 382 83 * 563 
Robertson NorthCrest Medical Center * * * * * 
Rutherford St. Thomas Rutherford Hospital 38 * 19 * 69 
Rutherford TriStar Stonecrest Medical Center 15 * * * 36 
Sevier LeConte Medical Center 89 29 137 12 267 
Shelby Baptist Memorial Hospital-Memphis * 0 0 * * 
Shelby Methodist Le Bonheur Germantown Hospital 0 0 * 0 * 
Shelby Regional One Health * 0 * 0 * 
Shelby Methodist Hospital-South 0 0 0 * * 
Shelby Methodist University Hospital * 0 * * 14 
Shelby LeBonheur Children Medical Center * 0 * * * 
Shelby Saint Francis Hospital * 0 * 0 * 
Shelby Saint Francis Hospital-Bartlett * * * 0 * 
Sullivan Bristol Regional Medical Center * * * 0 * 
Sullivan Holston Valley Medical Center 18 * 14 * 41 
Sullivan Indian Path Medical Center * * * * 13 
Sumner Sumner Regional Medical Center * * * 0 * 
Sumner TriStar Hendersonville Medical Center * * * * 20 
Washington Johnson City Medical Center 44 13 47 * 110 
Weakley West Tennessee Healthcare Volunteer 

Hospital 
0 0 * 0 * 

Williamson Williamson Medical Center 16 * * * 25 
Wilson Vanderbilt Wilson County Hospital 

(Lebanon) 
* * 11 * 22 

  Total 38,256 13,3
77 

50,441 23,3
00 

125,374 
       
       

Notes: 
      

Cardiac Cath  ICD-10, CPT codes and service categories provided by the 
Bureau of TennCare and the Tennessee Hospital Association. 

   

Data Source: Hospital Discharge Data System, 2016-2018. Office of 
Healthcare Statistics, Division of Population Health Assessment, Tennessee 
Department of Health.  Nashville, Tennessee. 
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TENNCARE/MEDICARE ACCESS: 
The applicant accepts Medicare and TennCare/Medicaid patients with participant number # 44-0068. 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS/FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY: 
The total estimated project cost is $5,050,000 and will be funded by parent company LifePoint.  The applicant 
includes a letter from the LifePoint president in Section B-Economic Feasibility 2E stating LifePoint will provide 
approximately $5,100,000 in funding to complete the project. 
 
SRMCA plans to renovate 432 sq ft and add 2,409 sq ft for a total of 2,841 sq ft of space for the initiation of 
cardiac catherization services at the Athens campus.  At a construction cost of $2,100,000, the cost per sq ft is 
$739, well above the average 3rd quartile range of $389.59 sq ft. 

 
 Project Costs Chart:  
 The Projected Costs Chart is located on page 43 of the application outling $2,100,000 in construction costs, 

$297,000 in architectural and engineering fees, and $1,410,000 in equipment. 
 
 Historical data chart:  Not applicable, this is a new project. 
 

The Projected Data Chart is located in Supplemental 2, pages 49R and 50R.  The applicant projects 323, 
380, and 420 procedures in years one, two, and three, respectively.  And projects net incomes of $430,115, 
$941,989, and $1,074,283 for years one, two and three. 
 

The applicant projects the following catherization volumes: 
 

Projected Cardiac Cath 
Volume 

   

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 
Projected Diagnostic Caths 223 277 306 
Projected Therapeutic Caths 90 103 114 
Total Projected Caths 323 380 420 

 
 

Proposed Charge Schedule 
 Year One Year Two 

Gross Charge $46,448 $48,621 

Average 
Deduction 

$39,090 $41,067 

Average Net 
Charge 

$7,358 $7,554 

 
Projected Payor mix Year 1 

Payor Source Projected Gross Revenue % of Total 
Medicare $9,709,270 64.7% 
TennCare/Medicaid $1,500,274 10% 
Commercial $3,747,233 25% 
Self-Pay $0 0% 
Charity Care $45,960 .3% 
Total $15,002,737 100% 

 
CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHCARE: 
The proposed Cath lab will house a GE Innova 530 cardiovascular/interventional imaging system, a control 
room, a holding area, and changing room.  
 
The applicant plans to partner with Parkwest Medical Center to assist in helping to identify cardiologists who 
are appropriately credentialed and trained  and have experience to perform diagnostic and therapeutic 
procedures.  
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The service area for the applicant is a medically underserved area which does not have access to cardiac 
catheterization services in the service area.  The area also has a higher than state average of heart disease 
making it important to provide services needed locally.  
 
The alternatives to the project were to initiate the cardiac service or to continue to not provide the service and 
have patients leave the area and travel for cardiac services elsewhere.  Further, some patient must use 
ambulance services to be transported for services.  This can often be delayed and is less patient friendly than 
providing the services locally.  There should be minimal if any negative effects on other providers as there will 
be no duplication of services. 
 
SRMCA has relationships with larger hospitals in Knoxville and Chattanooga including Erlanger Health System, 
Memorial Hospital, Parkridge Health system, UT Medical Center, Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center.  SRMCA 
also has relationships facilities in the surroundings counties.  
 
The applicant provides an emergency transfer plan flowchart in Supplemental 1 outlining the steps to transfer 
a patient from the proposed cath lab in case of emergency, along with a list of hospitals the applicant currently 
has established transfer agreements. 
 
The applicant participates in resident training programs with Erlanger and UT Knoxville, and clinical training 
programs for RN, LPN, BSN, OT, PT, ST, RT, EMT, paramedic and radiology. 
 
The applicant provides a letter from HMK Architects noting the appropriateness of the cost per sq ft ($740.00), 
and the commitment to develop the project in compliance with all local, state, and federal code guidelines. 
 

QUALITY MEASURES: 
Licensed by the Department of Health # 00000083 and accredited by the Joint Commission. 
 
The applicant will work with its parent company, LifePoint, and other LifePoint facilities which offer cardiac 
catherization services to establish appropriate protocols to monitor quality in the cardiac labs.  LifePoint also provides 
a Guidelines and Toolkit: Cardiac Catherization Laboratory Continuous Quality Improvement which the applicant will 
follow. 
 

SPECIFIC CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED 
 
The applicant responded to all relevant specific criteria for Certificate of Need as set forth in the document 
Tennessee’s Health: Guidelines for Growth, 2000 Edition. 

 
Standards and Criteria for All Cardiac Catheterization Services 

 
Applicants proposing to provide any type of cardiac catheterization services must meet the following 
minimum standards: 

 
1. Compliance with Standards: The Division of Health Planning is working with stakeholders to 

develop a framework for greater accountability to these Standards and Criteria. Applicants should 
indicate whether they intend to collaborate with the Division and other stakeholders on this matter. 

 
The applicant intends to fully cooperate with the Division and other stakeholders on this matter. 

 
2. Facility Accreditation: If the applicant is not required by law to be licensed by the Department of 

Health, the applicant should provide documentation that the facility is fully accredited or will pursue 
accreditation by the Joint Commission or another appropriate accrediting authority recognized by the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). 

 
The applicant is licensed by the Department of Health and accredited by The Joint Commission. 

 
3. Emergency Transfer Plan: Applicants for cardiac catheterization services located in a facility 

without open heart surgery capability should provide a formalized written protocol for immediate and 



CON#2101-001 Starr Regional Medical Center-Athens 
 Cardiac Catheterization - 6 - 

 

efficient transfer of patients to a nearby open- h e a r t  surgical facility (within 60 minutes) that 
is reviewed/tested on a regular (quarterly) basis. 

 
The applicant plans to have a formalized transfer agreement for emergencies with Parkwest Medical 
Center which is approximately 51 miles from the Starr campus. 

 
4. Quality Control and Monitoring: Applicants should document a plan to monitor the quality of its 

cardiac catheterization program, including, but not limited to, program outcomes and efficiency. In 
addition, the applicant should agree to cooperate with quality enhancement efforts sponsored or 
endorsed by the State of Tennessee, which may be developed per Policy Recommendation 2. 

 
The applicant will work with its parent company, LifePoint, and other LifePoint facilities which offer 
cardiac catherization services to establish appropriate protocols to monitor quality in the cardiac labs.  
LifePoint also provides a Guidelines and Toolkit: Cardiac Catherization Laboratory Continuous Quality 
Improvement which the applicant will follow. 

 
5. Data Requirements: Applicants should agree to provide the Department of Health and/or the 

Health Services and Development Agency with all reasonably requested information and statistical 
data related to the operation and provision of services and to report that data in the time and format 
requested. As a standard of practice, existing data reporting streams will be relied upon and adapted 
over time to collect all needed information. 

 
 

The applicant agrees to provide all reasonably requested data in a timely and accurate manner. 
 

6. Clinical and Physical Environment Guidelines: Applicants should agree to document ongoing 
compliance with the latest clinical guidelines of the American College of Cardiology/Society for 
Cardiac   Angiography   and   Interventions   Clinical   Expert   Consensus   Document   on   Cardiac 
Catheterization Laboratory Standards (ACC Guidelines). As of the adoption of these Standards and 
Criteria, the latest version (2001) may be found online at the following website:  
http://www.acc.org/qualityandscience/clinical/consensus/angiography/dirIndex.htm . 

 
Where providers are not in compliance, they should maintain appropriate documentation stating the 
reasons for noncompliance and the steps the provider is taking to ensure compliance. These 
guidelines include, but are not limited to, physical facility requirements, staffing, training, quality 
assurance, patient safety, screening patients for appropriate settings, and linkages with supporting 
emergency services. 

 
The applicant will comply with the latest clinical and physical environmental guidelines of the American 
College of Cardiology/Society for Cardiac Angiography and Interventions.  

  
7. Staffing Recruitment and Retention: The applicant should generally describe how it intends to 

maintain an adequate staff to operate the proposed service, including, but not limited to, any plans 
to partner with an existing provider for training and staff sharing. 

 
The applicant plans to partner with Parkwest Medical Center to assist in helping to identify cardiologists 
who are appropriately credentialed and trained  and have experience to perform diagnostic and 
therapeutic procedures. The cardiac lab will be staffed with two cardiologists, and RN and radiological 
technologists for a total of 7 FTEs. 

 
8. Definition of Need for New Services: A need likely exists for new or additional cardiac 

catheterization services in a proposed service area if the average current utilization for all existing 
and approved providers is equal to or greater than 70% of capacity (i.e., 70% of 2,000 cases) for 
the proposed service area. 
 
There are currently no other facilities which offer cardiac catheterization services in the three-county 
service area, nor within approximately 50 miles of the Starr hospital campus.  

http://www.acc.org/qualityandscience/clinical/consensus/angiography/dirIndex.htm
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9. Proposed Service Areas with No Existing Service: In proposed service areas where no existing 
cardiac catheterization service exists, the applicant must show the data and methodology used to 
estimate the need and demand for the service. 

 
Projected need and demand will be measured for applicants proposing to provide services to 
residents of those areas as follows: 

 
Need: The projected need for a service will be demonstrated through need-based epidemiological 
evidence of the incidence and prevalence of conditions for which diagnostic and/or therapeutic 
catheterization is appropriate within the proposed service area. 

 
Demand: The projected demand for the service shall be determined by the following formula: 

 
A. Multiply the age group-specific historical state utilization rate by the number of residents in 

each age category for each county included in the proposed service area to produce the 
projected demand for each age category; 

 
B. Add each age group’s projected demand to determine the total projected demand for 

cardiac catheterization procedures for the entire proposed service area. 
 

 
 
 
Using the projected age group population and utilization rates, the Department of Health confirms 
the applicant’s determination for cardiac catherization need below: 
 

Age Grp

Diagnostic 
Cardiac 
Caths

TN 
Resident 

Population Utilization Rate Age Grp
Therpaeutic 

Cardiac Caths

TN 
Resident 

Population Utilization Rate
Total 76,816 6,712,319 0.011444033 Total 54,918 6,712,319 0.008181628
0 - 17 1,312 1,499,379 0.000875029 0 - 17 2,543 1,499,379 0.001695835

18 - 29 551 1,100,835 0.000500802 18 - 29 631 1,100,835 0.000573474
30 - 39 2,051 859,720 0.002385311 30 - 39 1,166 859,720 0.001355907
40 - 44 2,708 408,441 0.006629359 40 - 44 1,271 408,441 0.003112570
45 - 49 4,808 441,275 0.010896372 45 - 49 2,279 441,275 0.005164576
50 - 54 7,455 448,305 0.016629291 50 - 54 3,771 448,305 0.008411678
55 - 59 9,816 455,230 0.021562052 55 - 59 5,715 455,230 0.012554743
60 - 64 11,054 421,388 0.026232356 60 - 64 7,205 421,388 0.017097544
65 - 69 11,959 366,508 0.032629545 65 - 69 8,514 366,508 0.023230850
70 - 74 10,472 278,867 0.037552982 70 - 74 8,079 278,867 0.028971841
75 - 79 7,664 190,854 0.040154848 75 - 79 6,569 190,854 0.034420612
80 - 84 4,521 123,625 0.036572601 80 - 84 4,297 123,625 0.034755821

85 + 2,445 117,891 0.020739555 85 + 2,877 117,891 0.024403968

Cardiac Cath ICD-9, ICD-10, CPT codes and service categories provided by the Bureau of TennCare and the Tennessee Hospital Association.

Source: Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Population Health Assessment.
Hospital Discharge Data System, 2016-2018. Nashville, TN.
Health Statistics Population Series, 2016-2018. Nashville, TN.

Cardiac Cath - State Utilization Rates

Three-Year Average - Highest Weighted Cardiac Cath Services Provided - Hospital Discharge Recorded Data - 2016-2018

Diagnostic Cardiac Caths Therapeutic Cardiac Caths

t 
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10. Access: In light of Rule 0720-4-.01 (1), which lists the factors concerning need on which an 

application may be evaluated, the HSDA may decide to give special consideration to an applicant: 
 

a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved area as designated by the United 
States Health Resources and Services Administration? 

 
According to the HRSA web site, all counties in the service area are medically underserved. 

 
b. Who documents that the service area population experiences a prevalence, incidence 

and/or mortality from heart and cardiovascular diseases or other clinical conditions 
applicable to cardiac catheterization services that is substantially higher than the State of 
Tennessee average. 

 

 
c. Who is a “safety net hospital” as defined by the Bureau of TennCare Essential Access 

Hospital payment program; or 
 
 

d. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract with at least one TennCare 
MCO and, if providing adult services, to participate in the Medicare program. 

 
The applicant participates in Medicare, and contracts with all the TennCare MCOs available in the service area. 
 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization Services Only 
 
If an applicant does not intend to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services, the HSDA should place a 
condition on the resulting CON limiting the applicant to providing diagnostic cardiac catheterization services only.  
Applicants proposing to provide only diagnostic cardiac catheterization services should meet the following 
minimum standards: 
 
11. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the proposed service 

utilization will be a minimum of 300 diagnostic cardiac catheterization cases per year by its third year 
of operation.  Annual volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin at 
the conclusion of the applicant’s first year of operation.  If the applicant is proposing services in a rural 

McMinn 

Mei~s 
Monroe 

TOTAL 

McMinn 
Melgs 
Monroe 
STATE 

TOTAL CARDIAC CATHETERIZA TIION NEED 

Diagnostic Need Therapeutic Need 
749.42 519.57 
186.56 140.84 
691.7 1 509.93 

1,'627.69 1,170.34 

Number of Deaths from Heart Disease 
Rates/100,00O Population 

2017 
315.8 
306.7 
257.4 
238.4 

Total Need 
1,268.99 

327.40 
t,20 1.64 

2,798.03 

2018 
279.6 
341 .5 
27,8.2 
242.5 . ' Source: Tennessee Department of Health, DMsio,n of Vital Records and Statisl 
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area where the HSDA determines that access to diagnostic cardiac catheterization services has been 
limited, and if the applicant is pursuing a partnership with a tertiary facility to share and train staff, the 
Agency may determine that a minimum volume of 200 cases per year is acceptable.  Only cases 
including diagnostic cardiac catheterization procedures as defined by these Standards and Criteria may 
count towards meeting this minimum volume standard. 

 
The applicant projects the following catherization volumes: 
 

Projected Cardiac Cath 
Volume 

   

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 
Projected Diagnostic Caths 223 277 306 
Projected Therapeutic Caths 90 103 114 
Total Projected Caths 323 380 420 

 
 

12. High Risk/Unstable Patients: Such applicants should (a) delineate the steps, based on the ACC 
Guidelines, that will be taken to ensure that high-risk or unstable patients are not catheterized in the 
facility, and (b) certify that therapeutic cardiac catheterization services will not be performed in the 
facility unless and until the applicant has received Certificate of Need approval to provide therapeutic 
cardiac catheterization services. 

 
The applicant states they will apply appropriate screening guidelines to screen out high risk and unstable 
patients. 
 

13. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation of a new diagnostic 
cardiac catheterization program should require at least one cardiologist who performed an average of 
75 diagnostic cardiac catheterization procedures over the most recent five year period.  All participating 
cardiologists in the proposed program should be board certified or board eligible in cardiology and any 
relevant cardiac subspecialties.   

 
The applicant proposes to initiate diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catherization services at the same 
time. 

  
 
 
Specific Standards and Criteria for the Provision of Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization Services 
 
Applicants proposing to provide therapeutic cardiac catheterization services must meet the following minimum 
standards: 
 

14. Minimum Volume Standard: Such applicants should demonstrate that the proposed service utilization 
will be a minimum of 400 diagnostic and/or therapeutic cardiac catheterization cases per year by its third 
year of operation.  At least 75 of these cases per year should include a therapeutic cardiac catheterization 
procedure.  Annual volume shall be measured based upon a two-year average which shall begin at the 
conclusion of the applicant’s first year of operation.  Only cases including diagnostic and therapeutic 
cardiac catheterization procedures as defined by these Standards and Criteria shall count towards 
meeting this minimum volume standard. 

 
The applicant projects the following catherization volumes: 
 

Projected Cardiac Cath 
Volume 

   

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 
Projected Diagnostic Caths 223 277 306 
Projected Therapeutic Caths 90 103 114 
Total Projected Caths 323 380 420 
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15. Open Heart Surgery Availability: Acute care facilities proposing to offer adult therapeutic cardiac 
catheterization services shall not be required to maintain an on-site open heart surgery program.  
Applicants without on-site open heart surgery should follow the most recent American College of 
Cardiology/American Heart Association/Society for Cardiac Angiography and Interventions Practice 
Guideline Update for Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (ACC/AHA/SCAI Guidelines).  As of the 
adoption of these Standards and Criteria, the latest version of this document (2007) may be found online 
at: 
http://circ.ahajournals.org/cgi/reprint/CIRCULATIONAHA.107.185159  
 
Therapeutic procedures should not be performed in freestanding cardiac catheterization laboratories, 
whether fixed or mobile. Mobile units may, however, perform therapeutic procedures provided the mobile 
unit is located on a hospital campus and the hospital has on-site open heart surgery.  In addition, 
hospitals approved to perform therapeutic cardiac catheterizations without on-site open heart surgery 
backup may temporarily perform these procedures in a mobile laboratory on the hospital’s campus during 
construction impacting the fixed laboratories. 

 
 The applicant does not offer open heart surgery and will follow the most recent American College of 
Cardiology  guidelines.  The applicant will maintain a transfer agreement with Parkridge Medical Center to 
provide emergency  care for patients that require it.  
 
16. Minimum Physician Requirements to Initiate a New Service: The initiation of a new therapeutic 

cardiac catheterization program should require at least two cardiologists with at least one cardiologist 
having performed an average of 75 therapeutic procedures over the most recent five year period.  All 
participating cardiologists in the proposed program should be board certified or board eligible in 
cardiology and any relevant cardiac subspecialties.   

 
The applicant has not identified the cardiologists providing services in the cath labs but commits to 
ensuring that each cardiologist providing services will meet all requirements including performing and 
average of 75 therapeutic procedures over the most recent five years, and will be board certified or 
eligible in cardiology. 

 
17. Staff and Service Availability: Ideally, therapeutic services should be available on an emergency basis 

24 hours per day, 7 days per week through a staff call schedule (24/7 emergency coverage).  In addition, 
all laboratory staff should be available within 30 minutes of the activation of the laboratory.  If the 
applicant will not be able to immediately provide 24/7 emergency coverage, the applicant should present 
a plan for reaching 24/7 emergency coverage within three years of initiating the service or present a 
signed transfer agreement with another facility capable of treating transferred patients in a cardiac 
catheterization laboratory on a 24/7 basis within 90 minutes of the patient’s arrival at the originating 
emergency department. 

 
 

The applicant plans to meet all the staff and service availability requirements. 
 

18. Expansion of Services to Include Therapeutic Cardiac Catheterization: An applicant proposing 
the establishment of therapeutic cardiac catheterization services, who is already an existing provider of 
diagnostic catheterization services, should demonstrate that its diagnostic cardiac catheterization unit 
has been utilized for an average minimum of 300 cases per year for the two most recent years as 
reflected in the data supplied to and/or verified by the Department of Health. 

 
Not applicable, the applicant proposes to initiate both diagnostic and therapeutic cardiac catherization. 
 
 

http://circ.ahajournals.org/cgi/reprint/CIRCULATIONAHA.107.185159
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